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PURPOSE i

We help individuals msses across communitiEeshicVeaatherr aspirations by
providing iInnovative financal services that meet their NegeR "

CUSTOMERS

We listen to our customers and understand their needs
We build enduring relationships with them by delivering
superior products and quality service

PEOPLE

We treat each other fairly and with respect We support
our colleagues and invest in their development to help
them realise their full potential We recognise and reward
outstanding performance

TEAMWORK

We, as team members, actively support each other across
the organisation as we work towards our common
purpose As indwiduals, we expect total respansibility

from ourselves

INTEGRITY
Fair dealing 15 the basis of our business We assume

everything we do 15 in full public view

PRUDENT RISK TAKING
We are prudent risk takers because our customers rely on
us for safety and soundness

EFFECTIVENESS

We actively invest in infrastructure, process improvement
and skills to lower our delivery costs We do the nght
things right the first ime, on time, every trme

2006

[ 1




2

]

LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS

Cheong Choong Kong
Chairman

2006 was the first year of our New Hornzons Il strategy and
we are pleased that 1t marked a good start to our five-year
plan  Underpinned by healthy economic conditions in the
region, and the investments we have made over the past years
to improve our capabihities and competitiveness, we achieved
ancther year of solid growth Group net profit soared 54 3%
to $%$2,002 millen, crossing the 5$2 tillion mark for the first
time in our history

Performance Review

Our core net profit rose a healthy 11 2% to a record $$1,443
rullion, compared to $3$1,298 million in 2005 Group net profit
was boosted by one-time divestment gains of $3559 million to
reach $$2,002 million These gamns resulted from our disposal
of non-core assets, specifically a residential development site
at Kim Seng Road and our shareholdings in Rebinsons, Straits
Trading, Southern Bank and Raffles Holdings Group core
revenues grew 12 3% to 533,242 milhon, while core operating
profits, before allowances and amortisation of intangibles, rose
9 7% t0 5$1,911 millon Our return on ordinary shareholders’
equity improved from 11 4% to 16 6%, or 11 8% excluding
the divestment gains

OCBC Annual Repoit 2006

Dawvid Conner
Chief Executive Officer

Our record earnings were a resuft of improved performances
all round - in our key geographical markets of Singapore,
Malaysia, Indonesia as well as overseas branches, and in both
lending and fee-based actiwities

Growth in interest earning assets and hugher interest margins
lifted our net interest Income by 12 3% to $$1,794 milion Qur
total loans grew 6 9% dunng the year, with moderate growth
in Singapore driven mainly by business lending, complemented
by healthy broad-based loan growth in Malaysia and Indonesia
Our net interest margin impraved by 16 basis points to reach
a four-year hugh of 2 0%, as higher yelds on loans and
interbank placements more than offset nsing borrowing costs
Non-interest income, excluding the divestment gains, grew
12 3% to 5$1,448 million, with strong caninbutions from
fees and commussions, insurance icome and foreign exchange
dealing income

Our operating expenses increased 16 3% to S$1,331 million,
attributed mainly to higher staff costs ansing from increased
headcount to fund our growing businesses, higher business
promotion expenses, accelerated depreciation charges and
one-off write-offs for fixed assets and software application
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systems Qur adjusied cost-to-income ratio  {excluding
divestment gains} was 41 1%, shghtly above the 336% In

2005

Continued successes In our recovery efforts for non-performing
assets helped to keep overall net allowances low at 532
million for the year, down from 5$12 muillion in 2005 Cur
non-performing loans ratto improved from 4 1% to 3 0%,
while overall allowance coverage of non-performing loans
strengthened further from 88 3% to 100 9%

OCBC Bank (Malaysia) Berhad achieved another year of steady
growth Operating profits before allowances ncreased by
19 2% to RM666 mullion, contributed mainly by higher net
interest income as loans grew 9 6% and interest margins
improved Qur bottomline net profit in Malaysia grew by a
slower 4 0% to RM431 mullion {53187 million), as the previous
year’s figure was boosted by write-back of allowances

Following a difficult year in 2005, our Indonesian subsrdiary
Bank NISP delivered a strong earnings rebound as the
macroeconomic  environment improved Bank Indonesia
reduced 1ts benchmark interest rate seven times dunng the
year as Inflationary pressures eased For the year, Bank NISP
achieved loan growth of 25 7%, while its net profit was IDR
237 bilion (5341 million), an increase of 15 6% over the
previous year, which included a IDR 127 billion gain from the
sale of an invesiment

Qur nsurance subsicdhary Great Eastern Holdings (" GEH")
achieved a 27 9% improvement in 1ts net profit to 58477 million,
underpinned by new business growth, healthy underwnting
profits and strong investment gains GEH's contribution to our
Group earnings, after deducting amortisation of intangible
assets and minonty nterests, was 53357 million, including
S$40 mullion of divestment gains

Continuing our policy of actve capital management, we
commenced our third $$500 millon share buyback programme in
June, of whuch 55231 milion has been utilised as of end-January
2007 During the year, we bought back approximately 65 7 miltion
shares for $%436 mullon Shares purchased since February 2006

have been held as treasury shares, partally used to satisfy the
delvery of shares under our employee share option and employee
share purchase plan

Our assets growth as well as capital management efforts
resulted in a shght decline n our capttal ratios to 13 1% for
Tier 1 and 15 8% for total capital, but these remamed healthy
and well above the regulatory minimums

Higher Dividends

As part of the ongoing assessment of our caprtal needs,
sustainable profitability and the appropnate level of dividends
to ensure a reasonable yeld, we announced in August an
tncrease In our target minimum dvidend payout from 35% to
45% of the Group's core earnings

The Board is pleased to recommend a final tax-exempt dvidend
of 12 cents per share for ordinary shareholders, bringing the
total distrbution for financial year 2006 to 23 cents (tax-
exempt) Thisis 25 0% higher than the 18 4 cents (net of tax)
paid for 2005, and represents a payout of 4% 1% of our 2006
core net profit, exceeding our minimum 45% target

As a result of our various capital management inibatives over
the past four years, all our avallable Section 44 tax credits
have been passed on to shareholders The Bank will move to
the one-tier tax system after the payment of the 2006 final
dvidend

Investing in Growth of Financial Services

A key pillar of our strategy, under both the New Honzons and
New Honzons Il strategic plans, has been to re-invest the gains
frorn selling non-core assets to expand our core financial services
businesses In line with this policy, we spent about 53450 million
on three major investments and acquisitions during the year —
increasing our stake in GEH, and becoming the first Singapore
bank to acquire stakes 1n banks in China and Vietnam

In July we launched a voluntary cash offer for the remaining
GEH shares we did not own, at 5$16 per GEH share We
receved acceptances amounting to 3 1% of GEH'S 1ssued share
capital Including our cash purchases duning the year, we invested

OCBC Annual Report 2006

[

3




4

]

Letter to Shareholders

a iotal of 53302 milion and our siake in GEH increased from
82 3% to B6 9%

In June we completed the acquisitton of a 12 2% stake In
China's Ningbo Commercia!l Bank (“NCB*) for $$122 mullion
We are now working closely with NCB to grow their smalt and
medium enterprise and consumer businesses, by providing a
comprehensive training and technical assistance programme
aimed at developing the leadership and staff of NCB We also
launched several joint initiatives to drive business collaboration
between OCBC and NCB in trade finance, investment banking,
cross-border finanaing and treasury, all of which have begun to
show promise

In October, we acquired a 10 0% stake in Vietnam Joint-Stock
Commercial Bank for Private Enterprises, or VP Bank, for 5§25
million We have an option to increase our stake to 20 0% by the
end of 2007, subject to regulatory approvals and the relaxation
of the current single foreign shareholder imit of 10 0% This
strategic acquisition positions us for growth in Southeast Asia‘’s
fastest growing economy, and we intend o work with VP Bank
to butld a leading consumer banking and SME franchise in
Vietnam, leveraging on our experience In the region

NTUC-OCBC Partnership

In February 2007 we announced the launch of Fairprice Plus, a
major collaboration with NTUC Fairprice Co-operative Limited
("Fairprice”) to offer simple banking solutions at all Farpnice
supermarkets and outlets in Singapore Fairprice operates
the largest 1sland-wide supermarket chain with a total of 196
retall outlets and more than 1 5 millon regular shoppers This
latest collaboration 1s a natural progression of our existing
partnership with the National Trades Umion Congress (NTUC),
which started with the launch of the NTUC-OCBC debit and
credit cards in September 2004, followed by the introduction
of several financial solutions over the past two years

Under Fairprice Plus, OCBC will develop appropnate products
and services for shoppers at Faprice, bult on three key
atinbutes - simphicity, transparency and value for money The
first products we will be launching in the second quarter of
2007 are a statement savings account with attractive deposit

QCBC &onua' Repart 2006

rates, and Fairprice Plus debit and credit cards which can be
used for payment at the Farpnice outlets We wall alse establish
new ATMs at all 81 Farprice supermarkets and hypermarkets,
and eventually at other Fairprice outlets

We are excited about this new collaboration The powerful
combinatton of Farprice and OCBC will bring to the
commurnity a wide array of affordable and easily accessible
financial products and services, and introduce a new way for
Singaporeans to grow and manage therr money

Looking Forward

The consensus view 1s for a modest slowdown in global economic
growth in 2007, with the US economy achieving a soft fanding
Most economists are positve on the outlook for Europe and
Japan, while Emerging Asia I1s expected to remain the fastest
growing region In the world, led by China and India

In Singapore, where the government projects GDP growth 1o slow
from 7 9% 1n 2006 10 4 5 - 6 5% In 2007, consumer confidence
and business prospects remain generally upbeat, given the
record number of jobs created last year, the upswing in the
property market, the impact of the integrated resorts, and good
corporate earnings and stock market performance In Malaysia,
the government expects GDP growth of 6%, largely similar to the
estimated 5 8% achieved in 2006, while in Indonessa, the central
bank forecasts GDP growth of 57 - 6 3%, compared ta 5 5%
for 2006

Against this backdrop, we are reasonably confident that we
will continue to grow and strengthen our franchise in our
key markets Our New Horizons |l strategy 1s showing good
momentum and we intend to stay the course

Currently one third of our Group earnmings 1s derived from
overseas operations While we have not set a numencal target
for our overseas contribution, we believe that in the medium to
long term, growth prospects for financial services are stronger
in developing economies like Malaysia, Indonesia and China
than tn the mature Singapore market We see the medium
term loan growih potenual for Singapore at around mid-
single digst, whereas for Malaysia we are reasonably confident
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of sustaning growth above 10% as in the past few years In
Indonesia, Bank NISP has the potential to grow loans by more
than 20% per annum given its smaller base and rapid network
expansion

Malaysia will remain our most important overseas market for
some time because of our long history there, and the customer
base and deep franchise that we have We will continue to
allocate significant resources to gain market share i this
market, focusing on the SME and consumer segments, and
working with Great Eastern Malaysia We are pleased to have
been granted permission by the central bank to open four new
bank branches last year, which will bring our branch network
to 29 We now have a larger branch network to serve our
customers better

In Indonesia, Chuna and Vietnam, our strategy is to transfer
successful business models and product solutions from
Singapore and Malaysia to our branches and strategic
partnerships in those countries

We will help broaden Bank NISPs produci offering, including
wealth management, credit cards, cash management and trade
services We will also support Bank NISP's network expansion plans
as 1t seeks to become a top-tier nationwide bank by 2010 Bank
NISP added 69 new branches and offices in 2006, bringing 1ts
network to 259 outlets, and «t targets to open more than 75 new
offices this year

ST

Cheong Choong Kang
Chairman

22 February 2007

In Chuna, we will continue to build on our strategic partnership
with NCB and at the same time invest in organic growth
through our OCBC network, which currently comprises seven
branches and representative offices in six aties In February
2007 we received approval from the China Banking Regulatory
Commussion to commence preparation for local ncorporation
We expect to establish our subsidiary in Chuna by the end of
2007 with loca! incorporation, we will be able to broaden
the range of Renminbi products and services to serve both
corporate and consumer customers, and have more scope and
flexibility to grow our business organically in China over the
longer term For a start, we are looking to open a new branch
in Guangzhou and upgrade our existing representative office
in Beying to 2 branch  We also plan to expand our sub-branch
network In existing branch locations to provide better access to
our target customers in consumer and SME banking

In Vietnam, we will deepen the level of our cooperation with VP
Bank through our training and capability transfer programmes,
particularly in consumer banking and nsk management We
will also jointly explore business opportunities with VP Bank

Acknowledgements

We thank our fellow Board members for their wise counsel
and guidance in steening OCBC on a steady growth path
We must congratulate and thank our employees at all levels
of the Group for ther dedication, hard work and teamwork,
without which we would not have achieved the good results
in 2006 Finally, our appreciatton goes to our loyal customers
and shareholders for their continuing support and confidence
in OCBC

David Conner
Chief Executive Officer
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Group Five-Year Finanaal Summary

Financial year ended 31 December 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

Income statements {$% millon)

Total income 3,840 2,887 2,625 2,193 2,222
Operating expenses 1,331 1,145 988 855 849
Operating profit 2,508 1,742 1,637 1,338 1,372
Amortisation of goodwill and intangible assets 44 40 158 127 127
Allowances for loans and impawrment of other assets 2 12 77 225 501
Profit before tax 2476 1,706 1,491 1,222 306
Profit atinbutable to equity halders of the Bank 2,002 1,298 1,148 954 667
Cash basis profit attributable to equity holders of the Bank * 2,046 1,338 1,306 1,081 794

Balance sheets (5% milhon)

Non-bank customer loans {net of allowances) 59,309 55,134 51,829 48,984 46,225
Non-bank customer deposits 75,115 64,088 57.287 53,460 53,948
Total assets @ 151,220 134,710 121,935 84,497 84,051
Assets, excluding life assurance fund investment assets @ 112,796 98,853 91,570 84,497 84,051
Total habilittes 2 136,723 121,223 110,216 74,419 74,808
QOrdinary shareholders’ equity 12,508 11,442 10,334 9,163 9,224
Total equity attributakble to the Bank's shareholders 13,404 12,338 11,230 10,059 9,224

Per erdinary share @

Basic earnings {cents) 634 401 354 300 215
Cash earnings {cents) " 648 414 40 4 341 2586
Net intenm and final dvidend (cents) ® 230 184 127 76 65
Net speaal and bonus dmdend (cents} ® - a7 - 207 -
Net asset value (S§) 407 367 327 298 298
Ratios (%)

Return on average ordinary shareholders’ equity 1656 1137 11 30 1003 735
Return on average assets 192 130 128 113 080
Dwidend cover {number of tirnes) ® 277 219 275 396 3N
Cost-to-income 337 396 376 390 382
Capital adequacy ratio ("CAR"} @

Tier 1 131 132 126 128 115
Total 158 173 177 184 208

t

Excluded amenusation of goedwili and intangible assets

@ 2004 and 2005 figures were restated for thereclassificationof certain e assurance fund lrabilities (previously netted againsthife assurance fund assets) and trading partfolioiabilities
{previously induded tn Singapore government treasury bills and securities)

@ 2004 and 2005 figures were restated to include life assurance fund cash and bank balances previously included in life assurance fund assets attributable to policyholders

“  per ordinary share data for financial years prior te 2005 were restated for the effects of 1-for 5 nghts 1ssue and sub-drnsion of one ordinary share of par value 551 to two ordinary
shares of par value 530 50, effected on 18 July 2005 and 5 August 2005 respectively

o 2006 dividends are tax exempt

® 2003 special dividend was announced on 19 March 2003 with an option to elect for Class G Preference Shares at an issue price of 530 995 per preference share 2005 bonus dividend
was announced on 11 May 2005, with an option to elect for the subscription of a renounceable non underwritten 1 for 5 nights issue of §$5 for each rights share in the captial of
CCBL Bank

 Return on average assets is calculated based on assets excluding life assurance fund investment assets

* Drvidend cover 1s the ratio of profit attributable to equity holders of the Bank after preference dividends to net dvidends {interim and final dwidend, excuding special and
bonus dividends)

® CARratos for 2003 to 2006 were computed based on the MAS capital framewaork, Notice 637 1ssued by the Monetary Authonty of Singapore on 28 May 2004 Prior period ratios were
not restated and were computed using the Bank of International Settlements guidelines

OCBC Annual Renort 2006
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Or Cheong was first appointed
to the Board on 1 July 1992 and
& |ast re-elected as a Director on
R 20 Apri 2006 On 1 July 2003,
he was appointed Chairman,
after having served as Vice
Chairman from 26 March 2002
to 30 June 2003 Dr Cheong
brings with him a wealth

of experience gained in his
extensive career, including

29 years at Singapore Airlines
Ltd, where he last held the
position of Deputy Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer
He 15 now a Director of

several companies, including
Singapore Press Holdings Ltd
and Great Eastern Holdings Ltd Dr Cheong holds a Bachelor
of Science with First Class Honours in Mathematics from the
University of Adelaide and a Master of Saience and a Ph D in
Mathematics fram the Australian National University Age 65

Dr Cheong Choong Kong,
Chairman

Mr Chin was appointed to the
Board on 1 October 2005 and
elected as a Director on 20 Apri!
2006 He s presently Chairman
of Singapore Totalisator Board
and serves on the board of
various compantes including
Neptune Crient Lines Ltd and
The Straits Trading Company
Ltd He also serves as a counal
member of the Stengapore
Chinese Chamber of Commerce
and Industry, a trustee of
Singapore Management
University and a member of
the Competition Commission
of Singapore Mr Chin was
formerly Managing Partner

of KPM®G Singapore, from which he retired in 2005 after a
30-year career Mr Chin holds a Bachelor of Accountancy from
University of Singapore and 15 an Associate Member of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, and
a Member of the Institute of Certified Public Accountants of
Singapore Age 55

Mr Bobby Chin

OCBC 2006

Mr Wong Pakshong was first
appointed to the Board on

' 21 April 1989 and last re-elected
as a Director on 20 Aprid 2006
0On 26 March 2002, he was
appointed Vice Chairman

He s presently Chatrman of
Great Eastern Holdings Ltd,
and 1s a Director of several
companies, including The
Straits Trading Company Ltd,

i WBL Corporation Ltd, Bukit
Sembawang Estates Ltd and
Sime Darby Berhad

Mr Wong Pakshong holds a
Bachelor of Arts with Honours
andaHon LLD fromthe
University of Bristol He 1s also
a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales and a Member of the Institute of Certified Public
Accountants of Singapore Age 75

Mr Michael Wong Pakshong,
Vice Chairman

: ':g Mr Conner was first appointed
ll to the Board on 15 April 2002
and last re-elected as a Director
on 30 March 2005 He has

| extensive banking experience in
the Asia Pacific region, having
worked for over 25 years with
Citibank, N A where he served
as Managing Director and
Market Manager for CGtibank
Japan from 1999 He was also
Chief Executive Officer of

' Crtibank India from 1996 to
1999 and, prior to that, was
Country Corporate Officer for
Citibank’s Singapore operations
He 15 presently a Commissioner
of PT Bank NISP Tbk and a
Director of several companies, Including Great Eastern Holdings
Ltd, Bank of Singapore Ltd, OCBC Bank (Malaysia) Berhad, Lion
Capital Management Ltd and The Esplanade Company Ltd

Mr Conner holds a Bachelor of Arts from Washington University
in St Lowis and a Master of Business Adrministration from
Columia University Age 58

Mr David Conner,
Chief Executive Officer




Mr Giam was first appointed to
the Board on 1 January 2005
and elected as a Director on

30 March 2005 He is presently
Senior Partner of law firm Wee
Swee Teow & Company, and a
Director of several companies
and statutory boards, including
Guthrie GTS Ltd, Energy Market
Authority, Health Sciences
Authority and Singapore
Institute of Directors He was
appointed Senior Counsel In
1997 He I1s also the Singapore
Ambassador {(Non-Resident)

to Peru and Singapere High
Commissioner (Non-Resident)
to Ghana He holds an LLB
{Honours) and an LLM degree from the University of Singapore
Age 64

Mr Giam Chin Toon,
Sentor Counsetl

B Or Lee was first appointed to
the Board on 4 April 2003 and
last re-efected as a Dwrector on
20 April 2006 He is presently
Associate Professor of
Duke-NUS Graduate Medical
School (Singapore) and s a
Director of Fraser and Neave
Ltd, Lee Foundation, several Lee
Rubber Group of Caompanies,
and a Commissioner of PT Bank
NISP Tbk Dr Lee graduated
with a Doctor of Medicine
degree from Yale University He
also holds a Master of Business
Administration with Distinction
from Imperial College, London
Age 43

Dr Lee Tith Shih

Mr Lee was first appointed

§ 1o the Board on 25 February
1966 and last re-elected as a
Director on 20 Aprit 2006 He
was Chairman of OCBC Bank
from 1 August 1995 to 30

June 2003, and continues to
serve on the Board Executive
Commuttee and the Board
Nominating Committee He s
presently a Director of several
compantes, including Great
Eastern Holdings Ltd, GIC Real
Estate Pte Ltd, Lee Rubber
Group of Comparies and Lee
Foundation Mr Lee holds a
Bachelor of Applied Suence in
Engineertng from the University
of Torento and a Master of Business Adminsstration from the
University of Western Ontario Age 76

Mr Lee Seng Wee

Tan Sr1 Dato Nasruddin was first
appointed to the Beard on

13 November 2000 and last
re-elected as a Director on

30 March 2005 He is presently
Charrman of OCBC Bank
(Malaysia) Berbad, Affin Money
Brokers Sendinan Berhad and
Sumber Petroleum Cemerlang
(SPC) Sendinan Berhad He

15 also a Director of several
companies, including Lingkaran
Trans Kota Holdings Berhad
(LITRAK) and The Pacific
Insurance Berhad Tan Sri Dato
Nasruddin holds a Bachelor of
Arts with Honours from the
University of Malaya

and a Master of Pubhc Administration from the

University of Pittsburgh Age 69

Tan Sr1 Dato Nasruddin
Bin Bahan
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Professor Neo Boon Siong

* €| Professor Neo was first
, appointed to the Board on 1

January 2005 and elected as a
Director on 30 March 2005 He
1s presently Director of the Asia
Competitiveness Institute at
the Lee Kuan Yew School

of Public Policy In National
University of Singapore, and
serves as a Director of several
companies, Including Great
Eastern Holdings Ltd and
Keppel Offshore & Marine Ltd
He holds a Bachelor of
Accountancy with Honours
from the National University of
Singapore and a Master of
Business Administration and

Ph D from University of Pittsburgh Age 49

Dr Tsao Yuan
{also known as Dr Lee Tsao Yuan)

ol 1

-

Dr Tsao Yuan was first
appointed to the Board on 3
Apnl 2002 and last re-elected
as a Dwrector on 30 March 2005
She 1s presently a Director of
Keppel Corporation Ltd and
Skills Development Centre

! Pte Ltd Dr Tsao Yuan holds

a Bachelor of Econamics
and Statistics with First Class
Honours from the University
of Singapore and a Ph D

in Econormcs from Harvard
Unversity Age 51

2006

Mr Pramukt: was appointed to

the Board on 1 june 2805 and

elected as a Director on 20 April

, 2006 He has been with PT Bank

W i NISP Tbk for 18 years and 1s
2 ¢l presently 1ts President Director
W and Chief Executive Officer
He was a Commissioner of Bank
QOCBC-NISP from 1997 to 2000
Mr Pramukti holds a Bachelor
of Scence {Finance & Banking)
from San Franaisco State
Unwversity, a Master of Business
Administration (Banking) from
Golden Gate University and has
participated in Special Programs
in International Relations in
International University of
Japan Age 44

Mr Pramukti Surjaudaja

I Col (Ret} Wong was first
appainted to the Board on

1 August 1999 and last

re elected as a Directoron 15
Apnl 2004 He s presently a
Director of several companies,
including Bank of Singapore
Ltd, OCBC Bank (Malaysia)
Berhad, Ascendas-MGM

Funds Managernent Ltd, LMA
International NV and
Pan-United Marine Ltd

Col {Ret) Wong holds a
Bachelor of Arts with Honours
1n Econormucs and a Master of
Arts from the University of
Cambnidge He s also a Member
of the Iinstitute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales and the Institute

of Certified Public Accountants in Singapore Age 53

Col {Ret) David Wong
Cheong Fook




' Mr Yeoh was first appointed
to the Board on 9 July 2001
and last re elected

as a Director on 20 April 2006
He i1s presently Chairman

of Tuan Sing Holdings Ltd
and a Director of several
comparnues, including
MabileOne Ltd, Accuron
Technologies Ltd and Times
Publishing Ltd Mr Yeoh
holds a Bachelor of Science
with Honours from the
University of Malaya Age 69

Mr Waong was first appeinted
to the Board on 1 August 1938
and last re-elected as

a Director on 30 March 2005
He 15 presently Chairman of
WBL Corporation Ltd, Banking
Computer Services Pte Ltd and
BCS Information Systems Pte
Ltd, and serves on the board
of Bank of Singapore Ltd, SIA
Engineering Company Ltd and
PacificMas Berhad He s also a
Commussioner of PT Bank NISP
Tbk Mr Wang holds a Bachelor
of Arts degree wath Honours in
Economics from the University
of Singapore Age 67

Mr Wong Nang Jang Mr Patrick Yeoh Khwai Hoh

OCBC. . » 2006 [ 1
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PRINCIPAL OFFICERS

Mr David Conner
Chref Executive Officer

Mr Tan Ngiap loo Group Business Banking

Mr Tan was appointed Deputy Prestdent in Decernber 2001 He currently oversees the Group’s efforts in
managing and growing both corporate and SME customers globally A veteran banker with 36 years of
banking experience, Mr Tan was the Executive Director and CEQ of Bank of Singapore (Austraha) for six
years Prnior to joining the OCBC Group, he was with a foreign financial institution for 20 years Mr Tan
holds a Bachelor of Arts from the University of Western Austrahia Age 61

Dato Albert Yeoh  Drrector and CEQO OCBC Bank Malaysia

Dato Yeoh was appointed Senior Executive Vice President in January 2001 A seasoned banker with more
than 30 years of banking experience, Dato Yeoh has headed the Group's Malaysian operations since
January 1999 He joined the OCBC Group in March 1996, initially as Director and CEQ of OCBC Bank
Malaysiz and subsequently as Head of Retail Banking, OCBC Bank He haolds a Bachelor of Economics
{double major in Economics and Operations Research) from Manash University of Australia, and a Master

of Science in Management from the University of Salford, England Age 57

Mr Andrew Lee Kok Keng  Group Consumer Financial Services

Mr Lee was appointed Executive Vice President in November 2003 He was appointed Head of Group
Consumer Finanaial Services in June 2005 and 1s responsible for OCBC Bank's consumer banking business
Mr Lee has 27 years of banking experience In several senior level executive positions, involving strategy,
overseeing implementation and setting new standards of banking performance He holds a Bachelor of
Social Suence {Honours) from the University of Stngapore Age 54

Mr Linus Goh TiLilang  internatronal
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Mr Goh was appointed Executive Vice President in April 2004, when he joined the OCBC Group He heads the
International diwision and is responsible for delivering growth across OCBC'sinternational network Mr Goh
has over 20 years of banking expenence, including 17 years at Citibank where he held several seruor roles
overseeing corporate banking, financial institutions, e-business and transaction banking Mr Goh holds
a Bachelor of Arts (Philosophy) with Honours from the National University of Singapore Age 44
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Mr Na Wu Beng  international

Mr Na was appointed Executive Vice President in March 2001 Currently assigned to Bank NISP, he
jotned 1ts Board of Directors as Deputy President Director in September 2005 with responsibility over
risk management Mr Na |oined the OCBC Group in February 1990, and was responsible for the Bank's
operations in Hong Kong and North Asia Prior to that, he was at International Bank of Singapore for
11 years, where he was based in Taiwan for seven years He holds a Bachelor of Arts (Economics} with
Honours from Coventry {Lanchester} Uruversity, UK Age 50

Mr Lai Teck Poh  Corporate Management

Mr Lai was appointed Executive Vice Presidentin January 1988 He is currently in a senior advisory position,
working closely with the management of Bank NISP in Indonesia Prior to that, he had responsibilities for
Audit, Risk Management, Corporate Banking, IT, Investment Management and Central Operations Mr Lat
has nearly 40 years of banking experience, including 20 years in Gitibank N A Singapore with overseas
assignments in Jakarta, New York and London He holds a Bachelor of Arts with Honors from the University
of Singapore Age 62

Mr George Lee Lap Wah  Group Investment Banking

Mr Lee was appointed Executive Vice President In August 2005 Previously Head of Corporate and Institutional
Banking and Head of Capital Markets, he currently oversees the Group's debt capital markets corporate
finance, merger and acquisition and mezzanme investment businesses Mr Lee has more than 27 years of
banking experience and has held senior level positions in Credit Suisse First Boston, Credit Suisse Singapore
and Security Pacific National Bank Mr Lee holds a Bachelor of Business Administration with Honours from
the University of Singapore and 15 a Chartered Financia! Analyst Age 54

Mr Lam Kun Kin  Group Treasury

Mr Lam was appointed Executive Vice Pressdent in January 2007, and oversees the Group's finanaal market
businesses and asset liability management in Stngapore, Malaysia and other overseas markets VWith over 20
years of treasury experience, Mr Lam has held senior positions in the Government of Singapore Investment
Corporation and Citibank N A Singapore Prior to joining the Group, he was managing director of Asia
Financaial Holdings, a subsidiary of Temasek Holdings He holds a Bachelor of Accountancy with Honours
from the National University of Singapore and 15 a Chartered Financial Analyst Age 44

Mr Neo Bock Cheng  Group Transaction Banking

Mr Nec was appointed Senior Vice President in April 2005 Previously Head of Cash Management
and Financial Institutions Services, he currently oversees the Group's Transaction Banking Division,
which provides cash management, trade finance, trustee and nominee services to corporate and SME
customers Mr Neo brings with him more than 17 years of relationship management experience from

several foreign banks in Singapore, which includes Citibank and Chase Manhattan Bank Mr Neo
‘ holds a Bachelor of Engineering {Civil andConstruction) from Nanyang Technological University Age 42
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Mr Soon Tit Koon  Growp Fimance

Mr Soon was appointed Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer in September 2002 His
responsibibties include capital management, financal and management accounting, management
information systems, legal and compliance, and investor relations He was formerly the Chief Financial
Officer of Wilmar Holdings for about 3 years and was with Cticorp Investment Bank, Singapore, for 17
years Mr Soon holds a Master of Business Administration from the University of Chicago and a Bachelor
of Saence with Honours from the University of Singapore Age 55

Mr Ching Wer Hong Group Qperations and Technology

Mr Ching was appointed Executive Vice President in Apnil 2005 He currently oversees the Group's
transaction processing and technology operations Mr Ching has more than 22 years of experience
in regional finance, corporate banking and cash management Before joining the Group, he was
Director of Corporate Finance, Philips Electronics Asia Pacific He also held senior regional assignments
in Bank of America and was Treasurer of Union Carbde Asia Pacific Mr Ching holds a Bachelor of Business
Administration from the National University of Singapore Age 47

Mr Gilbert Kohnke  Group Risk Management

Mr Kohnke was appointed Executive Vice President and Head of Group Risk Management in September
2005, overseeing credit, market and operational risk management He has over 18 years of banking
experience Prior to Jjoining OCBC, he was Head of Risk Management for Asia at Canadian Imperial Bank
of Commerce and subsequently Head of European Portfolio Management of CIBC based in London He
holds a BA in Economics from University of Western Ontano, a Bachelor of Commerce in Accounting from
University of Windsor, Ontarno and an MBA from University of Hawan Age 48

Mr Larry Lam Group Audit

Mr Lam was appointed Executive Vice President and Head of Group Audit i January 2006 He
admunusters the internal audit programme within OCBC  He has over 20 years of audit experience
and was previously Head of Internal Audit of a bank 1n Singapore since lanuary 1998 Mr Lam holds a
Bachelor of Science in Information Systems and a Master of Business Administration, both from Califorra
State Polytechnic Umiversity He s a Certified Public Accountant {(Califormia) and a Certified Infarmation
Systems Auditor Age 50

Mrs Teng Soon Lang  Group Quality & Process Innovation

Mrs Teng was appointed Executive Vice President and Head of Group Quality and Process Innovation in
January 2003 She is responsible for cross-functional process innovations and building a quality culture
across OCBC Prior to joining the Group, she worked in DBS Bank and the Institute of System Science
Mrs Teng holds a Master of Computer Science and Information Systems, a Bachelor of Accounting with
Honours from National University of Singapore and a Post Graduate Qualification from the Institute of
Cost and Management Accountants, UK Age 56

OCBC annual Resort 2006




Mr Vincent Soh  Group Property Management

Ms Cynthia Tan Guan Hiang  Group Human Resources

Ms Tan was appointed Executive Vice President in Aprit 2005 Being Head of Group Human
Resources, she Is responsible for the management as well as traming and development of OCBC's
human capital Ms Tan has over 22 years of experence in this field, having held senior level
positions In DFS Ventures, Mentor Graphics, Apple Computer and Nationa! Semuconductor
She was also a former lecturer in Business Studies at Ngee Ann Polytechmic She holds a Masters
in Business Administration from the University of Hull, UK Age 56

Mr Sch was appointed Semor Vice President in lune 2004 As Head Group Property Management,
he 15 responsible for managing the Group's real estate portfolio Mr Soh has over 26 years of experience
in real estate management, having held semior level positions in public and private sectars Mr Soh holds
a Master of Science (Property & Maintenance Management) and Master of Public Policy, both from
National University of Singapore He 1s also an Associate Member of the Royal Institution of Chartered
Surveyors, UK Age 51

Mr Peter Yeoh  Group Secretariat

Mr Yeoh was appointed Senior Vice President in January 1997 and Company Secretary in August 2002 Since
joining OCBC, he has held responsibilities in finance, accounting and management information services
Mr Yech was previously with Price Waterhouse He holds a Bachelor of Commerce from the University
of Western Australia, and 15 a Member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in Austraha and the

Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Singapore Age 52

Ms Koh Ching Ching  Group Corporate Communications

Ms Koh was appointed Head of Group Corporate Communications in November 2004 and Semior Vice
President in Apnl 2006 She 1s responsible for OCBC's communications imtiatives with the media, public,
employees, customers and shareholders Prior to this, she led the Group's trade finance franchise expansion
In Malaysia With over 15 years of corporate banking experience, Ms Koh has held vanious seruor customer
and product positions She was also instrumental in the success of a major cross-functional process
improvement project within QCBC She graduated with First Class Honours in Business Administration
from National Urwversity of Singapore Age 39
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NEW HORIZONS I

New Horizons Il 15 our five-year strategy from 2006 to 2010 It continues on the broad strategic direction and successes of New
Horizons (2003 to 2005) The emphasis 15 on embedding OCBC in the region through a build-and-transfer approach, and on
continuing our efforts to bulld a high performance bank through a balanced scorecard discipline

o e - ‘

Seek International Growth

We will deepen our market penetration in Malaysia, Indonesia and China and explore opportunities to establish strategic partnerships
in Indochina Cur aim 1s to grow our market share 1n the consumer and SME segments In Indonesia and China by transferring
successfu) business models and product solutions to existing branches and alliances in the two countries

Build a High Performance Bank

Customers

We aim to sustain our top 3 consumer banking position and
become one of the top 3 corporate banks in the combined
Singapore-Malaysia market

Products

We will build more best-in-class products and strive to
become known for product innovation by sustaining 15%
revenue centribution from new products annually

We aim to be one of the top 3 banks for wealth management,
credit cards and unsecured lending in the combined
Singapore-Malaysia market

Risk Management

We will expand our balance sheet proactively to deliver
enhancednsk-return, and executeourBaselllimplementation
plan in ine with regulatory guidelines

We aim to maintain our position as one of the highest rated
banks in Asia-Pacific

Productivity

We will leverage our cross-border processing hubs m
Singapore and Malaysia to deliver further efficiency gains
We strive to be an efficient, low cost service provider

QCBC Aninye Repor 2006

People

* We will bulld people resources with a focus on diversity,
cross-border management skill sets and competencies to
support our overseas expansion efforts

+ We will maintan our share ownership schemes so that
all our employees can easily own CQCBC shares

* We aim to continually improve employee satisfaction so
that we are increasingly recognised as a regional employer
of choice

Shareholder value

+ \We aim to deliver 10% earnings per share growth annually,
as well as achieve and sustain ROE of above 12%

¢ We will periodically review our target mmmimum dwdend
payout of 45% of core earnings for possible increase

+ We will continue to divest non-core assets at the right
time and invest the gamns in core finanaal services growth
oppoertunities, and return excess capital to shareholders via
share buyback programmes
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Customers

Expanded cansumer customer base by 4%

Maintained No 1 positton in bancassurance

Launched interactive ATM, first in Asia to do so

Increased total revenues of large corporate business by 8%
Expanded SME customer base by 9%

Increased cross sell ratio for SME business by 35%
Launched more than 10 innovative products and services
for SMEs

Products

Launched 78 new products which accounted for 13 5%

of revenues

Increased Veloaty@ochc customer base and transaction
volumes

Named Best Corporate/institutional Internet Bank tn
Malaysia by Global Finance

Maintained No 1 position in bancassurance

Increased number of credit cards in Singapore and Malaysia
by 18%, exceeding the 1 mulion mark

Achieved strong survey rankings for SGD and MYR treasury
products

Lion Capital garnered 17 local and overseas awards and 16
new mandates exceeding 53500 million

Risk Management

Remained on track to implement Basel Il in 2008 with
parallel run for credit nsk in 2007

Set up new team to undertake active portfolic
management strategies

Maintained strong credit ratings Aa3 by Moody's, A+ by
S&P and AA- by Fitch

Achieved Risk Management House of the Year Award 2006
by Asia Risk

Productivity

Reduced unit processing cost by 9% across 7 operations
factones

Completed cross-border hubbing for 4 work streams,
with up to 70% of Singapore transactions now being
processed in Malaysia

Provided quality training for more than 7,600 employees
to-date

« Completed 10 process improvement projects with expected

$$19 midlion margin savings

People

» improved employee engagement score by 5 percentage
points

+ Increased employee shareholding to 39% from 29%

« Improved participation rate in 2nd Employee Share
Purchase Plan ("ESPP”) to 42%, up from 33% for 1st ESPP

+ Created more opportunities for cross-border assignments
for employees

« Developed a structured 3-year management development
programme for all new executives

* Increased average training man-days by 16% to 7 9 days

Shareholder Value

¢ Improved core ROE to 11 8% for 2H06

» Increased core EPS by 13% vs 10% target

+ Raised minimum dndend payout to 45% of core earnings,
actual payout amounted to 49%

* Reahized $$559 million gains from dwestrments and
invested $$449 million in Great Eastern Holdings (“GEH"),
Ningbo Commercial Bank ("NCB") and VP Bank

« Ranked 16ih among global large-cap financial institutions
for total shareholder returns over 3, 5 and 10 years

Overseas Expansion
Indonesia

* Established 69 new Bank NISP branches, increasing
network to 259 branches

« Garnered more than 700 SME sign-ups for Velocity@nisp

* Increased bancassurance fees by 40% with further
collaboration between GEH and Bank NISP

China

» Acquired 12 2% stake in Ningbo Commerciat Bank
("NCB”)

+ Launched joint initiatives wath NCB in trade finance,
investment banking, cross-border financing and treasury

* Recewved regulatory approval to prepare for local
ncorporation

» Commenced operations by Great Eastern Life Assurance
{China) Company Ltd, a joint venture between GEH
and Chongaqing Land Properties Group

OCBC 2006
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SINGAPORE

In Stngapore, we are leveraging on our customer Insights to deliver attractive
value propositions and differentiated customer expenences

Focusing on service excellence, we have launched several initiatives to provide our customers with greater convenience
and differentiated offerings These initiatives include full-service Sunday banking at five of our branches, secure cellphone
mobile banking (a first in Southeast Asia), and an interactive ATM service (a first in Asia) that recognises customers and
prompts them to update therr contact details A Quick Cheque Depaosit service for our SME customers was established at
five selected Shell petrol stations, another industry first

To address SMEs' need for hassle-free financing, we launched the Business Term Loan, providing up to $$150,000 in

working-capital financing to SMEs with no collateral required and a fast approval-turnaround time of no more than five

days from application

NTUC continues to be an important partner as we work together to offer simple finanaal
products and services to meet the needs of the community During the year, we launched
1wo insurance products to help young union members as they builld therr famibes One
of these, the Children Plan 1s the only insurance plan available in the market for those
who want to cover their children for unexpected hospitalisation expenses as well as pre-

tertiary education expenses

OCBC 2005
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MALAYSIA

We continue to deepen our market and product penetration in Malaysia

We are capitalising on opportunities arising from financial liberalisation to further expand our network and to reach out to
more customers We added 3 new branches in Malaysia in 2006, bringing our network to 28 branches nationwide We also
Jjoined forces with three other major foreign banks to launch HOUSe, a shared ATM network which gives our customers
access to more than 300 ATMs throughout the country In addion, we continued to leverage on the distnbution potenual

of Great Eastern’s agents through a cross-referral programme, which contributed half of the 36% increase in our Malaysia
card base in 2006

We continue to enhance our product novation 1o better meet customers’ needs We were the first bank in Malaysia
to offer Islamic personal financing approvals within a day, reducing the time for cash disbursements from three weeks
previously to just five days Through our secured cheque writing software, we helped our SME clients achieve efficiency
in the printing and 1ssuance of cheques We have also implemented a structured trade finance programme to prowide
pre-shipment finanaing to our SME chents

QCBC Annual Report 2006
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INDONESIA

We are bullding Indonesia as a major growth engine after Singapore
and Malaysia

Qur subsichary, Bank NISP, 1s rapidly investing i its network and human resources as it seeks to grow its SME and consumer
businesses in Indonesia 69 new offices were added 1n 2006, bringing its network to 259, while 1ts ATM network grew by
more than 100 to 346 It plans to open more than 75 new offices in 2007 Staff strength also expanded by nearly 40% to
more than 4,300

We have intensified our business collaboration and capabiity-transfer efforts to support Bank NISP's growth strategy
For example, Bank NISP's customer-facing staff are being trained in OCBC's customer service programme  Velocity@nisp,
madelled on our award-winning corporate internet banking and cash management platform, achieved healthy sign-ups
among SME customers In bancassurance, the collaboration with Great Eastern Life has contnibuted to a 40% jump in Bank
NISP's insurance fee income
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Powering rapid growth through Bank NISP
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CHINA

We are positioned for long term growth in China through our partnership with
Ningbo Commercial Bank and our local incorporation plans

Following the acqusition of a 12 2% stake in Ningbo Commeraial Bank {*NCB"), we are working closely with NCB to
further grow its SME and consumer businesses, through a comprehensive training and technical assistance programme We
have launched several joint iniatives wath NCB 1n the areas of trade finance, investment banking, cross-border finanaing

and treasury

We are also growing organically in China through our existing network of seven branches and representative offices, nding
on the strong investment inflow and growth in intra-regionat trade We received regulatory approval in February 2007 to
commence preparations for local incorporation, which wall allow us to offer a broader range of RMB praducts and services

for both consumer and SME customers We expect our subsichary to be established by the end of 2007

24 ]  OCBC 2006
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

We are actively helping the communities that we operate In even as we grow
our businesses

Our corporate sacial responsibility programme focuses on helping children and young adults realise thesr full potential We
continue to actively support our adopted chanty, the Singapore Children’s Soctety {*SCS”) Apart from our donation of
s$2 5 midlion over five years, many of our employees also volunteered therr time and skills to help the children in vanous
actraties Working with Alpha Financial Adwisers {a subsidiary of Great Eastern Holdings), we developed a money management
programme, including an engaging board game, to teach the SCS children sound saving-and-spending habits

To help raise the leracy level of children from less privileged backgrounds, we are contributing $$450,000 over three years
to the NTUC Childcare Bright Honzons Trust Fund  In addition, we launched two new OCBC scholarships to enable students
from China, Indonesia and Malaysia to pursue higher education (n Singapore

Followtng the May 2006 earthquake in Yogyakarta, we made a jont-donation with
Bank NISP of $$180,000 to help rebuild schools and distribute books and uniforms to
affected children

OCBC Annual Report 2006
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Operations Review

In an environment marked by intense competition and sound economic growth, we achieved improved results
across all our major business segments and geographic markets in 2006 The disciphined execution of our
New Horizons Il strategy and our investments in building stronger capabilities, continue to drive the broad-
based growth 1n our businesses In particular, we made good progress in deepening our market penetration
in Malaysia, Indonesia and China, while maintaining our substantial market share in Stngapore

CONSUMER FINANCIAL SERVICES

Our consumer banking business in Singapore and Malaysia
delivered healthy results despite the competitive landscape and
the relatively weak industry-wade growth in consumer loans in
Singapore Group Consumer Financial Services’ revenue rose 10%
to 5$1,010 million, and net profit grew 11% to $$380 muillion
Qur consumer customer base grew 4%, with particularly strong
expansion in Malaysia, while our premier banking customer base
surged 33%

OCBC remained a market leader 1n total wealth management
sales in the combined Singapore and Malaysia market, achieving
sales of 538 billton, although these were 21% lower than in 2005
The dechne was mainly due to reduced demand for structured
deposits as a result of the flat yield curve as well as competiion
from hugher depositrates Leveraging on our exclustve partnership
with Great Eastern HWoldings, we continued to be the leading
distributor of bancassurance products in Singapore with a 39%
market share, up from 37% in the year before Our umt trust
sales rose 7% n Singapore and 30% in Malaysia, on the back of
buoyant equity market sentiments and investor confidence

In the Singapore home loans market, we maintaned our number
two position in terms of outstanding portfolic balances We
launched two unique home loan packages which were firsts in
the banking industry Qur QuickOwn Home Loan 1s a combined
home loan cum endowment plan, whereby annual payouts
from the endowment plan go towards paying down the
mortgage, allowang borrowers to pay off their home loans
faster while at the same time enjoying insurance protection Our
Reverse Mortgage package provides customers with an added
cash flow option without the need to sell an unencumbered
property In therr twilight years

Our card business fared well in Stngapore and Malaysta, with the
total number of cards in force growing by 18% and crossing the
one million milestone for the first time In Singapore, the number
of cards increased by 12% while credit card receivables rose
13% OQur Titarmum card won the MasterCard 2006 Plattnum
Award for Best Innovative Card Product (Prermium Category} in
the Asia Pacific, Middle East & African region  Collaborating with
the Stngapare Management University, we introduced a first-of-
its-kind student led programme which allowed SMU students
to conceptualise, design and market a specifically tallored co-
branded card programme The October launch was a resounding
success with 40% of the SMU studeni population signing up
for the SMU-OCBC Debit Card within two months of the
soft launch
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Our Malaysia card busmess continued to out-perform the industry
growth rate, achteving 36% growth in the number of cards in
force Half of the increase came from cross-referrals by Great
Eastern surance agents to their policyholders, up from the one
third contnbution in 2005 We also successfully re-launched our
Titamum card in Malaysia, achieving growth of over 440% for
the prermium card market segment

We achieved another first with our personal revolving line of
credit EasiCredit, offening the highest credit mit 10 the market
and a yearly cash rebate on the interest charges We also
launched Express Cash which allows consumers to draw cash
from an unsecurad loan within an hour of applying at any OCBC
branch island-wide in Singapore

Qur partnership with NTUC, which started in 2004, saw good
progress dunng the year with the launch of two insurance products
specifically for urion members The Parenthood Plan helps young
couples prepare for pregnancy and childbirth costs, wath options
for maternity, hospitalisation and surgical benefits The Children
Plan is the only insurance plan avallable in the market for those
who want to cover therr children for unexpected hospstalisation
expenses as well as pre-tertiary education expenses Several
NTUC-OCBC MoneyWise seminars were also held throughout
the year, providing Singaporeans with practical advice on how to
save and grow therr money

Throughout the year we continued to invest in and improve our
customer service delivery and customer touch-points so that
we offer a deliberate and differentiated customer experience
To understand and serve our customers better, we have also
enhanced our customer analytics and marketing capabilities,
reaping significant results Leveraging technology to enhance
our analytics capabilittes won us the 2006 Marketing Success
Award from Umca, a leading global provider of enterprise
marketing soluttons We won the award In a competitive
international field, receming peer recognition of how we
embraced marketing technology to deliver value to customers
and achieve strong business results

We also embarked on a multi-channe! programme to enable our
customers to bank with us through different channels according
to their needs and preferences We enhanced cur secured mobile
banking services which are now available via a wide range of
2 5G and 3G mobile phones across all three Singapore mobile
network operators In November, full-service Sunday banking
was introduced at five of our Singapore branches following an
extensive customer survey which showed that customers would




Operations Review

appreciate such services The responses well exceeded our most
optimistic expectations in terms of customer traffic and new
accounts cpened

We introduced a cross-border ATM cash withdrawal service with
Malaysia, allowing customers from both OCBC Singapore and
participating banks in the Malaysian Electronic Payment System
{MEPS) to withdraw cash at each other’s ATMs We also became
the first bank in Asia to offer an interactive ATM service that
recognises and prompts customers to update ther contact
details, providing greater customer convenience and at the same
time enhancing our productivty as the updated information
Is entered directly into our database

In December, we introduced a Two-Factor Authentication
(2FA) solution as an added secunty measure for our Internet
Banking users We were the first bank n Singapore to provide
a mobile phone token option as well as the first to offer three
types of 2FA tokens (mobile phone, hardware and SMS) which
caters to vaned needs and lifestyles, mmnimising any potential
customer Inconvenience

In Malaysia, gradual liberalisation 1n the financial sector allowed
us to expand our branch network and enhance our ATM reach
during the year Following the authonities’ approval for foreign
banks to open four new branches each, we added three new
branches by yearend, at Batu Maung (Penang), Puchong
{Selangor} and Min (Sarawak), bringing our Malaysia branch
network to 28 We also launched a shared ATM service, HOUSe,
with three other locally incorporated foreign banks, gwving our
customers access to more than 300 ATMs across the country

BUSINESS BANKING

Group Business Banking’s total revenue grew 14% to 551,135
million, while its net profit grew 12% to 53628 milion The
improved performance was driven by loan growth of 12%
and higher contributions from treasury, trade and investment
banking activities, encompassing the large corporate and small
and mechum enterprises ("SME") businesses  Qur focus on
improving cross-sell, financing our network customers going
regional, and the roll-out of our new value propositions for SMEs
across Singapore and Malaysia gained good traction

In Singapore, loan demand from our large corporate and SME
customers was boosted by the strong economic environment
and buoyant property markeis We achieved loan growth in
several sectors mcluding real estate development and investment,
transportation and logistics Lending to large corporates was also
driven by the regional expansion of our clients, pnmarily in China
and Indonesia

In Malaysia, we enjoyed broad-based loan growth among
business clients, particularly n the plantations, ol and gas and
real estate seciors Major financing mandates clinched included

the innovative RM200 milhon securitization of plantation assets
for Kwantas Corporation Berhad, the RM400 million, five-year
syndicated loan for Umnisem Berhad and the RMB&O5 millon
financing for acquisition of the Pantal Hospital chain by Khazanah
Holdings and Parkway Group

During the year we launched several new products and services
In Singapore and Malaysia targeted at the SME segment, which
were well received by the market

In Singapore, we launched the Business Term Loan, which
provides up to 5$150,000 in working capital financing to SMEs,
with no collateral required and an exceptionally fast approval
turnaround time of no mare than five business days from receipt
of the apphication Through our tie-up wath Shell, we launched
the Quick Cheque Deposit service at five selected Shell petral
stations in Singapore This is a first 10 the industry and provides
added convenience to our business customers to deposit their
corporate cheques without having to wisit our branches We
also launched eAlerts@oche, which allows customers to access
therr company account balances through the mobile phone
and to receve useful alerts such as incoming funds and funds
top-up requests

In Malaysia, our Eas-Procheck product provides SME customers
the convenience of printing cheques, replacing manual cheque
writing through our secured cheque wnting software  This helps
the SMEs achieve efficrency in their payment processes without
compromising on security Another new product was Easi-FPX,
an auto-debit collection service designed to assist companies
In the collection of recevables and to improve ther cashflow
management We also re-engineered our credit underwniting
and portfolio management processes for the enterprise mass
market (which caters to customers with annual turnover of up
to RMI15 mullion) and launched credit scoring for this business
segment, shortering turn-around bmes and mproving our
processing productivity

The success of our cross-sell efforts resulted in the bank cinching
several investment banking mandates in the large corporate
segment, notably as co-arranger of the IPQ of First REIT, the
first hospitality REIT to be listed on the SGX, which raised
$%5100 milion  OCBC was also the joint financial adwsor, lead
underwriter and book runner for the 5$270 million IPO of Frasers
Centrepaint Trust

TREASURY

Group Treasury achieved a 9% increase i net profit to 5$145
million tn 2006, despite the continued flattening of the yield curve
which depressed our treasury net interest income Investments in
boosting our treasury capabilities 1n overseas centers also paid
off, with thewr net profit surging 127%

Our enhancements 1n customer advisory, product structunng and
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Operations Review

pricing support resulted in sigrificant growth in cusiomer-related
treasury revenues, ranging from 15% for basic foreign exchange
products to over 67% for interest rate derwatives

Over the past two years, we have enhanced our treasury team
by hinng senior professional marketing managers from global
investment banks, mud-career professionals as well as young
graduates This has led to a transformational improvement in
our people management and marketing strategy With intensive
trairng, our treasury sales teams able to market multiple products
across various asset and hability classes, and lend therr support to
deliver innovative treasury solutions for our customers

We are replcating our successful model and experiences in
Malaysia, our biggest treasury center outside of Singapore Cur
Malaysia team had made their presence felt in the Ringgit Interest
Rate Swaps, Options and Ringgit Forward Rate Agreement
market In terms of structured products, we are regarded as one
of the biggest providers of Ringgit principal protected investments
to Investors 1n Malaysia

Third party surveys showed that we are making good progress
in our goal of becoming the "bank of choaice” for treasury
instruments In both Singapore Dollar and Ringait currencies
OCBC was ranked top two n six (out of seven) Singapore Dollar
denorminated categories and top three in all Ringgit-denominated
categories by Asra Risk Interdealer Survey 2006 OCBC also did
well in the Asia Risk End User Survey 2006, with number one
ranking in three Singapore Dollar denominated categories

INVESTMENT BANKING

Our Corporate Finance team had an active year due to the
buoyant equity market in Singapore QCBC sponscred seven
new equity offerings, raising aggregate funds of 53471 milion
This included the IPOs of two REITs — Frasers Centrepoint Trust
and First REIT — and three China companies Leveraging on our
own innovative tax credit-driven rights issue exercise in 2005, we
successfully marketed the structure to our customers during the
year, completing 10 deals and garnerng 80% market share

Our Capial Markets team successfully executed the first
ever S$-denominated ‘AAA commercial mortgage-backed
securities transaction for a Singapore REIT, in a deal for Frasers
Centrepaint Trusts funding vehicle OCBC remained one of the
top bookrunners of vanable rate notes and a major player in the
Singapore Dollar bond market On the syndicated loans front, we
were ranked number three in Singapore by IFR Asia based on the
value of executed deals We have also expanded geographically
by completing a number of deals in Hong Kong and Indonesia

In Malaysia, we completed more landmark capital market
transactions, including an asset-backed secuntization transaction
for Aragorn ABS Berhad and an Islamic secuntization of ol
palm assets for Kwantas Corporation Berhad Rating Agency
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Malaysia Berhad accorded us the prestigious “New Asset Backed
Secuntizatron{"ABS")}8enchmark Deal Award 2006 Wecontinued
our pioneering efforts i Islamic financing with the 1ssuance
of RM200 milion Mudharabah islamic bonds The successful
closure of a RMA00 mullion three-year loan for Unisem, the largest
and longest tenure syndication for a semiconductor company
in Malaysia, further underpinned OCBC's position as one of
the leading arrangers in the Malaysian syndication market

In addition to working with our Business Banking clients in
Singapore and Malaysia, our Mezzanine Caprtal Unit also started
marketing to clients in Hong Kong, China and Indonesta  In
Singapore and Malaysia, we funded several companies which
are targeung lisuing Rwverstone Holdings Lirmited, one of the
companies we invested in, was successfully listed on the 5GX In
addition, we funded two pnme residential development projects
in Singapore, including a direct equity stake in Greenix Limited to
develop a project on Sentosa Island

TRANSACTION BANKING

QCBC continued to strengthen its position as a provider of best-
in-class cash management products and services in Singapore
and Malaysia Significant resources were channelled to improve
the usability and functionaliies in Velocrty@ocbc, our flagship
business Internet banking service Our online customer base In
Singapore and Malaysia increased by 19% and 29%, respectively,
while transaction volumes rose 21% n Singapore and by 11
times in Malaysia We were awarded Best Corporate/institutional
Internet Bank in Malaysia by Global Finance magazine for the
second year running in 2006

In Singapore, we launched eAlerts@ocbe, which alerts customers
of thew current account status such as funds top-up alert
and cheque clearance We also enhanced our two-factor
authentication security measure for Internet transactions through
Velociy@ochc

Our trade ftnance business registered healthy growth in both
Singapore and Malaysia In Singapore, our financing of import
and export transactions increased by 11% and 25% respectively
We also became the first local bank in Singapore to sign up
with the International Finance Corporation {((FC) as a "Confirming
Bank” in the IFC Global Trade Finance Program This allows
us to better service the trade flows with emerging markets,
and reinforces our commitment as a sermous global trade
finance player

In Malaysia, our trade revenues increased 23% and our SME trade
customers grew 22% We successfully launched a trade credit
programme, Order Based Import Financing Programme, to support
Malaysian SMEs’ trade finance needs This programme was
previously available only to large corporations  We also established
a dedicated contract finanang department to tap opportunities in
the ol and gas, contract financing and government sectors
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Our subsidiary OCBC Trustee became the first local bank-backed
trust company to receive a Trust Business Licence In Singapore
This allows us to better serve the wealth management
needs of our high net worth customers, and to take full
advantage of opportunities in the growing trust services idustry
In Singapore

MALAYSIA

OCBC Malaysia achieved another year of strong operating
perfarmance and market share gains  Operating profits before
allowances increased by 19% to RM666 mullon, driven largely
by higher net interest income from loans growth and improved
Interest margins Net profit grew by a slower 4% to RM431
milhion ($$187 mullion), as the previous year's results were boosted
by a net allowance write-back of RM26 million, compared
to allowances of RM63 milion 1in 2006 Total assets grew by
19% to RM36 7 billion, while customer loans increased by a
broad-based 10% to RM23 9 billion

Following the hiberabisation initiatives introduced by Bank Negara
Malaysia In early 2006, we added three more branches to our
network, raising the total to 28 branches across Peninsula and
East Malaysia The new branches — in Batu Maung (Penang),
Puchong (Selangor) and Min (Sarawak) — serve the needs of the
immediate neighbourhoods as well as the wider customer base in
the surrounding areas Notably, the Puchong branch now serves
as a mobule sales hub for the entire southern Klang Valley area,
while the Mir branch focuses on the northern Sarawak region

OCBC Malaysia's Islamic Banking dmsion continued its steady
growth, achieving RM3 2 bifion in assets, RM2 6 billion in
customer deposits, and RM1 6 billion in outstanding finanaing as
at end-2006, representing growth rates of 35%, 35% and 17%
respectively Among the highlights for 2006 were the launch of
the inaugural QCBC Isfamic Banking Week and the completion
of a cross functional process improvernent project which allowed
us to deliver approvals for our popular islamic personal financing
product, Cash Financing- within 24 hours of our recewing a
customner application, a first in Malaysia  We also reduced the
time-to-cash for the product to just five days, compared to an
average of three weeks previously We continued to participate
in a variety of exhibitions and forums to promote Islamic Banking
and, as in the past eleven years, contnbuted zakat (Mushm tithe)
in line with the Syariah principle of prowiding for the poor and
needy in soctety

To dwersify and strengthen OCBC Malaysia’s Tier-2 capital and
support the ongoing expanston of our 1slamic Banking business,
we raised RM200 millon from the issue of Malaysia's first
islamic subordinated bonds, based on the Islamic principle of
Mudharabah (profit shanng) The bonds are rated AA2 by Rating
Agency Malaysia Berhad

INTERNATIONAL

QOutside of Singapore and Mataysia, OCBC has an international
network of 24 branches and representative offices in 13 countries
across ASEAN, Greater China and selected OECD countries
Our 72 3%-owned subsidiary Bank NISP has an additional 253
branches and otfices across Indonesia

Favourable regional economic conditions contributed to healthy
performances for our overseas branches in 2006, particularly In
Southeast Asia and Greater China We also established strategic
partnerships with Nimgbo Commercizl Bank in China and VP
Bank n Vietnam through the acquisstton of minority stakes

Indonesia

Bank NISP delivered robust results in 2006 amidst an improving
macro-economic environment Despite the absence of investment
gains which boosted the previous year's results, its net profit rose
16% to IDR 237 billion (5341 million), contnbuted by strong
loan growth of 26%, improved interest margins and higher non-
interest income  Total assets grew by 21% to IDR 24 2 trllion

During the year we intensifted aur business coliaboration and
capabilty transfer efforts to further support the expansion of
Bank MNISPs consumer and SME businesses About 900 of Bank
NISP’s branch-based staff were trained in OCBC's customer
service programme as they geared up for the rapid expansion of
the branch network, with 69 new branches and offices opened
during the year In bancassurance, the collaboration with
Great Eastern Life contnbuted to the 40% jump in Bank NISP's
insurance fee income In business banking, a project to re-model
Bank NISPs small enterprises business was undertaken, by
adapting OCBC's business model Veloaty@nisp, which was
first introduced to Bank NISP's SME customers in 2005, achieved
encouraging sign-ups of more than 700 customers In addition,
OCBC continued to actively assist in Bank NISPs ongoing
improvements to their sk management, audit, IT and operational
platforms and processes

China

OCBC was the first Singapare bank to acquire a stake in a
Chinese bank, with our purchase of a 12 2% stake in Ningbo
Commeraal Bank ("NCB") for RMB570 miflion {$$122 million)
The transaction was completed in June

We established a comprehensive training and technical assistance
programme aimed at developing the leadershup and staff of NCB,
in support of their efforts to transform the bank into a leading
regional player in the Chinesefinancial sector Five training sessions
were conducted for NCB's management at OCBC Singapore
and Malaysia dunng the year, covering consumer banking,
business banking, treasury, nsk management, and operations
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& technology We also launched several joint initiatives to drive
business collaboration between OCBC and NCB in trade finance,
investment banking, cross-border financing and treasury

NCB achieved astrong operating performance in 2006 Its audsited
net profit grew 34% to RMBB32 million (5$124 milhon) Loans
grew 43%, while its asset quality and capital position remamned
strong, with an NPL ratio of 0 3% and total capital adequacy
ratio of 11 5% as at end-2006

Our China branch operations also enjoyed healthy business
growth, with our business banking actwities benefiting from
the continued inflow of investments into China and growth
in intra-regional trade Our Greater China SME business I
focused on several industry value chains i the Yangtze Rwer
Delta region In consumer banking, we continued to develop
our wealth management services targeting the growing affluent
in China, in preparation for the liberalisation in RMB-based
retail banking to local residents

In February 2007 we recewved approval from the China Banking
Regulatory Commussion to commence preparation for local
incorporabion With local incorporation, we will be able to
broaden the range of RMB products and services to serve both
corporate and consumer customers in China

Vietnam

In October 2006, QCBC acquired a 10% stake in Vietnam Joint-
Stack Commeraal Bank for Private Enterprises (VP Bank”) for
VND 250 billon {$$25 million), becoming the first Southeast
Asian bank, and the fourth foreign bank, to acguire a stake 1n a
commercial bank in Viegtnam  We have an option to increase our
stake to 20% by the end of 2007, subject to regulatory approvals
and the relaxation of the current single foreign shareholder limit
of 10% This investment posttions us for growth sn Southeast
Asia’s fastest growing economy, and we intend to wark with VP
Bank to build a leading consumer banking and SME franchise in
Vietnam, leveraging on our experiencg in the region

OPERATIONS & TECHNOLOGY

Our Operations & Technology division continued to focus on
delivering greater cost efficiency, productwity, and service
excellence We set targets of achieving 25% productivity
improvement and 15% unit cost reduction over two years through
ngorous process improvernent efforts and quabty initiatives

A number of hubbing, quality, IT and procurement initiatives
were executed during the year, yielding cost savings and margin
improvements

s We achieved productvity improvements of 11% and
unit cost reductions of 9% across seven operations
factories in Singapore and Malaysia for 2006
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Hubbing of Singapore cards approval processing to Malaysia
was successfully completed Over the past two years, we have
completed the cross-border hubbing for four major work
streams to Malaysia ~ account services, trade finance
operations, card operations, and cards application processing
- and achieved more than 20% reduction in urnit costs

e We delivered 12% savings in our technology mainienance
and support expenses

* We established a Group-wide procurement polcy and
process and identified some early savings

» Several joint initiatives with Great Eastern Life were
completed, includng a shared data network and
infrastructure, business continuity planming and disaster
recovery facilities, thereby enhancng the contingency
support between the two companies

We are bulding a clear IT architecture and strategy with a
long-term technology apphcation roadmap as we continue
to consoldate and ratonalise our suite of systems  During
the year we improved our technology service management
faciity by deploying a state-of-the-art Enterprise Monitoring
Systern together with the Technology Dashboard to provide a
consolidated and dynamic view of our service performance,
thus allowing for early problem detecuion, quick resalution and
proactive prevention We also undertook the following projects
as part of our capabibity bullding investments

¢ Use of a new Service Oriented Architecture to provide
reusability of enterprise-wide business application software,
thereby lowering implementation cost and Improving
IT response 1o business needs

¢ Implementation of a new private banking system to
present a single consotidated view of our private banking
customers, thereby faclitating better service

e Further enhancements to our infrastructure and delivery
channels including ATMs, mobile banking, internet banking,
and other self-service channels

« Consolidation of treasury system support onte a new single
platform for both Smgapore and Malaysia

= Development of an end-to-end credit nsk management
system covering loan origination and central habilities
tracking, with the first phase beng implemented
in November

QUALITY & PROCESS INNOVATION

We continue in our relentlass pursuit of differentiating OCBC
through service excellence, grounded on improvements In
Quality Delivering Six Sigma excellence forms the foundation of
our efforts to provide a great customer expernence at OCBC

With strong executive sponsorship and cross functional project
teams, our qualiy and process iInnovation efforts across Singapore
and Malaysia have gathered increasing momentum, resulting in
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quantum improvements to some key customer-facing processes

e Our corporate account opening process was radically
redesigned and simplified to provide greater convenience
and speed to corporate customers Customers can
now establish a new account relatignship with the bank
instantaneously with minimal documents to be submitted
This 15 a breakthrough in wview of the previous
complex documentation that was expected of our corporate
customers, making 1t easter for our customers to do business
with OCBC

» Through nnovatve process redesign  and industry
benchmarking, the cycle time of application to disbursement
for our Cash Fmancing-t product in Malaysia has been
tnmmed from 15 days to 5 days

s The post-approval credit facity fulfilment process for
corporate customers has improved significantly, allowing
our customers to draw down ther approved loans faster

Simphfied processes such as the above have facilitated the
acguisition of new customers at a much reduced cost Improved
customer engagement processes also result in clear target
markets and risk acceptance cnteria, enabling us to achieve
hugher approval rates without compromising on risk

PROPERTY MANAGEMENT

OCBC Group's Investment properties, amounting to more than
two milhon square feet of net lettable area and mainly located
n Singapore, are actively managed to optimise rental returns
and capnal values Our office, retall and residential properties
performed well in 2006, achieving full or near full occupancy
We sold our residential development land at Kim Seng Road for
$$329 million, realising a net gain of 53260 million

We launched a major renovation programme for our head office
bullding OCBC Centre, upgrading the common areas, interior
amenities and engineering services The urban plaza of OCBC
Centre 15 also being enhanced with the introduction of lush
landscaping surrounding the renowned Henry Moore sculpture
The upgrading programine is expected to be completed by the
end of 2007

HUMAN RESCURCES

Qur Group staff strength rose 8% in 2006 to 15,858, with most
of the tncrease coming from Bank NISP, OCBC Malaysia and our

China gperations  This was n line with the increased resources
being deployed for our overseas expansion

Our human resource efforts are focused on providing employees
with appropriate training and career development programmes,
opportunities to refresh ther careers, as well as mproving
overall employee satisfaction so that OCBC will be increasingly
recogrised as a regional employer of choice Good progress
was made in 2006, with the employee engagement score from
our annual employee survey showing a further ymprovement
of 5 percentage pomnts from the previous year, marking the
fourth consecutive year of improved scores

Average traiming man-days per employee rose 16% to 79
man-days, once agamn exceecing our target of five man-days
A new traming centre, named OCBC Learning Space, was
opened at our head office bulding OCBC Centre, providing
a more conducive learming environment for all statf We
introduced a structured three-year training programme - the
OCBC Learning-3 - for all new executives

We have intensified our taleni recruitment and management
Intiatives overseas to build greater dwersity, cross-border
management skills and to support our regional expansion We
participated (n vanous campus events In Singapore, Mataysia,
China, Austraha, the UK and the USA to recruit graduating
students Management associates were also recruited for our
Malaysia and China operations for the first time In addition,
more of our employees are being given opportunities for
cross-border assignments

Continuing our pro-family imitiatives, we opened a new chid
care faciity at OCBC Centre in January 2007 to provide child
care support services for cur employees, a first among financial
institutions in Singapare  [n response to employee feedback,
we have also enhanced our employee benefits programme,
the OCBC Flex Plan, pronding employees with greater flexibility
and choice

We launched our second Employee Share Purchase Plan (ESPP)
for the offering penod July 2006 to June 2008, achieving a
parucipation rate of 41%, an improvement from the 33%
participation for the first plan launched 1in 2004 Including
employees who hold share options and deferred shares,
our employee shareholding now stands at 39%, up from 29%
in 2005
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OCBC Bank is fully committed to integrity and fair dealing 1n all its activities, and upholds the highest
standards of corporate governance It adopts corporate governance practices in conformty with the Banking
(Corporate Governance) Regulations 2005 and corporate governance guidelines i1ssued by the Monetary
Authority of Singapore (“MAS”), as well as with the Code of Corporate Governance 2005 (the “Code")
adopted by the Singapore Exchange Secunities Trading Ltd (“SGX-5T")

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Board Composition and Independence

OCBC Bank defines the independence of its Dwectors in
accordance with the Banking (Corporate Governance) Regulations
2005 and with the Code  An independent Director 1s one who
15 Independent from any management and business relationship
with the Bank, and mdependent from any substantial shareholder
of the Bank

The Board comprises 14 Directors, of whom, amajority or eight are
independent Directors  They are Mr Bohby Chin, Mr Giam Chin
Toon, Tan Sr1 Dato Nasruddin Bin Bahari, Professor Neo Boon Siong,
Dr Tsao Yuan, Col (Ret) David Wong, Mr Wong Nang Jang and
Mr Patnck Yeoh In addiion, another three Directors are
independent from management and business relationships  They
are Mr Michael Wong Pakshong, Mr Lee Seng Wee and Dr Lee
Tih Shih  Altogether, a significant 11 out of the 14 Directors are
either independent Directors or iIndependent from management
and business relationships

The Chairman, Dr Cheong Choong Kong, although a non-
execuiive Director, 's deemed not independent from business
relationship because of an agreement made between Dr Cheong
and OCBC Management Services Private Lmited, a wholly-owned
subsicdiary of the Bank, under which Dr Cheong 1s appointed
as a consultant and entitled to certain payments and benefits
(detalls of which are provided in the Directors’ Report) Mr
David Conner and Mr Pramukti Surjauda)ja are not independent
from management the former 15 executive Director and Chief
Executive Officer (* CEO") of the Bank while the latter 1s President
Director of PT Bank NISP Tbk, a subsidiary of the Bank

The roles of the Charrman and the CEC have been separated
since 1998, which i1s consistent with the principle of Instituting an
appropriate balance of power and authorty The Charman’s
responsibilities, to name a few, incdude leading the Board to
ensure its effectiveness on all aspects of its role, setting 1is meeting
agenda, ensuring that Directors recenve accurate, timely and clear
information, ensunng effective cornmunication with shareholders,
encouraging constructive relations between the Board and
Management, facltating the effective contnbution of non-
executive Directors, ensunng constructive relations between the
executive Director and non-executive Directors, and, promoting
high standards of corporate governance
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The members of the Board as a group provide core competencies
to ensure the effectiveness of the Board The competencies
include banking, nsurance, accounting, finance, law, strategy
formulation, business acumen, management experience and
depth, understanding of industry and customer, familianty with
regulatory requirements and knowledge of rnisk management
Detalls of the Directors’ professional qualfications and
background can be found on pages 176 to 189

As a prinaple of good corporate governance, all Directors are
subject te re-nomination and re-efection at regular intervals
ang at least every three years The Bank’s Articles of Assaciat:on
provide for the retrement of Directors by rotation and all
appointments and re-appointments of Directors have to he
approved by the MAS

The Directors have mutiple board represeniations, but the
Nominating Committee 1s satisfied that the Directors have been
able to devote adequate time and attention to fulfill their duties
as Directors of the Bank

Given the size of the Bank, its business complexity and the number
of board committees, the Board considered that an appropniate
Board size 1s between 12 and 14 members The actual Board size
currently s 14

Board Conduct and Responsibilities

The Board 15 elected by the shareholders to supervise the
management of the business and affairs of the Bank The prime
stewardship responsibility of the Board Is 10 ensure the viability of
the Bank and to ensure that it 1s managed in the hest interest of
the shareholders as a whole while taking into account the
interests of other stakeholders

Broadly, the responsibilities of the Board include the following

* reviewing and approving overall business strategy, as
well as organisation structure, developed and recommended
by management,

« ensuring that decsions and investments are consistent
with long-term strategic goals,

« ensunng that the Bank 15 operated to preserve Its
financial integrity and 1n accordance with policies approved
by the Board,
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e providing oversight 1n ensunng that the Banks nsk
appetite and actvittes are consistent with the sirategic
Intent, operating environment, effective internal controls,
capital sufficiency and regulatory standards,

» overseeing, through the Audit Committee, the qualty
and integnty of the accounting and financial reporting
systems, disclosure controls and procedures and internal
conirols, and through the Risk Commritee, the guality of
the sk management processes and systems,

* reviewing any transaction for the acquisstion or disposal
of assets that 1s matenial to the Bank,

* ensuning that the necessary human resources are In
place for the Bank to meet its objectives, as well as
appointing and removing management,

* reviewing management performance and ensuring that
management formulates policies and processes to promote
far practices and high standards of business conduct
by staff,

e seiting corporate  values and  standards, which
emphasize Integnty, honesty and proper conduct at all
times, with respect to internal dealngs and external
transactions, including  situations  where  there are
potential conflicts of interest,

* pronding a balanced and understandable assessment
of the Bank's performance, positton and prospects, and
this extends to intennm and other price-sensitive public
reports, and reports to regulatars,

= ensunng that obligations to shareholders and others are
understood and met, and

* maintaning records of all meetings of the Board and
Board Committees, in particular records of discussion on
key deliberations and decisions taken

The non-executive Directors on the Board constructively challenge
and help develop proposals on strategy, and review the
performance of management in meeting agreed goals and
objectives and monitor the reporting of performance They meet
during the year, without the presence of management, 10 discuss
the effectiveness of management

In 2006, the Board and its commitiees held a total of 37
meetings Prior to each meeting, members are provided wath
timely and complete informauion to enable them to fulfill their
responsibiities  Information  provided includes  background
information on matters to be addressed by the Board, copies
of disclosure documents, monthly internal financial statements,
nsk management reports, budgets, forecasts, and reports of
variances from budgets and forecasts

The Board and its committees have separate and independent
access to the Bank’s senior management and to the company
secretary The Directors, in addition, could take independent
professional adwce from legal firms at the Bank's expense
The role of the company secretary 1s defined He attends
all board meetings and ensures that board procedures and

applicable regulations are comphed with Under the direction
of the Charman, he ensures good information flows within the
Board and its committees and between semor management
and non-executive Directors, as well as facilitates orientation
of new Directors and professional development of Directors, as
required The appomtmentand removal of the companysecretaryis
considered to be a matter for the Board as a whole

The Directors recetve appropriate structured training This includes
introductory information, briefings by senior executives on their
respective areas and attendance at relevant external courses The
Board as a whole also receives bniefings on relevant new laws,
nsk management updates and ¢hanges in accounting standards

Board Performance

The Board has implemented an annua! performance evaluation
process, carried out by the Nominating Commuttee, to assess the
effectiveness of the Board, Board Commuttees and each Director’s
contribution The purpose of the evaluation process 1s 1o Increase
the overall effectiveness of the Board An independent consultant
facihtates this process

The Directors participate n the evaluation Each Director
evaluates the performance of the Board and Board Committees
and conducts a self-assessment and a peer-assessment
of the other Directors The assessments are made agamnst
pre-established ¢ritena which are derived from the Board’s charter
and responsibiiies The results of the evaluation are wused
constructively by the Nommating Committee to discuss
improvements with the Board and to provide developmental
feedback to ndividual Directars The Chatrman acts on the results
of the evaluation, and if appropriate, proposes new Directors or
seeks the resignation of Directors, 1 consultation with the
Nominating Committee

BOARD COMMITTEES

The composition of the Bank's Board Commitiees satisfies
the independence requirements of the Banking (Corporate
Governance) Regulations 2005, as well as the Code

Executive Committee

The Executwe Committee comprises Dr Cheong Choong Kong
({Chairman), Mr David Conner, Mr Lee Seng Wee, Mr Wong Nang
Jang and Mr Patrick Yeah The Committee has wniten terms of
reference that describe the responsibifities of its members

The Executve Commuitee oversees the management of the
business and affaws of the Bank and the Group, within the
parameters delegated by the Board It reviews the Bank’s policies,
principles, strateges, values, objectives and performance targets
These include investment and divestment policies 1t also endorses
such other matters and imitiates any speaial reviews and actions
as apprapriate for the prudent management of the Bank
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Nominating Committee

The Nominating Committee comprises Mr Michael Wong
Pakshong {Charrman), Dr Cheong Choong Kong, Mr Giam
Chin Toon, Mr Lee Seng Wee and Col (Ret) David Wong
The Commuttee has written terms of reference that describe the
responsibilities of 1ts members

The Nominating Committee plays a vital role in reinforaing the
principles of transparency and mentocracy at the Bank It ensures
that only the most competent individuals capable of contributing
to the success of the organisation are appoinied This includes
review of ali nominations for the appointment, re-appointment,
election or re-glection of Directors of the Bank and members
of the Executve Commuttee, Remuneration Committee, Audit
Committee and Risk Committee of the Bank The Nominating
Committee 15 also charged with determining annually whether
or not a Director 1s independent, or whether the Diector 1
capable of carrying out the relevant duties when the Director
has multiple board representations It also reviews nominations
for serior management positions in the Bank, including the
CEO, Deputy President and Cheef Financal Officer The
Norminating Commitiee makes recommendations 1o the Board
on all such appointments

The Nominating Committee establishes the profile required of
Board members, having regard to the competencies and skills
required at the Board, and makes recommendations to the Board
on appointment of new Directors  When the need for a new
Director 1s 1dentified, the Nominating Committee will prepare
a shortlist of candidates with the appropnate profile and
qualties for nomination  The Nomunating Committee may
engage external search consultants to search for the Director
The Board reviews the recommendation of the Nominating
Committee and appoints the new Director, subject to the approval
of MAS In accordance wath the Bank’s Ariicles of Association,
the new Director will hold office until the next AGM, and if
elgible, the Director can stand for re-election

Audit Committee

The Audit Commitiee compnses Mr Bobby Chin (Chairman),
Tan $r Dato Nasruddin Bin Bahan, Professor Neo Boon Siong,
Dr Tsao Yuan and Col (Ret) David Wong, all of whom are
independent Directors A majorty of the members have
accounting or financial management expertise and experience
The Commsttee has wartten terms of reference that describe the
responsibilities of 1ts members

The Audit Committee perfarms the functions specafied In the
Companes Act, the Code, the SGX-ST Listing Manual, and the
MAS' corporate governance guidehnes Details of the dutwes
and responsibiiities of the Audit Committee are found In the
Directors’ Report on page 72 and in the * Audit Function” section
of this chapter on pages 37 to 38
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises Mr Michael Wong
Pakshong (Chairman), Dr Cheang Choang Kong, Tan Sri Dato
Nasruddin 8in Bahan and Dr Tsao Yuan All the Committee
members are well versed with executive compensation matters,
gven their extensive experience in senior corporate posiions
and major appontments The Commuttee has written terms of
reference that describe the responsibilities of its members

The Remuneration Committee determines and recommends to
the Board the remuneration and fees of non-executive Directors
as well as the compensation of executive Directors It 15 also
empowered 1o review the human resources management policies
and the policies governing the compensation of executive
officers of the Bank and its subsidiaries, as well as the
remuneration of senior executives in addition, 1t administers the
vanous emnployee share ownership schemes The Remuneratton
Committee, If necessary, will seek expert advice from outside the
8ank on the remuneration of Directors

Risk Committee

The Risk Commuttee, which supports the Board in performing
its risk oversight respansibiities, comprises Mr Patrick Yech
(Charrman), Dr Cheong Choong Kong, Mr David Conner,
Mr Giarm Chin Toon, Prafessor Neo Boon Siong and Mr Pramukti
Surjaudaja The Commuttee has written terms of reference that
describe the responsibilinies of its members

The Risk Committee reviews the overall nsk management
philosophy, guidelines and major policies for effective risk
management, risk disclosure policy, nsk management systems
and nsk capital allocation methodology The Committee
also reviews the scope, effectiveness and objectmty of Group
Risk Management and the risk reports that monitor and control
risk exposures
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DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE AT BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEE MEETINGS IN 2006

Number of Meetings Attended in 2006

Executive ing Fi¢ tion Audit Risk

Name of Director Board Commuttes Committee Commttee Committee Committee

Held ¥ Attended Held ¥ Attended Held * Attended Held ¥ Attended Held ¥ Attended Held ¥ Attended
Cheong Choong Kong 9 9 7 7 3 3 2 2 4 3
Michael Wang Pakshong ¥ 9 8 3 3 2 2 4 4
Bobby Chin 9 9 10 10
Dawid Conner 9 9 7 7 2 2 - 4 4
Giam Chin Toon ¥ 9 9 - 3 3 3 3
Lee Seng Wee 9 g 7 7 3 3 -
Lea Tih Shih 9 g - -
Nasruddin Bin Bahan ¢ 9 8 - 2 2 6 6
Neo Boon Siong 9 9 - 10 9 4 4
Pramukti Surjaudaja ¥ 9 9 3 2z
Tsao Yyan ¥ 9 9 - 2 2 5 5 1 1
David Wang 9 9 - 3 2 10 9 -
Wong Nang Jang g 9 7 7
Patnick Yeoh 9 9 7 7 4 4

Notes
v
one Nominating Committee meeting

Stepped down from Audit Committee on 21 April 2006
Appointed to Risk Committee on 21 Apnil 2006
Appointed to Audit Committee on 21 Aprii 2006
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The Bank’s Articles of Association provide for Directors to
participate in Board and Board Commuttee meetings by means
of conference telephone, wideo conferencing or audio visual
eguipment

AUDIT FUNCTION
Audit Committee

The Board approved the terms of reference of the Audit
Committee The Committee may meet at any time but no less
than four times a year with the internal auditors and external
auditors It has full access to, and co-operation from management,
and has the discretion to invite any Director and executive officer
to attend 1is meetings It has explicit authonty to investigate any
matter within its terms of reference

In addition o the review of the Group Financial Statements,
the Audit Committee reviews and evaluates with the external
audrtors and internal auditors, the adequacy of the system of
internal financial controls, operational and comphance contrals,
and nisk management policies and systems It reviews the scope
and results of the audits, the cost effectiveness of the audis,
and the independence and objectmity of the external auditors
Where the external auditors provide non-audit services to the
Bank, the Committee keeps the nature, extent and costs of such
services under review This 1s to balance the objectvity of the
external auditors against their ability to prowide value-for-money
services The Audit Commitiee also reviews significant financial
reporting Issues and judgements to ensure the integnty of the

Appointed to Audit Committee and stepped down from Risk Committee on 21 April 2006

Reflects the number of meetings held during the time the Director held office Unscheduled meetings held are as fellows Dne Board meeting three Audit Committee meetings and

financial statements, announcements relating to financeal
performance, and arrangements by which staff may, In
confidence, rarse concerns about possible improprieties in matters
of financial reparting or other matters, and have the concerns
independently investigated and followed-up

It meets at least once a year with the external auditors and
internal auditors in separate sessions and without the presence
of management, to consider any matters which might be raised
privately In addition, the Chairman of the Audit Committee
meets the internal auditors on a regular basis to discuss the
waork undertaken, key findings and any other significant matters
ansing from the Group's cperations Formal reports are sent to
the Audit Committee on a quarterly basis The Board 15 updated
on these reports

The Audit Committee has received the requisite disclosures from
the external auditors ewidencing the latter’s independence It 15
satisfied that the finanaal, professional and business relationshtps
between the Group and the external auditors are compatible
with maintaining the independence of the external auditors

In respect of the 2006 financial year, the Audit Committee

(a) has rewviewed the audited financial staterments with
management, including discussions of the quality of the
accounting principles applied and significant judgements
affecting the financial statements,
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{b) has discussed wath the external auditors the quality of the
above pnnciples and judgements,

(&) has discussed among 1ts own members, without the
presence of management or the external audiors, the
information disclosed in (a) and (b) above, and

{d) believes that the financial statements are farrly presented
in conformity with the relevant Singapore Financial Reporting
Standards n all matenal aspects, based on its review and
discussions with management and the external auditors

Internal Audit Function

The Audit Committee approves the terms of reference of internal
audrt {Group Audit) and reviews the effectiveness of the internal
audit functien In hne with leading practice, Group Audit’s
mission statement and charter requires it to provide independent
and reasonable, but not absofute, assurance that the Banking
Group's system of nsk management, control, and governance
processes, as designed and implemented by senior management,
are adequate and effective Group Audit reports on the
adequacy of the systems of control to the Audit Commuttee
and management, but does not form any part of those systems
of control Group Audit 15 also expected to meet or exceed the
Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Audiing of The
Institute of Internal Auditors

Group Audit has implemented nsk-based audrt processes Audit
work 15 priontised and scoped according to an assessment
of potential exposure ta risks This includes not only financial
risks, but operational, technology and strategic risks as well
A computerised audit workpaper system has been adopted so
that the audit process 15 substantially paperless Group Audit
works closely with Group Risk Management to help review nsk
management processes as a whole

The work undertaken by Group Audit includes the audit of
the Group's system of internal control over its key operations
{including overseas branches), rewew of secunty and access
controls for the Group’s key computer systems, review of
control processes within and around new products and system
enhancements, and review of controls over the monitaring of
market and credit risks Group Audit also actively participates
In major new systems developments and special projects, to
help evaluate nsk exposures and to help ensure that proposed
compensating Internal controls are adequately evaluated on a
timely basis It also ensures that the internal controls result in
prompt and accurgte recording of transactions and proper
safequarding of assets, and that the Bank comphes with laws and
regulations, adheres to established policies and takes approprate
steps to address control deficiencies

The Audit Committee Is responsible for the adequacy of the
internal audit function, its resources and its standing, and ensures
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that processes are in place for recommendations raised In
internal audit reports to be dealt with in a timely manner
and outstanding exceptions or recommendations are closely
monitored Group Audit reports functionally to the Audit
Committee and adminisiratively to the CEQ, and has unfettered
access to the Audit Comrmttee, Board and senior management,
as well as the nght to seek information and explanations
Currently, Group Audit has a team of over 120 staff in Singapore
and Malaysia The dwision 1s organised into departments that
are algned with the structure of the Bank The Audit
Comrmittee approves the appomntment and removal of the
Head of Group Audit

Internal Controls

The Board believes that, in the absence of any evidence to the
contrary, the system of nternal controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls and nsk management
systems, mantained by the Bank's management and that was
in place throughout the financial year and up to and as of the
date of this report, 15 adequate to meet the needs of the company
In 1ts current busingss environment

The system of internal control provides reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance that the Bank will not be adversely affected
by any event that could be reasonably foreseen as it strives to
achieve its business objectives However, the Board also notes that
no system of Iaternal control could provide absolute assurance
i this regard, or absolute assurance against the occurrence of
matenal errors, poor judgement in deasion-making, human
error, losses, fraud or other irregularities

REMUNERATION POLICY
Employees’ Remuneration

The objective of the Bank's remuneration policy Is 10 attract,
motivate, reward and retain quality staff The Board ensures that
the remuneration policies are in line with the strategic objectives
and corporate values of the Bank, and do not give nise to conflicts
between the objectives of the Bank and the interests of ndmdual
Directors and key executives

The total compensation package for employees comprises basic
salary, fixed bonus, vanable performance bonus, allowances,
deferred share awards and share options for eligible executives,
aswell as benefits In determining the composition of the package,
the nature of the role performed and market practice are taken
into consideration To ensure that Its remuneration package 1s
competitive, the Bank regularly reviews its base salary ranges and
benefits package based on market data provided by recognised
surveys of comparative groups in the financial sector

For executives, the Bank adopts a performance-driven approach
to compensation, with rewards linked to indwidual, team and
corporate performance Executives’ compensation 15 reviewed
each year based on information from market surveys and advice
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from reputable management consultants The compensation for
sentor executives 1s reviewed by the Remuneration Committee

The remuneration practices for staff in barganable positions are
established through negouatton with the banks unions

Directors’ Remuneration

The Remuneration Committee recommends the remuneration
for executive Directors and non-executive Directors of the Bank
The remuneration for non-executive Directors 15 subject to
shareholders’ approval at the AGM

Compensation of Non-Executive Directors

The Remuneration Committee has considered market practices for
non-executive director compensation and on its recommendation,
the Board has decded to adopt the following fee structure to
compute the fee for each non-executive Director of the Bank

« Annual board chairman fee of 5$45,000,

* Annual retainer fee of 5$45,000,

* Annual committee charrperson fee of $$20,000 for Audit
Commuttee and $$15,000 for other Board Committees,

» Annual commttee member fee of $%10,000 for Audn
Committee and 5%$7,500 for other Board Committees
{committee chairpersons are not awarded these fees), and

» Attendance fee of $$1,200 per Board or Board Committee
meeting These attendance fees are paid to non-executive
Directors to recognise their commiiment and time spent In
attending each meeting

The previous year, shareholders approved the grant of 4,800
remuneration shares to each non-executive Director who had
served a full annual term with the Board The remuneration
shares align the interest of non-executive Directors with the
interest of shareholders At the Remuneration Commitiee’s
recommendation, the Board has deaded to continue with the
grant of 4,800 new ordinary shares to each non-executwe
Director who has served a full annual term in 2006 with the Board
The resolution proposing these share grants will be presented
to shareholders at the AGM/EGM on 19 Apnl 2007

The CEQ 15 not elgible to recewve the Directors’ fees and
remuneration shares

Under the OCBC Share Option Scheme 2001, the Remuneration
Committee also has the discretion to grant share options to
non-executive Directors in recognition of therr contnbutions

Compensation of Executive Directors

The compensation plan for the executive Directors 15 formulated
and reviewed by the Remuneration Commuttee to ensure that 1t
Is market competitive and that the rewards are commensurate
with ther contnibutions The compensation package comprises
basic salary, benefits-in-kind, performance bonus, Incentive
bonus, share cptions, share awards and compensaton In
the event of early termunation where service contracts are
applicable Performance and incentive bonuses relate directly
to the financial performance of the Group and the contributions
of the indwvidual executive Director Under the QCBC Executives’
Share Option Scheme 1994 and OCBC Share Option Scheme
2001, the guidelings on granting of share options to executive
Drrectors are similar to those for the executives of the Bank

Remuneration of Directors’ Immediate Family

An employee of the Group who 1s an immediate family member of
a Director of the Bank receves remuneration between $$150,000
and $%$249,999, comprised largely of salary and performance
baonus Other than this, none of the Directors had immediate
family members who weare employees of the Bank and whose
personal annual remunerauon exceeded S$150,000

Remuneration of Top 5 Key Executives in 2006

The Code suggests the disclosure of the remuneration of the
Bank's top five key executives The Board considered this matter
carefully and has decided against such disclosure for the time
being Given the wage disparities in the industry and the lkely
competitive pressures resulting from such disclosures, it was felt
that the disadvantages of disclosure will ouiweigh the benefits
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DIRECTOR’S REMUNERATION IN 2006

Performance-Based

Remuneration

Value of Value

Deferred of

Value Shares/ Remune-

Salary of Share Share ration Total Acquisi-
Remuneration and Opuons  Awards Other Shares  Remune- Options tion

Band Fees Bonus Granted® Granted” Benefits?  Awarded? ration  Granted Price Exercise
Name (s$) (%) (%) (%) {%) (%) {%) (%)  (No) {s$) Period
Michael Wong Pakshong below 250,000 740 - -~ - - 260 100 - - -
Bobby Chin below 250,000 704 - - - - 296 100 - - -
Gtam Chin Toan below 250,000 681 - - - - 319 100 - - -
Lee Seng Wee below 250,000 702 - - - - 98 100 - - -
Lee Tih Shih below 250,000 607 - - - - 393 100 - - -
Nasruddin Bin Bahan below 250,000 692 - - - - 308 100 - - -
Neo Boon Siong below 250,000 716 - - - - 284 100 - - -
Tsao Yuan below 250,000 702 - - - - 298 100 - ~ -
Dawid Wong below 250,000 707 - - - - 293 100 - - -
Wong Nang Jang below 250,000 670 - - - - 330 100 - - -
Patrick Yeoh below 250,000 716 - - - - 284 100 - - -
Cheong Choong Kong 2,000,000 to 539 130 141 97 33 00 100 183,600 682 15/03/2007 to
2,249,999 13/0312016
David Conner 5,000,000t0 302 376 188 126 08 00 100 612,000 682 15/0312007 to
5,249,999 1310372016

Share options were valued as at the date of grant, using the Binomial valuation model
Valued at the actual price of shares purchased from the cpen market

v

L}

¢ Represents non-cash compenent and comprses club and car benefits and employer s contributions to CPF
-

Valued at the ¢closing price of the shares on the last trading day of the year

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES
OCBC Executives’ Share Option Scheme 1994

The Bank has a share option plan available for executives of the
Bank and OCBC Bank {Malaysia) Berhad, iz OCBC Executives’
Share Opton Scheme 1994 (the "1994 Scheme™} The objective
s to enable officers of the rank of Assistant Manager and above
as well as executive Directors of the Bank to participate in the
equity of the Bank

This 1994 Scheme, which has been replaced by QCBC Share
Option Scheme 2001, was terminated on 3 August 2001
However, this will not affect the nghts of the holders of
outstanding options granted under the 1994 Scheme to
acquire shares

OCBC Share Option Scheme 2001

The OCBC Share Option Scheme 2001 (the "2001 Scheme ™) was
approved in 2001

The 2001 Scheme seeks to inculcate in all participants a stronger
and more lasting sense of identficabion wath the QCBC Group,
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as well as to Incentivise participants to achieve higher standards
of performance Group executives comprising any employee of
the OCBC Group holding the rank or equivalent rank of Assistant
Manager and above and any Group Executive Director selected by
the Remuneration Committee, as well as non-executive Directors
of the Group, are eligible to parucipate in the 2001 Scheme

The cumulative total number of ordinary shares to be 1ssued by
the Bank in respect of options granted under the 2001 Scheme
cannot exceed 10% of the Bank's total number of issued
ordinary shares

The number of share optians to be offered each year 1s determined
by the Remuneration Committee which compnses Directars of
the Bank who are duly authonsed and appointed by the Board to
administer the 2001 Scheme The Committee takes into account
entena such as the indwidual’s rank, Job performance, years of
service, potential for future development and his/her contribution
to the success and development of the Group
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The acquisition price for each ordinary share in respect of which
the option 15 exercisable shall be determined by the Remuneration
Committee to be a price equal to the average of the last dealt price
of the shares for the five consecutive trading days immediately
prior {0 the offering date No options were granted at a discount
since the commencement of the 2001 Scheme

The validity period of the options 15 subject to prevailing
legislation applicable on the date of grant Based on current
tegislation, options granted to Group Executives are exercisable
up to 10 years, while options granted to non-executive Directors
are exerasable up to five years The options may be exercised
after the first anniversary of the date of the grant, in accordance
with a vesting schedule to be deterrmined by the Remuneration
Committee on the date of the grant of the respective options
The Committee has adopted the following vesting schedule
Vesting Schedule Percentage of shares
over which an option
15 exercisable

On or before the first anniversary NIt
of the date of grant

After the first anniversary but on 33%
or before the second anniversary
of the date of grant

After the second anniversary but on 33%
or before the third anniversary
of the date of grant

After the third anniversary but 34%
before the date of expiry of the
exercise period

These options will lapse immediately on the termination of
employment and appointment, except in the event of retirement,
redundancy, death or where approved by the Remuneration
Committee, in which case the Committee may allow the
options to be retained and exercisable within the relevant option
periods or such option penods as may be determined by the
Remuneration Committee

OCBC Deferred Share Plan

The QCBC Deferred Share Plan (“Plan*} aims 19 increase the
performance-onentation and retention factor in compensation
packages of executives, and foster an ownership culture within
the orgamsation Group executives holding the rank or equivalent
rank of Sentor Officer and above, and any Group Executive
Director selected by the Remuneration Committee are eligible to
participate in the Plan 1n 2006, the participants are executives of
the Bank, selected overseas locations and subsidianes

The share awards are granted annually to ehigible executives, the
value of which 15 presently equal t0 25% of therr total vanable
performance bonus for the year The QCBC shares granted
are acquied from the market in accordance with guidelines
established under the Plan The share awards wili vest with the
executives at the end of three years Prior to the vesting date, the
executives will not be accorded voting nights on the shares

The awards will lapse immediately on the termination of
employment and appointment, except in the event of
retirement, redundancy, death, or where approved by the
Remuneration Committee, i which case the Committee may
allow the awards to be retaned and vested within the relevant
vesting periods or such penods as may be determined by the
Remuneration Committee

During the financial year, an aggregate of 1,444,490 ordinary
shares were granted to eligible executives of the Group pursuant
to the Plan

OCBC Employee Share Purchase Plan

The OCBC Employee Share Purchase Plan (“ESPP") was
implemented in 2004 for alt employees of the Group, including
executive Directors It was implemented to Inculcate In all
participants a stronger and more lasting sense of identification
with the Group

The ESPP 15 a saving-based share ownership plan to help
employees own ordinary shares in the Bank through their monthly
contributions via deductions from payroll and/or CPF funds
The employees have the option to convert the contributions to
ordinary shares after one year or withdraw the contributions
As a further incentive to employees to enrol 1n the ESPP, the
Bank pays interest on the amounts saved at a preferenual
Interest rate

The duration of offering period 1s 24 months and the share
acquisittan price is fixed before the offering period based on
average of the last traded prices over five consecutive trading
days immedhately preceding the price fixing date

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

OCBC Bank recogruses the importance of communicating regularly
and effectively with 1ts shareholders so that they can better
understand I1ts operations, strategies and directions One of the
key roles of the Group Corporate Communications and Investor
Relations Untt 15 to keep the market and investors appnsed of
the Group’s corporate developments and financial performance
through regular medha releases, briefings and meetings with the
media, analysts and fund managers In addition, shareholders
and the public can access the Group’s media releases, finanaal
results, presentation matenals used at brefings and other
corporate information on the Bank's website
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Sharehalders are given the opportunity to participate actively at
OCBC Bank’s AGMs and EGMSs, where they can ask gquestions
and commumicate their views They are alfowed to vote 1n person
or by proxy The Directors as well as the external auditors are
present at these meetings to address any relevant queries raised
by shareholders

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

OCBC Bank has established policies and procedures on related
party transactions These Include definitions of relatedness,
limits applied, terms of transactions, and the authorities and
procedures for approving and momitoring the transactions  The
Audit Committee reviews matenal related party transactions and
keep the Board mformed of such transactions, if any Measures
are taken to ensure that terms and conditions of related
party lendings are not more favourable than those granted to
non-related obligors under similar arcumstances  The Bank also
complies with the SGX-ST Listing Manual on interested person
transactions
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ETHICAL STANDARDS

The Bank has adopted the SGX-ST Listing Manuals guidelines
on dealings in secunties and has a policy agamnst insider trading
Directors and officers are prohitnted from dealing in the securities
of the Bank during the period commencing two weeks before
the announcement of the Bank’s financial statements for each
of the first three quarters of the finanaial year, and dunng the
period commencing one month before the announcement of the
financial statements for the financial year, and ending on the
date of the announcement of the relevant results  The Bank also
has a policy on dealings 1n the listed securities of customers of
the Group Employees with access to price-sensitive information
in the course of therr duties are instructed to conduct all ther
personal secunities transactions through the Group's stockbroking
subsichary
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RISK EXPOSURE
AND RISK MANAGEMENT PRACTICE

The main aim of OCBC Group's nisk management praciice 1s
to protect the Group agamst losses that could arse from
taking nisks beyond its nsk appetite  The Group's philosophy
on nisk management s that all risks must be properly
understood, monriored, controlled and managed In addition,
nsk management processes must be closely aligned to the
Group’s business sirategy, to enable the Group to maximise its
risk-adjusted return on capital

The Group's primary business activity 1s commercial banking,
which 1s essentially a customer-driven actvity where the
substantial risk s the credit risks of its corporate, institutional
and retall customers  To a lesser extent, commercial banking
actvities also expose the Group to market nsk ansing from
re-pricing, matunty and currency mismatches of assets and
habiities These mismatches give rnise to Interest rate, liquidity
and foreign exchange nsks

Trading and investment banking activities, which include sales and
trading in money market, foreign exchange and other treasury
products and the underwriting of equittes and debt instruments
as well as stockbroking, are relatively less significant However,
these activities alsc expose the Group to credit risks and market
risks, including interest rate, currency and equity nsks

In the course of conducting its businesses, the Group handles
a large number of financial transactions It 1s inherently exposed
to operauonal nsks arising from faillure of internal processes and
systems, deficiencies in people and management, or operational
fallure arising from external events The prowision of financial
advisory services to custorners far wealth management products,
including the sale of unit trusts and life insurance, also exposes
the Group to operational and fiduciary nsks ansing from the
failure to meet the general standards expected of such financial
adwisory activities

The Group’s 87 1%-owned subsidiary, Great Eastern Holdings
("GEH"}, 1s engaged in the Insurance business and incurs nisks
nherent in #ts principal activities of providing financial advisory
services and Insurance protection such as mortality, morbidity,
property and casualty GEH, which 15 listed on the Singapore
Exchange, 15 required to comply with the insurance rules
and regulations in Singapore and Malaysia, as applicabfe, including
guidelines on investment hmits It has s own Risk Committee,
made up of members of GEH's Board of Directors, which oversees
its risk management polices and framework Detals on the
insurance-related nsk management information of GEH are
disclosed In Note 39 6 of the Financial Statements

Bank NISP 15 a 72 3%-owned subsichary of the Group listed
on the Jakarta Stock Exchange An enterpnse-wide risk
managerment framework covering vanous sk functions including
credit, market and operational nisks, under the oversight of its

Board of Commussioners (the equivalent of Board of Directors
n Singapore) 15 in place at Bank NISP The Group 1s assisting Bank
NISP to improve 1ts nisk management functions and framework
via capability transfer and traning, a full-time semior risk adwisor
and a representative on the Board of Directors of Bank NISP

The discussion that follows in the rest of this chapter covers the
nsk management practices, polictes and framework of OCBC
Group excluding GEH and Bank NISP As histed compares, GEH
and Bank NISP publish their own annual reports, which coniain
information on ther nsk management practices and framework

RISK ORGANISATION

OCBC Group believes that risk management 1s most effective
when 1t 15 a shared responsibility between nisk takers and risk
controllers, with the Board of Directors providing general
oversight The nsk organisation 1s structured such that there
15 segregation of duties and reporting lines between risk-taking
and risk-controling umits  These principles are applied across the
major risk areas, including credit, market and operational risks

In recent years, OCBC has been bulding s resources and
capabilities in nsk management so as to keep pace with
business developments Given that banking products invanably
contain a varying mux of nsks from different nsk categones,
the management of risk must be looked at holistically

The Board Risk Commuttee 15 the princpal committee that
supports the Board in the oversight of credit, market, operationat
and fiduaiary risks and any other category of risks as may be
deemed necessary It 15 responsible for ensuning effective nsk
oversight of the Bank and its subsidianies

Group Risk Management Dmision, i supporting the Board
Risk Committee and the CEO 1s staffed with officers dedicated
to nsk policy setting, nsk measurement methodology and
model development, and the monitoring of the QCBC Group's
nsk profiles and concentrations In the case of credit nisk,
dedicated officers are also involved in transaction approval
and remedial loan management Besides the Group Risk
Management Division, other functions in the Bank that support
the risk management framework include Legal and Compliance,
Internal Audit, Operations, Finance and the respective business
units where risks are taken or generated

BASEL Il

The Group I1s making progress with regard to its implementation
of the International Convergence of Capital Measurement and
Capital Standards (“Basel I") Regulatory approval has been
granted for the Group to commence a one-year parallel run
in 2007 and the target 15 for the Group to adopt the Internal
Ratings Based Approaches in 2008 for the major Corporate and
Retal! portfolios  The Group will continue to wark on improving
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its nsk infrastructure as well as to enhance 1ts [nternal Caprtal
Adequacy Assessment Process

The Group Is also on track towards complying with the Internal
Model Approach for Market Risk and the Standardized Approach
for Operatronal Risk by 2008

CREDIT RISK MANAGEMENT

The Credit Risk Management Commuittee ("CRMC”) 15 the
principal semior management committee that supports the CEO
and the Board Risk Commuiitee in credit risk management
oversight The CRMC reviews and recommends major credit
nsk policies for the approval of the CEQ and/or the Board
Risk Committee It 1s also responsible for ensuring that sound
credit nsk methodologies and effective credit nsk management
processes are established

The CRMC includes representatives from major business units,
where credit nisk 1s generated, as well as independent credit
nsk controlling units This joint effort in setung risk palicy seeks
to ensure understanding of and commitment to the credit nsk
management pracess The CRMC Is supported by the Credit
Risk Management (“CRM®) departments within Group Risk
Management Dvision Dedicated CRM units perform the roles
of developing nsk policies, guidelines and procedures and
putting 1n place the monitoring, reporting and control systems

Credit Approval Process

The foundation of the credit approval structure 15 a designation
process that delegates lending authonty to indwidual credit
signers according to thelr ndwidual credit skills, knowledge,
experience, training and track record

Credit extensions to corporate and institutional customers are
generally required to meet pre-defined target markets and risk
acceptance cnteria Indwidual credit signers from the business
units make underwntung decsions jointly with those from
the credit nsk management urits This “co-granior” approval
approach (s designed to ensure objectivity In credit extensions

For the consumer and small business sectors where transactions
are numerous and of smaller amounts, loans are underwntten
under pre-approved credit programmes These programimes
focus on credit extensions to ndwidual customers with similar
charactenstics and/or product needs

The New Product Approval Committee {"NPAC") approves all
new products including credit programmes and reviews exisling
programmes on a regular basis The representation of key
stakeholders from the business, support and nisk management
units In the membership of the NPAC ensures objectvity,
independence, and injection of functional expertise nio the
decision-making process
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Credit Risk Review

independent credit sk reviews (“CRR"} are conducted across
different business units to strengthen the nsk onented credit
culture in OCBC CRR 15 part of Group Audit and reports directly
to the Audit Committee Established since November 2002,
CRR adopts a nsk-based approach i evaluating beth portfolio
and process guality of OCBC’s vanous risk taking units

Credit Portfolio Management

The Group 15 continuing to develop and enhance its credit
nsk grading models to enable 1t to better dfferenuate
rsks 0 the vanous segments of 1ts credit portfolio for better
deaision making and monitoring of nsks Increased atteniion
has been placed on credit stress testing {0 assess the credit
portfolio’s vulnerability to “exceptional but plausible” adverse
credit risk events and to measure the sensitmvity of the Group’s
earnings and capital to the associated deternoration m credit
qualty under the stressed scenanos

Country Risk

A country nsk framework 1s 10 place, covering the assessment
and rating of countries, as well as the maximum cross-border
transfer nisk limit that can be granted to any one country based
on its nsk rating Cross-border transfer sk covers all cross-border
transacttons including onshore non-local currency transactions
Limits are altocated into matunty tme-bands and vary according
to the risk rating of the country concerned and the politcal
and economic outlook

Credit Concentration

The Group seeks to spread its nsk exposure amongst the growing
economic sectors of the major markets in which 1t operates
Lirruits are set on speaific customer, industry segments and country
in order to avoid over-concentration of credit nsks Prudent
Imits have also been placed on exposures to single customer
groups industry and country concentration limits are established
in relation to the Group’s capital

Special Asset Management Unit

The Special Asset Management unit continues to manage all
Non-Performing Loans (“NPLs"} due from Business Banking
customers within the Group, extending to OCBC Malaysia and
overseas branches These NPLs are managed either directly by
active account management, or where warranted, through
the oversight and superwision of the relevant business units’
management The Specal Asset Management umt 1s target
driven, with the objective of efficent NPL reduction and
maximising loan recovery The unit maintans its focus through
a systematic loan management process that formulates work
plans to achieve umely NPL resolution, and its senior management
team s actively involved i all stages of the process to ensure
that the agreed plans for NPL resolution are achieved within
agreed imeframes
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Loan Classification

The Group classifies its loans 1n accordance with MAS Notice
612 and internal loan classification pohicies Performing loans
are categonsed as ‘Passed’ or ‘Specal Mention’, while NPLs are
categonsed as “Substandard’, ‘Doubtful” or ‘Loss’, based on the
following guidelines

e Passed - Interest and principal payments are fully
up-to-date, and orderly repayment andfor timely
settlement in the future 15 without doubt

»  Specal Mention- Currently protected but potentially weak
Borrower exhibits some detenorating trends which, if not
addressed or corrected, could jeopardise the timely
repayment of interest and pnincipal

+ Substandard - Timely repayment and/or setilement 1s
at nsk Well-defined weakness 15 evident

¢  Doubtful - Full repayment and/or settlement 1s improbable

» loss - The outstanding debt 1s regarded as uncollectable

In conjunction with its work on Basel I, the Group 5 also
progressively moving towards assigning internal risk ratings
to borrowers for all matenal portfolios This would enable the
Group to have a more granular assessment of credit quahity

Restructured Loans

A restructured loan refers to one where the onginal contractual
terms and conditions have been modified upon mutual
agreement between the Bank and the borrower Where a loan
is restructured because a borrower 15 facing severe financial
difficulties and where 1t 1s probable that the account will have
to be downgraded to non-performing status without the
restructuring, the restructured foan will be classified as NPL Once
classified as an NPL, a restructured loan can only be upgraded
after a reasonable penod (typcally six months) of sustained
performance under the restructured terms

Allowances for Loans

The Group maintains a level of allowances for loans that I1s
sufficient to absorb all credit tosses inherent in its entire loan
portfolio and compnises a specific allowance against each NPL
and a portfolic allowance to cover losses that may already exist
but have not yet been identified or attnbuted to specfic loans or
group of loans in the portfolio  The Group’s policy for allowances
for loans 1s gurded by Financial Reporting Standard 39 (“FRS 39")
as modified by MAS Notice 612

Specific allowance 15 established when the present value of future
recoverable cash flows of the impaired loan 15 lower than the
carrying value of the loan Assessment for impairment shall be
conducted on a loan-by-loan basis except for homogenous loans
{e g housing loans, consumer lpans, credit card recewvables)
below a certain matenialty threshold where such loans may
be pooled together according to their rnsk characteristics, and
collectively assessed as a group (or portfolio) according to the
degree of impairment, taking into account the histonical loss
expertence on such loans

In accordance with FRS 39 as modified by MAS Notuice 612,
portfalio allowances are set aside based on management’s credit
expenences and judgement Credit experiences are based on
historical loss rates or where there 15 imited historical data,
internal credit models, which take into account internal nsk
ratings, geographic, industry and economic condiiens over a
penod of years or credit cycle

Write-offs

Write-offs of debts are made when recovery action has been
instituted and the loss can be reasonably determined For
unsecured consumer loan programmes, the general policy 15 to
write-off overdue debts after 180 days from the first default

Ceasing of Interest Accrual on Loans

When a loan is classified “Substandard”, "Doubtful” or “Loss",
interest iNcome ceases to be recognised In the iIncome statement
on an accrual basis However, this non-accrual of interest does
not preclude the Groups entitlement to the interest income
as 1t merely reflects the uncertainty in the collectibility of such
Irterest iIncome

Collateral Held Against NPLs

The major type of collateral backing for the Group’s NPLs 15
real estate In Singapore  The realisable value of the real estate
collateral 15 used to determmne the adequacy of the collateral
coverage Proceeds from the sale of collateral pledged for
a particular loan cannot be applied to other classified loans
unless the accounts are related and cross collateralisation of the
facilities 1s provided for contractually

Property Exposure

The Bank 1s 1In compliance with Section 35 of the Banking Act,
which limits its exposure to real estate in Singapore to not more
than 35% of its total eligible loan assets

Information on credit exposures by geographical area, business
hne and industrial classification, and the breakdown of investment
and dealing secunties by issuer type, are disclosed in Notes
27, 28, 29, 31 and 38 of the Financial $Statements and 1n the
Management Discussion and Analysis chapter

MARKET RISK MANAGEMENT

Market risk 1s defined as the uncertainty in the future values of
the Group's exposures 1n finanoal instruments resulting from
fluctuations in market factors such as interest rates, equity prices,
commodity prices, credit spreads and foreign exchange rates

The Market Risk Management Commuttee ("MRMC™) 15 the
pnncipal senior executive group that supports the Board Risk
Committee and the CEQ in discharging their market nisk overstght
responsibilites  The MRMC includes senior representatives
from both the business and support units, and is responsible
for implementing a robust Bank-wide market nisk management
framework This framework compnises key market nsk principles
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and polices, best practice measurement methodologies and
a comprehensive set of controls and monitoring processes,
complemented by a prudent nsk taking attitude and culture

The MRMC 15 supported at the working level by the Market Risk
Management Department (“MRMD"), a depariment wathin
Group Risk Management Division The MRMD s responsible
for operationalising the market risk management framework,
with the key objective of striking the night balance between
partnership  (supporting the business units to grow theu
business) and guardianship (ensuring adequate rnisk control and
oversight 15 1n place)

Market Risk Management Framework
The key elements 1n the market sk management {ramework
are policies and procedures, rnisk limits and risk measures

Polictes & Procedures

Approved by the Board Risk Committee and the CEQ, the policies
and procedures prowde guidance on the oversight and
management of the Group's market nisk, and facilitate a common
market nsk language in terms of definitions and methodologes
adopted across the Group  Controls and clear communications
are In place to ensure that all business actwities conform to the
Group's market risk management pohicies

Risk Limuts

All trading nisk posittons are monitored on a dally basis against
the authonsed Iimits by support umits independent of the
businesses  Under the market nisk corporate governance
framework, limits are approved at various business actwity
levels, with clearly defined exception escalation procedures for
each level All exceptions are to be promptly reported to the
relevant senior management for appropriate rectification
Only authonsed trading acimities may be undertaken by the
various business units within the limits allocated

Risk Measures

The Value-at-Risk (“VaR") methodolagy s the primary market
rnsk measure for the Group's trading actmities The Board Risk
Commutiee agrees on an aggregate rarket risk appetite based
on VaR VaR 1s measured and momitored by nisk types, namely
interest rate risk, foreign exchange risk, equity nsk, volatihty risk
and credit spread nsk, as well as at the aggregate level
The Group adopts the histoncal simulation approach to
measuring VaR, applied against a 1-day holding penod at
a 99% confidence level The Group prefers histoncal simulation
as It involves fewer assumptions on the distnbution of trading
profitability compared to other approaches

Nevertheless, as VaR s a statistical measure based on
historical market fluctuations, it mught not accurately predict
forward-looking market conditions all the time As such, losses
on a single trading day greater than VaR are expected to occur,
on average, once every 100 days
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Stress Testing

To augment VaR, the Group also performs Stress Testing and
Scenario Analysis to better quantify and assess potential losses
ansing from low probabiity but plausible extreme market
condittons  Stress Tests and Scenano Analyses prowide insights
into the impact on the Group's portfolio as a result of extreme
market conditions The stress scenanios are continually reviewed
and fine-tuned to ensure that they stay relevant to the Group's
nsk profile and the prevailing economic conditions The main
objective of these analyses is to determine If potential losses from
such extreme markets are within the Group's risk tolerance and
capital level

Other Risk Measures

As the Group’s main market risk 15 to interest rate fluctuations,
Present Value of a Basis Point ("PV01"), which measures the
change In value of interest rate sensitive exposures resulting
from one basis point Increase across the entire yield curve, 15 an
additional measure monitored on a daily basis

Other than VaR and PV01, the Group also utilises other sensitivity
metrics such as notional amounts and denvative greeks for
specific exposure types, where appropriate, to supplement its
nsk measurements

Limits are set based on the above-mentioned nsk measures
at various levels {business uns, trading desk etc), and are all
monitared independently

The table below provides a summary of the Group’s Trading VaR
profile, by nisk types for 2006

VaR BY RISK TYPE - TRADING PORTFOLIO

2006 2005
Gim) Yaar End Ave Min Max  Year End Ave Min Max
Interest rate nsk 380 580 380 947 766 739 397 1233
Foreign exchange risk 226 133 065 334 101 090 015 228
Equity risk 069 033 006 112 017 004 000 D018
Volatdity ask ™ 058 092 034 121 047 061 018 114
Credit spread nsk D53 040 022 067 ¢26 024 0Q2 065
Diversification effect ® 290 277 NM™ NM® 141 158 NM NM
Aggregate Risk 497 661 443 949 816 759 405 1355

™ Volaulty VaR includes nsk related to option’s volatiity ansing from all asset classes
12 interest rate foreign exchange and equity

W Year end and average aggregate VaR are not equal to the sum of the VaR of the
respectve nsk type due 16 portfolio dversifications

NM  not meaningful as the minimum and maxmum Vaf for each nsk type and the
aggregate VaR occurred on different days

The nsks of the trading portfolio arose primantly from proprietary
trading and hedging actwities undertaken by the treasury
business, as well as exposures warehoused by the Bank as
a result of customer facing transactions The Bank seeks
to actvely manage these risks wia consistent dwersifications
across asset classes and markets with good trading liquidity

The Group had no significant trading exposure to Commodity
price nsk in 2006
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Frequency Distnbution of Trading Book Daily VaR (1-Day Holding Period) for FY 2006
Trading Book VaR (1-Day Holding Period)
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Back-Testing

To ensure the continued integrity of the VaR madel, the Group
conducts back-testing to confirm the consistency of actual
dally trading profits and losses ("P&L") agamnst the statistical
assumptions of the mode! To enhance the back-testing process,
theoretical P&L are also computed by marking to market the
same set of positions as used for the VaR calculations Trading
losses on any single day did not exceed the dally reported VaR
in 2006

Independent Model Review

The Group trades financial instruments that reguire statistical
pricing models for valuation, for which no quoted market prices
are readlly available Deployed across the Group, these models
are used for the purposes of marking-to-market as well as rsk
reporting  The Group ensures the accuracy, appropnateness and
consistency of the models using an independent review process,
which 1s supported by a team of guantitative analysts The
review process Involves venfying the parameters, assumptions
and robustness associated with each model before nt can be
commussioned for use

Asset Liability Management Framework

The Asset Liability Managemant Committee (ALCO”) 1s the
semor management forum that 1s responsible for overseeing the
Group's hquidity and balance sheet nsks The ALCO comprises
the CEQ, the CFO and other senior representatives from both
the bustiness and support units  The ALCO 15 supported by the
Asset Liability Management Department within the Group Risk
Management Dwision

The Group’s Asset Liabiity Management framework consists of
three components

¢ Structural Interest Rate Risk Management
*  Structural Foreign Exchange Risk Management
*  Liquidity Management

Structural Interest Rate Risk

The main market nsk faced by the Group are interest rate nsks
ansing from the re-priaing mismatches of assets and habulities
from tis banking businesses These are monitored through tenor
Iimits and net interest sncome changes
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A system 15 1n place to measure the Group's re-pricing mismatch
profile In-depth analysis of current and projected balance sheet
positions and the likely impact on the Group's net interest
income are performed Group Treasury actively manages the
re-pricaing mismatches with the ad of daly re-pnang gap
and sensitivity reports, agamnst defined sensitivity hnits The
re-pncing gap reports allow for the analysis of the re-pricing
profile for the Group's assets and labiliies The sensitivity
reports identify the parts of the yield curve where the Group
15 most vulnerable to changes in interest rates

The funding mix vanes across the Group In Singapore, the
lending portfolio 1s largely funded by demand, savings and fixed
deposits  The major component of interest rate nisks hes in the
Bank’s extension of commercial property loans, housing loans and
automobile loans, which are generally priced at fixed rates The
Group uses the interest rate swap market actively to ensure that
these fixed rate exposures are managed within 1is risk appetite

Structural Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group’s structural foreign exchange exposure arises
primarly from its equity investment in overseas subsidiaries and
related companies, head office funds in overseas branches and
investment 1n fixed assets and premises The Group’s policy 1
{0 protect ts capital by ensunng that, where appropriate and
practical, exposures arising from changes In exchange rates
are minimised The decision to hedge or otherwise Is normally
based on economic considerations rather than short term
accounting impact

Liquidity Risk

The objectwe of lquidity management 1s tc ensure that
the Group has sufficent funds to meet its contractual and
regulatory financial obiigations at all tmes As a policy, the
Group requires most of its indwadual subsidiaries and overseas
branches te be self-sufficent and to fund therr own operations
It 15 the responsibility of each local management team to ensure
comphance with local regulations and the Group’s requiremnents
on hquidity management Liquidity 1s managed dailly at each
branch or subsidiary, taking inte account the complexity of the
individual balance sheet, as well as the depth and hquidity of the
local market

The Groups hquidity policy 1s to ensure that all contractual
and behavioural commitments can be met by readily available
sources of funding In addion, a level of liguid assets Is
maintained in relation to cash flows to provide further sources
of funding in the eveni of a crisis - The Group frequently accesses
the wholesale financial markets to ensure the avalabihty
of funds

The liquidrty management process includes projecting cash flows
by major currencies, monitering hiquidity ratios and depositor
concentration ta ensure an appropriate funding mix and avoid
undue reliance on large individual depositors, and mamntaining
a contingency funding plan Cash flow projections are also

OCBC annuea! Report 2006

subject to stress tests to ensure that the Group has the ability to
withstand sudden and heavy cash outflows The stress tests are
conducted on a regular basis to assess and measure hquidity risk
under a bank-specific and general market cnsis situation

Pursuant to MAS requlations, banks are currently
required to meei a statutory Mimmum Liquid Assets
{"MLA") requirement, comprising Singapore Government

Securities,  Singapore  Government  Securities  held
under reverse repurchase agreements with, among
others, banks 1n Singapore, and commercizl bills of

exchange In Singapore dollars, accepted or endorsed by
banks n Singapore In addition, the Bank maintains a
dally minimum cash balance with the MAS of at least 3%
of 1ts Singapore-dollar denominated habiities  With the
introduction of the new lquidity supervision framework
under the revised MAS Notice 613 to banks n
Singapore, the Bank 1s now operating under the nsk-
determined and bank-specific MLA framework, whereby
it gualifles for lower MLA requirements based on
its hquidity risk profile and management capabilities

OPERATIONAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Operational Risk 1s the risk of loss resulting from inadeguate
or falled internal processes, people, systems and management,
or from external events The goal of Operational Risk Management
(“ORM") Is to rinimise unexpected and catastrophic losses and
manage expected losses This enables new business opportunities
to be pursued 1n a nsk controlled manner and Increases risk
adusted profitabiity  through  calculated  nisk-and-reward
deciston making

ORM comes under the oversight of the Operational Risk
Management and Information Security Committee ("ORISC™)
ORISC consists of senior representatives from nisk management,
business units and the relevant support functions Business
units are In turn supported by the ORM Depariment of Group
Risk Management Dwision, which has established the ORM
Framework, including the relevant policies and methodologies,
and provides independent oversight of operational risk monitoring
and control The ORM programs are actively implemented
through the respective Operational Risk Co-ordinators in the
business units

The Group has put in place various Operational Risk related
frareworks and programs to enable the Bank to comply with
the international Convergence of Capital Measurement and
Capiial Standards As part of the preparation to comply with
Basel Il, the Group has mapped its business actvities o the
eight Business Lines as defined by the Basel Committee con
Bankng Supervision and will be adopting the Standardised
Approach at the onset, with gradual migration to the Advanced
Measurement Approach




Risk Management

The ORM Framework, which 1s reviewed regularly for relevancy, ensures that operational risks within the Group are properly identified,
managed, monitored and reported in a structured, systematic and consistent manner The Framework consists of the following
key elements

ORM Framework

Operational Risk

Management Programme

¢ Fraud Risk & Whistle-blowing
+ Technology Risk

« Fiduciary

* Reputation Risk

Mitigation
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* Busiess Continuity Management
* Risk-based Insurance Management
* Qutsourang Framework

Underpinning the ORM Framework 15 an internal control system
that strengthens the control culture of the Group by establishing
clear roles and responsibilities of staff and preserving their “rights”
in the contro! function A robust management attestation process
15 In place to provide “positive assurance” of the effectiveness
of internal control To reinforce the internal control system,
a performance metrnics program 1s being progressively rofled-
out to moritor sigrificant operational risk exposures and drve
management action via the use of management action triggers

In achieving good corporate governance, the Group has fraud
nsk management and whistle-blowing programs in place to
detect corrupt, tllegal or cther acts of misconduct

Business continuity, crisis management and nsk-based insurance
management programs are also in place as an integral part of the
Group's strategy to mitigate nsks and to manage the impact of
unfareseen events

In addition, operational nsk training programmes including
e-learning are conducted on an ongoing basis to cultivate a
proactive risk management culture within the Group

FIDUCIARY RISK MANAGEMENT

In providing nvestment or wealth management products or
services, It 15 cntical to ensure that the business units perform at
the approprate standard relatve to the Group’s trust relationship
with a client Fiduciary nsk 1s the possibility that the Group, may
knowingly or unknowingly, in the course of managing funds

Board Oversight & Senior Managernent Involvemnenit

Management -

Operational
Risk

Managemen

Programme

Operational Loss Reporting
Self-Assessment
Scenano Analysis

identification & New Product Approval

Assessment

Key Risk Indicator /
Performance Metrics

¢ Operational Risk Profiling
and Reporting

uolPBdsY| pUe M3IABY 1PNy PasEg-Hsty

N, Monitoring &
> Reporting

among other things, exercise discretion, make decisions, or take
actions which fail to satisfy the applicable standard of conduct
appropnate for a trust relationship

The Group has put in place a Fiduciary Risk Management Program,
focusing primanly on compliance with applicable corporate
standards with regular identification, assessment, mitigation and
monitoring of fiduciary nsk exposures

The Fiduciary Risk Management Commiitee {"FRMC") has been
estabhshed to oversee fiduciary-related nisks that may result
in losses or reputaton damage The FRMC oversees the
Group's fiduciary nisk profile and co-ordinates the development
and implementation of Fiduciary fisk Management principles
and policies

REPUTATION RISK MANAGEMENT

Reputation risk exposure 15 the current and future adverse impact
on earnmings and capital anising from negative publicopinion  This
may affect the Group's ability 10 establish new relationships and
may even adversely impact the sericing of existing relationships
it may expose the Group to htigation, financial loss, or a decline
In its customer base

The Group has established a Reputation Risk Management
Programme, focusing pnmarly on regular stakeholder
management, identificatron, assessment, mrugauon, monitoring
and reporting of reputation nsk exposures
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
2006 2005 +(-}
5£$ million S$ million %
Selected Income Statement items
Net interest iIncome 1,794 1,597 i2
Non-interest Income 2,045 1,289 59
Total income 3,840 2,887 33
Qperating expenses (1.331) (1,145} 16
Operating profit before allowances and amortisation 2,508 1,742 a4
Amortisation of intangible assets (44) {40) 10
Allowances for loans and other assets (2) (12} (79}
Share of results of associated and joint venture companies 14 15 53]
Profit before income tax 2,476 1,706 as
Net profit attnbutable to shareholders 2,002 1,298 54
Cash basss net profit attnbutable to shareholders™ 2,046 1,338 53
Selected Balance Sheet Items
Ordinary equity 12,508 11,442 9
Total equity (excluding minority Interests) 13,404 12,338 9
Total assets 151,220 134,710 12
Assets excluding life assurance fund investment assets 112,796 98,853 14
Loans and bills recevable (net of allowances) 59,309 55,134 8
Deposits of non-bank customers 75,115 64,088 17
Key Financial Ratios (%)
Return ¢n equity @ 166 114
Return on equity — Cash basis 169 17
Return on assets & 192 130
Return on assets — Cash basis @ 196 134
Net interest margin 200 184
Net interest income-to-total Income @ 553 553
Non-interest iIncome-to-total income @ 447 447
Cost-to-income & a1 1 396
Loans-to-deposits 790 860
NPL ratio 30 41
Total capital adequacy ratio 158 173
Tier 1 ratwo 131 132
Per ordinary share data
Basic earnings per share (cents) 634 401
Basic earnings per share - Cash basis (cents} ® 648 414
Diluted earmings per share (cents) & 632 399
Net asset value per share {(53)
Before valuation surplus 407 367
Aher valuation surplus 555 491

o Excludes amarusation of intangible assets

@ Calculated after deducting preference dvidends {paid and estimated to be due as at t

he end of the finanaal period) from earnings {inclucding divestment gains)  Preference

equity and minonty interests are excluded from equity Excluding divestment gaims of 5$559 million (net} return on equity far 2006 would be 11 8% on GAAP basis
®  Raturn on assets 15 calculated based on assets excluding life assurance fund investment assets

@ Ratios for 2006 excluded the pre-tax divestment gains of 53598 mllion

o The computation for earnings per share 1s based on wesghted average number of ardinary shares {excluding treasury shares) and after deducting preference dividends (paid and
estimated to be due as at the end of the financial pened) from earmings including divestment gains)  Excluding dwvestment gains bastc EPS would be 45 4 cents for 2006
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Group net profit atinbutable to shareholders ("net profit”) for the finanaial year ended 31 December 2006 (“2006") rose 54%
to $$2,002 million, from $$1,298 million 1n 2005 This included net gains of $$559 million from the divestments of a residentral
development site at Kim Seng Road and shareholdings in Robinson and Company, Limited, The Strarts Trading Company Limited,
Southern Bank Berhad and Raffles Holdings Limited

Excluding the non-core divestment gans, net profit grew by 11% to 5$1,443 million, driven by higher interest and non-interest
revenues across the Group’s key markets of Singapore, Malaysia, Indonesia as well as its overseas branches Operating profit before
allowances and amortisation of intangibles rose 10% to $$1,911 millien

Net interest income rose 12% to $$1,794 million, led by growth in interest earning assets and better interest margins  Gross customer
loans grew 7% dunng the year to S$61 1 bilion as at 31 December 2006 Net interest margin improved from 1 84% in 2005 to
2 00% in 2008, as hugher yields on loans and interbank placements more than offset the rise i borrowing costs

Non-interest income grew 12% to 5$1,448 mullion {excluding divestment gains), driven by higher fee and commission income, Iife
assurance profits and foreign exchange income  Fees and commussions rose 18% to 53597 million, with strong contributions from
stock-broking, loan-related, trade-related, nvestment banking and fund management actvities  Profits from the life assurance business
grew 34% to 5$376 million, underpinned by new business growth, healthy underwrniting profits and strong investment gains  Income
from foreign exchange dealing jumped 81% to 5$144 million

Operating expenses rose 16% to $51,331 milkon, atinbuted mainly to higher staff costs from increased headcount, higher business
promotion expenses, accelerated depreciation and write-offs of fixed assets and software apphcations, and the twelve months’
consolidation of Bank NISP's expenses  Excluding Bank NISP's expenses and the accelerated depreciation and write-offs, operating
expenses would show an increase of 10%  The cost-to-income ratio (excluding divestment gains) was 41 1%, compared with 39 6%
In 2005

Improved asset quality and continued successes 1n foan recovery efforts kept the Group's allowances low at 532 millien for the year,
compared with allowances of $312 mdlion in 2005

The net profit contnbution of 86 9% -owned insurance subsidiary Great Eastern Holdings (" GEH*), after taking Into account amortisation
of ntangible assets and muinonty Interests, was S$357 million in 2006 (ncluding 5340 million in divestment gains), up from 53251
mithon mn 2005

The 2006 results included a fullyear’s consolidation of the results of 72 3%-owned Bank NISP, compared with nine months’ consolidation
in 2005 From January to March 2005, Bank NISP was equity accounted for as an assoctated company of the Group  Bank NISP's net
profit contribution in 2006 was 5$31 million, similar to 2005

The Group’s return on equity for 2006 was 16 6%, or 11 8% excluding divestment gains, up from 11 4% for 2005 Earmings per share
grew 58% {0 63 4 cents, and 13% to 45 4 cents If divestment gains were excluded

The Board of Directors 1s recommending a final tax-exempt dividend of 12 cents per share for ardinary shareholders, bringing the total
dividends for financial year 2006 to 23 cents, an increase of 25% over the 18 4 cents (net of tax) paid for financial year 2005 The
estimated total net dvidends of $$709 milien for 2006 represent 49% of the Group's care net profit of $31,443 mullion (excluding the
divestment gains) This 1s In ine with the Group’s dividend poltcy which targets a minimum payout of 45% of core earnings
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Management Discussion and Analysis

NET INTEREST INCOME

Net interest income ncreased by 12% to 5$1,794 million in 2006, driven by a 3% growth in average interest earning assets, better
interest margins as well as a full year's contribution from Bank NISP  Net interest margin improved from 1 84% in 2005 to 200% n
2006, as higher yields on loans and interbank placements more than offset the rise in borrowing costs  Interest margins improved In

Singapore, Malaysia and Indonesia

Average Balance Sheet 2006 2005
Average Average Average Average
Balance Interest Rate Balance Interest Rate
SS milion 5% million % $$ milion $$ milkon %
Interast earning assets
Loans and advances o non-bank customers 55,782 3,109 557 53,438 2,401 449
Placements with and loans to banks 17,655 744 422 15,866 468 295
Other interest earming assets 16,371 663 405 17,650 601 341
Total 89,808 4,516 503 86,954 3,470 399
Interest bearing liabihiies
Deposits of non-bank customers 68,062 1,966 289 62,072 1,252 202
Deposits and balances of banks 10,722 473 441 14,318 403 282
Other borrowings @ 5810 283 487 6,309 218 346
Total 84,554 2,722 322 82,698 1873 226
Net snterest income/ margin & 1,794 200 1,597 1 84
M Campnse corporate debt and government securities
@ Compnise mainly debts issued inctuding upper tier 2 subordinated debit floating rate notes and Euro commercial papers
= Net interest margin rs net interest income a5 a % of total average interest earning assets
Volume and Rate Analysis
Increase/ (Decrease) for 2006 over 2005 (5$ million) Volume Rate Total
Interest income
Loans and advances to non-bank customers 105 603 708
Placement with and loans to banks 53 224 276
Other Interest earning assets {44) 105 61
Total 114 931 1,046
Interest expense
Deposits of non-bank customers i3 | 594 715
Deposits and balances of banks (101) 1M 70
Other barrowings (17} 82 65
Total 2 847 849
Net interest iIncome 112 84 197
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Management Discussion and Analysis

NON-INTEREST INCOME

2006 2005 +-}
S$ mullion 5% midlion %
Fees and commissions
Brokerage 72 43 51
Wealth management 129 137 (6)
Fund management 72 64 1
Credit card 48 42 16
Loan-related 81 60 34
Trade-related and remittances 92 77 20
Guarantees 24 20 19
Investment banking 3N 21 45
Service charges 33 31 7
Others 16 7 137
597 507 18
Dividends 129 130 (1}
Rental income 78 72 8
Profit from life assurance 376 281 34
Premium tcome from general insurance 59 61 (3)
Other income
Net dealing income
Foreign exchange 144 80 81
Securities and dernvatives 1 17 {986)
Net income from non-trading investments
Government & investment securnties 324 83 290
Properties 276 3 am
Subsidiary companies (3] 1 nm
QOthers 67 57 18
806 239 237
Total non-interest income 2,045 1,289 59
Fees and commissions/ Total income 18 4% 17 6%
Non-interest income/ Total income ! 44 7% 44 7%

@ For 2006 the ratios excluded divestment gains of 54598 m:llian

Total non-interest Income mcreased by $$756 mellion or 59% to $$2,045 million in 2006 This included gains of 53598 million from the
divestments of a property at Kim Seng Road and shareholdings in Robinsen & Company, Lirnited, The Strads Trading Company Limited,
Southern Bank Berhad and Raffles Holdings Limited  Excluding the divestment gains, non-interest income grew 12% to S$1,448 miliion,
driven by higher fee and commussion income, life assurance profits and foreign exchange income Fees and commissions rose 18% to
$$597 millon, with strong contributions from stock-broking, loan-related, trade-related, investment banking and fund management
actvities Profits from life assurance grew 34% to $$376 million, underpinned by new business growth, healthy underwniting profits
and strong Investment gains Income from foreign exchange dealing jumped 81% to 53144 milllon  Non-interest income accounted

for 44 7% of the Group’s total income 1n 2006 (excluding divestment gains)
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OPERATING EXPENSES

2006 2005 +{-)
$$ mulion $$ million %
Staff costs
Salaries and other costs 659 571 15
Share-based expenses 9 13 (27)
Employer's contnbution to defined contribution plans 53 50 7
722 634 14
Premises and equipment
Depreaation 104 88 18
Maintenance and hire of property, plant and equipment 61 55 1"
Rental expenses 24 23 5
Others 88 66 33
277 233 19
Other operating expenses 332 278 19
Total operating expenses 1,331 1,145 16
Group staff sirength — perod end 15,858 14,662 8
Group staff strength — average 15,270 13,434 14
Cost-to-income ratio 4 1% 39 6%

™ For 2006 the ratio excluded divestment gains

The Group's operating expenses increased by 16% to 531,331 million in 2006, attributed mamly to a 14% increase In staff costs arising
from increased headcount, higher business promotion expenses, consolidation of one-year's operating expenses of Bank NISP as well as
accelerated depreciation and wnite-offs of fixed assets and software applications  Excluding Bank NISP's expenses and the 5328 million
In accelerated depreciation and write-offs, expenses increased by 10%

Group headcount was 15,858 as at 31 December 2006, an increase of 8% year-on-year, with most of the increase coming from
Malaysia and Indonesia The cost-to-income ratio {excluding divestment gains) was 41 1% 1n 2006, compared to 39 6% in 2005
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Management Discussion and Analysis

ALLOWANCES FOR LOANS AND OTHER ASSETS

2006 2005 +/(-}
5% million S$ rmiflion %
speafic allowances/ (wrnte-back) for loans

Singapore %))} 24 (102}

Malaysia 22 1" 92
Others # 16 {99)
21 51 {58)

Portfolio allowances/ (wrte-back) for loans - - -

Write-back for secunities and other assets {(19) (39) 52
Total allowances for loans and impairment of other assets 2 12 (79)

# Amounts less than $50 5 millon

Total allowances declined from $$12 million 10 2005 to $$2 million in 2006 Specific allowances for loans fell from 5351 mllion to
5321 million as a result of improved asset quality and continued recoveries of non-performing loans  Increased specriic loan allowances
for Malaysia were more than offset by lower net allowances in Singapore and other regions  No new porifolio allowances were made
Iin 2006

The write-back of impairment charges for securities and other assets of $$19 million in 2006 resulted mainly from higher valuations of
the Group's properties {for which earlier impairment charges had been made), while the write-back of $$39 million in 2005 was mainly
from recoveries in loan-related secunties in Malaysia

LOANS AND ADVANCES

Gross loans to customers increased 7% year-on-year to $$61 1 billon  Growth was contnibuted by Singapore corporate and SME
loans, and broad-based growth in Malaysia and Indonesia loans  Singapore-dollar loans increased 7% to $$37 1 bilion, boosted partly
by the buoyant real estate sector OCBC Bank (Malaysia) Berhad's loans grew 10% to RM23 9 billion, while Bank NISP's loans grew by
26% 10 IDR15 6 trliion

By industry, the ncrease in Group loans was manly to the building and construction, transport and communications, manufacturing
and general commerce sectors, as well as to non-bank financial institutions, investment and holding companies  Housing loans were
flat year-on-year as buoyant growth in new pnivate housing loan approvals in Singapore were offset by repayments as well as lower
demand in the HDB segment Loans to professionals and indmduals declined during the year due mainly to lower outstanding car
loans in Singapore
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LOANS AND ADVANCES {continued}
31 Dec 2006 31 Dec 2005
S5 milhon % S$ million %
Gross loans by industry
Agrnculture, mining & quarrying 986 2 9 1
Manufactuning 5,043 8 4,455 8
Bullding and construction 9,332 15 7,278 13
Housing loans 18,149 3¢ 18,087 32
General commerce 5,812 10 5,315 9
Transport, storage and communications 2,537 4 1,853 3
Fimancial institutions, investment and holding comparnues 8,416 14 7,624 i3
Professionals and individuals 7.330 12 8,316 15
Others 3,528 6 3,477 6
61,132 100 57,193 100
Gross loans by currency
Singapare Dollar 37.114 61 34,844 51
Uruted States Dollar 7,990 13 8,152 14
Malaysian Ringgit 9,044 15 7,978 14
Indonesia Rupiah 2,323 4 1856 3
Others 4,662 8 4,363 8
61,132 100 57,193 100
DEPOQSITS
$$ milhon 31 Dec 2006 31 Dec 2005
Deposits of non-bank customers 75,115 64,088
Deposits and halances of banks 11,869 10,307
Total deposits 86,984 74,395
Non-bank deposits by product
Fixed deposits 50,197 40,549
Savings deposits 11,215 11,043
Current account 10,035 9,070
Others 3,668 3,426
75,115 64,088
Loans-to-deposiis ratio {net non-bank loans / non-bank deposits) 790% 86 0%

As at 31 December 2006, total deposits were 5387 0 billion, an increase of 17% year-on-year

Non-bank customer deposits
increased by 17% to S$75 1 billion, manly from fixed and current account deposits  Depasits and balances of banks increased
15% to 5311 9 billion

The Group’s loans-to-deposits ratio was 79 0% as at 31 December 2006, down from 86 0% in December 2005
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Management Discussion and Analysis

NON-PERFORMING LOANS

NPLs by grading, security coverage and countries

Secured Non-bank
NPLs NPLs as %
Total Substandard Doubtful Loss as % of of non-bank
NPLs 0 NPLs NPLs NPLs total NPLs loans @
53 millon 5% mullion 5% milion 5% million % %
Singapore
31 Dec 2006 951 382 336 233 606 24
31 Dec 2005 1,416 759 352 304 66 1 37
Malaysia
31 Dec 2006 652 401 143 108 579 60
31 Dec 2005 708 487 136 84 64 8 68
Others
31 Dec 2006 226 72 103 51 420 20
31 Dec 2005 269 68 140 61 388 29
Group Total
31 Dec 2006 1,829 BS54 583 392 573 30
31 De¢ 2005 2,392 1,315 629 449 627 41

W Comprises non bank loans debt securities and contingent facilities
o Exclude debt secunues

The Group' asset quality remaimed strong  As at 31 December 2006, total NPLs were $%$1 83 billion, 24% lower than at 31 December
2005 Singapore NPLs amounted to $30 95 billion, while Malaysia NPLs were S$0 65 billion  These accounted for 52% and 36% of
the Group's total NPLs respectively Of the total NPLs, 47% were In the substandard category while 57% were secured by collateral

The Group’s NPL ratio was 3 0% in December 2006, an improvement over the 4 1% in December 2005

31 Dec 2006 31 De¢ 2005
% of % of
$$ million Gross Loans 5% millon  Gross Loans
NPLs by industry
Loans and advances
Agriculture, mining & quarrying 14 14 28 36
Manufacturing 365 72 390 88
Bullding and ¢construction 251 27 491 67
Housing loans 380 21 399 22
General commerce 304 52 377 71
Transport, storage and communication 20 08 19 10
Finanaal Institutions, investment and holding companies 155 18 198 26
Professionals and indmiduals 253 34 322 39
Others 63 18 109 31
Sub-total 1,804 30 2,334 41
Debt securities 25 58
1,829 2,392
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CUMULATIVE ALLOWANCES FOR LOANS

Specific Cumulative
Total cumulative Specafic Portfolio allowances as % | allowances as %
allowances " allowances allowances of total NPLs of total NPLs
5$ mulion $% million 5% mullion % %

Singapore
31 Dec 2006 1,025 397 628 a18 1078
31 Dec 2005 1,251 578 673 408 883
Malaysia
31 Dec 2006 472 310 163 475 725
31 Dec 2005 493 350 142 495 69 6
Others
31 Dec 2006 348 178 17¢ 786 1537
31 Dec 2005 370 223 147 829 1375
Group Total
31 Dec 2006 1,845 884 961 48 4 100 9
31 Dec 2005 2,113 11591 962 481 883

® include allowances for classified debt securities

As at 31 December 2006, the Group’s total cumulative allowances for loans amounted to 5$1 85 billian, comprising S$0 88 billion in
cumulative specific allowances and $$0 96 billion in cumulative portfolio allowances Cumulative allowances were 100 9% of total
NPLs at 31 December 2006, higher than the coverage of 88 3% at 31 December 2005

VALUATION SURPLUS

S$ million 31 Dec 2006 31 Dec 2005
Properties 1,600 1,522
Equity securities @ 2,962 2,332
Total 4,562 3,854

¥ Includes properttes classified as assets held for sale

@ Comprise investments In assoclated companies and quoted subsidiaries

The Group’s unrealised valuation surplus amounted to 534 56 bilion as at 31 December 2006, an increase of 18% compared to
31 December 2005 The surplus for properties amounted to $§1 60 billon  The surplus of $$2 95 billion for equity securities was
primarily from the Graup’s holding of GEH shares
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CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIOS

$% million 31 Dec 2006 31 Dec 2005
Tier 1 Caprtal
Paid-up ordinary and preference shares 5,481 1,561
Disclosed reserves / others 8,136 11,124
Goodwaill / Others {3.560) (3,383)
10,057 9,302
Tier 2 Capital
Cumulative portfolio allowances 704 714
Subordinated term notes 3,112 3,872
Revaluation surplus on equity securiies 205 157
4,021 4,743
Capital investments m isurance subswdianes (1,889) (1.466)
Others (85) (359)
Total Capital 12,105 12,219
Risk weighted assets including market nisk 76,514 70,708
Tier 1 ratio 131% 132%
Total capital adequacy ratio 158% 17 3%

Note

Capstal adequacy ratio s calcutated in accordance with the MAS Notice 637 to Banks

M |n accordance with the Companies {Amendment) Act 2005 which came into effect on 30 January 2006 ~share capital” now includes share premium and capital redemption
reserves {previously included in capital reserves)

As at 31 December 2006, the Group's total caprtal adequacy ratio was 15 8% and 1ts Tier-1 ratto was 13 1%, lower than the respective
ratios of 17 3% and 13 2% in December 2005 The dechne was due to the following reasons

= Increase In the Group’s nisk weighted assets

«  Addition of retaned earnings to Tier 1 capital was partly offset by share buybacks and deduction of addmonal goodwill and
intangible assets relating to the Bank’s increased stake in GEH  The Bank raised its shareholding in GEH from 82 3% to 86 9%
following a voluntary cash offer in August 2006 and other purchases of GEH shares during the year

e Teer 2 capital fell by $$722 million from December 2005 due to the commencement of 20% annual amartisation of the Bank's
outstanding 533 8 billion subordinated term notes which will mature in September 2011

»  There was a higher deduction from total capital for capital investments in insurance subsidiaries following the Bank's increased
stake in GEH

In 2006, the Bank bought back approximately 65 7 milhon of its ordinary shares for $$436 million, with shares purchased since
February 2006 held as treasury shares  As at 31 December 2006, the Bank held approximately 51 7 million treasury shares
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PERFORMANCE BY BUSINESS SEGMENT

OCBC Group's businesses are presented in the following customer and product segments  Consumer Banking, Business Banking,
Treasury and Insurance

Net Profit by Business Segment

2006 2005 +{-)

5% mullion S$ mullon %o

Consumer Banking 380 342 1"
Busmess Banking 628 562 12
Teeasury 145 133 9
Insurance 429 327 31
QOthers @ 510 18 nm
Net profit before equity accounting 2,092 1,382 51
Share of results of associated and joint venture companies 14 15 {8)
Minonty Interests {104) (99) 4
Group 2,002 1,298 54

m 2006 included 5$40 miflion divestments gains attributable to GEH
@ 2006 Included 53513 mullion divestment gains

Consumer Banking

Consumer Banking comprises the full range of products and services offered to individuals, including deposit products (checking
accounts, savings and fixed deposits), consumer loans (housing loans and other personal loans), credit cards and wealth management
products {unit trusts, bancassurance products and structured deposits)

For 2006, net profit of the consumer segment increased by 11% to $$380 million, largely as a result of revenue growth of 10%, partly
offset by higher expenses ansing mainly from the accelerated depreciation and wriie-offs of fixed assets and software apphications

Business Banking

Business Banking provides a full range of financial services to business customers, ranging from large corporates and the public
sector to small and medium enterprises  The products and services offered include long-term loans such as project financing, short-
term credit such as overdrafts and trade financing, deposit accounts and fee-based services such as cash management, trusiee and
custodian services

Business Banking's net profit increased by 12% to $3628 million in 2006 This was due to strong fee and net interest income,
supported by buoyant loan growth, and partly offset by higher operating expenses

Treasury

Treasury engages In foreign exchange actwities, money market operations, fixed income and dervatives trading, and also offers
structured treasury products and financial solutions to meet customers’ investment and hedging needs

Treasury's profit grew by 9% to $$145 million in 2006  This was a result of higher income from dealing in foreign exchange, anc
improved contributions from money market activities

Insurance

The Group's msurance business, including its fund management actvities, IS carried out by subsidiary Great Eastern Holdings {*GEH"),
which prowdes both ife and general insurance products to its customers mainly in Singapore and Malaysia

Profit contribution before minonty interests from GEH increased by 31% to 53429 million This was mainly due to business growth anc
strong investment performance  After minonity interests, GEH's contnbution to Group net profit was $$357 mullion 1n 2006 (including
$$40 million in divestment gains), up from 5$251 million in 2005

Others

The "Others” segment comprises Bank NISP, corporate finance, capital markets, property holding, stock brokerage and investmen
holding, support units, other investments, items not attributed to business segments, and one-time dwvestment gans
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PERFORMANCE BY GEOGRAPHY

2006 2005
$$ million % $% million %
Total income
Singapore YV 2,714 7 1,949 68
Malaysia 747 19 662 23
Other ASEAN 239 6 148 5
Asla Pacific 104 3 90 3
Rest of the World 36 1 38 1
3,840 100 2,887 100
Profit before tax
Singapore 1,842 74 1,093 64
Malaysia 498 20 507 30
Other ASEAN 71 3 61 4
Asia Paafic 42 2 21 1
Rest of the World 23 1 24 1
2,476 100 1,706 100
t Tgtal income and profit before tax for 2006 Included pre-tax divestment gains of $§598 million
31 Dec 2006 31 Dec 2005
5% mullion % 5% million %
Total assets
Singapore 105,706 70 96,712 72
Malaysia 31,275 21 26,859 20
Other ASEAN 5,126 3 4,381 3
Asla Pacific 6,349 4 4,669 3
Rest of the World 2,764 2 2,088 2
151,220 100 134,710 100

The geographical segment analysis 15 based on the location where the assets or transactions are booked For 2006, Singapore
accounted for 71% of total income and 74% of profit before tax, while Malaysia accounted for 19% of total income and 20% of
profit before tax  Excluding divestment gains of $$598 million, Singapore would have accounted for 65% of total income and 66%
of profit before tax, while Malaysia would have accounted for 23% of total iIncome and 27% of profit before tax
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Directors’ Report
For the financial year ended 31 December 2006

The directors present their report to the members tagether with the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group and the income statement,
balance sheet and statement of changes in equity of the Bank for the financial year ended 31 December 2006

Directors

The directors of the Bank in office at the date of this report are as follows

Cheong Choong Keng Chairman

Michael Wang Pakshong Vice Chatrman

Bobby Chin Yoke Choong

Dawid Philbrick Conner Chief Executive Officer

Giam Chin Toen

Lee Seng Wee

Lee Tih Shih

Nasruddin Bin Bahar

Neo Boon Siong

Pramukti Surjaudaja

Tsao Yuan, also known as Lee Tsao Yuan
Dawid Wong Cheang Fook

Wong Nang Jang

Patrick Yeoh Khwai Hoh

Mr Dawid Phitbrick Conner, Mr Giam Chin Toon, Dr Tsao Yuan and Col {Ret) David Wong Cheong Foak retire by rotation under Articles 55 and 96 of the
Articles of Assoaation of the Bank and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-elecuion

Mr Lee Seng Wee and Mr Michael Wong Pakshong retire pursuant to section 153 of the Companies Act, Cap 50 Resolutions will be proposed for
their re-appointment under section 153(6) of the said Act to hold office until the next annual general meeting of the Bank

Arrangements to enable directors to acquire shares and debentures

Nerther at the end of nor at any time dunng the financial year was the Bank a party to any arrangement whose object 1s 1o enable the directors of the
Bank to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Bank or any other body carporate, other than as disclosed in
this report
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Directors’ Report
For the financial year ended 31 December 2006

Directors’ interests in shares or debentures

{a) According to the register of directors’ shareholdings, the directors holding office at the end of the financial year had interests in the share capital
of the Bank and ts related corporations, as follows

Holdings registered in the
name of directors or in which Holdings in which directors
directors have a direct interest  are deemed to have an interest

At 3112 2006 At 112006 At 31 12 2006 At 112006
BANK
Ordinary shares
Cheong Choong Kong 88,471 74,214 76,522 ™ 62,507 @
Michael Wong Pakshong 127,198 122,398 59,998 & 59,938 ®
Bobby Chin Yoke Choong - - 40,000 = 40,000 &
David Conner 573,919 491,200 285,145 9 265,067 @
Giam Chin Toon 4,800 - - -
Lee Seng Wee 6,644,394 6,639,594 3,901,094 4% 3,901,084 @
Lee Tih Shih 2,353,152 2,348,352 - -
Nasruddin Bin Bahan 9,600 4,800 - -
Neo Boon Siong 4,800 - - -
Tsao Yuan 9,600 4,800 936 & 936 @
Dawd Wong Cheong Fook 16,800 12,000 - -
Wong Nang Jang 344,946 319,266 145,322 % 145,322 9
Patrick Yeoh Khwar Hoh 9,600 4,800 - -
4 2% Non-Cumulative Non-Convertible
Class G Preference Shares
Cheong Cheong Kong 15,000 15,000 - -
Michael Wong Pakshong 22,000 22,000 - -
Bobby Chin Yoke Choong - - 8,227 & 8,2279
Dawd Conner 50,000 50,000 - -
Lee Seng Wee 800,000 800,000 600,000 ® 600,000 &
Lee Tih Shih 240,000 240,000 - -
Tsao Yuan - - 7,000 9 7.000 %
Wong Nang Jang 38,216 38,216 21,3729 21,3729
Great Eastern Holdings Limited
Ordinary shares
Michael Wang Pakshong - 75,160 - 36,000 ©

a Comprises deemed inzerest of 9,600 ordinary shares held by spouse and 66 922 ordmary shares under the OCBC Deferred 5hare Plan
a Camprises deemed interest of 9 600 ordinary shares held by spouse 38,650 ardinary shares under the OCBC Deferred Share Plan, and acquisition rights of 14 257 ordsnary

shares under the OCBC Employee Share Purchase Plan

o Comprises deemed interest of 273 383 ordinary shares under the OCBC Deferred Share Plan and acqussition rights of 11 162 ardinary shares under the OCBC Employee Share

Purchase Plan

w Comprises deemed interest of 250,810 ordinary shares under the QCBC Deferred Share Plan and acquisition nghts of 14,257 ordinary shares under the OCBC Employee

Share Purchase Plan
Ordinary shares/ preference shares held by spouse

None of the directors have direct or deemed interest in the 4 5% non-cumulative non-convertible Class E preference shares
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Directors’ Report
For the financial year ended 31 December 2006

Directors’ interests in shares or debentures {continued)

{b) According to the regrister of directors’ shareholdings, certain of the directors holding office at the end of the financial year had tnterests in options
to acquire ordinary shares of the Bank granted pursuant to the OCBC Share Option Schemes as set out i the paragraphs on ”Share options”

Number of unissued ordmnary shares

At 31 12 2006 At 112006
Cheong Choong Kong 514,800 331,200
Dawid Cenner 3,464,000 2,852,000
Wong Nang Jang 573,600 684,480

Save as disclosed above, the other directors did not hold any inierest i shares In, or debentures of, the Bank or any relaied corporation either at the
beginning or end of the financial year

The directors’ interests in shares and share options in the Bank as at 21 January 2007 were the same as those as at 31 December 2006

Directors’ contractual benefits

Since the end of the previous financial year, no director has received or becormne entitled to recewe benefits by reason of a contract made by the Bank
or a related corporation with the director or with a firm of which he 1s a member or with a company i which he has a substantial finanaial interest,
except as disclosed i the financial statements and 1 this report

On 12 June 2006, an agreement was made between Dr Cheong Choong Kong {‘Dr Cheong™), non-executive director and Chairman of the Bank, and
OCBC Management Services Private Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank, under which Dr Cheong is appointed as consultant to oversee
and supervise the strategic planning of the Bank and its subsidiaries with respect to talent identification, and the development and succession of senior
managemant within the graup  Under the agreement, Dr Cheong will be entrtled to payments and benefits as consultant with an aggregate value of
41,183,700 per annum which inctudes a vanable bonus of $100,000 per annum but such variable bonus may include any additional amount in excess
of $100,000 as the Remuneration Commutiee of the Bank may at its discretion agree  In s capacity as a director of the Bank Dr Cheong Is also eligible
for any durectors’ fees or share options that are recommended by the Board of Directors  Dr Cheong’s total remuneration for the year, which ranged
between $2,000,000 to $2,249,999 s reflected in the Directors’ Remunesation table in the Corporate Governance Section of the Annual Report

Except as disclosed under the “Share options” section of this report, neither at the end of, nor at any time duning the financial year, was the Bank a party
to any arrangement whose objects are, or one of whose objects 1s, to enable the directors of the Bank to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in or debentures of the Bank or any other body corporate

Share options
(a) OCBC Share Option Schemes

0] OCBC Executives’ Share Option Scheme 1994

The OCBC Executives’ Share Option Scheme 1994 ("1994 Scheme”) in respect of the grant of options 1o acquire ordinary shares in the
Bank was approved at an extraordinary general meeting on 11 June 1994 Options were granted to executives of the Bank and OCBC Bank
(Malaysi2) Berhad, a wholly-owned substdiary of the Bank, of the rank of Assistant Manager and above The 1994 Scheme was terminatec
on 3 August 2001 and replaced by the OCBC Share Option Scheme 2001

Outstanding options under the 1994 Scheme will remain valid until therr respective dates of expiration of the aptions  Particulars of the
1997 Replacement Options, 1998 Replacement Options, 1999 Replacement Opuions, 2000 Options and 2001 Options were set oulin the
directors’ reports for the financial years ended 31 December 1999 to 2001

66 | OCBC - et 2006




Directors’ Report
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Share options {continued)
(a) OQCBC Share Optien Schemes {continued)

() OCBC Share Option Scheme 2001

The QCBC Share Option Scheme 2001 (“2001 Scheme”} in respect of the grant of options to acquire ordinary shares In the Bank was
approved at an extraordinary general meeting on 17 May 2001, to replace the 1994 Scheme Executves of the Group (including executive
and non-executive directors), of the rank of Assistant Manager and above, are eligible to participate in the 2001 Scheme  The Bank will
either 1ssue new shares or transfer treasury shares to the executives upon exercise of opilons

Particulars of the 2002 Options, 2002A Opuions, 20028 Cptions, 2003 Options, 2004 Options, 2004A Cptions, 20048 Options, 2005
Options and 2005A Options, were set out in the directors’ reports for the financia! years ended 31 December 2002 to 2005

The Schemes are administered by the Remuneration Committee and the members at the date of this report are as follows

- Michael Wong Pakshong, Chairman
- Cheong Choong Kong

Nasruddin Bin Bahar:
- Tsao Yuan

Dr Cheong Choong Kong and Mr David Canner {(who retired from the Remuneration Committee on 31 October 2006) did not partiipate in any
deliberation or decision In respect of options granted 1o them

{b) Share options issued dunng the financial year

During the financial year, pursuant to the 2001 Scheme, 5,846,476 ordinary shares were granied to 955 officers of the Group in consideration of
the payment of $1 by each officer for options granted These included options granted to the following directors of the Bank

Designation at the time Number of Acquisition
Name of granting the options options price per share Exeruse period
Cheong Choong Kong Chairman 183,600 36 820 153 2007 to 13 3 2016
David Conner Chief Executive Officer 612,000 $6 820 153 2007 t0 13 32016

No options have been granted to contralling shareholders of the Bank or their associates

Saved as disclosed above, no participant has received 5% or more of the total number of options avallable under the scheme duning the financial
year No options were granted at a discount duning the financial year
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Share optiens (continued)
{b) Share options issued duning the financial year (continued)

Statutory and other formation regarding the Options issued in 2006 are as follows

0]

{n)

(D]

(v}

(v}

(wi}

{vie)

{viny

{x)

Options 1ssued on 14 March 2006 (“2006 Options”) to Group executives {including executive directors) wall expire on 13 March 2016
The exercise penad 1s from 15 March 2007 to 13 March 2016, both dates inclusive  The option may be exercised by notice in writing
accompanied by a remittance for the full amount of the acquisition price, which 1s $6 820 per ordinary share

Options 1ssued on 23 January 2006 ("2006A QOptions”} to a senior executive will expire on 22 January 2016 The exerase penod 15 from
24 January 2007 to 22 January 2016, both dates inclusve  The option may be exercised by notice in writing accompanied by a remitiance
for the full amount of the acquisition price, which 1s $6 780 per ordinary share

Options 1ssued on 23 May 2006 (' 20068 Cptions*) to Group executives of Great Eastern Holdings Limited wll expire on 22 May 2016 The
exercise period 15 from 24 May 2007 to 22 May 2016, both dates inclusive  The option may be exercised by notice n wriung accompanied
by a remittance for the full amount of the acquisition price, which 1s $6 580 per ordinary share

The acquisttion prices were equal to the average of the last traded price of the ordinary shares of the Bank on the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited over five consecutive trading days immediately prior 1o the date when an offer to grant an option was made to
a grantee

Basad on the rules of the 2001 Scheme, options granted to executives including executive directors) are exercisable for a peried commenaing
after the 1st anniversary of the respective dates of grant and expiring on the 10th anniversary of the respective dates of grant  Options
granted to non-executive directors are exercisable for a period commencing afier the ist anmiversary of the respective dates of grant
and expinng on the 5th anniversary of the respective dates of grant or, if applicable laws permit, on such later date as the Remuneration
Commitiee may determine

in accordance with the vesting schedule of the 2001 Scheme, the percentage of options will vest with grantees as follows

On or before the 1st anniversary of the date of grant Nil

On the 1st annuwersary from grant date 33%
On the 2nd anniversary from grant date 33%
On the 3rd anniversary from grant date 34%

Unexercised options will lapse by reason of Rule 7 3 of the 2001 Scheme relating to the cessation of employment of the grantee unless
otherwise determined by the Remuneration Committee

The number of shares which may be acquired by a grantee or the acquisition price or both are subject to adjustment, as confirmed by the
auditors of the Bank that such adjustment is fair and reasonable, by reason of any vaniation in the issued ordinary share capiial of the Bank
(whether by way of nghts ssue or capitalisation of profits or reserves or otherwise) while an option remains unexercised

The persons ta whom these options have beer issued have no night 10 participate by virtue of these options in any share issue of any other
company
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Share aptions (continued)
() Share options outstanding

During the financial year, changes In the number of unissued shares under options granted to directors were as follows

Aggregate options
granted since
commencement

Options granted

Name of director durtng the financial year

of Schemes to end
of financial year

Aggregate options
exercised since
commencement

of Schemes to end
of financial year

Aggregate options
outstanding as at
end of financal year

Cheong Choong Kong 183,600 (2006 Options} 514,800
Dawid Conner 612,000 (2006 Options) 3,564,000
Wong Nang Jang - 927,539

- 514,800
100,000 3,464,000
353,939 573,600

The number of unissued ordinary shares of the Bank under options outstanding at the end of finanaial year is as follows

OCBC Share Options

At 3112 2006

Acquisition

price per share Exerase penod

1997 Replacement Options 386,712 $3 168 30 01 2000 10 29 01 2007
1998 Replacement Options 892,594 $2 675 22 01 2001 10 21 01 2008
1999 Replacement Options 1,807,138 $3139 10 12 2001 10 09 12 2008
2000 Options 3,797,498 $4 542 0612 2002 to 05 12 2009
2001 Options 6,905,676 $5 367 0512 2003 to 04 12 2010
2002 Options 9,662,677 35742 09 04 2003 to 08 04 2012
2002A Options 720,000 $5692 2304 2003 t0 2204 2012
20028 Options 180,000 $4 367 24 10 2003 to 23 10 2012
2003 Opuions 180,000 $4 067 28 03 2004 to 26 03 2008
2003 Optiens 7.866,641 $4 067 2803 2004 t0 26 03 2013
2004 Options 6,925,707 $5 142 16 03 2005 to 14 03 2014
2004A Optians 160,800 $5 492 2008 2005 to 18 08 2014
20048 Options 103,200 35 667 23112005t021 112014
2005 Opuons 5,968,553 $5 767 1503 2006 to 13 03 2015
2005A Options 2,672,688 35784 09 04 2006 to 07 04 2015
2006 Options 4,250,705 $6 820 15 03 2007 to 13 03 2016
20064 Options 12,400 $6 780 24 01 2007 to 22 01 2016
2006B Options 1,376,000 $6 580 24 05 2007 to 22 05 2016
53,868,989
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Directors’ Report
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OCBC Deferred Share Plan

The Bank implemented the OCSC Deferred Share Plan ("DSP*) In 2003, a share-based plan administered by the Remuneration Committee In accordance
with the rules governing the DSP The DSP 15 a discretionary mncentive and retention award program extended to executives of the Group of the rank of
Senior Officer and above at the absolute discretion of the Remuneration Committee  The awards are granted at no cost to the grantees, on a deferred
basis as part of their performance bonus  Such awards shall lapse by reason of cessation of service but may be preserved at the absolute discretion of
the Remuneration Committee  The DSP does not involve the issue of new shares Instead, the Bank wall either purchase existing shares from the market
or transfer treasury shares for release to the grantees at the end of the respeciive vesting periods

During the finanaial year, total awards of 1,444,490 ordinary shares (including awards of 119,907 ordinary shares granted to two directors of the Bank)
were granted to eligible executves under the DSP

During the financial year, the first tranche of 886,918 deferred shares granted in 2003 was released to eligible employees, of which 68,462 shares were
released to a director

OCBC Employee Share Purchase Plan

The OCBC Employee Share Purchase Plan {“ESP Plan"} was approved at an extraordinary general meeting on 30 April 2004 All employees of the Group
("participants”) who have attaned the age of 21 years and have been employees for a period of not less than six months are elgible to participate In
the ESP Plan unless they are also controlling shareholders of the Bank or their associates  The purpose of the ESP Plan 1s to provide participants with an
opportunity to increase thewr personal equity interest in the Bank  The Bank will erther ssue new shares or transfer treasury shares to participants upon
the exercise or conversion of acquisition nghts  The ESP Plan is administered by the Remungration Committee

The Bank’s first ESP Plan which commenced on 1 July 2004 expired on 30 June 2006 During the financial year, 1,728,000 new ordinary shares
were 1ssued upon the exercise of acquisition nghts by participants and 2,258,382 treasury shares were transferred to participants upon conversion of
outstanding acquisition nghts at the end of the first offening period

In June 2006, the Bank launched its second offering of ESP Plan, which cormmenced on 1 July 2006 and exprres on 30 June 2008, at an acquisition price
of $6 45 per ordinary share Under the second oifenng, 3,338 employees (including a director of the Bank) enrolted to participate in the ESP Plan to
acquire 8,222,248 ordinary shares

No participant has been granted nghts to acquire ordinary shares under the ESP Plan which in aggregate, represent 5% or more of the total number
of ordinary shares available under the ESP Plan

(a) Other information regarding acguistion nghts of ESP Plan

(0] Each offering period consists of a 24-month period {or such other period not exceeding 10 years as the Remuneration Committee may
prescribe), except that the commencement date of an offering penod shall not fall duning the period of 30 days immedhately preceding
the date of announcement of the Bank’s financial results for its financial year or the period of 14 days iImmedrately preceding the date of
announcement of the Bank’s financial results for the first three guarters of its financal year, and prowded further that no offenng period
may commence on any date during which another offenng period 15 outstanding

) The acquisition price 15 equal to the average of the last traded price of the ardinary shares of the Bank on the Singapore Exchange Secunies
Trading Lumited over the five consecutive trading days smmedately preceding the price fang date for the acquisition price of the ordinary
shares {as determined by the Remuneration Comrmittee)

(n) A participant may paricipate In the ESP Plan for an offering peniod by making contributions in ¢ash by means of monthly deductions from
his monthly base salary and/or his designated account, and/or by monthly debits from his CPF Ordinary Account to his ESP Plan account
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OCBC Employee Share Purchase Plan (continued)
(a) Other information regarding acquisition nghts of ESP Plan {conunued)

(v)  Terrmmation of employment of a participant for any reasen, including retirement and death and the bankruptcy of a participant, shall
be treated as automatic withdrawal from the ESP Plan under Rule 8 4 However, the transfer of employment of a partcipant between
companies within the Group shall not be treated as terminatien of employment

()] Each partictpant who has elected to acquire ordinary shares shall be deemed to have elected to acguire the number of ordinary shares
calculated by using the amount standing to the credit of the participant’s ESP Plan account as at the last day of the relevant offenng penod
or the amount specified m the parucipant’s Acquisition Form but shall not exceed $72,000 (or such other amount as may be prescribed
by the Remuneraucon Committee) divided by the acquisition pnice and the resulting number of ordinary shares be rounded down to the
nearest whole share The balance of the cash or CPF contribution {together with accrued sierest on the monthly contributions), if any, will
be refunded to the participant

() Participants are allowed to acquire ardinary shares at the end of an offering period, or at any one time after the first anniversary of the first
day of an offering penod by completing and signing an Acguisition Form stating the conversion amount  The conversion amount shall not
exceed the amount standing to the credit of the participant’s Plan Account as at the date of submission of his Acquisition Form

(i) If a participant wishes to discontinue contributions and withdraw from the ESP Plan during an offenng period, he may do so by completing
and sigring a Discontinuance Form  No partial withdrawals from a parbicipant’s ESP Plan account shall be permitted

(b) Acquisition nghts outstanding

The particulars relating to acquisition nghts of the directors under the ESP Plan for the finanaal year under review were as follows

Aggregate number Aggregate number Aggregate number

of shares comprised in of acquisitton nghts of shares comprised

Rights to acquire such rights since exerased since 1n such rights

shares 1ssued commencement commencement outstanding under

during the of ESP Plan to end of ESP Plan to end the ESP Plan as at

Name financial year of financial year of financial year end of financial year
Cheong Choong Kong - 14,257 14,257 -
Dawid Conner 11,162 25,419 14,257 11,162

As at 31 December 2006, the number of shares to be 1ssued under the ESP Plan was 7,640,257 (including the participation of a director)
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Issue of shares pursuant to Optien Schemes and Employee Share Purchase Plan

Duning the financial year the Bank i1ssued the following ordinary shares fully paid up in cash and/or transferred treasury shares pursuant to the Share
Option Schemes and ESP Plan upan the exeraise of options and acquisrtion rights

Number of Number of

Acquisition ordinary ordinary shares

price per share shares 1ssued transferred

1996 Replacement Options $3 396 348,970 -
1997 Replacement Options $3168 307,070 339,684
1998 Replacement Options $2 675 193,572 203,038
1999 Reglacement Options $3139 232,494 197,066
2000 Options $4 542 774,059 869,444
2001 Options $5 367 1,802,935 774,827
2002 Cptions $5742 2,284,109 908,533
20028 Optiors $4 367 60,000 -
2003 Options $4 067 3,724,905 1,471,635
2004 Options $5142 1,135,858 307,592
2005 Options $5 767 379,414 94,937
2005A Options §5784 80,560 170,872
Employee Share Purchase Plan $5 050 1,728,000 2,258,382
13,061,946 7,596,010

Audit Committee

The members of the Audit Committee at the date of this report are as follows

Bobby Chin Yoke Choong Chairman
Nasruddin Bin Bahar

Neo Boon Siong

Tsao Yuan

David Wong Cheong Fook

The Audit Committee performs the functions specified in the Companies Act, the SGX-5T Lising Manual, the Banking (Corporate Governance)
Regulatrons 2005, MAS Guidelines for Corporate Governance and the Code of Corparate Governance In performing its function, the Audit Committee
met with the Bank's external and internal auditors, and reviewed the audit ptans, the internal audit programme, the results of their examination and
findings on their evaluation of the system of internal controls

The Audit Committee also reviewed the following
(a) response of the Bank’s management and the assistance provided by officers of the Bark to the external and internal auditors, and

(b} financial staterments of the Group and the Bank and the auditors’ report thereon prior to therr subrmission to the Board of Directors

The Audit Committee has full access to, and the cooperation of, the management and has been given the resources required for 1t to discharge 1ts
functions it has full authority and discretion to invize any Director and executive officer to attend 1ts meetings  The Audit Committee also reviewed the
Bank's relationship with the external auditors, icluding their independence and objectmvity

The Audit Comnmittee has nominated KPMG for re-appointment as auditors of the Bank at the forthcom:ng Annual General Meeting
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Audrtors

The auditors, KPMG, have expressed their willingness to accept re-appomntment

On behalf of the Board of Directors,

ST

CHEONG CHOONG KONG DAVID PHILBRICK CONNER
Director Director
Stngapore

22 February 2007
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Statement by Directors
For the financial year ended 31 December 2006

In the opinion of the directors,

{a) the financial staternents set out on pages 76 to 167 are drawn up s0 as to give a true and fair view of the state of affarrs of the Group and the
Bank as at 31 December 2006 the results and changes in equity of the Group and the Bank for the financial year ended on that date, and cash
flows of the Group for the financial year ended on that date, and

{b) at the date of this siatement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Bank will be able to pay its debts as and when they fall due

The Board of Direciors has, on the date of this statement, authonised these financial statements for 1ssue

On behalf of the Board of Directors,

o

CHEONG CHOONG KONG DAVID PHILBRICK CONNER
Director Director
Singapore

22 February 2007
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Auditors’ Report
To The Members Of Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation Limited

We have audited the accompanying financial staternents of Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation bimited ("the Bank”} and 1ts subsidianes (“the
Group™), which comprse the balance sheets of the Group and the Bank as ai 31 Decermber 2006, the income statements and statements of changes
In equity of the Group and the Bank and cash flow statement of the Group for the year then ended, and a summary of sigmificant accounting policies
and other explanatary notes, as set out on pages 76 to 167  The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2005 were audited by another
auditor whose report dated 28 February 2006 expressed an ungqualified opmion on those statements

Directors” responsibility for the financal statements

The Bank’s directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 1n accordance with the provisions of the
Singapore Companies Act, Chapter S0 (“the Act”) and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards This responsibility includes designing implementing
and maintaining nternal control refevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from maternial misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error, selecting and applying appropnate accounting policies, and making accounting estimates that are reasonable In the
crcumstances

Auditors responsibility

Our responsibility 15 to express an optnion on these financial statements based on our audit We conducted our audit In accerdance with Singapore
Standards on Audiing  Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance whether the financial statements are free from matenal misstaternent

An audit mvolves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures I the financial statements The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the nsks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers tnterna! control relevant to the entity’s preparation and far presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropnate in the arcurnstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control - An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting pohaies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements

We believe that the audit ewidence wa have obtained Is sufficient and appropriate 1o prowide a basis for our audit opinion

Comphance with ethical requirements

In accordance with paragraph 4(4) of the Fourth Schedule to the Accountants (Public Accountants) Rules 2004 (*Accountants Rules”}, the economuc
interests held by staff members of KPMG who were directly involved in the audit of the accompanying financial statements of the Bank and rts
subsidhanies for the year ended 31 December 2006 (as weil as those held by the staff members’ financially dependent immediate family members), tn
aggregate as at 1 January 2006 were less than $0 1 million

The abavementioned economic interests were extinguished within 90 days from the date of our appointment as auditors or in compliance with the
Accountants Rules There were no economic interests held up to the date of this report  The aggregate gross transactions of the above staff members
and therr fimancially dependens immedsate family members from 1 January 2006 to 31 December 2006 were less than $0 1 rilhon

Opinton
In our opinion,

(a) the consolidated financial statements of the Group and the financial statements of the Bank are properly drawn up in accordance with the
prowsions of the Act and Singapore Finanoal Reporting Standards, including the modification of the requirements of FRS 39 Financial Instruments
Recognition and Measurement in respect of loan loss provistoning by Notice to Banks No 612 ‘Credt Files, Grading and Provisioning’ 1ssued by the
Monetary Authority of Singapore, so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the Bank as at 31 December 2006,
the results and changes in equity of the Group and the Bank and cash flows of the Group for the year ended on that date, and

(b} the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Bank and by those subsidianes incerporated In Singapore of which we are
the auditors have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act

it

-

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

Singapore
22 February 2007

OCBC ar ironl kepor1 2006 [ 75




Income Statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2006

GROUP BANK
2006 2005 2006 2005
Note $000 $'000 $'000 $°000
Interest income 4,516,313 3,470,335 3,282,635 2,565,361
Interast expense {2,722,255) {1,872,945) (2,132,883) (1,468,271)
Net interest income 3 1,794,058 1,597,390 1,149,752 1,097,090
Premium imcome 5,225,491 4,838,204 - -
Investment income 2,271,996 1,639,856 - -
Net claims, surrenders and annurtres (4,939,969) (3,299,887) - -
Change 1n kfe assurance contract habrhities (1,422,896) (2,069,792) - -
Commission and athers {758,459) {827,846) - -
Profit from life assurance 4 376,163 280,535 - -
Prernium sncome from general insurance 59,409 61,292 - -
Fees and commussions (net) S 597,352 506,822 328,085 296,633
Dmdends 6 128,911 129,570 427,736 266,621
Rental income 77,924 71,823 21,669 15,350
Other income 7 805,724 239,379 387,232 194,477
Non-interest iIncome 2,045,483 1,289,421 1,164,722 777,081
Total Income 3,839,541 2 886,811 2,314,474 1,874.171
Staff costs {721,613) (633,684) (342,298) (325,649)
Other operating expenses {609,531) (510,835) (459,898) (385,485)
Total operating expenses 8 (1,331,144) (1,144,519) {802,196) (711,134)
Operating profit before (allowances)/writeback
and amortisation of intangible assets 2,508,397 1,742,292 1,512,278 1,163,037
Amortisation of iniangible assets 37 (43,732) (39,920) - -
{allowances)wniteback for loans and impairment of other assets 9 (2,426} (11,629) 26,926 {56,698)
Operating profit after (allowances)/writeback
and amortisation of intangible assets 2,462,239 1,690,743 1,539,204 1,106,339
Share of results of associated and joint venture companies 13,651 14,796 - -
Profit before income tax 2,475,890 1,705,539 1,539,204 1,106,339
Income tax expense 10 (369,818) (308,083) (203,262) (153,798)
Profit for the year 2,106,072 1,397,456 1,335,942 952,541
Attributable to
Equity holders of the Bank 2,002,192 1,297,998
Minority interests 103,880 99,458
2,106,072 1,397,456
Earnings per share {cents) 11
Basic 63 40
Diluted 63 40

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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Balance Sheets
As at 31 December 2006

GROUP BANK
2006 2005 2006 2005
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
EQUITY
Attributable to the Bank's equity holders
Share capital 13 5,480,943 1,561,177 5,480,943 1,961,177
Capnal reserves 14 103,262 4,292,000 83,162 4,245,319
Statutory reserves 15 2,027,811 1,959,332 1,698,130 1,631,330
Fair value reserves 667,712 617,819 405,102 396,285
Revenue reserves 16 5,124,544 3 907,553 2,561,840 2,033,360
13,404,272 12,337,881 10,229,177 9,867,471
Minority interests 17 1,086,631 1,148,978 - -
Total equity 14,490,903 13,486,859 10,229,177 9,867,471
LIABILITIES
Deposits of non-bank customers 18 75,114,981 64,087,509 59,363,176 50,885,352
Deposits and balances of banks 18 11,869,252 10,307,432 11,233,918 10,125,496
Due to subsidiaries - - 1,083,021 1,095,217
Oue to associated compantes 119,637 21,023 3,353 4,482
Trading portfolio liabilities 421,795 455,856 421,795 455,896
Derivative payables 19 2,113,796 1,921,486 2,050,881 1,889,226
Other habilities 20 2,577,510 2,041,815 1,119,749 934,533
Current tax @ 599,046 575,238 286,653 299,512
Deferred tax @ 21 502,261 436,123 136,887 146,267
Debts 1ssued 22 5,130,673 5,518,648 5,359,096 5,780,980
98,448,951 85,365,170 81,058,529 71,616,971
Life assurance fund habthties @ 23 38,279,817 35 858,384 - -
Total habilities 136,728,768 121,223,554 81,058,529 71,616,971
Total equity and habihities 151,219,671 134,710,413 91,287,706 81,484,442

Notes

W n accordance with the Companies {(Amendment) Act 2005 which came into effect on 30 January 2006, share capital now includes share premium and capital redemption reserves

{previously included tn caprtal reserves)

o 2005 comparatives have been restated to include in the respective lines, Iife assurance fund current tax fiabiliies $152 7 milhon, deferred tax habilimes 4221 2 million cash in
hand and balance with banks $385 4 mtllion  These were previously included in the Life assurance fund investment assets In addition certain babilities of the life assurance fund
amounting to $2 572 1 million have been reclassified from “Iife assurance fund Investment assets” to "hfe assurance fund habilities”

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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Balance Sheets
As at 31 December 2006

GROUP BANK
2006 2005 2006 2005
Note $°000 $'000 $'000 $:000
ASSETS

Cash and placements wath central banks @ 24 5,741,343 4,182,058 3,207,583 2,751,840
Singapore government treasury bills and securities 25 8,146,956 6,948,229 7,645,498 6 388,753
Other government treasury bills and secuntes 25 2,194,998 1,990,429 285,702 154,014
Placements with and loans to banks @ 26 17,750,089 11,923,596 16,409,952 11,036,908
Loans to and bills recevable from customers 27-30 59,309,000 55,133,652 46,478,716 43,751,456
Debt and equity secunties 3 7,558,241 7,403,267 5,380,272 5,337,818
Assets pledged 43 1,896,579 1,916,559 523,771 651,475
Assets held for sale 44 6,506 - 805 -
Dervative recervables 19 2,414,434 2,378,259 2,353,842 2,348,020
Qther assets 32 2,524,217 1,947,684 1,201,134 929,294
Deferred tax 21 43,188 71,497 1,966 -
Associated and joint venture companies 34 309,214 186,021 96,593 96,593
Subsidianies 35 - - 5,122,029 5,402,133
Property, plant and equipment 36 1,375,748 1,428,656 712,667 728,962
Goodwill and intangible assets 37 3,520,949 3,343,555 1,867,176 1,867,176
112,796,463 98,853,462 91,287,706 81,484,442
Life assurance fund investment assets @ 23 38,423,208 35,856,951 — -
Total assets 151,219,671 134,710,413 91,287,706 81,484,442

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS
Contingent liabilities 41 6,819,168 6,646,931 5,153,705 5,492,740
Commitments 42 37,178,752 33,132,647 31,370,019 27,049,958
Dervative finanoal instruments 19 242,467,119 263,295,983 227,403,447 251,796,439

The accompanying notes farm an integral part of these financial statements

78 | OCBC an~ucikeny 2006




Statement Of Changes In Equity — Group
For the financia!l year ended 31 December 2006

Attributable to equity holders of the Bank

Share Caprtal Statutory Fair value Revenue Minority Total

In $'000 capital reserves reserves  reserves reserves Total Interests equity
Balance at 1 January 2006 1,561,177 4,292,000 1,959,332 617.819 3,907,553 12,337,881 1,148,978 13,486,859
Movemnents 10 fatr value reserves

Gains taken to equity - - - 367,579 - 367,579 25,081 392,660

Transferred to ncome statements - - - {312,990) - (312,990) (9,699} (322,689)

Tax on net movements - - - (4.695) - (4,696) (3.823) (8,519)
Currency translation - - - - {20,526) (20,526) {1,350} (21,876)
Net gains/(losses)

recognised in equity - - - 49,893 (20,526) 29,367 10,209 39,576
Profit for the year - - - - 2,002,192 2,002,192 103,880 2,106,072
Total recognised gains

for the financial year - - - 49,893 1,981,666 2,031,559 114,089 2,145,648
Transfers - (24,102) 68,479 - (44,377) - - -
Acquisiiion of additional

interests n subsidiaries 40,635 - - - - 40,635 (121,577) (80,942)
Dividends paid to minonty interests - - - - - - (54,859) (54,859)
Effect of Companies

{Amendment) Act 2005 4,185,344 (4,185,344) - - - - - -
Ordinary and preference dividends - - - - {677,032) (677,032) - (677,032)
Share-based staff costs capitalised - 10,643 - - - 10,643 - 10,643
Share buyback - cancelted {2,577) 2,577 - - (43,266) (43,266) - (43,266)
Share buyback - held In treasury {392,374) - - - - (392,374) - {392,374)
Shares 1ssued to

non-executive directors 324 - - - - 324 - 324
Shares ssued pursuant to the

Bank’s employee share schemes 52,345 9,967 - - - 62,312 - 62,312
Shares purchased by DSP Trust - (7,616) - - - (7,616} - (7,616)
Shares vested under DSP Scheme - 5,137 - - - 5,137 - 5,137
Transfer of treasury shares

pursuant o the Bank's

employee share schemes 36,069 - - - - 36,069 - 36,069
Balance at 31 December 2006 5,480,943 103,262 2,027,811 667,712 5,124,544 13,404,272 1,086,631 14,490,903
Included
Share of reserves of associated

and joint venture companies - 1,404 - - 51,725 53,129 - 53,129

An analysis of the movements in each component wathun *Share capital’, ‘Capstal reserves’, ‘Statutory reserves’ and ‘Revenue reserves' Is presented in

Notes 12 to 16

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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Statement Of Changes In Equity — Group
For the financial year ended 31 December 2006

Attnbutable to equity halders of the Bank

Share Capital  Statutory Fairvalue  Revenue Minority Total
In $'000 capital reserves reserves  reserves reserves Total interests equity
Balance at 1 January 2005 1,320,551 3,141,260 1,934,114 648,633 4,847,175 11,891,733 514,317 12,406,050
Movements in fair value reserves

Gains taken to equity - - - 61,136 - 61,136 17,464 78,600

Transferred to ncome statements - - - (70,148) - (70,148) {12,837) (82 985)

Tax on net movements - - - (21,802) - (21,802) {2,408) (24,210)
Currency translation - - - - {17,085) {17,085) (867) (17,952)
Net gains/losses)

recognised In equity - - - (30,814)  (17,08%)  (47,899) 1,352 (46,547)
Profit for the year - — - - 1,297,998 1,297,998 99,458 1,397,456
Total recognised gains/

{losses) for the financal year - - - (30,814) 1,280,913 1,250,099 100,810 1,350,909
Transfers - (82,146} 25218 - 56,928 ~ - -
Acquisition of a subsichary - - - - - - 57,163 57,163
Acquisition of additronal

interests in subsidianies 6,924 81,014 - - - 87,938 (43,581) 44,357
Bonus dvidends and Rights Issue 262,138 1,047,612 - - (1,310,688) (938) - (938)
Cash distnbution

10 mmonty interests - - - - - - (38,250) (38,250}
Dmidends paid to minority interests - - - - - - (37,468) (37,468)
Issue of preference

shares by subsidiartes - - - - - - 575,949 575,949
Issue of nghts

shares by a subsidiary - - - - - - 20,038 20,038
Ordinary and preference dvidends - - - - (514,115)  (514,115) - {514,115}
Share-based staff costs capitalised - 13,852 - - - 13,852 - 13,852
Share buyback - cancelled (35,671) 35,671 - - (452,660) (452,660) - (452,660)
Shares i1ssued to

non-executive directors 14 179 - - - 193 - 193
Shares 1ssued pursuant o the

Bank's employee share schemes 7,221 62,145 - - - 69,366 - 69,366
Shares purchased by DSP Trust - (7,587} - - - {7.587) - (7.,587)
Balance at 31 December 2005 1,561,177 4,292,000 1,959 332 617,819 3,907,553 12,337,881 1,148,978 13,486,859
Included
Share of reserves

of associated compantes - 1,404 - - 42,669 44,073 - 44,073

An analysis of the movemnents in each component within Share capital’, Capital reserves’, 'Statutory reserves’ and ‘Revenue reserves’ 15 presented in

Notes 12 to 16

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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Statement Of Changes In Equity — Bank
For the financial year ended 31 December 2006

Share Capital  Statutory Fairvalue  Revenue

In $°000 capital reserves reserves  reserves reserves Total
Balance at 1 January 2006 1,561,177 4,245,319 1.631,330 396,285 2,033,360 9,867,471
Moverents 1n fair value reserves

Gains taken to equity - - - 223,360 - 223,360
Transferred to income statements - - -  (226,040) - (226,040)
Tax on net movements - - - 11,497 - 11,497
Currency translaticn - - - - (20,364) (20,364)
Net gains/losses) recognised In equity - - - 8,817 (20,364) (11,5a7)
Profit for the year - - - - 1,335,942 1,335,942
Total recognised gains for the finanoal year - - - 8,817 1,315,578 1,324,395
Transfers - - 66,800 - (66,800) -
Acquisition of additional interests 1n a subsidiary 40,635 - - - - 40,635
Effect of Companies {Amendment) Act 2005 4,185,344 (4,185,344) - - - -
Ordinary and preference dvidends - - - - (677,032) (677,032)
Share-based staff costs capitalised - 10,643 - - - 10,643
Share buyback — cancelted (2,577) 2,577 - - {43.266) (43,266)
Share buyback - hetd in treasury (392,374) - - - - {392,374)
Shares ssued to non-executive directors 324 - - - - 324
Shares issued pursuant to the Bank's employee share schemes 52,345 9,967 - - - 62,312
Transfer of treasury shares pursuant to

the Bank’s employee share schemes 36,069 - - - - 36,069
Balance at 31 December 2006 5,480,943 83,162 1,698,130 405,102 2,561,840 10,229,177
Balance at 1 January 2005 1,320,551 3,004,846 1,583,700 436,504 3,416,287 9,761,888
Movements in fair value reserves

Losses taken o equity - - - {17,592} - (17,592)

Transferred to income statements - - - {5,183) - {5,183)

Tax on net movements - - - (17,444) - (17,444)
Currency translation - - - - (10,375) {10,375)
Net losses recognised in equity - - - {40,219 (10,375) (50,594)
Profit for the year - - - - 952,541 952,541
Total recognised gains/{losses) for the financial year - - - {40,219) 942,166 901,947
Transfers - - 47,630 - (47,630} -
Acquisition of additional interests in a subsiciary 6,924 81,014 - - - 87,938
Bonus dvidends and Rights Issue 262,138 1,047,612 - - (1,310,688) (938)
Ordinary and preference dwidends - - - - (514,115) {514,115}
Share-based staff costs capitalised - 13,852 - - - 13,852
Share buyback - cancelled (35,671) 35,671 - - (452,660}  {452,660)
Shares 1ssued to non-executive directors 14 179 - - - 193
Shares issued pursuant to the Bank's employee share schemes 7,221 62,145 - - - 69,366
Balance at 31 December 2005 1,561,177 4,245,319 1,631,330 386,285 2,033,360 9,867,471

An analysis of the movements in each component within “Share capiial’, ‘Capial reserves’, ‘Statutory reserves” and ‘Revenue reserves 1 presented in
Notes 12t 16

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
For the financial year ended 31 December 2006

2006 2005
$000 $'000
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before income tax 2,475,890 1,705,539
Adjustments for non-cash items
Amertisatton of intangible assets 43,732 38,920
Allowances for loans and impairment of other assets 2,426 11,629
Change in fair value of hedging transactions and trading securities 14,023 2,212
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 103,593 87,761
Net gains on disposal of government, debt and equity secunties {323,673} (82,985)
Net {gains)/losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment (278,573) 812
Share-based staff costs 9,695 13,091
Share of results of associated and joint venture cornpanies (13,651) (14,796)
Write-off of plant and equipment 14,284 -
Items relating to Iife assurance fund
Excess of income over expenses before income tax 476,181 454,704
Surplus transferred from hife assurance but not yet withdrawn {376,163) (280,535)
Operating profit before change In operating assets and liabilities 2,147,764 1,937,352
Change in operating assets and habilities
Deposits of non-bank customers 11,126,086 4,316,836
Deposits and balances of banks 1,561,820 (2 167,099)
Dernvative payables and other hiabilivies 601,013 352,20%
Trading portfolio abiiies (34,101) 455,896
Government securities and treasury bilfs (1,649,947) (756,636)
Trading securities {178,675) 88,338
Placements with and loans to banks (5,611,154) (2,044,571)
Loans to and bills recevable from customers (4,191,401) (1,522,048)
Dervative recervables and other assets (699,337) (704,918)
Net change in investment assets and habilities of life assurance fund {222,979) (372,973)
Cash from operating actmities 2,849,089 (377.614)
Income tax paid (249,335) (356,550}
Net cash from operating activities 2,599,754 (734,164)
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of addittonal interests in subsicharies (302,603) (48 542)
Dwvidends from associated companies 8,432 4,250
Increase in associated and joint venture companies (117,772 {1,606)
Net cash inflow from acquisition of addiional interests in a subsidiary - 76,986
Purchases of debt and equity securities {2,856,498) (2,338,379
Purchases of property, plant and equipment {136,299} {146,976)
Proceeds from disposal of an associated company 67 -
Proceeds from disposal of debt and equity secuniies 3,179,777 4,607,719
Proceeds irom disposal of property, plant and equigment 353,794 6,641
Net cash from investing activities 128,898 2,160,093
Cash flows from finanang activities
Cash distnbutions and dvidends paid to minonty inierests {54,859) {75,718)
Decrease n debts 1ssued (72,910) {484,218)
Dividends paid to equity holders of the Bank {677,032) {514,115)
Expenses relating to Rights lssue - (938)
Proceeds from issue of preference shares by subsidiaries - 575,949
Proceeds from rminority interests for subscription of shares 1n a subsidiary - 20,038
Proceeds from exerose of options and nights under the Bank's employee share schemes 98,381 69,366
Share buyback (435,640) {452,660)
Net cash from financng activities (1,147,060) (862,296)
Net currency translation adjustments (22,307) 1,822
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 1,559,285 565,455
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 4,182,058 3,616 603
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 5,741,343 4,182,058

The accompanying nates form an integral part of these financial statements
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2006

These notes form an integral part of the financial statements

The Board of Dwectors of Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporaton bLmited authorsed these financizl statements for 1ssue on
22 February 2007

1  General

Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation Limited (“the Bank *) 15 incorporated and donmciled in Singapore and 1s publicly traded on the Singapare
Exchange The address of the Bank's reqistered office 15 65 Chulia Street #29-00, OCBC Centre, Singapore 049513

The consohdated financial statements relate to the Bank and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the Group) and the Group’s interests in
associates and joint ventures  The Group s principally engaged in the business of banking life assurance, general insurance, asset management,
investment holding, futures and stockbroking

2 Significant accounting policies

21  Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Singapore Financial Reporting Siandards ("FRS”) as required by the
Companies Act ("the Act”)  In accordance with Section 201{19) of the Act, the requirements of FRS 39 Financial Instruments Recognition
and Measurement In respect of loan loss provisioning are modified by the reguirements of Notice to Banks No 612 'Credit Files, Grading
and Provisioning’ 1ssued by the Monetary Authority of Singapore  The financial statements have been prepared under the histonical cost
convention, except as disclosed in the accounting policies below

The financial statements are presented in Singapore Dollar, which 1s the Bank's functional currency  All financial information presented in
Singapore Dollar has been rounded to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise stated

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with FRS requires management to exercise its judgement when applying the
Group's accounying policies It also requires the use of accounting esttmates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and habilties and disclosure of contingent assets and liabifities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses durng the financial year  Although these estmates are based on management’s best knowledge of
current events and actions, actual results may ultmately differ from these estimates Cnitical accounting estimates and assumptions

used that are significant to the financial staternents, and areas involving a high degree of judgement or complextty, are disclosed
in Note 2 23

Revisions to the following FRS and Interpretations to FRS {”INT FRS”) were effective in the current financial year

FRS Title

FRS 19 (revised 2005) Employee Benefits

FRS 21 {revised 2006) The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

FRS 39 {revised 2006) Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement
FRS 104 {revised 2006) Insurance Contracts

INT FRS 104 (issued in 2005) Determirung whether an Arrangement coniains a Lease

The revised FRS and INT FRS did not result in any change to the Group’s accounting policies
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

22  Basis of consolidation

221

222

OCBC

Subsidianies

Subsidiaries are entities (including special purpose entities) over which the Group has power to govern the financial and operating
policies, generally accompanied by a shareholding of more than one half of the voting nghts The existence and effect of
potential voting rights that are presently exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group controls
another entity

The purchase method of accounting 1s used ta account for the acquisitton of subsidiaries  The cost of an acquisition 15 measured
as the farr value of the assets given, equity iInstruments 1ssued or habilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs
directly attributable to the acquisition Idenufiable assets acquired and hiabilities and contingent liabilities assumed v a business
combtnation are measured at their far values an the date of acquisition

Subsidianes are consolidated from the date on which control 15 transferred to the Group to the date that control ceases
In prepanng the consokdated financial statements, intercompany transactions, balances and vnrealised gains on transactions
among group companies are elmmated Unrealised losses are also ehminated unless the transaction prowides ewidence of
an imparrment of the asset transferred  Vwhere necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidianes
ta ensure consistency of accounting policies within the Group

Minority interest 15 that part of the net results of cperations and of net assets of a subsidiary attributable 1o interests which
are not owned directly or indirectly by the Group It 15 measured at the minorties’ share of the fair value of the subsidianes’
identifiable assets and liabiliies at the date of acquisiton by the Group and the minonities’ share of changes in equity since the
date of acquisition, except when the losses applicable to the minonty in a subsichary exceed the minenty interest in the equity
of that subsidiary In such cases, the excess and further losses applicable to the minonty are attnbuted to the equity holders of
the Bank, unless the minority has a binding obligation, and is able to make good the losses When that subsidiary subsequently
reports profits, the profits applicable to the minonty are attributed to the equity holders of the Bank until the minonty’s share of
losses previously absorbed by the equity holders of the Bank has been recovered

Associated and joint venture companies

Associated companies are entities over which the Group has significant influence, but not control, generally accompanied by a
shareholding of between and including 20% and 50% of the votng nghts  Jaint venture companies are entities whereby the
Group and tts joint venture partners have entered inta a contractual arrangement to undertake an economic actvity, which s
Jontly controlled and none of the parties involved unilaterally have control over the entity

Investrments in associated and Joint venture companies are accounted for in the consolidated financial statements using the equity
methed of accounting  Investment In associated companies in the consolidated balance sheet includes goodwill Wentified on
acquisition, where applicable

Equity accounting involves recording investments in associated and joint venture compames initially at cost, adjusted thereafter
for post-acquisition changes of the Group's share of the net assets of the associated and joint venture companies untl the date
the sigruficant influence or joint control ceases When the Group's share of losses equals or exceeds its interest in the associated
and joini venture compantes, incduding any other unsecured recevables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
ncurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the comparies
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sigmficant accounting pelicies (continued)

22 Basis of consolidation {continued)

222

223

224

Associated and jomnt venture compantes {continued)

In applying the equity method of accounuing, unrezlised gans on transactions between the Group and uts associated and joint
venture companies are eliminated to the extent of the Group s interest in the assooated and joint venture companies  Unreahsed
losses are also ehminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impatrment of the asset transferred  Where necessary,
adjustments are made to the financial staterments of assoaated and joint venture companies to ensure consistency of accounting
policies with those of the Group

The results of assoaated and joint venture compantes are taken from audited financial statements or unaudited management
accounts of the entities concerned, made up to dates of not more than three months prior to the reporting date of the Group

Life assurance companies

Certam subsidianes of the Group engaged in long-term Iife assurance business, are structured into one or more long-term life
assurance funds, and shareholders’ fund  All premiums received, investment returns, claims and expenses, and changes in
labiliies to policyholders are accounted for within the related long-term hfe assurance fund  Any surplus, which 15 determined
by the appointed Actuary after taking into account these itemns, may either be distnbuted between the shareholders and the
policyholders according to a predetermined formula or retained within the long-term life assurance funds The amount distributed
to shareholders 1s reported as "Profit from life assurance” in the consolidated income statement

Accounting for subsidiaries and associated companies by the Bank

Investments in subsidianes and assocrated companies are stated in the Bank's balance sheet at cost less any impairment n value
after the date of acquisition

23 Currency translation

231

232

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions n foreign currencies are recorded m the respective functional currencies of the Bank and its subsidiaries at the
exchange rates prevailing at the transaction dates Monetary itfems denominated In foreign currencies are translated to the
respective entities” functional currencies at the exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date Exchange differences ansing
on settlement and translation of such items are recogrused in the income statement

Non-monetary items denorminated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are translated at the exchange rate at the
date when the fair value is determined  Exchange differences on nan-monetary items such as equity iInvestments classified as
avalable-for-sale hinancial assets are included m the fair value reserve In equity

Foreign operations

The assets and labilities of foreign operations are translated to Singapore Dollar at exchange rates prevailing at the balance
sheet date The income and expenses of foreign operations are translated to Singapore Dollar at average exchange rates for
the year, which approximate the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions Goodwill and farr value adjustments ansing on
the acquisition of a foreign operation on or after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets and habilities of the foreign operation and
translated at the closing rate

Foreign currency differences ansing from the translation of a foreign operation are recognised in the currency transfation reserve
When a foreign operation s disposed of, in part or in full, the relevant amount in the currency translation reserve 15 included in
the gain or loss on disposal of the cperation
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Significant accounting polictes {contmued)

24  Cash and cash equivalents

For the preparation of the cansolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, balances and placements
with central banks Cash and cash equivalents are carned at amortised cost m the balance sheet

25 Finanaal instruments

2

2

2

2

OCBC

51

52

53

54

Recognition

The Group initially recognises loans and advances, deposits and debts issued on the date of ongination  All regular way purchases
and sales of finanual assets with delivery of assets within the time period established by regulatien or market convention are
recognised on the settlfement date

De-recogrution

Finanoal assets are de-recognised If the Group’s contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial assets expire or If the
Group transfers the financal asset to another party without retaining control or transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset Financial iabilities are de-recognised if the Group’s obligations specified in the contract expire or are discharged or
cancelled

Offsetting

Finanoal assets and liabihtses are set off and the net amount presented In the balance sheet when, and only when, there 15 a
legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously Income and expenses are presented on a net basis only when permitted by the accounting standards, or for gains
and losses ansing from a group of similar transactions such as in the Group’s trading actwity

Sale and repurchase agreements (including securities lending and borrowing)

Securities sold under repurchase agreements (“repos”) are treated as collateralised borrowing and the balances mduded n
deposits and balances of non-bank customers and banks The securities sold under repos are treated as pledged assets and
continue to be recagnised as assets  Secunities purchased under commitments to sell ("reverse repos”) are treated as collateralised
lending and the balances included in placements with central banks, loans to banks and non-bank customers The difference
between the amount received and the amount paid under repos and reverse repos 15 amortised as interest expense and interest
income respecively

Securities tending and borrowing transactions are generally secured, with collateral taking the form of securities or cash advanced

or received  The transfer of securities to or from counterparties 1s not normally reflected on the balance sheet  Cash collateral
advanced or receved 1s recorded as an asset or a hability respectively
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2 significant accounting polictes (continued)

26

Non-denvative financial assets

The Group classifies its non-denvative financial assets in the following categories joans and recevables, avallable-for-sale, financial assets
at fair value through profit and loss and held-to-matunty The classification depends on the purpose for which the assets were acquired
Management deterrines the classiication of 1ts financal assets at initial recognition and re-evaluates this designation at every reporting
date, with the exception that the designation of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is not revocable

261 Loans and receivables

Loans and recewvables are non-dervative financial assets with fixed and determinable payments that are not quoted in an actve
market They arnise pnmarily from the Group's banking business of prowiding dwect lending to its customers, participation in loans
with other lenders and purchased loans that are not quoted i zn active market They are initsally recegnised at acquisiion costs
and subsequently measured at amortsed cost using the effective interest method less impairment allowance  The Group’s loans
and recevables comprise mainly placements with and loans to banks and loans te and bills recewable from customers

262  Avatlable-for-sale financal assets

Avallable-for-sale financial assets, compnsing mainly government and corporate debt secunties, are intended to be held for an
ndefinite period of ime, and may be sold in response to needs far lquidity or changes in interest rates, exchange rates or market
prices

At balance sheet date the Group recognises unrealised gains and losses on revaluing unsettled contracts 1n fair value reserve in
equity Upon settlement, available-for-sale assets are carried at fair value (including transaction ¢osts) on the balance sheet, with
cumulative fair value changes taken to fair value reserve In equity, and recognised In the iIncome statement when the asset Is
disposed of, collected or otherwise sold, or when the asset 1s assessed to be impaired

The fair value for quoted investments 1s derived from market bid prices  For unquoted secunties, far value 1s determined
based on guotes from brokers and market makers, discounted cash flow and other valuation techniques commenly used by
market participants

263 Finanaal assets at fair value through profit and loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss compnse hguid assets such as government secuntes, equity and carporate
debt securities which are acquired by the trading business units of the Group for the purpose of selling them in the near term

At balance sheet date, the Group recognises unrealised profits and losses on revaluing unsettled contracts in the income statement
Upon settlement, these asseis are carried at fair value on balance sheet date, with cumulative fair value changes from the trade
date recognised in the income statement

fair value 1s denved from quoted market bid prices  All realised and unrealised gains and losses are included in net trading income
n the income statement  Interest earned whilst holding trading assets is included in interest income

264  Held-to-matunty investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-dervative finanaial assets wath fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that
the Groups management has the positive intention and ability 1o hold to matunty These assets are carnied at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any impairment loss
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

27  Derwvative financial instruments
Al derwative financiat instruments are recognised at fair value on the balance sheet (including transaction costs), which 1s normally zero
or neghgible at inception (trade date) Subsequent changes in farr value are recorded as derivative recewvables (favourable) and derwvative
payables {(unfavourable)
The Group enters into dervative transactions for trading purposes, and the realised and unrealised gains and losses are recogrised in net
trading income  The Group also enters into hedging denvative transactions to manage exposures to Interest rate, foreign currency and
credit risks ansing from rts core banking actwities of lending and accepting depaosits  The Group applies either fair value or cash flow hedge
accounting when the transactions meet the specified critera for hedge accounting
For qualfying farr value hedges, changes in the fair values of the denvative and of the hedged item relating 1o the hedged risk are
recognised in the income statement  If the hedge refationship 15 terminated, the fair value adjustment to the hedged item continues to
be reported as part of the carrying value of the asset or hability and 1s amortised to the income staiement as a yield adjustment over the
remaining matunty of the asset or hability For fair value portfolio hedge of interest rate exposure, adjustment will be on the straighi-line
method If amortsation using a re-catculated effective interest rate 1s not practucable
“Hedge ineffectiveness” represents the amount by which the changes in the fair value of the hedging derivative differ from changes in
the fair value of the hedged stem The amount of ineffectiveness, provided 1t 1s not so great as to disqualify the entire hedge for hedge
accounting, s recorded in net trading income
For qualifing cash flow hedges, the effective portion of the change in farr value of the denvative 15 taken to the hedge reserve In equity
The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion 1s recogrised iImmediately in the income statement  Amounts accurnulated in equity are
transferred to the income staternent in the periad in which the hedged forecasted transaction affects the income statement

28  Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses  The residual values,
useful lives and depreciation methods of property, plant and equipment are reviewed and adjusted as appropriate, at each balance sheet
date, to ensure that they reflect the expected economic benefits denved from these assets
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lves as follows
Furniture and fidures - 5to 10 years
Office equipment - 510 10 years
Computers - 3 to 10 years
Renovation - 3 to 5 years
Maotor vehicles - 5 years
Freehold land and leasehald land with leases of more than 100 years to expiry are not depreaated  Buildings and other leasehold land are
depreciated over 50 years or the penod of the lease, whichever is shorter
Costs incurred in developing properties, including interest on borrowings to finance the development of such properties during the period
of time that 15 required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale, are capitahised and included in the carrying amount
of the asset Al other borrowing costs are expensed
Subsequent expenditure relating to property, plant and equipment I1s added to the carrying amount of the asset when 1t 1s probable that
future economic benefits, In excess of the siandard of performance of the asset before the expenditure was made, will flow to the Group
and the cost can be reably measured Other subsequent expenditure is recognised in the income statement during the financial year in
which the expenditure s incurred
An item of property, plant and equipment 1s de-recognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use
Any gain or loss ansing on de-recognition of the asset Is Included in the income statement in the year the asset Is de-recognised
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2 Significant accounting pohaes (continued)

29

210

21

Goodwill and intangible assets

291 Goodwill

Goodwill on acquisition of subsidhanes 1s included in " Goodwill and intangible assets” on the balance sheet it represents the
excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's Interest In the net fair value of Identifiable assets and liabilittes of the acquiree
Goodwill 1s stated at cost less accumulated imparment loss  Impairment test is carried out at least annually

Garns or losses on disposal of subsidiaries and associated companies include the carrying amount of goedwill relating to the
entity sold

292 Intangible assets

Intangible assets are separately identifiable intangible items ansing from acquisitions  The assets are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisatsion and accumulated impairment losses on the balance sheet  The Group identified the value of in-farce business anising
from it acquisition of addiional stake In Great Eastern Holdings Limited as intangible assets amortised on a straight-hne basis
over Its esumated economic useful life of 20 years

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets that are expected to be recovered primanfy through sale rather than through centinuing use are classified as held for
sale Immediately before classification as held for sale, the assets are re-measured n accordance with the Group’s accounting policies
Thereafter generally the assets are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less cost to sell

Impairment of assets

2111 Loans and receivables

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there 15 objeciive evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial
assets 15 impaired  Allowances for loans in the loan book comprise specific allowances as well as portfolio allowances Specific
allowance Is established when the present value of future recoverable cash flows for impaired loans 15 lower than the carrying
value of the loan Impaired loans are assessed on a loan-by-loan basis except for homogeneous loans below a certain matenahty
threshold, which are grouped together according to therr nsk charactensucs and collectively assessed, taking into accoeunt the
historica! loss experience on such loans  Portfoho allowances are set aside for unimparred loans based on management's credit
experiences and judgements Credit experiences are based on historical default rates which take into account nsk factors,
including internal nsk ratings, geographic, industry and economic conditions as at reporting date

Specific allowances are written back to the income statement when the loans are no longer considered impaired or when the loss
on the lean i1s determined to be less than the amount of specific allowance previously made Write-offs of debts are made when
recovery action has been instifuted and the loss can be reasonably determined

2112 Other non-denvative financial assets

Impairment of other non-derivative financial assets 1s calculated as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
estimated recoverable amount  For equity investment classified as available-for-sale, a significant or prolanged decline in the
farr value of the asset below its cost 15 considered in deterrining whether the asset s mpared  If any such evidence exists, the
cumulative loss, measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any imparment loss
on that financial asset previously recogmised m the income siatement, 1s removed from the fair value reserve within equity and
recognised In the Income statement

Impairment losses on equity mvestrments recogrised mn the ncome statement are not reversed through the income statement,
until the investments are disposed of For debt mvestments, reversal of impairment 1s recogrused in the income statement
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Significant accounting policies {continued)

211  Impairment of assets (continued)

2113

2114

Goodwill

Goodwill 15 tested annually for impairment, as well as when there 1s indication that the goodwill may be impaired  For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill 15 allocated to each of the Group's Cash Generating Units {*CGU™) expected to benefrt
from synergies of the business combination  The Group’s CGUS correspond with the busingss segments identified in the primary
segment repart as this 15 the level at which the performance of an investment 1s reviewed and assessed by management

An impairment loss 1s recogmised in the income statement when the carrying amount of CGU, including the goodwill, exceeds
the recoverable amount of the CGU  Recoverable amount of the CGU 15 the higher of the CGU's fair value less costs to sell and
its value tnuse  The iotalimpairment loss 1s allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of goodwill allocated to the CGU and
then to the other assets of the CGU pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the CGU  Impairment loss on
goodwill 15 not reversed In subsequent penods

Investments in subsidianes and associated companies
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Investments in subsidiaries and associated companies, property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, are reviewed for
impairment wheraver there 1s any indication that these assets may be impaired If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount {1 e the hrgher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value in use) of the asset s estmated to determine the amount
of impairment loss

For the purpase of impawment tesung of these assets, recoverable amount 1s determined on an individual asset basis unless the
asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets If this Is the case, recoverable amount
15 determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs

Animpairment loss Is recognised in the iIncome statement when the carrying amount of the asset {or CGU) exceeds the recoverable
armount of the asset {or CGU) An impatrment loss for an asset other than goodwill 1s reversed «f, and only if, there has been a
change n the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised  The
carrying amount of an asset other than goodwill 1s increased 10 1ts revised recoverable amount, provided that this amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment loss
been recognised for the assets in prior years

212 Outstanding premiums

Outstanding premiums are carned at ¢ost, which approximate farr value

Premsums of life assurance business which remam outstanding beyond the contractual date would automatically tngger premium loans
which are taken against the cash value standing o the credit of the policy Where the cash value I1s insufitcient to actwvate a premium loan,
the policy lapses and the insurance contract between the life assurance subsidiary and the policyholder 1s deemed cancetied without further
habilities accruing from esther party

Premuums frorn general insurance business which are outstanding for 90 days would lead to termination of insurance cover and the entire
amount would be written off to the income statement in the year in which the 90-day crecit expires
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Significant accounting polictes (continued)

213

214

215

Financial habilities

Financial iabilities comprise mainly deposits and debts issued The Group classifies capstal instruments as financial habilities or equity
instrurmenis in accordance with the substance of the contractual terms of the instrument

Deposits and debts 1ssued are carrned at amortised cost using the effective interest method, except when the Group chooses to carry the
ltabilities at fair value through income statement Generzlly, 1t 15 the Group’s policy 1o hedge the fixed interest rate nsk on debis issued
and apply far value hedge accounting The carrying values of debts 1ssued are adjusted for changes in fair value relating to the hedged
exposure rather than carned at amortised cost

Provisions and other habilities

Provistons are recognised when there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it 55 probable that an outflow of
resources wiil be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made Where a provision 15 expected to be
reimbursed, for example under an insurance contract the reimbursement 1s recogrised as a separate asset only when 1115 virtually certain
that reimbursement will be received

Full provision 1s made for the estimated cost of all Iife assurance claims notified but not seitled at balance sheet date Prowision 1s made for
claims incurred but not reported for all dasses of general insurance business written

Provision for agents’ retirement benefits 1s calculated In accordance wath the terms and conditions n the respective Life Assurance Sales
Representative’s Agreements

Policy benefits are recognised when pelicyhalder exercises the option to deposit the survival benefits with the Iife assurance subsidianes
when the benefit falls due Policy benefits are interest beaning at rates adjusied from time to time by the life assurance subsidiaries

Insurance contracts

The insurance subsidiaries within the Group issue insurance contracts in accordance with the Insurance Regulatiens prevailing in therr
respective Junisdictions  Disclosures an the various insurance contracts and therr labilities are classified into the principal components
as follows

{a}  Life Assurance Fund contract liabilities, comprising
- Participating Fund contract liablities,
- Non-participating Fund contract lisbiities, and
- Investment-linked Fund contract habilities

{b}  General Insurance Fund contract liabilities

{¢)  Reinsurance contracts

The Group 15 not required to un-bundle any insurance contract as the current accaunting policy recogruses all nsurance premiums, claims
and benefit payments, expenses and valuation of future benefit payments, inclusive of the invesimen: component, through the insurance
income statement The Group does not adopt a policy of defernng acquisition cost for Its insurance contracts
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Significant accounting policies {continued)

215

Insurance contracts (continued)

Life Assurance Fund contract liabilities

The Group issues a vanety of short and long duration insurance contracts which transfer nisks from the poficyholders to the Group to
protect policyholders from the consequences of insured events such as death, disability, illness, accident, including survival These contracis
may transfer both insurance and investment risk or insurance nsk alone, from the policyholders to the Group

For non-participating policy contracts, both insurance and investment risks are transferred from policyholders to the Group Far nen-
participating policy contracts other than medical insurance policy contracts, the payout to policyholders upon the occurrence of the insured
event 1s pre-determined and the transfer of risk i1s absolute For medical insurance policy contracts, the payout 1s dependent on the actual
medical costs incurred upon the occurrence of the insured event

Cantracts which transfer insurance nsk alone from policyholders to the Group are commonly known as investment-linked policies As part
of the pricing for these contracts, the insurance subsidiaries within the Group would include fees to cover for expenses and insured risk
The investment returns derived from the vanety of investment funds as elected by the policyholder accrue directly to the policyholder

A significant portion of insurance contracts 1ssued by subsidianes within the Group contain a discretionary participating feature  These
contracts are classified as parttaipating pohicies  In addition to benefits payable upon insured events asseciated with human life such as
death or disability, the contract entitles the policyholder to receive benefits, commonly referred to as policyholder bonus, which 1s derwed
from the investment performance of the pool of assets and operating experences of all the participating policies managed by each
insurance subsidiary within the Group

In addition to guaranteed benefits, set out in the participating policy contract which includes a representation by the insurance subsidiary
within the Group, to the effect that the amount and tming of payment or vesting of payables are at the sole discretion of the insurance
subsichary wathin the Group and are based on the performance of the pool of assets, induding but not imited to the investment
performance, the long term sustainabiltty of the policyholder bonus scale, policyholders’ expectations, and surplus or caprtal strength of
the parvopatng fund Fund surplus, not distributed to shareholders or policyholders, of the participating Iife fund 1s classified as hability

The Group does not recognise the guaranieed component separately from the discretionary participation feature, hence the Group classifies
the whole contract as a hability in the financial statements

For the purpose of FRS 104 the Group adopts maximum policy benefits as the proxy for insurance nsk and cash surrender velue as the
proxy for deposit component The Group defines insurance nisk to be significant when the ratio of the insurance risk over the deposit
component 1s not less than 105% of the deposit component at any point of the insurance contract in force Based on this definitien, all
policy contracts 1ssued by insurance subsidiaries wathin the Group are insurance contracts at the balance sheet date

Insurance contracis are recogrised and measured in accordance with the terms and condiuions of the respective contracts and are based
on guidelines laid down by the respective insurance regulatons  Premiums, claims and benefit payments, acquisitton and management
expenses and valuation of future policy benefit payments or premium reserves as the case may be, are recegrised in the income statements
of the respective insurance funds
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
2 15 Insurance contracts {continued)
The valuation of insurance contract habilities s determined according to
(a) Singapore Insurance Act {Chapter 142}, Insurance (Valuation and Capital) Regulations 2004 for imsurance funds regulated in Singapore,
and

() Malaysia Insurance Act and Regulations 1996 for insurance funds regulated in Malaysta

The table below provides the key underlying assumptions used for valuation of Iife insurance contract habilities

Valuation Singapore Malaysia
method Gross Premium Net Prermium

Interest Rate | Singapore Government Bond yelds for cash flows prior to | Rates equal to or more conservative than the minimum
10 years, the Long Term Risk Free Discount Rate ("LTRFDR™) | rate prescribed by the Act

for cash flows after 15 years, and an interpolation of the
10-year Singapore Government Bond yield and the LTRFDR | Participating Fund Either 3 5% or 4 0% for regular
for cash flows between 10 to 15 years prermum with:n respective product groups and 4 5% for
single premium products

Data source 5G5S websiie
Non-Participating Fund 4 Q% for regular premium and
4 5% for single prermum products

Mortality Best estimates plus provision for adverse deviation Prescribed table per regulation
Table 100% Statutory Mortality Valuation Table {* SMVT*)
Data source Internal expenience studies 1996

Adjustment for females 3 years setback

Disability Best estimates plus prowision for adverse dewiation Included in death rates

Data source Internal expenence studies

Dreaded Best estimates plus provision for adverse deviation Table 150% Cologne Re male smoker mortality rates
disease
Data source Internal expernence studies

Expenses Best estimates plus provision for adverse dewiation Not apphicable

Data source Internal expenence studies

Lapse Best estimates plus provision for adverse deviation Not applicable
& surrenders
Data source Internal expenence studies

* Refer to Note 2 23 on Critical accounting estimates and jJudgements

Each insurance subsidiary wathin the Group s required under the respective Insurance Regulations to carry out a hability adequacy test
using current estimates of future cash flows under its insurance contracts, the process Is referred to as the gross premum valuation or
bonus reserve valuation, depending on the junsdiction in which the insurance substdiary operates
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Significant accountmg polictes (continued)

215

216

Insurance contracts (continued)

The hability adequacy test is applied to both the guaranteed and the discretionary participation feature, the assumptions are based on best
estimates, as prescribed by the Insurance Regulations of the respective junsdiction in which the insurance subsidiary operates  The Group
performs hiability adequacy tests on its actuarial reserves to ensure that the carrying amount of provisions 1s sufficient to cover estmated
future cash flows When performing the habtlity adequacy test, the Group discounts all contractual cash flows and compares this amount
to the carrying value of the liability Any deficiency 1s charged to the income statement

The Group issues investment-linked contracts as insurance contracts which insure human life events such as death or survival over a long
duration, coupled wath an embedded dervative linking death benefit paymenis on the contract to the value of a pool of investments within
the investment-inked fund set up by the insurance subsidiary  As this embedded dervaive meets the defimition of insurance contract, it
need not be separately accounted for from the host insurance contract  The liability valuation for such contracts is adjusted for changes
in the far value of the underlying assets at frequencies stated under the terms and conditions of the insurance contract

General Insurance Fund contract liabilitries

The Group 1ssues short term property and casualty contracts which protect the policyholders against the nsk of loss of property premises due
to fire or theft in the form of fire or burglary Insurance contract and/or business Interruption contract, nsk of habiity 1o pay compensation
to a third party for bodily harm or property damage in the form of public habibty insurance contract  The Group also tssues short term
medical and personal acadent general Insurance contracts

Claims on general insurance contracts are payable on a claim-occurrence basis  The Group 1s hiable for insured events that occurred during
the term of the contract, even if the loss is discovered after the end of the contract term Hence, hability claims could be settled over a long
period of time  The Group uses a combination of estimates dernived from loss-ratic estimate and actual claims experience, to estimate the
loss reserves and incurred but not reported ("IBNR”) claim reserves  The valuation of general insurance contract liabilities at balance sheet
date I1s based on best estimates of the ultimate settlement cost of claims plus a prowision for adverse deviation  For Singapore, as required
by the local Insurance Regulations, the provision for adverse deviatton 1s set at 75 per cent level of sufficiency For Singapore, the valuation
methods used include the Paid Claim Development Method, the Incurred Claim Develcpment Method, the Bornhuetter-Ferguson Method,
the Mack’s Method and the Expected Loss Ratio Method  For Malaysia, the Link Ratio Method 1s used  Discounting is not used due to the
short term nature of the Group’s general Insurance habiities The prowision for IBNR claims 15 classified as liabilitres and included in other
habilities

Reinsurance contracts

Contracts entered into by Group insurance subsidiaries with reinsurers in which they are compensated for losses on one or more contracts
issued are classified as insurance contracts  Assets consisting of short term balances due from reinsurers are classified as other debtors
Long term recewvables that are dependent on the expected claims and benefits arising under the related reinsured insurance contracts are
classified as reinsurance assets Amounts recoverable from or due to reinsurers are measured consistently with the amounts associated
with the reinsured insurance contracts These amounts are assessed for impairment at reporuing date  The Group gathers objective
evidence to ascertain an insurance recervable is impaired using the same process adopted for financial assets held at amortised cast  The
impatrment loss 15 calculated on the same basis used for loans and receivables Reinsurance labilities are primarnly prermums payable for
reinsurance contracts and are recognised as an expense when due

Unexpired risk reserve

The Unexpired Risk Reserve {"URR") represents the portion of the written premwums of general insurance poltcies, gross of commission
payable to intermediartes attributable to periods after balance sheet date, in the form of unearned prermum  The change in the provision
for unearned premium 15 taken to the income statement in the order that revenue 1s recognised over the period of the nisk exposure
Further provisions are made for claims anticipated under unexpired insurance contracts which may exceed the unearned premiums and the
premiums due in respect of these contracts

URR 1s computed using the 1/24th method reduced by the corresponding percentage of accounted gross direct business, commisstons and
agency related expenses not exceeding mits speaifted by regulators in the respective jurisdictions in which the Group operates
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

217 Share capital and dividend

Ordinary shares, non-voting non-convertible and non-voting redeemable convertible preference shares with discretionary divedends are
dassified as equity on the balance sheet

Costs directly attributable to the 1ssuance of new equity instruments are taken to equity as a deduction from the proceeds

Where share capital recogmised as equity 1s repurchased {treasury shares), the amount of the consideration paid, including directly attributable
costs, Is presented as a deduction from equity Where such shares are subsequently reissued, sold or cancelled, the consideration received
1s recognised as a change in equity No gain ar loss 15 recagnised In the iIncome statement

interim dvidends on ordinary shares and dvidends on preference shares are recorded in the financial year in which they are declared
payable by the Board of Directors Final dividends proposed after year end are recorded in the financial year in which the dividends are
approved by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting

218 Recogmition of income and expense

2181 Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recogrused in the income statement using the effective iInterest method The effective interest
rate 1s the rate that discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts thraugh the expected life of the financial instruments or,
when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount  When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates
cash flows considening the contractual tarms of the financial instruments including prepayment options, transaction costs and
prerniums or discounts

For financial assets that are written down due to impairment loss, interest income 1s recognised based on the rate of interest use
to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring impairment loss

2182 Profit from hife assurance

Profit from Iife assurance business 15 derived from insurance funds categorised as follows

{a) Participating Fund

Profits from the participating fund are allocated to policyholders and shareholders from the surplus or surplus capital based
on the results of the annual actuanal valuation (such valuation also determines the habiltties relating to all the policyholders’
benefits of the partiopating fund) Parameters for the valuation are set out in the Insurance Regulations governing the
Group’s insurance subsidiaries in their respective locations  The prowvisions in the Articles of Association of the Group's
insurance subsidianies are apphied in conjunction with the prescriptions in the respective Insurance Regulations, such that the
distnbution for any year to policyholders of the participating fund and sharehelders approximate 90% and 10% respectively
of total distrbution from the particpating fund  The annual declaration of the quantum of policyholders’ bonus and
correspondingly the profits to shareholders to be distributed out of the partiopating fund 15 approved by the Board of
Direciors of each insurance subsidiary under the adwice of the Appointed Actuary of the respective nsurance subsidiary

{b) Non-particpating Fund

Revenue consists of prermiums, investment and nterest ncome, including fair value movements of certain assets as prescribed
under the respective Insurance Regulations  Expenses include reinsurance costs, acquisition costs, benefit payments and
management expenses Profit or loss from the non-partioipating fund 1s determined from the revenue and expenses of the
non-participating fund and the results of the annual actuanal valuation of the habilities in accordance with the requirements
of the respective Insurance Regulations

() Investment-hinked Fund

Revenue compnises id-ask spread, fees for mortality and other insured event, policy administration and surrender charges
Expenses mclude reinsurance casts, acquisition €osts, benefit payments and management expenses Profit 1s derved from
revenue net of expenses and prowiston for the annual actuanal valuation of habilities to the non-unit inked part of the fund,
in accordance with the requirements of the Insurance Regulations
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Significant accounting policies {continued)

218 Recognition of Income and expense (continued)

2182

2183

2184

2185

2186

Profit from life assurance {continued}

Premiums from policyholders are recognised on their respective due dates  Premiums not received on due dates are recognised as
revenue tn the income statement with the corresponding outstanding premiums reported in the balance sheet The cemmussion
expenses ansing from these outstanding premiurns are accrued In the same reporting period

Premiums recerved before due date are recorded as advance premiums and included under ife assurance fund hiabilitres tn the
balance sheet The commissions ansing from advance premiums, If any, are not accrued for until the premiums are due and
recognised as revenue in the income siatement

Premium income from general insurance

Premiums from the general insurance business are recognised as revenue upon commencement of insurance cover Premiums
pertaining to penods outside of the financial reporting period are adjusted through the unexpired rnisk reserve (Note 2 16) The
commission expense 15 accrued in full upon the nisk underwntten as reflected in the premium recognised

Premiums ceded out and the corresponding commission inceme from the general insurance contracts, are recogmsed in the ncome
statement upon receipt of acceptance confirmation from the ceding company or in accordance with provisions incorporated in
the treaty coniracts  Premium ceded out pertaining to periods outside of the finanaal reporting period are adjusted through the
unexpired nsk reserve

Fees and commissions

Fee and commussten income Is earned from a range of senaces rendered by the Group to its customers, and comprises Income
earned from services rendered over a penod of time as well as transaction-type services

Fees earned from providing services over a penod of time Is recognised over the service period dunng which the related service
s provided or credis nsk 15 undeniaken  Fee and commission income from such services comprises mainly credit cards, loans,
guarantees, fund management and other management and adwsory fees When a fee 15 charged in fieu of interest, such fee
1s amortised over the same penod that the related interest income 1s recognised  Fees earned from providing transaction-type
services which include underwriting fees and brokerage income, are recognised in the period that the service is rendered

Fee and commission expenses are netied off against the gross fee and commission income In the income statement

Dividends

Dvidends from available-for-sale securities, subsidiaries and associated companies are recogrised when the nght to receve
payment s established Dwdends from trading secunties are recognised when recerved

Rental

Rental Income on tenanted areas of the buildings owned by the Group 1s recognised on an accrual basis in accordance wath the
substance of the tenancy agreements
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2 Swignificant accounting polices (continued)

218 Recogmition of income and expense (continued)

2187 Employee benefits

Compensation package for staff consists of base salanes, allowances, commissions, cash bonuses, equity compensation schemes
and plans Salaries, allowances, commissions, bonuses and defined contibutions under requlations, such as Central Prowdent
Fund (" CPF*} Act In Singapore, are recogrused m the income statement when incurred  Employee leave entitiements are estimated
according 1o the terms of the employment contract and accrued on balance sheet date

Share options are awarded to staff as part of their performance bonus under the Bank’s Share Option Schemes Options are
granted to Group executwes {including executive and non-executive directors), of the rank of Assistant Manager and above,
which vest in ane-third increments over a 3-year period and expire between $ and 10 years from grant date

The Employee Share Purchase Plan (“ESP Plan”) 15 a sawings-based share ownership plan that allows eligible employees to
acqurre the Bank’s shares (“acquisiion nghts”), at an acquisition price fixed before the commencement of the ESP Plan, by
making monthly contributions to their Plan Accounts  Interest is accrued on the account at a preferenual rate determined by the
Remuneration Commuttee The Plan Account balances are included in non-bank customer deposts

The Group uses the binomial model to calculate the fair value of share optiens granted under the Bank's Option Schemes and
acquisition rights under the ESP Plan  The value of the options and nights at grant date 1s recognised in the income statement
over the vesting peniod of the employees’ share schemes, with a corresponding increase in capital reserves At each balance
sheet date, the Group rewises its estimates of the number of options expected to become exerasable, and the impact of the
change to the ongmal estimates, If any, 1s recognised in the income statement with a corresponding adjustment to equity over
the remaining vesting period

Under the Bank’s Deferred Share Plan ("DSP*), ordinary shares are granted to executives of the Group, which vest at the end of
the third year from the grant date and will lapse when the employee ceases employment during the vesting peniod A trust Is set
up to adminisier the shares acquired under the DSP  The cost of the shares acquired 15 recognised In the income statement on
the straight-line basis over the vesting penod

The proceeds received net of any directly atiributable transaction costs are credited to share capital when the options and
acguisition rights are exercised

2188 Lease payments

Leases of assets In which a significant portien of the nisks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are dlassified as
operating leases Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are taken to the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease  When an operating lease 1§ terminated before the lease peniod has

expired, any payment required to be made to the lessor by way of penalty is recognised as an expense In the period when the
termination tzkes place

Minimum lease payments made under finance leases are apportioned between the finance expense and the reduction of the
outstanding lability The finance expense 1s allocated to each penod dunng the lease term 5o as to produce a constant penodic
rate of interest an the rematning balance of the lability
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Significant accounting policies {(continued)

219

220

221

222

Income tax expense

Income tax expense comprses current and deferred tax Income tax expense 15 recogrised In the Income statement except to the extent
that 1t relates to 1items recogmsed directly i equity, in which case 1t 1s recogmised in equity

Curvent tax Is the expected tax payable on the taxable mcome for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporiing
date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years

Deferred tax 1s recognised using the balance sheet method, providing for temparary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and habilities for financial reporiing purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes Deferred tax s not recogrused for the following
temporary differences the initial recognetion of goadwill, the initial recognibion of assets or hatilities in a transaction that 1s not a business
combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit, and differences relating to investments i subsidianes, associated
and Joint ventures companies to the extent that they probably will not reverse in the foreseeable future Deferred tax 15 measured at the
tax rates that are expected to be apphed to the temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date

A deferred tax asset 1s recognised to the extent that it i1s probable that future taxable profits will be avallable against which temporary
differences can be utihsed Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that #t is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be realised

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation 1s a component of the Group s business that represents a separate major line of business or geographical area
of operations that has been disposed of or is held for sale, or 1s a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale  Classification as a
discontinued operation occurs upon disposal or when the operation meets the critena to be classified as held for sale, if earlier When an
operation ts classified as a discontinued operation, the comparative income statement 1s restated as If the operation had been discontinued
from the start of the comparative period

Fiduciary activities

The Group acts as trustees and in other fiduciary capacities that result in the holding or placing of assets on behalf of indwiduals, trusts,
retirement benefit plans and other institutions  These assets and income arising therean are excluded from these financial statemnents, as
they are not assets of the Group

Segment reporting

The Group wdentified differeni business segments representing the key customer and product groups for its reporting purposes Consumer
Banking, Business Banking, Treasury, Insurance and Others A business segment 1s a group of assets and operations engaged in providing
products and services that 15 subject to nisks and returns that are different from other business segments The business segment information
15 prepared based on internal management reports, which are used by semior management for decision-making and performance
management In determiming the segment results, balance sheet 1tems are internally transfer priced and revenues and expenses are
attnbuted to each segment based on internal management reporting polies  Transactions between business segments are recorded
within the segment as if they are third party transactions and are eliminated on conschdation

A geographical segment 35 engaged in providing products and services within a particutar economic environment that is subject to nsks
and returns that are different from other geographical segments aperating in other economic environments The geographical segment
information 1s prepared based on the country in which the transactions are booked and are presented after ehmination of intra-group
transactions and balances
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2 Significant accounting poltcies {continued)

223 Cntucal accounting estimates and judgements

Esttmates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectation of
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the arcumstances

2231

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerming the future The resulting accounting estirnates wall, by definttion, seldom
equal the related actual results The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a materal adjustment to the
carrying amounts of asseis and habilities within the next financial year are discussed below

(a) Liabilities of insurance business

The estimation of the ultimate habilities ansing from claims made under life and general insurance contracts is the Group’s
most critical accounting estimate There are several sources of uncertainty that need to be considered in the estimation of
the habilres that the Group will ultimately be required to pay as claims

For ife insurance contracts, estimates are made for future deaths, disabilities, voluntary terminations, investment returns and
administration expenses The Group bases the estimate of expected number of deaths on standard industry and national
mortality tables that reflect histonical mortality expenence, adjusted where appropriate 1o reflect the Group's umque nsk
exposure The estimated number of deaths determines the value of possible future benefits to be paid out, which will be
factored into ensuring sufficient cover by reserves, which in return 1s monitored against current and future premiums For
those contracts that insure risk to longewity and disability, estsmates are made based on recent past experience and emerging
trends, but epidernic, as well as wide ranging changes to life style, could result in significant changes to the expected future
exposure All of these result in even more uncertainty in estimating the utimate liabtities

At each reporting date, these estimates are reassessed for adequacy and changes will be reflected as adjustments
to the lhabilities In addition to the expected outcome, solvency margins prescribed by regulations are included in these
key estimates

() Estmated impairment of goodwill and intangible assets

The Group tests annually whether goodwill and intangible assets have suffered any impairment in accordance with the
accounting policies stated in Note 2 113 and 2 11 4 respectively The recoverable amounts of CGUs are determined
based on the value-in-use method, which requires the use of esimates The value-in-use calculations apply a discounted
cash flow mode! using cash flow projections based on budgets and forecasts approved by management covening a
S-year period Cash flows beyond the fifth year are extrapolated using estimated terminal growth rates, which do not
exceed the long-term average growth of the industry and country in which the CGU operates The discount rates appled
to the cash flow projections are derived from the CGU's pre-tax weighted average ¢ost of capital at the date of assessment
Changes to the assumptions used by management, parucularly the discount rate and terminal growth rate, may significantly
affect the resulis of the impairment test

{¢) Fair value estmation

The farr value of finanaal instruments that are not traded n an active market {for example, over-the-counter derivatives) Is
determined by using valuation techniques The Group uses a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are based on
market conditions existing at the balance sheet date Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for sirmilar instruments and
discounted cash flows are some of the common techriques used to calculate the faw value of these instruments  The fair
value of interest rate swaps 15 calculated as the present value of the estimated future cash flows
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Significant accounting pohicies (continued)

223 Critical accounting estimates and judgements (continued)

2231 Cntical accounting estimates and assumptions (conunued)

(d

Income taxes

The Group 15 subject to Incomne taxes in numerous junsdictions  Significant jJudgement 1s required in determining the capital
allowances and deductibility of certain expenses dunng the estimation of the provision for income taxes There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination 1s uncertain during the ordinary course of business
The Group recognises habilities for anticipated tax ssues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due  Where
the final tax outcome of these matters 1s different from the amounis that were initially recorded, such differences wall impact
the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which the determination 1s made

2232 Cntical judgements in applying accounting policies

(a)

{b)

Imparrment of loans

The Group assesses impairment of loans by calculating the present value of future recoverable cash flows and the fair value
of the underlying collaterals, which 1s determined based on credit assessment on a loan-by-loan basis  Homogeneous loans
below a matenality threshold are grouped together according to their nsk charactenstics and collectively assessed taking
into account the histanical loss expenence on such toans  The portfalie allowances set aside for unimpaired loans are
determined based on historical default rates which take into account nisk factors including internal risk ratings, geographic,
industry and economic conditions as at reporting date  The assumptions and judgements used by management may affect
the allowances set aside for loans

Impairment of avallable-for-sale financial assets

The Group follows the guidance of FRS 39 in determining when an investment 1s impawred This determination reguires
sigmificant jJudgement  The Group evaluates, among other factors, the duration and extent to which the farr value of an
nvestmant is less than its cost, and the financial health and near-term business outlook of the investee, including factors
such as industry and sector performance, changes in technology and operational and financial cash flow

Net interest income

GROUP BANK

2006 2005 2006 2005

$°000 $'000 $°000 $°000
Interest income
Loans to non-bank customers 3,109,263 2,401 115 2,210,070 1,745,842
Placements with and loans to banks 744,312 469,416 637,947 407,161
Other interest-earning assets 662,738 599,804 434,618 412,358

4,516,313 3,470,335 3,282,635 2,565,361

Interest expense
Deposits of non-bank customers {1,966,178) (1,251,607} (1,412,977) (870,899)
Deposits and balances of banks (473,263) (403,053} (437,629) {383,379)
Qther borrowings (282,814} (218,285) (282,271) {213,993)

(2,722,255) {1,872,945) (2.132,883) {1,468,271)

Net interest income 1,794,058 1,597,390 1,149,752 1,097,090

Analysed by classification of financial instruments

Income — Asseis not at fair value through profit or loss 4,417,506 3,350,512 3,199,049 2,479,242

Income - Assets at fair value through profit or loss 98,807 119,823 83,586 86,119

Expense — Liabilities not at fair value through profit or loss (2,706,886) {1,858,416) (2,117,514) (1,453,742)

Expense — Liabilities at fair value through profit or loss {15,369) (14,529) (15,369) {14,529)
1,794,058 1,597,390 1,149,752 1,097,090

Included In interest Income were Interest on impared assets of $45 6 milkon (2005 $43 1 million) and $28 5 million (2005 $28 7 million) for the
Group and Bank respectively
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Profit from life assurance

GROUP (5 million) 2006 2005
Income
Gross premiums
Annual 3,289 4 3,146 1
single 2,0093 1,756 7
5,298 7 4902 8
Reassurances (73 2) {64 6)
Premium income {net) 52255 4,838 2
Investment income 2,2720 1.6399
Total income 74975 6,478 1
Expenses
Gross claims, surrenders and annusties (4,969 5) (3,332 0%
Claims, surrenders and annuities recovered from reinsurers 296 321
Net claims, surrenders and annurties (4,939 9) (3.299 9
Change in Iife assurance fund contract habilties (Note 23) (1,422 9) (2,069 8)
Commission and agency expenses (430 4) (437 5)
Other expenses ™ (236 2) {215 8)
Total expenses (7,029 4) (6,023 Q)
Excess of income over expensas from operations 468 1 4551
Share of results of assocated and joint venture compantes 81 o5
Income tax expense (100 0) (174 1)
Profit from life assurance 376 2 280 5

W yncluded in other expenses are directors emoluments of $3 1 million (2005 $2 4 milon)

Profit from life assurance is presented net of tax in the Income statement to reflect the substance that the tax liability is borne by the respective

Iife funds

Fees and commussians {net)

GROUP BANK
2006 2005 2006 2005
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fee and commission Income 637,169 543,413 335,776 308,807
Fee and commission expense (39.817) (36,591) (7.691) (12,174}
Fees and comrmussions {net} 597,352 506,822 328,085 296,633
Analysed by major sources
Brokerage 72,215 47,893 1,091 1,035
Credit card 48,182 41,542 35,871 31,518
Fund management 71,771 64,375 (531) (590)
Guarantees 23,633 19,799 21,106 17,138
Investment banking 30,890 21,277 26,684 19,883
Loan-related 80,779 60,289 50,810 36,946
Service charges 32,966 30,720 23,849 23,507
Trade-related and remittances 92,332 76,784 60,421 52,724
Wealth management 128,604 137,409 106,522 113,915
Others 15,980 6,734 2,262 157
597,352 506,822 328,085 296,633
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6 Dmdends
GROUP BANK
2006 2005 2006 2005
$000 $7000 $°000 $'000
Subsidiaries - - 378,132 232,902
Associated companies - - 8,578 3,120
Trading securities 835 776 794 725
Available-for-sale secunties 128,076 128,794 40,232 29,874
128,911 129,570 427,736 266,621
7  Otherincome
GROUP BANK
2006 2005 2006 2005
$000 $000 $'000 $'000
Gains/losses) from
Foreign exchange 143,689 79,521 114,746 69,185
Interest rate and other derivatives @ {661) 9,578 (4,416) 2,534
Hedging activities & (18,626) 1,131 (18,625) 1,429
Trading securities 20,034 6,108 13,186 (225)
Net trading income 144,436 86,338 104,891 72923
Disposal of secunties classfied as available-for-sale 322,689 82,885 226,040 5,183
Disposal of secunities classified as loans 984 - 887 -
Dispasalliquidation of subsidiaries (6.136) - 38,098 110,711
Disposal of plant and equipment 2,150 (3.402) 1,582 {716)
Disposal of property 276,423 2,590 1,486 1,586
Computer-related services income 34,181 33,841 - ~
Property-related income 11,231 10,786 368 408
Hotel-related income 2,601 3,608 - -
Others 17,165 12,633 13,880 4,382
805,724 239,379 387,232 194,477

Notes
o “Foreign exchange™ Includes gains and losses from spot and forward contracts and translation of foreign currency assets and liabilities
@ “Interest rate and other dervatives” includes mainly gains and losses from interest rate eguity options and other derivative instruments

@ “Hedging activities” arises from the Groups use of derivatives to hedge exposures to interest rate and foreign exchange rnisks which are offset by hedge accounting
adjustments of the underiying hedged items
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8  Staff costs and other operating expenses

GROUP BANK
2006 2005 2006 2005
$°000 $'000 $'000 $'000
81 Staff costs
Salanes and other costs 642,092 555,204 306,287 287,131
Share-based expenses 9,371 12,898 6,351 8,597
Employer's contribution to defined
contribution plans induding Central Provident Fund 53,461 49,879 22,964 23,767
704,924 617,981 335,602 319,495
Directors’ emoluments @
-~ Remuneration of Bank’s directors 6,169 5,580 5,353 5,062
~ Remuneration of directors of subsidiaries 6,698 6,650 - -
- Fees of Bank's directors 2 2,204 2,016 1,343 1,102
- Fees of directors of substdianies 1,618 1,457 - -
16,689 15,703 6,696 6,154
Total staff costs 721,613 633,684 342,298 325,649
B2  Other operating expenses
Property, plant and equipment
Depreciation
- Property-related costs 30,258 23,448 12,691 12,868
- Computerrelated costs 49,910 46,259 30,632 29,525
—  Other fixed assets 23,425 18,054 11,498 7,208
103,593 87,761 54,821 49,601
Wite-off of plant and equipment 14,284 - 14,284 -
Maintenance and hire of property, plant and equipment 61,450 55,343 25,166 26,401
Rental expenses 24,292 23,026 31,110 30,415
Qthers 73,752 66,410 42,157 39,768
277,371 232,540 167,538 146,185
Auditors’ remuneration
- Payable to auditors of the Bank 1,035 1,310 738 885
- Payable to associated firms of auditors of the Bank 565 1,017 3938 464
- Payable io other auditors 1,431 574 136 1
3,031 2,901 1,272 1,350
Other fees
— Payable to auditors of the Bank 157 432 94 267
— Payable to associated firms of auditors of the Bank 130 420 93 377
287 852 187 644
Hub processing charges - - 121,326 88,844
General insurance claims 32,919 32,200 - -
Others 295,923 242,342 169,575 148,362
Total other operating expenses 609,531 510,835 459,858 385,485
83  Staff costs and other operating expenses 1,331,144 1,144,519 802,196 711,134

Notes

' Directors’ emoluments pertaming to life assurance fund are disclosed in Note 4 - Profit from life assurance
@ Included share-based payment made to non-executive directors of §0 3 million (2005 $0 2 mullion)
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Allowances/(writeback) for loans and impairment of other assets

GROUP BANK
2006 2005 2006 2005
$'000 $°000 $'000 $:000
Speafic allowances/{wnteback) for loans (Note 29) 21,214 51,050 (16,587) 39,076
Impairment charge for available-for-sale securiiies 2,529 3,641 1,389 2,608
(Wniteback)¥impairment charge for other assets (Note 33) {21,317) (47,611) (11,728) 15,014
Impairment charge for goodwall - 4,549 - -
Allowances/{writeback) and impairment charge 2,426 11,629 (26,926) 56,698
Income tax expense
GROUP BANK
2006 2005 2006 2005
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Current ax expense 377,133 310,460 219,637 153,585
Deferred tax expensef{credit) 1,979 (365) (4,651) (551)
379,112 310,095 214,986 153,034
(Oven/under provided In prior years (9,294) (2,012) {11,724) 764
Charge to income statements 369,818 308,083 203,262 153,798
The tax on operating profit differs from the thearetical amount that would arise using the Singapore basic tax rate as follows
GROUP BANK
2006 2005 2006 2005
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Operating profit after (allowancesywriteback
and ameriisation of intangible assets 2,462,239 1,690,743 1,539,204 1,106,339
Prima facie tax calculated at tax rate of 20% (2005 20%) 492,448 338,149 307,841 221,268
Effects of different tax rates in other countries 49,535 29,521 6,676 (4,762)
Losses of subsidianes and foreign branches
not offset against taxable income of other entities 406 1,755 391 1,618
Losses not deductible/{tncome not assessable) for tax (82,6562) (16,585) (54,283} {42,294)
Income taxed at concessionary rate (41,532) (42,830) (41,532} {42,830)
Tax ©n Singapore life assurance profit {37,813) (21,509) - -
Amorusation of intangibles and goodwill Impairment charge 8,746 8,894 - -
{Non-taxable writeback¥non-deductible allowances (14,719) 3,102 (710) 10,858
Cthers 4,703 9,598 (3.397) 9,176
379,112 310,095 214,986 153,034
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11 Earnings per share

GROUP

2006 2005
£'000
Net profit attnbutable to equity holders of the Bank 2,002,192 1,297,998
Preference dvidends paid (39,125) (39,125}
Net profit attnbutable to equity holders of the Bank after preference dividends 1,963,067 1,258,873
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ("000)
For basic earnings per share 3,096,408 3,140,615
Adjustment for assumed conversion of share options and acquisition rights 12,160 12,228
For diluted earnings per share 3,108,568 3,152,843
Earnings per share (cents)
Basic 63 40
Dituted 63 a0

Basic earnings per share Is calculated by dviding net profit attributable to equity holders of the Bank after preference dmdends by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in 1ssue duning the financial year For calculating diluted earnings per share, the weighted average number
of ordinary shares 15 adjusted to take into account the dilutive effect anising from the exercise of outstanding share options and acquisition rights
where such shares would be 1ssued at a price lower than the fair value (average share price during the financial pencd) The difference between
the number of ordinary shares to be 1ssued at the acquisition prices and the number of ordinary shares that would have been issued at the farr
value based on the assumed proceeds from the issue of these ordinary shares is treated as ordinary shares 1ssued for no consideratton, and added
to the number of ordinary shares outstanding in the computation of diluted earnings per share
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Unappropnated profit

GROUP BANK
2006 2005 2006 2005
$°000 $°000 $°000 $ 000

Net profit atinbutable to equity holders of the Bank 2,002,192 1,297,998 1,335,942 952,541
Add Unappropriated profit at 1 January 2,814,386 3,749,145 1,131,294 2,503,846
Total amount avaitable for appropriation 4,816,578 5,047,143 2,467,236 3,456,387
Dealt with as follows
In respect of financtal year ended 31 December 2004
- Final dvidend of 19 cents for every ordinary share less tax at 20% - (199,628) - (199,628)
In respect of financial year ended 31 December 2005
- Bonus dvidend of $1 25 for every ordinary share less tax at 20% - {1.310,688) - (1,310.688)
— Intenm dnidend of 11 cents for every ordinary share less tax at 20% - (275,362) - (275,362)
— Final dividend of 12 cents for every ordinary share less tax at 20% {298,172) - (298,172) -
In respect of financial year ended 31 December 2006 *
- Intenm tax exempt dividend of 11 cents for every ordinary share {339,735) - (339,735) -
Preference dvidends paid (net of tax)
— Class E dividends of 4 5% per annum {22,500) (22,500) (22,500) (22,500)
— Class G dvidends of 4 2% per annum {16,625) (16,625) (16,625) {16,625)
Share buyback [Note 13 1(a)] (43,266) (452,660) (43,266) (452,660)
Transfer from/to)
Capital reserves (Note 14) 24,102 82,146 ~ -
Statutory reserves {(Note 15) {68,479) (34,798) (66,800) (47,630)
General reserves (Note 16 1) 68,908 (2,642) - -

{695,767) (2,232,757) (787,098) (2,325,093)
At 31 December (Note 16) 4,120,811 2,814,386 1,680,138 1,131,294

At the annual general meeting to be held, a tax exempt final dvidend of 12 cents per ordinary share Iin respect of the financial year ended

31 December 2006, totalling $369 0 millicn, will be proposed  These financial statements do not reflect the dividend payable, which will be

accounted in equity as a distribution of unappropnated profit in the financial year ending 31 December 2007

Share capital

131 Issued share capital

On the date of commencement of the Companies (Amendment) Act 2005 on 39 January 2006

{(a) the concept of authorised share caprtal was abolished,

(b} shares of the Bank ceased o have par value, and

() the amount standing to the credit of the Bank’s share premium account and capital redemption reserve became part of the Bank's

share capital

The holders of ordinary shares {excluding treasury shares) are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to
one vote per share at meetings of the Bank  All shares {excluding treasury shares) rank equally with regard to the Bank’s residual assets
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13 Share capital (continued)

131

Issued share capital {continued)

The Class E non-cumulative and non-convertible preference shares with a hquidatton preference of $100 per share have a fixed dmidend
rate of 4 5% per annum (net of tax), payable semi-annually In arrears on 20 June and 20 December, subject to directors’ approval The
preference shares may be redeemed at the option of the Bank five years after 1ssue, ten years after 1ssue and on each dwvidend payment

date thereafter

The Class G non-cumulative and non-convertible preference shares with a liqguidation preference of $1 per share have a fixed dividend
rate of 4 2% per annum {net of tax), payable semi-annually in arrears on 20 lune and 20 December, subject 1o directors’ approval The
preference shares may be redeemed at the option of the Bank five and half years after 1ssue, ten years after issue and on each dwidend

payment date thereafter

Preference shareholders will only be entitled to attend and vote at general meetings of the Bank if the dividends have not been paid in full
when due for a consecutive perniod of 12 months or more

GROUP AND BANK

2006 2005 2006 2005

Note Shares '000 Shares ‘000 $'000 $'000
Ordinary shares
At 1 January 3,114,338 1,316,543 1,557,169 1,316,543
Share buyback — cancelled 13 1{a) (7.008}) (54,756) {2,577) (35,671)
Share Option Schemes 13 1) 11,334 9,180 44,491 8,341
Share Purchase Plan 13 1{c) 1,728 1,590 7,854 880
Shares i1ssued to non-executive directors 13 1{d) 48 i4 324 14
Rights Issue - 262,138 - 262,138
Sub-dvision of shares - 1,565,781 - -
Acquisition of additional interests in a subsidiary 13 1(e) 6,020 13,848 40,635 6,924
Transfer from share premium 14{a) - - 3,227,243 -
Transfer from caprtal redemption reserve 14(b) - - 66,278 -
At 31 December 3,126,460 3,114,338 4,941,417 1,557,169
Treasury shares
At 1 January - - - -
Share buyback - held in treasury 13 1(f) (59,265) - (392,374) -
Share Option Schemes 13 1(b} 5.338 - 35,164 -
Share Purchase Plan 13 1) 2,258 - 14,899 -
Loss on transfer of shares to employees - - (13,994) -
At 31 December {51,669} - {356,305) -
Class E preference shares
At 1 January 5,000 5,000 50 50
Transfer from share premium 14(a) - - 499,950 -
At 31 December 5,000 5,000 500,000 50
Class G preference shares
At 1 January 395,831 395,831 3,958 3,958
Transfer from share premium 14(a) - - 391,873 -
At 31 December 395,831 395,831 395,831 3,958
Issued capital, at 31 December 5,480,943 1,561,177
Number of shares held by associated companies of the Group 2006 2005
Orchinary shares 420 184,420
Class E preference shares 2,500 2,500
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131 Issued share capital {continued)

(a

(=]

{©

(e}

M

In January 2006, the Bank purchased 6,407,103 ardinary shares by way of market acquisitions at an average price of $6 75 per share,
which amounted 10 a cash distnbution of $43,266,370 The Bank cancelled 7,007,747 ordinary shares under the stock purchase
mandate approved by shareholders at an extraordinary general meeting held on 30 March 2005

In 2005, the Bank purchased 16 025,572 (pre Sub-division} ordinary shares of par value $1 each, by way of market acquisition
at an average pnce of $12 86 per share, which amounted to $206,065,538 Subsequent to the Bank’s Sub-dmision of shares in
August 2005, the Bank purchased 38,772,521 ordinary shares of par value $0 50 each, by way of market acquisition at an average
price of $6 36 per share, which amounted to $246,594,490 The total cash distribution to shareholders under the share buyback
programmes amounted to $452,660,028 pursuant to the stock purchase mandates approved by shareholders at extraordinary
general meetings held on 15 April 2004 and 30 March 2005 Consequently, the Bank cancelled 54,756,449 ordinary shares

Duning the financal year, the Bank 1ssued 11,333,946 (2005 9,180,320} ordinary shares pursuant to the Bank's Share Option Schemes
to employees for options exercised In addition, the Bank transferred 5,337,628 ordinary shares held in treasury to employees upon
the exeraise of options

During the financial year, the Bank issued 1,728,000 (2005 1,590,023) ordinary shares pursuant to the Bank’s Share Purchase Plan,
to employees upon their exercise of acquisition rights  In addition, the Bank transferred 2,258,382 ordinary shares held in treasury to
employees arising from the conversion of acquisttion rights under the Bank s Share Purchase Plan upon its expiry on 30 June 2006

At an extraordinary general meeting held by the Bank during the year, the shareholders of the Bank approved the issue of 48,000
(2005 14,000) ordinary shares as payment in part of the non-executive directors’ fees for the year The fair value of the shares at
the date of issue was $324,000 (2005 $193,200)

On 16 January 2006, the Bank announced that it has entered into a conditional share purchase agreement with certain indvduals
to purchase an aggregate of 2,570,000 ordinary shares (" Sale Shares”) of $0 50 each or 0 54% shareholdings in the capital of Great
Eastern Holdings Limited The consideration was satisfied by the issue of 6,019,968 new ordinary shares in the Bank in February
2006 at the farr value of $40,634,784

In addition to the share buyback stated in Note 13 1(a), the Bank purchased 59,264,806 ordinary shares out of its capital, by way of
market acquisttion at an average price of $6 62 per share, amounting to a cash consideration of $392,374,283, pursuant to stock
purchase mandates approved by sharehelders at extraordinary general meetings held on 30 March 2005 and 20 Apnl 2006 The
shares are held n treasury, and the Bank may at any time

(1} sell the shares for cash,

{1y transfer the shares to employees pursuant to the Bank'’s employee share schemes,

{m)  transfer the shares as consideration for the acquisition of shares in or assets of another company or assets of a person, or
(v}  cancel the treasury shares
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13 Share capital {continued)

132 Share option schemes

A summary of the movements in the number of options and the weighted average acquisiion prces is as follows

2006 2005
Waeighted Weighted
Number average Number average
of share acquisition of share acquisiuon
options price options price
AL 1 January 66,100,780 $4 968 30,842,014 $11 3651
Adjustments for Rights Issue and Sub-dvision - - 42,421,238 -
Granied 5,846,476 $6 762 4,322,134 $5772
Exercised - Issue of new shares [Note 13 1{b)] {11,333,946) $4 736 (9,180,320) i54n
Exercised — Treasury shares [Note 13 1(b}] {5.337.628) $4 621 - -
Forfeited/lapsed {1,406,693) $5 540 (2,304 286) $9351 0
At 31 December 53,868,989 $5 231 66,100,780 $4 968
Exercisable options at 31 Decerber 39,126,902 $4 931 45,075,274 §4 865
Weighted average share price underlying the
options exercised dunng the financial year $6 840 £6 023

M Weighted average acquisition prices were calculated without adjusting for the effect of Rights Issue and Sub-dvision

During the financial year, the number of share opnions granted to directors of the Bank was 795,600 {2005 936,000)
The share options were granted on the same terms and conditions as those offered to other employees of the Group Details of the
options outstanding as at 31 December 2006 are as follows

Acquisition 2006
Grant year  Grant date Exercise period price {($) Qutstanding Exercisable
1997R 2505 1999 3001 2000 - 29 01 2007 3168 386,712 386,712
1998R 25051999 22 012001 - 2101 2008 2675 892,594 892,594
1999R 25051999 10112 2001 - 09 12 2008 3139 1,807,138 1,807,138
2000 06 03 2000 06 12 2002 - 05 12 2009 4542 3,797,498 3,797,458
2001 0503 2001 0512 2003 -04 12 2010 5367 6,905,676 6,905,676
2002 08 04 2002 09 04 2003 - 08 04 2012 5742 9,662,677 9,662,677
2002A 22 04 2002 2304 2003 -22 04 2012 5 692 720,000 720,000
20028 2310 2002 24102003-23102012 4367 180,000 180,000 l
2003 27 03 2003 2803 2004 - 26 03 2008 4067 180,000 180,000 i
2003 27 03 2003 28032004 -2603 2013 4067 7,866,641 7,866,641 I
2004 15 03 2004 1603 2005 - 14 03 2014 5142 6,925,707 4,064,361 I
2004A 19 08 2004 2008 2005 - 1808 2014 5 492 160,800 106,128 |
20048 22 112004 23112005-21112014 5667 103,200 68,112 I
2005 14 03 2005 1503 2006 - 13 03 2015 5767 5,968,553 1,763,965 :
20054 D8 04 2005 0904 2006 - 07 04 2015 5784 2,672,688 725,400
2006 14 03 2006 1503 2007 - 1303 2016 6820 4,250,705 -
2006A 23 01 2006 24 01 2007 - 22 01 2016 6780 12,400 -
20068 2305 2006 24 05 2007 - 22 05 2016 6 580 1,376,000 -

53,868,989 39,126,902

The weighted average remaining contractual matunity of the share options outstanding at 31 December 2006 was 6 O years (2005 6 5

years} As at 31 December 2006, the aggregate outstanding number of share optrons granted to the directors of the Bank was 4,552,400
{2005 3,867,680}

|
|
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132

133

134

Share option schemes (continued)

The far value of options granted during the financial year ended, determined using the binomial valuation model was $6 4 million
{2005 $9 5 millon) The significant INputs into the model that were used to determine the far value of options granted dunng the year
were as follows

2006 2005
Subscription price (8) 658-682 1384-1388
Average share price from grant date to acceptance daie ($} 625-674 1349-1385
Expected volathty based on last 250 days
historical price volatility as of acceptance date (%) 1604-1725 1613-1737
Risk-free rate based on 5GS 10-year bond yield at acceptance date (%) 385-394 283-317
Expected dividend yield (%) 285-307 273-274
Exercise multiple (times} 157 169
Option Iife (years} 10 10

There are no market conditions or non-market performance conditions associated wath the share option grants  Service conditions are not
taken into account In the measurement of the fair value of the services to be received at the grant date

Deferred share plan

The DSP 15 a discretionary share-based incentive and retention award program extended to Group executives of the rank of Senior Officer
and above at the absolute discretion of the Remuneration Committee The awards are granted at no cost to the grantees, on a deferred
basis as part of their performance bonus  Such awards shall lapse by reason of cessation of service but may be preserved at the absolute
discretion of the Remuneration Committee The DSP does not involve the issue of new shares Instead the Bank wall either purchase
existing ordinary shares from the market or transfer treasury shares for release to the grantees at the end of the respective vesting
periods

During the financial year, total awards of 1,444,490 (2005 610,879} ordinary shares were granted to eligible executives under the DSP.
of which 119,907 (2005 52,972) were granted to two directors of the Bank  The fair value of the shares at grant date was $9 8 million
(2005 $8 4 million), which will be recogrised in the income statements over the vesting period

During the financial year, the first tranche of 886,918 deferred shares granted in 2003 was released to eligible employees, of which 68,462
shares were released to a director At 31 December 2006, the diectors of the Bank have deemed interest of 340,905 (2005 289,460}
deferred ordinary shares

Share purchase plan

The OCBC Employee Share Purchase Plan {"ESP Plan”) was approved at an extraordinary general meeting on 30 Apnl 2004  All employees
of the Group who have attained the age of 21 years and have been employees for a period of not less than six months are eligible to
partioipate in the ESP Plan  The purpose of the ESP Plan is to prowide employees with an opportunity to increase their personal equity
interest in the Bank The ESP Plan 1s admirustered by the Remuneration Commuttee An employee may participate In the ESP Plan for
an offering period by making contnbutions in cash by means of monthly deductions from his monthly base salary and/or his designated
account, and/or by monthly debits from his CPF Ordinary Account to his ESP Plan account
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13 Share capital (continued)

134 Share purchase plan {continued}

Each offering period consists of a 24-month period {or such other period not exceeding 10 years as the Remuneration Cammittee may
prescribe), except that the commencement date of an offenng period shall not fall during the period of 30 days immedtately preceding
the date of announcement of the Bank's financial results for its financizl year or the peniod of 14 days immediately preceding the date of
announcement of the Bank's financial results for the first three quarters of its financial year, and provided further that no offering penod
may commence on any date during which another offering period I1s outstanding

The acquisition price 1s equal to the average of the last traded price of the ordinary shares of the Bank on the Singapore Exchange Secunties
Trading Limited over the five consecutive trading days immediately preceding the price fixing date for the acquisinon price of the ordinary
shares (as determined by the Remuneration Commuttee}

The Bank’s first offering of ESP Plan, which commenced on 1 July 2004 at an acquisition price of $5 05 per ordinary share, expired on 30
June 2006 The outstanding acquisition rights were fully converted to ordinary shares in the Bank [Note 13 1{c)]

In June 2006, the Bank launched its second ofiering of ESP Plan at an acquisition price of $6 45 per ordinary share, which commenced on
1 July 2006 and will expire on 30 June 2008 The farr value of nghts, determiuned using the binomial valuation model was $5 9 million
Significant inputs into the model were average share price of $6 40, expected volaulity of 17 22%, dwidend yeeld of 3 0% and annual
risk-free interest rate based on 2-year swap rate of 3 49% The expected volatilty is based on Bloomberg's 250-day histoncal price volatility
as of acceptance date

A summary of the movements in the number of acquisition nghts of the ESP Plan is as fallows

2006 2005
Weighted Weighted
Number of average Number of average
acquisition acquisition acquistion acquisition
rights price nghts price
At 1 January 4,072,657 $5 050 2,659,527 $12120m
Adyustments for Rights [ssue and Sub-division - - 3,293,113 -
Subscriptions on commencement of plan 8,222,248 $6 450 - -
Exercsed ~ ssue of new shares [Note 13 1{c)) {1,728,000) $5 050 {1,590,023) $5 050
Exercised — Treasury shares [Note 13 1(c)] (2,258,382) $5 050 - -
Forferted (668,266) $6 269 (289,960) $9 625
At 31 December 7,640,257 $6 450 4,072,657 $5 050
Weighted average share price underlying acguisition
nghts exercised during the financial year $6 526 $6 250

™ weighted average acquisition price was calqulated without adjusting for the effect of Rights 1ssue and Sub divisien of shares

At 31 December 20086, a director of the Bank has 11,162 acquisitton nights under the ESP Plan (2005 directors of the Bank have 28,514
acquisition nights)
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14 Capital reserves

15

112 ]

GROUP AND BANK

2006 2005
Note $'000 $°000
{a) Share premium
At 1 January 4,109,099 2,918,149
Share Option Schemes 9,095 54,139
Share Purchase Plan 872 8,006
Shares issued to non-executive directors - 79
Rights Issue - 1,047,612
Acquisitton of additional interests in a subsidiary - 81,014
Transfer to ordinary share caprtal 131 (3,227,243) -
Transfer to Class E preference share capital 131 (499,950) -
Transfer 1o Class G preference share capital 131 (391,873) -
At 31 December - 4,109,099
(b) Capital redemption reserve
At 1 January 63,701 28,030
Share buyback - cancelled 13 1(a) 2,577 35,671
Transfer to ordinary share capital 131 (66.278) -
At 31 December - 63,701
GROUP BANK
2006 2005 2006 2005
$'000 $°000 $000 $'000
{c} Other capital reserves
At 1 January 119,200 195,081 72,519 58,667
Shares purchased by DSP Trust (7,616} (7,587) - -
Shares vested under DSP Scheme 5,137 - - -
Share-based staff costs capitalised 10,643 13,852 10,643 13,852
Transfer to unappropnated profit (Note 12) (24,102) (82,146) - -
At 31 December 103,262 119,200 83,162 72519
(dy Total capital reserves 103,262 4,292,000 83,162 4,245,319
Other capital reserves include the Bank’s employee share schemes’ reserves and other reserves required by Artidles of Association
Statutory reserves
GROUP BANK
2006 2005 2006 2005
$°000 $'000 $°000 $'000
At 1 January 1,959,332 1,934,114 1,631,330 1,583,700
Transfer from unappropnated profit {Note 12) 68,479 34,798 66,800 47,630
Transfer to general reserves (Note 16 1} - (9,580) - -
At 31 December 2,027,811 1,959,332 1,698,130 1,631,330

Non-distnbutable statutory reserves are set aside by the Group's banking and stockbroking entities i accordance with the respective laws and
regulations
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16 Revenue reserves

17

GROUP BANK
2006 2005 2006 2005
$'000 $°000 $°000 $'000
Unappropriated profit {(Note 12) 4,120,811 2,814,386 1,680,138 1,131,294
General reserves 1,320,155 1,389,063 976,000 976,000
Currency translation reserves (316,422) {295,896) {94,298) (73,934)
5,124,544 3,907,553 2,561,840 2,033,360
16 1 General reserves
At 1 fanuary 1,389,063 1,376,841 976,000 976,000
Transfer (to)from
unapproprated profit {(Note 12} (68,908} 2,642 - -
Transfer from statutory reserves (Note 15) - 9,580 - -
At 31 December 1,320,155 1,389,063 976,000 976,000
162 Currency translation reserves
At 1 January (295,896) (278,811) (73,934) (63,559)
Net adjustments {or the year (20,526) {17,085} (20,364) (10,375)
At 31 December (316,422) (295,896) {94,298) (73,934)

General reserves comprise balances set aside by subsidiaries under ther Articles of Association and the merger reserve of a subsidiary
{reserve ansing from shares issued for acquisiion)  Currency translation reserves comprise exchange differences ansing from the translation of the
net assets of overseas branches, subsidiaries and associated companies

Mtnornity Iinterests

2006 2005

Note $°000 $'000

Great Eastern Holdings Limited 391,762 471,403
OCBC Capital Corporation (a} 400,000 400,000
OCBC Bank (Malaysia} Berhad ()] 174,038 175,949
PT Bank NISP Tbk 110,370 91,466
Other subsidiaries 10,461 10,160
1,086,631 1,148,978

(a)

{b)

$400 million 3 93% non-cumulative non-convertible guaranteed preference shares ("OCC-A Preference Shares”) wath liquidation value of
$100 each, were issued on 2 February 2005 by OCBC Capital Corporation (“OCC"), a subsidiary of the Bank The proceeds were on-lent
to the Bank in exchange for a note ssued by the Bank (Note 22 1), which guarantees on a subordinated basis, all payment obligations
in respect of the OCC-A Preference Shares The preference shares and subordinated note qualified as Tier-1 capital for the Group and
the Bank

The preference shares are redeemable in whole but not in part, at the option of OCC on 20 March 2015 and on each dvidend payment date
thereafter Dwidends, 1f declared by the Board of Directors of OCC, are payable semi-annually on or prior to 20 March 2015 at 3 93% per
annum and thereafter, payable quarterly at a floating rate equal to the three-month Singapore swap offer rate plus 1 85%

RM200 rmillien non-cumulative non-corwertible preference shares with liquidation value of RM100 each, was 1ssued on 12 August 2005 by
OCBC Bank (Malaysia) Berhad {“OBMB"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank The preference shares qualified as Tier-1 capuial of OBMB
but are excluded from the Group's capital in its calculation of capital adequacy ratios

The preference shares are redeemable at the option of OBMB on the 10th anniversary from the issue date or on each dividend payment date
Dwidends, payable at the discretion of the Board of Directors of OBMB, shall be made in arrears on 20 March and 20 September in each
calendar year Qn or prior te the 10th anniversary of the Issue Date, the preference shares carry a net cash dwdend of 4 51% per annum of
the liquidation preference value Thereafter, gross dwvidend is at a floating rate determined at each dividend payment period, equal to the
six-month Kuala Lumpur Inierbank Offered Rate ("KLIBOR™) plus 1 9%
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18 Deposits and balances of non-bank customers and banks

114 ]

GROUP BANK
2006 2005 2006 2005
$000 £'000 $°000 $000
Deposits of non-bank customers
Current accounts 10,034,856 9,069,718 8,085,901 7,453,242
Savings deposits 11,214,703 11,042,603 9,792,956 9,767,182
Term deposits 46,374,949 37,033,335 37,850,153 29,981,026
Structured deposits 3,822,247 3,516,069 3,214,376 3,046,760
Certificate of deposits 1ssued 1,655,132 1,627,836 205,493 234,623
(Other deposits 2,013,094 1,757,948 214,297 402,519
75,114,981 64,087,509 59,363,176 50,885,352
Deposits and balances of banks 11,869,252 10,307,432 11,233,918 10,125,496
86,984,233 74,394,941 70,597,094 61,010,848
Analysed by currency
18 1 Deposits of non-bank customers
Singapore Dollar 46,018,074 37,994,731 45,936,329 37,910,297
Us Doliar 8,352,471 8,662,428 7,700,609 8025,392
Malaysian Ringgrt 11,956,743 9,964,664 - -
Indonesian Ruprah 2,956,749 2,421,855 - 7,595
Japanese Yen 884,490 160,776 862,164 148,572
Hong Kong Dollar 634,416 364,036 634,416 364,036
British Pound 1,273,763 1,271,912 1,265,280 1,256,278
Austrahan Dollar 1,682,189 1,785,835 1,633,604 1,737,535
Euro 655,218 692,760 639,623 672,712
Others 700,868 768,508 691,151 762,935
75,114,981 64,087,509 59,363,176 50,885,352
182 Deposits and balances of banks
Singapore Dollar 2,503,955 1 839,085 2,503,955 1,790,084
Us Dollar 6,347,522 6,475,069 6,128,352 6,466,671
Malaysian Ringgnt 264,739 88,916 - -
Indonesian Rupiah 149,522 34,443 - -
Japanese Yen 28,074 491,936 28,074 491,936
Hong Kong Bollar 778,726 380,687 778,726 380 687
British Pound 481,605 162,797 481,605 162,797
Austrahan Dollar 251,079 133,022 249,209 131,883
Euro 816,120 620,929 816,120 620,800
Otherss 247,910 80,548 247,877 80,538
11,869,252 10,307,432 11,233,918 10,125,496

OCBC aAnnua' Rep .+t 2006




Notes to the Financial Statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2006

19 Denvative finanaal mstruments

The derivative financial instruments shown i the following tables are held for both trading and hedging purposes  The contractual or underlying
principal amounts of these denvatve financial instruments and thewr corresponding gross positive (dervative recevables) and negative {dervative
payables) fair values at balance sheet date are analysed below

2006 2005

Prinapal Principal

notional Denvative Denvative notional Derivative Dervative
GROUP ($°000) amount receivables payables amount  recevables payables
Foreign exchange derivatives
Forwards 4,862,473 28,71 29,531 3,566,740 35,268 17,665
Swaps 43,788,583 842,666 814,613 50,264,405 869,591 633,600
OTC options - bought 5,572,300 19,926 6,588 5,699,572 31,921 7,997
OTC options - sold 5,294,058 12,044 10,143 5,181,353 9,406 19,998

59,517.414 903,427 860,875 64,712,070 946,186 679,260

Interest rate denvatives

Forwards 6,575,000 534 539 11,234,001 12,273 13,857
Swaps 170,524,268 1,463,274 1,219,397 181,412,056 1,386,487 1,200,880
OTC options - bought 2,179,437 10,651 1,923 1,095,643 10,271 131
OTC options - sold 1,754,078 1,201 7,967 2,157,084 1.741 10,802
Exchange traded futures — bought 260,482 13 471 811,675 47 226
Exchange traded futures — sold 154,112 617 628 862,881 609 21

181,447,377 1,476,290 1,230,925 197,573,340 1,411,428  1,225917

Equity derwatives

OTC options — bought 281,192 12,840 331 75,143 1,360 846
OTC options - sold 30,978 504 2,889 38,812 885 823
312,170 13,344 3,220 113,955 2,245 1,669
Credit derivatives
Credit default swaps — buyer - - - 8,313 - 49
Credit default swaps - seller 293,455 3,426 830 374,063 3,465 a0
293,455 3,426 830 382,376 3,465 139
Other derivatives
Gold forwards — bought 2,138 8 - 1,555 87 1
Gold forwards - sold 2,431 - 7 23,475 379 n
Others 892,134 17,939 17,939 489,212 14,469 14,469
896,703 17,947 17,946 514,242 14,935 14,501
Total 242,467,119 2,414,434 2,113,796 263295983 2,378,259 1,921,486

Dervative financial instruments designated for farr
value hedges for the Group and the Bank are

Fareign exchange swaps 3,515,575 247,683 492,195 3,726,365 277,520 219,870
Interest rate swaps 5,167,356 164,251 15,407 6,507,910 212,985 26,077
8,682,931 411,934 507,602 10,234,275 490,505 245,947
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19 Dernvative finanaal instruments {conunued)

20,
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2006 2005
Principal Principal
notional Dervative Denvative naticnal Dervative Denvative
BANK (5000) amount receivables payables amount  receivables payables
Foreign exchange denvatives
Forwards 3,720,308 23,094 22,050 2,801,603 27,863 16,799
Swaps 42,516,657 827,814 798,082 49,475,080 868,437 632,028
OTC options — bought 2,769,789 16,747 2,675 3,257,864 27.820 3,669
OTC options — sold 2,515,529 7.010 7.028 2,739,702 8,087 15,910
51,522,283 874,665 829,835 58,274,249 932,207 668,406
Interest rate derivatives
Forwards 6,575,000 534 539 11,234,001 12,273 13,857
Swaps 163,884,676 1,433,628 1,188,172 176,718,908 1,373,682 1,181,904
OTC options - bought 1,896,620 10,176 - 860,486 7.813 56
OTC options - sold 1,628,352 - 7,977 2,033,920 1,741 9,241
Exchange traded futures — bought 260,482 13 q71 811,675 47 226
Exchange traded futures — sold 154,112 617 628 862 881 609 21
174,399,242 1,444,968 1,198,787 192,521,871 1,396,165 1,205,305
Equity derivatives
OTC options - bought 266,170 12,607 330 67,706 1,212 a3
OTC optiens - sold 28,514 233 3,157 38,812 123 823
294,684 12,840 3,487 106,518 1,335 906
Credit derivatives
Credit default swaps — buyer - - - 8,313 - 49
Credit default swaps - seller 293,455 3,426 830 374,063 3,465 90
293,455 3,426 830 382,376 3,465 139
Other derivatives
Gold forwards — bought 678 4 - 257 - 1
Gold forwards - sold 971 - 3 21,956 379 -
Others 892,134 17,939 17,939 489,212 14,469 14,469
893,783 17,943 17,942 511,425 14,848 14,470
Total 227,403,447 2,353,842 2,050,881 251,796,439 2,348,020 1,889,226
Other habilities
GROUP BANK
2006 2005 2006 2005
$°000 $'000 $°000 $°000
Bills payable 297,616 167,262 179,692 81,116
Interest payable 625,027 450,533 528,679 375,141
Sundry creditors 1,253,456 1,008,168 210,788 255,234
Others 401,401 415,852 200,590 223,042
2,577,510 2,041,815 1,119,749 934,533

At 31 December 2006, reinsurance habiliies included in “Others” amounted to $12 9 million (2005 $12 8 muillion) for the Group
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21 Deferred tax

GROUP BANK

2006 2005 2006 2005

$°000 $'000 $'000 $'000
At 1 January
- As previously reported 143,408 128,721 146,267 129,374
- bife assurance fund tax 221,218 222,400 - -
- As restated 364,626 351,121 146,267 129,374
Currency translation and gthers 8 {977) 48 -
Chargeflcredit) to Income statements (Note 10) 1,979 (365) (4,651) (551)
Under provision In prior years 5731 1,232 4,754 -
Acquisiion of subsidianes - (8,876) - -
Deferred tax on farr value changes 8,519 24,210 (11,497) 17,444
Transfer from/Ato) current tax 569 (537} - -
Net change in life assurance fund tax 71,808 {1,182) - -
At 31 December 454,073 364,626 134,921 146,267

Deferred income tax assets and habilities are offset when there 15 a legalty enforceable nght {0 set off current tax assets against current tax habilities
and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal authonty The deferred tax assets and liabiities are to be recovered and settled after
one year and the following amounts, determined after approprate offsetting, are shown in the balance sheets

GROUP BANK
2006 2005 2006 2005
$:000 $'000 $°000 37000
Deferred tax habilities 502,261 436,123 136,837 146,267
Deferred tax assets (48,188) {71,497 (1,966} -
454,073 364,626 134,921 146,267

Deferred tax assets and liabtlities {pnior to offsetting within the same tax jurisdiction} compnise
Deferred tax habilities

Accelerated tax depreciation 35,690 36,185 13,891 14,672
Debt and equity secunties 393,187 323,569 94,740 105,250
Fair value on properties from business combinations 77.040 78,536 69,924 71,194
Unremitied income and others 44,923 30,349 6 -
550,840 468,639 178,561 191,116
Deferred tax assets
Allowances for assets (81,707) (88,710) (39,222) (43,976)
Tax losses (1,383) (2,4386) (481) -
Otherts {13,677) {12,867) {3,937) (873)
(96,767) (104,013} {43,640} (44.849)
Net deferred tax habilities 454,073 364,626 134,921 146,267

Deferred tax chargefcredit) in the income statements compnsed the following temporary differences

Accelerated tax depreciation 07 4323 (781) 2,757
Allowances for assets 1,61 3,426 - -
Debt and equity secunties 6,994 (7,925) 1,022 -
Far value on properties from business combinations {1,496) {2,449) (1,270) (2,434}
Tax losses 842 1,954 (497) -
Others (6,939) 306 {3,125} (874)
1,979 (365) {(4,651) {551}

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carned forward only to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit through future
taxable profits 1s probable At 31 December 2006, unutihised tax losses for which no deferred income tax asset has been recogrised amounted to
$40 5 muflion (2005 $44 3 milhon} and $2 0 milion {2005 $3 8 million) for the Group and Bank respectively
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GROUP BANK
2006 2005 2006 2005
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $000
Subordinated term notes (unsecured) 221 4,012,479 4,167,889 4,240,902 4,483,481
Floating rate notes (unsecured) 222 766,376 831,410 766,376 831,410
Eurc commercial papers (unsecured) 223 321,170 432,849 321,170 432,849
Steuctured notes {unsecured) 224 30,648 33,250 30,648 33,250
Collateralised notes (secured) 225 - 53,250 - -
5,130,673 5,518,648 5,359,096 5,780,990

221 Subordinated term notes (unsecured)

GROUP BANK
2006 2005 2006 2005
Note $°000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Issued by the Bank
Tier-1 subordinated note {a) - - 400,000 400,000
SGD 400 milhon 3 93% note 2055

Tier-2 subordinated notes [(3)]
EUR 400 millien 7 25% note 2011 853,226 877,930 853,226 877,930
SGD 975 milhon 5% note 2011 987,037 891,895 987,037 991,895
UsD 1 25 billlon 7 75% note 2011 2,000,639 2,213,656 2,000,639 2,213,656
3,840,902 4,083,421 3,840,902 4,083,481
Issued by OCBC Bank {Malaysia) {c)
MYR 200 riihon slamic bond 87,019 _
Issued by PT Bank NISP Tbk (d)
Subordinated Bonds |
Series A - IDR 455 bilion 76,905 76,102
Sertes B — USD 5 million 7,653 8,306
84,558 84,408
‘Jotal subordinated notes 4,012,479 4,167,889 4,240,902 4,483,481

@

{©

Tier-1 subordinated note of $400 million was i1ssued by the Bank to its wholly-owned subsidiary, OCBC Capital Corporation, on 2
February 2005 and matures on 20 March 2055 Interest 1s payable semi-annually on or prior to 20 March 2015 at 3 93% per annum
and thereafter, payable quarterly at a floating rate equal to the three-month Singapore swap offer rate plus 1 85%

Tier-2 subordinated notes were sssued on 6 July 2001, and mature on 6 September 2011  Intesest I1s payable semi-annually In arrears
at the fixed interest rates for the SGD and USD notes and annually in arrears at the fixed interest rate for the EUR notes  The Bank
has entered into interest rate and currency swaps {0 manage the interest rate and exchange rate risks of the Tier-2 subordinated term
notes and the cumulative fair value change due to changes in the nisks hedged are included 1n the carrying value of the long-term
debts issued The average Interest rate for the notes incorporating the effects of these dervative nstruments was 4 97% (2005
359%)

OCBC Bank {Malaysta) Berhad {“OBMB"} 1ssued the redeemable klamic subordinated bonds on 24 November 2006 The bonds,
which are based on a 15-year non-call 10 year structure, were issued under the Mudharabah (profit sharing} principle with a projected
constant rate of 5 40% for the first 10 years and a step-up of 100 basis points from the 1 1th year, subject to the availabiity of profits
and investors’ entitlement under the profit shanng ratio The subordinated bonds shall be redeemed in 5 equal and consecutive annual
payments, unless the call option 1s exercised by OBMB  Each of the annual redemption shall be subject to the prior approval of Bank
Negara Malaysia
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22 Debts issued (continued)

221

222

223

224

225

Subordinated term notes (unsecured) (continued)

(d) PT Bank NISP Tbk (“NISP") issued the subordinated bonds on 10 March 2003, which mature on 12 March 2013 or at an earher
date on 12 March 2008, if the optien to buy is exercised by NISP The 10-year bonds compnse Series A bonds of IDR 455 bilhon and
Series B bonds of USD 5 millien, wath interest payable quarierly in arrears Series A bonds have fixed interest rate of 17 125% per
annum for the first 5 years, and thereafter at 26% per annum  Series B bonds have fixed interest rate of 10 25% per annum for
the first 5 years, and thereafter at a fixed interest rate basec on the 5-year US treasury rate plus 11 25%

Floating rate notes (unsecured)
GROUP AND BANK

2006 2005
$'000 $°000
Issued by the Bank
USD 500 million floating rate note 2007 766,376 831,410

The notes were 1ssued by the Bank on 18 June 2004 and mature on 18 June 2007 Interest 1s payable quarterly in arrears, determined at
the 3-month LIBOR plus 0 10% The Bank has entered into a currency swap to manage the exchange rate nisks and the average mterest
rate of the floating rate notes, after taking into account the swap interest, was 4 09% (2005 2 20%)

Euro commeraal papers {(unsecured)

The zero coupen Euro Commercial Papers {* ECP"} were issued by the Bank under the USD 2 bilion £CP programme established in 2004
to tap the short-dated ECP capital market The outstanding notes at 31 December 2006 were 1ssued between 18 October 2006 and 29
December 2006, and mature between 9 January 2007 and 19 March 2007 The average interest rate was 4 96% (2005 4 24%)

Structured notes (unsecured)
GROUP AND BANK

2006 2005
Note $'000 $:000
Issued by the Bank
Callable range accrual notes ("CRAN")
USD 10 milhon Senes 010-CRAN {a) 15,324 16,625
USD 10 mullion Series 015-CRAN b 15,324 16,625
30,648 33,250

(3} Senes 010-CRAN notes were 1ssued on 19 October 2004 and mature on 19 October 2014 Interest 1s payable quarterly in arrears,
with the mterest payout depending on both the 30-year and 10-year USD swap rate No interest will be patd if the 30-year USD
swap rate 1s lower than the 10-year USD swap rate The Bank has the nght to call the notes at par on any interest payment date,
commencing 18 October 2005 The average interest rate was 4 98% (2005 3 26%)

{b) Senes 015-CRAN notes were 1ssued on 11 Apnl 2005 and mature on 11 Aprl 2015  Interest 1s payable quarterly in arrears,
determined at the 3-month LIBOR plus 2 5% for year 1 to 5 and 3-menth LUBOR plus 4 0% for year 6 to 10 No interest will be paid
if the 30-year USD swap rate is lower than the 10-year USD swap rate  The Bank has the nght to call the notes at par on any interest
payment date, commencing 11 October 2005 The average tnterest rate was 4 99% (2005 3 53%}

Collateralised notes {secured)

These were short-dated fixed rate notes issued by Pioneer Funding Limited, a specal purpose entity {"SPE”) of the Group, and secured by
a first fixed charge over the assets of the SPE  There were no notes outstanding as at 31 December 2006 and the assets of the SPE were
disposed of during the year
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23 Life assurance fund habilities

24
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GROUP
- 2006 2005
$ million § mulhon
Life assurance fund lhiabilities
Movements n life assurance fund
At 1 January 33,2862 30,804 8
Currency translation {124 0) 2329
Fatr value reserve movermnents 7699 26
Increase n Iife assurance fund contract habihtes 14229 22525
Decrease In hfe assurance fund contract habilities under Risk-based Caprtal Framework - {182 7)
Transfer of contract habilities {Dependant Protection Scheme) from CPF Board 1241 162 9
Transfer of contract labilities from General insurance Fund - 132
Property revaluation reserve 49 -
At 31 December 354840 33,286 2
Policy benefits 1474 4 13522
Others 1,321 4 1,2199
38,2798 35,858 3
Life assurance fund tnvestment assets
Deposits with banks and financial insututions 2,6735 2,261 2
Loans 19748 2,814 6
Securities 30,7149 28,7890
Property 14508 1,305 6
Others 609 2 686 5
38,4232 35.856 9
The following contracts were entered into undes the Ife assurance fund
Operating lease commutments 19 19
Capital commitment authonsed and contracted 3024 2355
Derwvative financial instruments (principal notional amount) 5504 4 6,367 7
Derwative recevables 594 187
Dervative payables 122 316
Minimum lease rental receivables under non-cancellable operating leases 646 513
W Others comprised interest recervable, deposits collected prepayments sundry debtors and mvestment debtors
Cash and placements with central banks
GROUP
2006 2005 2006 2005
$'000 $000 $£'000 $'000
Cash on hand 412,611 311,072 324,518 238,890
Batances with central banks 1,817,686 1,699,822 1,175,739 1,116,602
Money market placements and reverse repos 3,511,046 2,171,164 1,707,326 1,396,348
5,741,343 4,182,058 3,207,583 2,751,840

Balances wath central banks include mandatory reserve deposits of $1,814 4 million {2005 $1,695 7 million} and $1,174 1 mition (2005 $1,115 8

milhion) for the Group and Bank respectively
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22 Debts issued {(continued)
221 Subordinated term notes (unsecured){continued)

(d} PT Bank NISP Tbk {*NISP"} i1ssued the subardinated bonds on 10 March 2003, which mature on 12 March 2013 or at an earler
date on 12 March 2008, if the option to buy is exerased by NISP The 10-year bonds comprise Series A bonds of IDR 455 billion and
Series B bonds of USD 5 million, with interest payable quarterly in arrears  Sertes A bonds have fixed interest rate of 17 125% per
annum for the first 5 years, and thereafter at 26% per annum  Series B bonds have fixed interest rate of 10 25% per annum for
the first 5 years, and thereafter at a fixed interest rate based an the 5-year US treasury rate plus 11 25%

222  Floating rate notes (unsecured)
GROUP AND BANK

2006 2005
$'000 $°000
Issued by the Bank
USE 500 million floating rate note 2007 766,376 831,410

The notes were 1ssued by the Bank on 18 June 2004 and mature on 18 June 2007  Interest 1s payable quarterly in arrears, determined at
the 3-month LIBOR plus 0 10% The Bank has entered Into a currency swap to manage the exchange rate nisks and the average interest
rate of the floating rate notes, after taking into account the swap interest, was 4 09% (2005 2 20%)

22 3 Euro commercial papers (unsecured)
The zero coupon Eure Commercial Papers (“ECP™) were issued by the Bank under the USD 2 billion ECP programme estabhshed 1n 2004
to tap the short-dated ECP capital market The outstanding notes at 31 December 2006 were 1ssued between 18 October 2006 and 29
December 2006, and mature between 9 January 2007 and 19 March 2007 The average interest rate was 4 96% (2005 4 24%)

224  Structured notes {unsecured}
GROUP AND BANK

2006 2005
Note $°000 $'000
Issued by the Bank
Callable range accrual notes ("CRAN™)
UsSD 10 milhen Sernies 010-CRAN (a) 15,324 16,625
LUSD 10 million Series 015-CRAN ()] 15,324 16,625
30,648 33,250

(@) Series 010-CRAN notes were issued on 19 October 2004 and mature on 19 October 2014 Interest 15 payable quarterly in arrears,
with the interest payout depending on both the 30-year and 10-year USD swap rate  No mterest will be paid if the 30-year USD
swap rate i1s lower than the 10-year USD swap rate  The Bank has the nght to call the notes at par on any interest payment date,
commencing 19 October 2005 The average interest rate was 4 98% (2005 3 26%)

(b) Series 015-CRAN notes were 1ssued on 11 Apnl 2005 and mature on 11 Aprit 2015  Interest 1s payable quarterly in arrears,
determined at the 3-month LIBOR plus 2 5% for year 1 to 5 and 3-month LIBOR plus 4 0% for year 6 to 10 No interest will be paid
if the 30-year USD swap rate 1s lower than the 10-year USD swap rate The Bank has the nght to call the notes at par on any interest
payment date, commencing 11 Cctober 2005 The average interest rate was 4 99% (2005 3 539%)

225 Collateralised notes {secured)

These were short-dated fixed rate notes issued by Ploneer Funding Limited, a special purpose entity (“SPE*) of the Group, and secured by
a first fixed charge over the assets of the SPE There were no notes outstanding as at 31 December 2006 and the assets of the SPE were
disposed of during the year
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25

26

Government treasury bills and securittes

GROUP BANK
- 2006 2005 2006 2005
$'000 $'000 $°000 $°000
Singapore government treasury bills and securrties
Trading, at fair value 2,161,935 2,647,416 2,161,935 2,647,416
Avallable-for-sale, at fair vatue 6,476,777 4,813,506 5,975,319 4,254,030
8,638,712 7,460,922 8,137,254 6,901,446
Assets under repurchase agreements (Note 43) (491,756) {512,693) (491,756) (512,693)
8,146,956 6,948,229 7.645,498 6,388,753
Other government treasury bills and securities
Trading, at far value 171,986 83,783 90,370 21,454
Avallable-for-sale, at fair value 2,802,236 2,301,548 199,116 175,758
Held-to-maturity, at amortised cost - 15 165 - -
Loans, at amortised cost - 462 - 462
Allowance for impairment (Note 33) - (33) - (33)
2,974,222 2,400,925 289,486 197,641
Assets under repurchase agreements (Note 43) (779,224) (410,496) (3,784) (3,627)
2,194,998 1,990,429 285,702 194,014
Placements with and loans to banks
GROUP BANK
2006 2005 2006 2005
$°000 3000 £'000 $'000
Certificate of deposits purchased (Trading) 68,966 82,278 68,966 82,278
Certificate of deposits purchased {Available-for-sale) 1,935,705 843,080 1,472,329 418,603
Placements with and loans to banks 15,478,502 10,934,849 14,316,151 10,253,896
Market bills purchased 532,574 327,517 531,222 273,864
Reverse repos 49,515 143,422 49,515 143,422
Balances with banks 18,065,262 12,331,146 16,438,183 11,172,063
Assets under repurchase agreements (Note 43) (577,583) (792,922) (28,231) {135,155)
Bank balances of life assurance fund 262,410 385,372 - -
17,750,089 11 923,596 16,409,952 11,036,908
Balances with banks — Analysed by currency
Singapore Dollar 580,633 2,031,343 260,250 1,989,466
us Dollar 12,063,983 7,879,555 11,436,798 7,595,389
Malaysian Ringgrt 579,153 652,257 189 181
Indonesian Rupiah 13,633 55,846 17 16
Japanese Yen 317,674 189,114 259,810 104,394
Hong Kong Dollar 190,130 124,565 190,017 124,517
British Pound 1,584,079 346,111 1,583,687 345,688
Awstrahan Dollar 890,192 163,692 882,994 144,159
Euro 1,479,587 562,721 1,462,648 551,980
Others 366,198 321,942 361,773 316,273
18,065,262 12,331,146 16,438,183 11,172,063
OCBC Annual Report 2006
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27 Loans to and bills receivable from customers

122 ]

GROUP BANK
. 2006 2005 2006 2005
$7000 $°000 $'000 $:000
Gross loans 61,132,358 57,193,178 47,790,875 45,286,557
Specific allowances (Note 29) (862,259) (1,097,404 (505,023) {726,487)
Portiolio allowances (Note 30} (261,099} (962,122) {807,136) (808 614)
Net loans 59,309,000 55,133,652 46,478,716 43,751,456
Net loans comprise
Bills recevable 738,012 787,376 320,821 283,708
Loans 58,570,988 54,346,276 46,157,895 43,467,748
59,309,000 55,133 652 46,478,716 43,751,456
271 Analysed by currency
Singapore Dallar 37,113,901 34,844,094 36,382,225 34,302,690
US Doltar 7,989,924 8,152,063 6,922,179 6,800,546
Malaystan Ringgit 9,043,539 7,977,564 87 22
Indonesian Rupiah 2,322,941 1,856,119 - -
Japanese Yen 441,278 628,337 350,896 527,446
Hong Kong Dollar 1,040,798 625,539 1,040,460 625179
British Pound 906,949 1,141,556 906,534 1,140,118
Australian Dollar 1,169,923 1,115,800 1,148,656 1,090,326
Euro 282,783 302,184 257,740 269,324
Others 820,322 549,922 782,098 530,506
61,132,358 57,193,178 47,790,875 45,286,557
272 Analysed by industry
Agriculture, mining and quarrying 985,851 791,283 279,034 202,633
Manufacturing 5,042,794 4,454,732 2,492,860 2,284,279
Burleing and construction 9,332,117 7,277,632 7,637,868 6,118 161
Housing 18,148,552 18,087,466 14,822,563 14,971,950
General commerce 5,811,574 5,315,248 4,447,794 4,186,553
Transport, storage and communication 2,537,180 1,852,862 2,195,264 1,568,469
Financral institutions, investment and holding companies 8,416,371 7,621,123 7,800,276 6,711,009
Professionals and individuals 7,330,336 8,315,835 6,195,951 7,258,009
Qthers 3,527,583 3,476,997 1,919,265 1,885,494
61,132,358 57,193,178 47,790,875 45,286,557
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27 Loans to and bills receivable from customers (continued)

GROUP BANK
- 2006 2005 2006 2005
$'000 $°000 $°000 $'000
273 Analysed by product
Qverdrafis 4,034,251 4,304,991 2,187,381 2.552,701
Short term loans 4,058,915 3,863,733 4,058,895 3,863,714
Revolving credit 5,638,346 4,981,492 3,367,263 3,194,929
Long term loans 14,227,654 12,482 139 10,690,568 8,407,413
Housing loans 18,038,382 17,931,595 14,816,319 14,965,681
Commercial property loans 1,892,885 1,930,827 1,885,201 1,930,827
Car loans 2,488,148 3,077,459 2,270,014 2,808,917
Syndicated loans 5,893,229 3,876,272 5,449,268 3,507,907
Transferable loan certificates 123,910 405,228 123,910 405,228
Trade finance 1,505,245 1,604,581 1,015,447 1,022,619
Credrt card recevables 673,094 577,985 463,800 413,073
Loans under government loan schemes 207,408 191,936 190,890 178,621
Block discounting, leasing and factoring recevables 239,763 224,340 230,600 213,185
Hire purchase loans (exciude car loans) 303,992 242,081 145,809 83,620
Share margin financing 362,583 212,619 - -
Staff loans 105,828 103,895 29,371 36,769
Others 1,338,725 1,182,005 865,439 701,353
61,132,358 57,193,178 47,790,875 45,286,557
27 4 Analysed by geographical sector
Singapore 39,490,672 38,305,064 38,759,198 37,730,925
Malaysia 10,416,738 9,693,048 902,345 717,080
Other ASEAN 3,737,191 2,800,423 815,807 522,004
Greater China 3,102,768 2,340,795 3,036,257 2,324,476
Other Asia Pacific 1,866,086 1,453,309 1,789,694 1,435,395
Rest of the World 2,518,903 2,600,539 2,487,574 2,556,677
61,132,358 57,193,178 47,790,875 45,286,557

Loans to and bills receivable from customers by geographical sector nsk concentration are determined based on where the credit sk

resides, regardless of where the transactions are booked
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27 Loans to and bills receivable from customers {continued)

275 Analysed by mterest rate sensitivity

2006 2005
Fixed Variable Fixed Varniable
$°000 $°000 $'000 $°000
GROUP
Singapore 7.312,876 34,959,191 7,425,229 33,567,537
Malaysia 884.471 9,651,184 935,521 8,745,924
Other ASEAN 256,751 2,866,286 287,373 2,089,800
Greater China 100,066 2,064,338 405 1,543,356
Other Asta Pacific 789 1,296,665 72,883 1,149,883
Rest of the World 71,529 1,668,212 22,572 1,352,695
8,626,482 52,505,876 8,743,983 48,449,195
BANK
Simgapore 7,240,539 34,214,422 7,353,437 32,981,598
Malaysia 26,316 890,901 4,737 705,721
Other ASEAN 8,009 209,089 2,302 96,968
Greater China 100,066 2,064,338 405 1,543,356
Other Asia Pacific 789 1,296,665 72,883 1,149,883
Rest of the World 71,529 1,668,212 22,572 1,352,695
7,447,248 40,343,627 7,456,336 37,830,221

The analysis by interest rate sensitivily I1s based on where the loans and bills recevable are booked

28 Non-performing loans ("NPLs") and debt secunties

Nen-performing loans and debt securities are those classified as Substandard, Doubtful and Loss in accordance with MAS Notice 612

GROUP BAMK
2006 2005 2006 2005
$ million $ mullton $ mithion $ million
Classified loans to customers
Substandard 854 §,310 437 832
Doubtful 558 555 445 494
Loss 392 428 238 312
1,804 2 333 1,120 1,638
Classified debt securities
Substandard - 2 - 3
Doubtful 25 34 25 34
Loss - 21 - -
25 59 25 37
Total classified assets 1,829 2,392 1,145 1,675
Speafic allowance made for classified assets
Substandard 81 146 51 122
Doubtful 536 540 %4 477
Loss 225 342 77 154
842 1,128 522 753
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28 Non-performing loans ("NPLs") and debt securities (continued)

GROUP BANK
2006 2005 2006 2005
$ nmutlion $ milhion S million $ million
281 Analysed by period overdue
Qver 180 days 1,043 1,463 617 1,012
Over 90 days to 180 days 215 215 162 181
30 days to 90 days 164 188 106 155
Less than 30 days 76 105 74 105
No overdue 331 421 186 222
1,829 2,392 1,145 1,675
282 Analysed by collateral type
Property
Residential 482 572 349 448
Commercalindustrial 463 768 233 479
Hotel 18 54 15 21
Budget Hotel/Boarding Schoo! - 8 - 8
963 1,402 597 956
Fixed deposit
In same currency as loan 3 5 2 a4
in different currency 4 4 9
7 14 6 i3
Stock and shares 39 38 16 14
Mator vehicles 3 5 2 4
Others 36 40 18 35
Unsecured
Clean 450 518 175 293
Corporate and other guarantees 331 375 331 360
781 893 506 653
1,829 2,392 1,145 1,675
283 Analysed by industry
Agniculture, runing and quarrying 14 28 1 2
Manufaciunng 365 390 179 229
Buwilding and construction 251 501 134 369
Housing 380 399 291 344
General commerce 304 377 166 223
Transport, storage and commurnication 21 20 15 14
Financial institutions, nvestment and holding companies 178 246 128 164
Professionals and indmiduals 253 322 195 282
Others 63 109 36 48
1,829 2,392 1,145 1,675
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28 Non-performing loans (“NPLs™} and debt secunties (continued)

126 |

284 Analysed by geographical sector

285

OCBC Annual Repor* 2006

Rest of
GROUP ($ million) Singapore Malaysia the World Total
2006
Substandard 381 401 72 854
Doubtful 337 143 103 583
Loss 232 108 52 392
950 652 227 1,829
Specific allowances {393) (307) (142) (842)
557 345 85 987
2005
Substandard 759 487 68 1,314
Doubtful 353 136 140 629
Loss 304 84 61 449
1,416 707 269 2,392
$pecific allowances {573) (348) (207} (1,128)
843 359 62 1,264

Non-performing [oans (“NPLs") and debt securities by geographical sector nsk concentration are determined based on where the credit nsk

resides regardless of where the transactions are booked

Restructured loans

The table below 1s an analysis of restructured loans into loan classification and the related specific allowances The restructured loans as a
percentage of total NPLs were 20 2% {2005 16 5%) and 20 0% (2005 20 4%) for the Group and the Bank respectively

2006 2005
Amount Allowance Amount Allowance
$ million $ millien % rmllion $ mullion
GROUP
Substandard 216 40 240 48
Doubtful 120 125 145 161
LoSs 33 33 9 3
369 198 304 217
BANK
Substandard 129 14 197 39
Doubtiul 96 103 139 152
Loss a4 2 6 4
229 119 342 195
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29

30

Specific allowances for loans

Movements m the speaific allowances for loans were as follows

- GROUP BANK

2006 2005 2006 2005

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
At 1 January 1,097,404 1,321,778 726,487 968,836
Currency transtation (21,515) (2,233) (11,312) 930
Bad debts wntten off {186,690) {265,445) {162,386) (245,968)
Recovery of amounts previousty prowided for (45,698) {40,490) (32,892) (26,367)
Allowances for loans 66,912 91,540 16,305 65,443
Net allowances charged/{writeback) to mcome statements (Note 9) 21,214 51,050 (16,587) 39,076
Interest recognition on impaired loans (45,110) (42,698) (28,135) (28,363)
Acquisttion of subsidianes - 28,618 - -
Interest capitahsed as allowance for restructured loans 1,167 - 1,167 -
Transfer from/Ato)
- Available-for-sale securities (4,488} - {4,488) -
- Portiolo allowances {Note 30) 342 14,358 342 -
- Allowances for impairment of securities and other assets {Note 33) (15) (8,024) (15) (8,024)
— Other provisions (50) - (50) -
At 31 December {Note 27) 862,259 1,097,404 505,023 726,487
Portfolio allowances for loans
Movements in the portfolio allowances for loans were as follows

GROUP BANK

2006 2005 2006 2005

$'000 $'000 %000 $°000
At 1 January 962,122 942 022 808,614 808,546
Currency translation (681) 11,972 {1.136) 68
Acquisiion of subsicharies - 22,486 - -
Transfer to specific allowances for loans (Note 29) (342) (14,358) (342) -
At 31 December {(Note 27) 961,099 562,122 807,136 808,614
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31 Debt and equrty securities
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GROUP BANK
- 2006 2005 2006 2005
$'000 $°000 $'000 $'000
311 Trading secunties
Quoted debt secunties 258,511 162,313 244,034 112,627
Unquoted debt secunties 167,286 118,290 - 6,055
Quoted equity securities 46,531 9,553 38,370 8,467
472,328 290,156 282 404 127,149
312 Available-for-sale secunties
Quoted debt securities 3,962,882 3,889 17 3,252,238 2,865,811
Unquated debt securities 1,477,191 1,730,008 1,076,995 1,449,478
Quoted equity securities 1,260,308 1,345,363 545,581 726,965
Unquoted equity secunties 227,367 193,255 31,761 33,905
6,927,748 7,161,743 4,910,575 5,076,159
313 Secunties classified as loans and receivables
Unquoted debt, at amortised cost 224,11 202,023 204,928 162,564
Altowance for iImpairment {18,540) (50,207} (17.635) (28,054)
Net carrying value 206,181 151,816 187,293 134,510
314 Total debt and equity securities
Total carrying value 7.624,797 7,653,922 5.397.907 5,365,872
Allowance for impairment {Note 33) (18,540) (50,207) {17.,635) (28,054)
Net carrying value (Note 31 1 + 312 + 31 3) 7.606,257 7,603,715 5,380,272 5,337,818
Assets pledged (Note 43) (48.016) {200,448) - -
7,558,241 7,403,267 5,380,272 5.337,818
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31 Debt and equity securrties (continued)

Analysis of debt and equity securities -

s

316

317

GROUP BANK
2006 2005 2006 2005
$°000 $'000 5000 $°000

By Issuer
Public sector 308,141 159,237 220,632 97,883
Banks 1,296,007 1,386,332 0918.471 1,145,928
Corporations 5,816,897 5,786,165 4,215,446 4,032,298
Others 185,212 271,981 25,723 61,709

7,606,257 7,603,715 5,380,272 5,337,818
By industry
Agriculture, miming and quarrying 104,287 91,519 32,998 37,358
Manufacturing 1,143,402 846,496 812,829 606,283
Building and construction 1,014,093 588,361 649,114 278,458
General commerce 278,270 178,775 224,024 86,390
Transport, storage and communication 600,649 786,552 500,090 629,705
Financial msututions, investment and holding companies 3,400,371 3,805,978 2,626,590 2,913,338
QOthers 1,065,185 1,306,034 534,627 786,286

7,606,257 7,803,715 5,380,272 5,337,818
By geographical sector
Singapore 3,055,335 2,799,382 2,068,258 1,981,820
Malaysia 863,570 1,203,468 260,942 496,055
QOther ASEAN 166,982 142,695 118,869 92,539
Greater China 543,408 394,391 371,249 344,254
Other Asia Pacific 905,937 937,866 794,832 823,555
Rest of the World 2,071,025 1,925,913 1,766,122 1,599,595

7,606,257 7,603,715 5,380,272 5,337,818

Included in debt securtties 1s an amount of $0 5 billion 2005 $0 3 billion) relaiing to credit inked notes and collateralised debt which are
pledged as collateral for credit default swaps where the Bank acts as the protection seller These obhgations are included 1n credit

derivatives {Note 19)

As at 31 December 2005, quoted debt secunties of $54 8 million were pledged as collaterals for the notes issued by the Group’s speciaf

purpose entity, Pioneer Funding Lirmited (Note 22 5) These securities were disposed of dunng the year
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32 Other assets

GROUP BANK
- 2006 2005 2006 2005
$'000 $'000 $°'000 $°000
Interest recewable 1,040,681 693,137 926,861 583,149
Sundry debtors (net) 1,103,240 818,610 20,997 47,439
Deposits and prepayments 137,504 150,327 95,712 120,032
Others 242,792 285,610 157,564 178,674
2,524,247 1,947,684 1,201,134 929 294
At 31 December 2006, remsurance assets included in *Qthers” amounted to $54 3 million (2005 $67 9 million} for the Group
33 Allowances for impairment of securities and other assets
Movements In allowances for tmpairment of securities and other assets were as follows
Other Property,
government Debt plant & Other
securities securities equipment assets Total
GROUP $'000 $'000 $000 $'000 $'000
2006
At 1 January 33 50,207 176,392 22,036 248,668
Currency translation {3) (1,773) {40) (273) (2,089)
Amounts written off - (21,458) (459) (2,446) (24,363)
(writebackyallowances charged
to income statements (Note 9) (30) (8.039) (18,521} 5273 (21,317)
Transfer from specific allowances for loans {Note 29) - - - 15 15
Interest recognition on net NPLs - (397 - - (397)
Reclassified as assets held for sale - - (1,682} - (1,682)
Transfers from other provistons - - - 918 918
At 31 December - 18,540 155,690 25,523 199,753
(Note 25} (Note 31 4) (Note 36)
2005
At 1 January 33 229913 179,074 19,314 428,334
Allowances for mpairment of
AFS secunties offset against carrying value - (132,675) - - (132,675)
Currency translation - 1,869 103 (392 1,580
Amounts written off - (8,123} (504) (2,533) (11,160}
Acquisition of subsidiaries - - - 2,536 2,536
(Writeback)/allowances charged
to 1income statemnents (Note 9) - (48,441} (2,281} 3,111 47,611)
Transfer from specific allowances for loans (Note 29) - 8,024 - - 8,024
Interest recognition on net NPLs - (3600 - - (360}
At 31 December 33 50,207 176,392 22,036 248,668
{Note 25} (Note 31 4) (Note 36)
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33 Allowances for impairment of securities and other assets (continued)

Other Property,
government Debt Associated plant & Other
securities securities compantes  Subsidianes  equipment assets Total

BANK $°000 $'000 $'000 $000 $‘000 $'000 $'000
2006
At 1 January 33 28,054 6,524 151,907 137,976 39,759 364,253
Currency translation (3) (1,523) - - 54 (13) (1.485)
Amounts written off - 118 - {14,989) (303) (1.143)  (16,317)
(Writeback)imparrment charge

to Income statements {Note 9) (30) (8.617) - 6,390 (6,792} (2,679  {11,728)
Transfer from specific

allowances for loans (Note 29} - - - - - 15 15
Interest recognition on net NPLs - (397) - - - - {397)
At 31 December - 17,635 6,524 143,308 130,935 35,939 334,341

(Note 25)  (Note 31 4) (Note 34) {Note 35) (Note 36)

2005
At 1 January 33 147,526 6,524 87,943 138,641 39,781 420,448
Allowances for impairment of

AFS secunties offset

against carrying value - (80,638) - - - - (80,638)
Currency translation - 1,235 - - {42) - 1193
Amounts written off - (6 946) - (1,411} {504) (468) {9,329)
(Writeback)/ailowances charged

to income staterments (Note 9) - (40,787) - 55,474 (119) 446 15,014
Transfer from specific

allowances for loans (Note 29) - 8,024 - - - - 8,024
Interest recognition on net NPLs - (360) - - - - (360}
Transfer from subsichanes - - - 9,901 - - 9,901
At 31 December 33 28,054 6,524 151,907 137,976 39,759 364,253

(Note 25)  {(Note 31 4} (Note 34} {Note 35) {Note 36}

34 Assocated and joint venture companies

GROUP BANK

2006 2005 2006 2005

$'000 $'000 $°000 $'000

Quoted equity secunties, at cost 87.484 87,618 85,556 85,556
Unquoted equity secunities, at cost 150,933 36,931 17.561 17,561
238,417 124,549 103.117 103,117
Allowance for imparment {Note 33) - - {6,524) {6,524)
Net carrying value 238,417 124,549 96,593 96,593
Share of post-acquisition reserves 53.129 44,073 - -
291,546 168,622 96,593 96,593

Amount due from associated companies (unsecured) 17,668 17,399 - -
309,214 186,021 96,593 96,593

Fair vatue of quoted associated companies 119,438 146,661 96,106 120,333
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34 Associated and joint venture companies (continued}

34 1 Associated companies -

GROUP

2006 2005

$°000 $'000
The summansed financial nformation of assoaated comparmes 15 as follows
Assets 1,831,066 867,545
Liabihities 244,650 325,770
Share of contingent labilities 50,471 13,840
Total income 311,787 274,868
Profit for the year 128,790 51,212

Detasls of significant associated comparues of the Group are as follows

Country of
Name of assoaated companies incorporation Effective interest held by the Group
2006 2005
% %
Quoted
@ Bntish and Malayan Trustees Limited Singapore 43 43
# PacificMas Berhad Malaysia 28 28
Ungquoted
Fairfield Investment Fund Ltd Cayman Islands 40 -
Farrfield Lion investment Fund (Asia) Ltd @ Cayman Islands 59 -
@ Network For Electronic Transfers (Singapore} Pte Ltd Singapore 33 33
Notes

@ Audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
# Audited by Ernst & Young

" Fairfield Lioa Investment Fund (Asia) Ltd has not been accounted for as a subsidiary although the Group's effective interest 1s in excess of 50% The Group does

not have contral over the financial and operating policies of the investee

342 Joint venture company

Durning the year, the Group incorporated a joint venture company, Great Eastern Life Assurance (China) Company Limited {"GEL China"),

of which 1t holds 50% interest At 31 December 2006, the financial information of GEL China equity-accounted for is as follows

$ million 2006
Share of current assets 187
Share of non-current assets 91
Share of current habilies en
Share of non-current habibities {02)
Share of income (L]
Share of expenses (30)
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35 Subsidianes

BANK

2006 2005
- $°000 $:000
Quoted equity secunty, at cost 2,187,919 1,845,055
Unquoted equity secunities, at cost 1,561,556 1,885,380
3,749,475 3,730,435

Allowance for impairment (Note 33) (143,308) {151,907}
Net carrying value 3,606,167 3,578,528
Amount due from subsidiaries (unsecured) 1,515,862 1,823,605
5,122,029 5,402,133

At 31 December 2006, the fair value of the Bank’s quoted subsidiary, Great Eastern Holdings Limited, was $6,700 8 milflion (2005 $5,580 4 million)

351 List of significant subsidiaries

Details of the significant subsidianes of the Group are as follows

Country of
Name of subsidiartes incorporation Effective interest held by the Group
2006 2005
% %
Banking
Bank of Singapore Limited Singapore 100 100
OCBC Bank (Malaysia) Berhad Malaysia 100 100
@ PT Bank NISP Tbk Indonesia 72 72
@ PT Bank OCBC Indonesia Indonesia 100 100
Insurance
# Great Eastern Life Assurance (Malaysia) Berhad Malaysia 87 82
# Qverseas Assurance Corporation (Malaysia) Berhad Malaysia 87 82
# The Great Eastern Life Assurance Company bimited Stngapaore 87 82
# The Qverseas Assurance Corporatron Limited Singapare 87 82
Asset management and investment holding
# Lion Capital Managemeni Limited Singapare 91 87
# Great Eastern Holdings Limited Singapore 87 82
Stockbroking
OCBC Securities Private Limited Singapore 100 100

Notes
Unless otherwise indicated the sigmficant subsicharies listed above are audited by KPMG Singapare and its associated firms

©  Audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
# Audited by Ernst & Young

352 Acquisition of additional interests in subsidiary

On 16 January 2006, the Bank entered into a conditional share purchase agreement with certain indmniduals to purchase 2,570,000
ordinary shares ("Sale Shares") or 0 54% shareholding in the capital of Great Eastern Holdings Limited ("GEH") The consideration was
satisfied by the issue of 6,019,968 new ordinary shares in the Bank on the basis of 2 3424 1ssued for each Sale Share acquired, which
amounted to $40 6 million

During the year, the Bank made a voluniary unconditional cash offer for the remaining shares in GEH at $16 for each share At the close of
offer, the Bank recewed total valid acceptances of 14,763,369 GEH shares The cash consideration paid totalled to $236 2 million

In addition, the Bank has through a senes of on-market and off-market marned trades, purchased a total of 4,289,962 ordinary shares for
a total cash consideration of $66 0 million

Consequently, the Group’s interest in GEH increased from 82 3% 1o 86 9% The acquisiion of additional interests in GEH resulted in the
recognition of incremental goodwill and intangible asset of $111 7 mullion (Note 37) and $107 6 million {Note 37) respectively
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36 Property, plant and equipment
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2006 2005
Property- Computer- Property- Computer-

GROUP ($'000) related related Others Total related related Others Total
Cost
At 1 January 1.637,018 390,288 233,188 2,260,494 1,576,174 323,564 214,284 2,114,022
Currency translation (8,472) (993) {836) (10,301) 2,661 592 204 3,457
Acquisition of subsidiary - - - - 40,726 14,219 12,997 67,942
Additions 21,537 76,226 38,536 136,299 22,168 103,066 21,742 146,376
Disposals (72,682) {84,027) (22,241) (178,950) {4,711) (51,153) (16,039) (71,903)
Assets held for sale (11,745) - - (11,745) - - - -
Transfers 290 (400) 110 - - - - -
At 31 December 1,565,946 381,094 248,757 2,195,797 1,637,018 390,288 233,188 2,260,494
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January (252,499) (234,588) {168,359) (655,446) {229,024) (232,312 (157,775)  (619,111)
Currency translation 81 542 785 2,138 (307 {683) (145) (1,135)
Acquisition of subsidiary - - - - (974) (4,004) {6.407) {11,385)
Disposals 3,663 70,886 14,437 88,986 1,254 48,670 14,022 63,946
Depreciation charge (Note 8 2) (30,258) (49,910) (23,425} (103,593) (23,448) (46,259) (18,054} (87.761)
Assets held for sale 3,557 - - 3,557 - - - -
Transfers - 598 (598) - - - - -
At 31 December {274,726) {212,472} (177,160) {(664,358) (252,499) (234,588) (168,359} (655,446)
Accumulated

impairment losses
At 1 January (175,609) - (783) (176,392) (177.,862) - (1,212)  (179,074)
Currency translation £l - 9 40 (75) - (28) (103)
White off upon disposal 459 - - 459 504 - - 504
Wrniteback/Aimparrment

charge} to income statements 21,638 (151) {2,966) 18,521 1,824 - 457 2,281
Assets held for sale 1,682 - - 1,682 - - - -
Transfers - 151 {(151) - - - - -
At 31 December (Note 33) {151,799) - (3,891) (155,690) {175,609) - (783) (176,392)
Net carrying value,

at 31 December 1,139,421 168,622 67,706 1,375,749 1,208,810 155,700 64,046 1,428,656
Net carrying value
Freehold property 346,157 469,119
Leasehold property 793,264 739,791

1,139,421 1,208 910

Market value 2,735,162 2,730,451
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36 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

2006 2005
Property- Computer- Property- Computer-

BANK ($'000) related related Others Total related related Others Total
Cost
At 1 January 841,778 243,398 90,328 1,175,504 844,543 214,764 90,814 1,150,121
Currency translation (2.033) (242) {481) (2.756) 546 {139} (127) 280
Additions 55 51,291 6,413 57,759 908 45,570 5,849 52,327
Bisposals {6,616) (82,166) {18,416) (107,198} (4,219) (16,797) (6,208} (27.224)
Assets held for sale (805) - - (805) - - - -
At 31 December 832,379 212,281 77,844 1,122,504 841,778 243,398 90,328 1,175,504
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January (92,045} (151,618)  (64,903) (308,566) (79,883) (138,775}  (62,996) {281,654)
Currency translation 455 73 457 985 (147) 70 125 48
Disposals 2,989 69,517 10,994 83,500 853 16,612 5,176 22,641
Depreciation charge (Note 8 2) (12,691} (30,632) (11,498) (54,821) (12,868) (29,525} {(7,208) {49,601)
At 31 December {101,292) {112,660) (64,950} (278,902) (92,045) (151,618) (64,903}  (308,566)
Accumulated

impairment losses
At 1 January (137,976) - - (137,976) {138,641) - - (138 641}
Currency translation (54) - - (54) 42 - - 42
wnite off upon dispasal 303 - - 303 504 - - 504
Writeback to

Income statements 6,792 - - 6,792 1149 - - 19
At 31 December {Note 33) (130,935) - - {130,935) (137,976) - - (137,976)
Net carrying value,

at 31 December 600,152 99,621 12,894 712,667 61%,757 91,780 25,425 728,962
Net carrying value
Freehold property 101,846 104,080
Leasehold property 498,306 507.677

600,152 611,757

Market value 1,076,265 1,002,159

As at 31 December 2006, included in property are investment property with net book value of $679 8 mllion (2005 $749 4 milon) and
$413 6 million (2005 $406 0 million) for the Group and Bank respectwely Based on valuations carried out by independent professional valuers,
the market values of investment property as at 31 December 2006 were $1,734 0 million (2005 41,578 7 million) and $753 3 million (2005
4668 S million} for the Group and Bank respectively The excess of the market value over the net book value of property was not recognised

in the financial statements
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37 Goodwill and intangible assets

GROUP BANK
. 2006 2005 2006 2005
$'000 $°000 $°000 $'000
Goodwill
At 1 January 2,586,257 2,231,614 1,867,176 1,867,176
Acquisition of additional interests n
- GEH (Note 35 2} 111,659 28,513 - -
- NISP 132 320,862 - -
- SLAM - 29,419 - -
Impairment charge to income statements - (4,549) - -
Currency translation 1,781 (19,602} - -
At 31 December 2,699,829 2,586,257 1,867,176 1,867,176
Intangible asset
At 1 January 757,298 766,958
Acquisition of addittonal interests in GEH (Note 35 2} 107,554 30,260
Amortisation charged to income statements {43.732) (39,920}
At 31 December 821,120 757,298
Analysed as follows
Goodwill from acquisition of subsidiaries/business 2,699,829 2,586,257 1,867,176 1,867,176
Intangible asset, at cost 927,814 820,260
Accumulated amortisation for intangible asset (106,694) (62,962)
821,120 757,298

Total goodwill and intangible assets 3,520,949 3,343,555 1,867,176 1,867,176

Note
" The value of in-force life assurance business of the Group 15 amortised over a useful life of 20 years At 31 December 2006 the intangible asset has a remaiming useful life
of 18 years

Impairment tests for goodwill
For impairment testing, goodwill 1s allocated to the Group's cash generating umits {*CGU") identified mainly to business segments as follows

Carrying value

136 )

Basis of determining 2006 2005
Cash Generating Units recoverable value $°000 $'000
Goodwill attributed to Banking CGU
- Consumer Banking 844,497 844,497
~ Business Banking 570,000 570,000
- Treasury 524,000 524,000
Value-in-use 1,938,497 1,938,497
Great Eastern Holdings Limited (“GEH"} Appraisal value 426,385 314,726
PT Bank NISP Tbk {"NISP") Value-in-use 305,528 303,615
Straits Lion Asset Management Limited ("SLAM' } Value-in-use 29,419 29,419
2,699,829 2,586,257

The value-in-use calculations apply a discounted cash flow model using cash flow projections based on financial budgets and forecasts
approved by management covenng a five-year period The discount rates apphied to the cash flow projecttons are derived from the pre-tax
weighted average cost of capiial plus a reasonable nisk premium at the date of assessment of the respective CGU The discount rates used ranged
from 10% to 19% (2005 9% to 20%) Cash flows beyond the fifth year are extrapolated using the estimated terminal growth rates (weighied
average growth rate to extrapolate cash flows beyond the projected years) For 2006, the terminal growth rates ranged from 2% to 11% (2005
2% to 15%) The terminal growth rate for each CGU used does not exceed management's expectation of the long term average growth rate
of the respective mdustry and country in which the CGU operates
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37

38

Goodwill and intangible assets (continued)

The Groups insurance CGU applies the appraisal value techruque for 1its value-in-use calculation This technique 1s commonly used to determine
the economic value of an tnsurance business, which compnses two components embedded value of in-force business and existing structural value
{value of future sales) The embedded value of the Iife assurance business I1s the present value of projected distributable profits (cash flows) of
the in-force business The cash flows represent a deterministic approach based on assumptions as to future operating experience discounted at a
risk adjusted rate The assurnptions take into account the recent experience of, and expected future outlook for the hife assurance business of the
CGU Investment returns assumed are based on long term strategic asset mix and their expected future returns The existing structural value 1s the
value of projected distributable profits from new businesses, which s calculated based on new businesses sold for the rune months ended up to
30 September and applying a new business multiplier to the value of future sales The returns assumned, after investrnent expenses, are 5 25%,
4 25% and 7% (2005 525%, 4 25% and 7%;) for Singapore’s participating fund, non-particpating fund and Iinked fund respactively and 7%,
6 5% and 7 5% (2005 7%, 6 5% and 7 5%) for Malaysia’s particpating fund, non-participating fund and linked fund respectively

Segmental information

381 Business segments

Consumer Business

$ million Banking Banking  Treasury Insurance Others Group
Finanaial year ended 31 December 2006
Segment mncome 1,010 1,135 261 659 872 3,937
Elim:nation 97)
Total income 3,840
Profit before tax and allowances 543 775 176 559 455 2,508
Amortisation of intangibfe assets - - - (44} - (41
(Allowances)/writeback for loans

and impairment of other assets (66} 17 - - 47 {2)
Income tax {charge)/credit (97) (164) {31) {86} 8 (370)
Net profit before eguity accounting 380 628 145 429 510 2,092
Share of results of associated

and Joint veniure compantes 14
Minority interests (104)
Net profit attmbutable

to equity holders of the Bank 2,002
Other information
Caprital expenditure 5 3 - 1 127 136
Depreciation 12 6 - 2 84 104
At 31 December 2006
Segment assets 26,098 38,371 30,565 43,288 16,180 154,502
Unallocated assets 48
Elimination (3,330)
Total assets 151,220
Segment liabilities 35,378 34,280 19,320 38,464 11,516 138,958
Unallocated liabihties 1,101
Elimtation (3.330)
Total habilhities 136,729
Other information
Gross non-bank loans 24,851 32,610 - 385 3,286 61,132
NPLs (includes debt securities) 509 1,254 - — 66 1,829
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38 Segmental information {continued)
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381 Business segments (contnued)
Consumer  Business

$ million Banking Banking Treasury Insurance Others Group
Financial year ended 31 December 2005
Segment Income 917 999 244 524 293 2,977
Eliminatton {90)
Total iIncome 2,887
Profit/(loss) before tax and allowances 505 671 168 435 (37) 1,742
Amortisation of intangible assets - - - (40) - (40)
{Allowances)writeback for loans

and impairment of other assets {76) 27 - - 37 12)
Income tax (charge)/credst (87) {136) (35) (68) 18 {308)
Net profit before equity accouniing 342 562 133 327 18 1,382
Share of results of associated companies 15
Minority interests (99)
Net profit attnbutable

to equity holders of the Bank 1,298
Other information
Capntal expenditure 4 3 ] 4 135 147
Depreciation 6 7 - 2 73 88
At 31 December 2005
Segment assets 26,392 35,548 23,132 40,313 12,888 138,273
Unallocated assets 71
Elimmation (3,634)
Total assets 134,710
Segment habilities 30,418 27,926 18,783 36,424 10,679 124,230
Unallocated labilities 627
Elimination (3,634)
Total habilities 121,223
Other information
Gross non-bank loans 25,065 29,028 - 378 2,722 57,193
NPLs {tncludes debt secunties) 613 1,727 - - 52 2,392
OCBC Group 1s orgamsed along four groupings covering customers, products, support functions and geography Customer, product and
support function heads have global responsibility for their respective areas, while geographic heads have stewardship responstility
For the purpose of financial reporting of business segment results, the Group’s businesses are presented under five main segments
representing the key customer and product groups Consumer Banking, Business Banking, Treasury, Insurance and Others
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38 Segmental information {continued)

38 1 Busmess segments (continued)

Consumer Banking

Consumer Banking comprises the full range of products and senvices offered to indviduals, including deposit products {checking accounts,
savings and fixed depostts), consumer loans (housing loans and other personal loans), credit cards and wealth management products (such
as unit trusts, bancassurance products and siructured deposits)

Business Banking

Business Banking provides a full range of financial services to business customers, ranging from large corporates and the public sector to
small and mediem enterpnises  The products and services offered include long-term loans such as project finanang, short-term credit such
as overdrafts and trade financing, deposit accounts and fee-based services such as cash management, trustee and custodian services

Treasury
Treasury engages i foreign exchange actvities, money market operations, fixed income and dervatives trading, and also offers structured
treasury products and financial solutions to meet customers’ investment and hedging needs

Insurance
The Group's insurance business, including fund managemeni activities, 1s carried out by the Bank's subsidiary GEH, which provides both life
and general insurance products to its customers mainly in Singapore and Malaysta

Others
The “Qthers” segment comprise Bank NISP, corporate finance, capital markets, property halding, stock brokerage and investment holding,
support umis, other investmenis, items not attributed to business segments, and one-time divestment gains

The business segment information 1s prepared based on internal management reports which are used by senior management for
decision-making and performance management

The following management reporting methodologies are adopted

(a) income and expenses are attnibutable to each segment based on the internal management reporting policies,

(b} in determining the segment results, balance sheet ems are internally transfer priced, and,

{¢) transactions between business segments are recorded within the segment as 1f they are third party transactions and are eliminated
on consolidation

Where there are matenal changes in the orgamisational structure and management reporting methodologies, segment information for
prior perods 1s restated to allow comparability

There are no matenal items of income or expense between the business segments Segment assets and habilities comprise operating
assets and habilinies, being the majority of the balance sheet and exduding 1tems such as income tax and borrowings

Capital expenditure comprises additions to property, plant and equipment
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382 Geographical segments

Profit/(loss)

Total before Capital Total Total
$ million meome income tax  expenditure assets habilities
2006
Singapore 2,714 1,842 77 105,706 97,109
Malaysia 747 498 18 31,275 27,677
Other ASEAN 239 A 39 5,126 4,308
Greater Chana 71 21 1 4,650 3,366
Other Asia Pacrfic 33 21 1 1,699 1,064
Rest of the World 36 23 - 2,764 3,205

3,840 2,476 136 151,220 136,729
2005
Singapore 1,949 1,093 61 96,712 87,530
Malaysia 662 507 61 26,859 23,323
Other ASEAN 148 61 23 4,381 3,462
Greater China 54 (3) - 3,066 2,667
QOther Asia Pacific 36 24 1 1,603 924
Rest of the Waorld 38 24 1 2,089 3,317

2,887 1,706 147 134,710 121,223

The Group’s operations are In six main geographical areas

(a) Singapore, the home country of the Bank where the primary business segments are located,

(b) Malaysia, comprising mainly the operations of the Group’s banking subsidiary, OCBC Bank (Malaysia) Berhad and the operations
of the Group’s insurance subsidiaries, Great Eastern Lfe Assurance (Malaysia) Berhad and Overseas Assurance Corporation
(Malaysia} Berhad,

{c) Other ASEAN, including business activities of branches and subsidianes in Brunet, Indonesia, the Philippines, Thalland and Vietnam

{d} Greater China, including business activities in Hong Kong SAR, China and Tawan,

(e} Other Asia Paalfic, including business actmities of branches and subsidiaries in Austraha, Japan, South Korea and India, and

{fy Rest of the World, compnising branch operations in Urited States and United Kingdom

With the axception of Singapore and Malaysia no other indwtdual country contributed more than 10% of consolidated total income and
total assets

The geographical information 1s prepared based on the country in which the transactions are booked It would not be materially different

if 1t 1s based on the country in which the counterparty or assets are located The geographical informauon 15 stated after elmmination of
intra-group transactions and balances
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39 Finanaal nsk management

391 Strategy in using financial instruments

Managing nsks is central to the Group’s business strategy The Group's principal business actmity 1s commercial banking, 1n which substantial
credit risks of corporate, nstitutional and retail customers are present  The Group’s business actvities tnvariably expose it to market risks
ansing from re-pricing, matunty and currency mismatches of assets and hiabilities  The extensive use of denivative financial instruments also
exposes the Group to the nsk of loss due to change n the values of these financial instruments

The Group adopts a comprehensive approach to nsk management in order to manage its nsk profile within pre-defined limits and to
protect the Group aganst severe losses from unhkely but plausible stress events  The Board Risk Committee 1s the principal committee that
supports the Board in the oversight of credit, market, operational and fiducrary nisks and any other category of risks as may be deemed
necessary It (s responsible for ensuring effecive nsk oversight of the Group  Vanious nsk management committees have been set up to
manage specific areas of nsks as outhned in the sections below

392 Credit nsk management

Credit nisk 15 the risk of loss due to borrower or counterparty default on payment  Such nisk anises from lending, underwiting, trading and
other activities of the Group

The Credn Risk Management Comnuttee ("CRMC") 1s the principal senior management committee that supports the Chief Executive
Officer ("CEO") and the Board Risk Commuttee in credit sk management oversight  The CRMC reviews and recommends major credit nisk
policies for approval of the CEO and/or the Board Risk Committes It 1s also responsible for ensuning that sound credit sk methodologies
and effective credit nsk management processes are established

The CRMC includes representatives from major business units, where credit risk 1s generated as well as independent credit risk contralitng
units  This joint effort in setting nsk policy seeks to ensure understanding of, and commitment to, the credit risk management process
The CRMC 15 supported by the Credit Risk Management ("CRM*) departments within Group Risk Management Division Dedicated
CRM units perform the roles of developing nisk policies, guidelines and procedures and putting i place the monitonng, reporting and
control systems

New product approval

The New Product Approval Committee ("NPAC"), consisting of senior representatives from the business, support and risk management
units, reviews and approves all new products inctuding credit programmes The representation of key stakeholders in the membership
of the NPAC ensures objectivity and independence in, and mjects functional expertise into, the decision-making process The NPAC also
reviews existing programmes on a regular basis

Country risk

A country risk framewark 15 1n place, covenng the assessment and rating of countries as well as the maximum cross-border transfer risk
hmit that can be granted to any one country based on its nsk rating  Cross-border transfer nisk covers all cross-border transactions including
onshore non-local currency transactions  Limits are allocated into matunity time-bands and vary according to the risk rating of the country
concerned and the political and economic outlook
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392 Credit nsk management {continued)

At 31 December 2006, the countnes where the Group's cross-border transfer risk exceeded 1% of assets were in Malaysia, United Kingdom,
Hong Kong SAR, Indonesia, China, France, South Korea, Australia and Germany, and consisted mainly of placements with banks due within
one year Cross-border transfer risk covers all cross-border transactions and onshore non-local currency transactions The Group's assets
{excluding life assurance fund mvestment assets) amounted to $112,796 million (2005 $98,853 mullion) at 31 December 2006

Cross-border transfer risk exposure exceeding 1% of assets were as foltows

Financial

Institutions,

Government private
and official sector and As % of
$ muilion Banks institutions individuals Total assets

2006
Malaysia 3,901 283 1,827 6,011 53
United Kingdom 5,163 3 133 5,299 47
Hong Kong SAR 2,040 10 989 3,039 27
Indonesia 1,301 33 1,236 2,570 23
China 1,702 - 644 2,346 21
France 1,795 - 151 1,946 17
South Korea 1,242 - 164 1,406 12
Austraha 899 - 446 1,345 12
Germany 1,195 24 75 1,294 11
2005

Malaysia 3,872 611 1,616 6,099 62
Umited Kingdom 3,000 9 150 3,159 32
Indonesia 1,252 46 1,029 2,327 24
Hong Kong SAR 1,021 2 540 1,963 20
China 1,199 2 498 1699 17
South Korea 967 17 228 1,212 12
France 1,060 2 112 1,174 12

Credit concentration

The Group seeks to spread its nisk exposure amongst the vanous economic sectors of the major markets in which 1t operates Limits
are set on speofic customer, industry segments and country, tn order to avoid over-concentration of credit nisks Prudent imits have
also been placed on exposures to single customer groups  Industry and country concentration imits are established in relation to the
Group's capital

Problem loans

{a) Loan classification

The Group classifies 1ts loans i accordance with MAS Notice 612 and Internal loan dassification poliaies Perforrming loans are

categorised as ‘Pass’ or ‘Special Mention’, while non-performing foans are categonsed as *Substandard’, ‘Doubtful’ or 'Loss’ based on

the following guidelines

* Pass — Interest and pninapal payments are up-to-date and orderly repayment and/or timely settlement in the future 15
without doubt

+ Speaal Mention — Currently protected but potentially weak Borrower exhibits some deteriorating trends which, if not addressed
or corrected, could jeopardise the timely repayment of interest and principal

* Substandard — Timely repayment and/or settlement is at risk Well-defined weakness 15 enident

¢ Doubtfu! - Full repayment and/or settlement 15 improbable

* Loss — The outstanding debt 15 regarded as uncollectable
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39 Finanaal nsk management (continued)

392 Credit nsk management {continued) \

(b) Restructured loans

A restructured loan refers 1o one where the onginal contractual terms and conditions have been modified upon mutual agreement
between the Group and the borrower Where a loan 15 restructured because a borrower 1s facing severe financiaf difficulties and
where 1t 1s probable that the account will have to be downgraded to non-performing status without the restructuning, the restructured
loan will be classified as NPL  Once classified as an NPL, a restructured loan can only be upgraded after a reasonable penod {typically
six months) of sustained performance under the restructured terms

(& Allowanges for loans

Allowances for loans in the loan book comprise specific allowances as well as portfolio allowances Specific allowance 1s established
when the present value of future recoverable cash flows of the impaired loan 1s lower than the carrying value of the loan  Assessment
for impairment on loans shall be conducted on a loan-by-loan basis except for homogeneous loans below a certain matenality
threshold, which are grouped together according to their nisk charactenistics and collectively assessed taking into account the historical
loss experience on such loans  Portfolio allowances for unimpaired ioans are set aside in accordance with FRS 39 as modified by the
Notice to Banks No 612 Credit Files, Grading and Provisioning’ 1ssued by the Monetary Authonity of Singapore

{d) Write-offs

Loans are written off when recovery action has been instituted and the foss can be reasonably determined  For unsecured consumer
loan programmes, the general policy 15 to wnte-off overdue loans after 180 days from the date of first default

(e) Callaterat keld agawnst NPLs

The main type of collateral backing for the Group's NPLs 15 real estate in Singapore The realisable value of the real estate collateral
Is used to evaluate the adequacy of the collateral coverage Proceeds from sale of collateral pledged for a particular loan are not applied
to other classified loans unless the accounts are related and cross-collateralisation of the facilities 1s provided for contractually

Credit nsk information

Credit nisk-related information 15 set out in the following notes
* Note 27 Loans to and bills recervable from customers

* Note 28 Non-performing loans and debt securities

* Note 26 Speafic allowances for loans

» Note 31 Debt and equity securities

* Note 38 Segmental information
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393

394

395

Market nsk management

Market nsk 1 the nisk ansing from uncertamty in the future values of financial instruments, resulting from fluctuations i market faciors
such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates, equity prices, commodity prices and credit spreads  The Group's primary exposure to market
nsk 1s associated with the matunity and re-pricing mismatches of assets and habilities ansing from its core banking business  Trading
actvities, involving both denvative and non-derivative financial instruments, are used to complement the banking business

The Market Risk Management Commuttee { 'MRMC ”) 1s the principal senior executive group that supports the Board Risk Committee and
CEOQ tn discharging their market risk oversight responsibilities The MRMC compnises senior managers from both the business and support
units, and 1s responsible for implementing a robust market nisk management framework  This framework comprises key market nsk
principles and policies, best practice measurement methodologies and a comprehensive set of controls and manitorning processes

To manage the market nsk from its trading activities, a framework of market nsk policies and operational limits is in place The Value-at-
Risk ("VaR"} methodology is the primary risk measure for the Group's trading actvities  VaR measures the potential losses that could anse
from adverse movements in interest rates, foreign exchange rates, equity prices and rate/price volatilities that could affect the value of the
financial instruments over a specified holding period within a specified confidence interval  To augment VaR, factor sensttvity measure
such as Present Value of a Basis Point (*Pv017) 15 used as nsk monitoring mechanism on a daily basis  To manage abnormal market
behaviour and supplement VaR, stress tests and scenano analyses are performed to deterrmne potential losses from low probabihity stressed
market events

Operational risk management

Operational risk 15 the risk of toss resulting from inadeguate or failed internal processes, systems, people and management, or from external
events The goal of Operatonal Risk Management ("ORM") 15 to mumimise unexpected and catastrophic losses and to manage expected
losses This enables new business opportusities to be pursued in a risk controlled manner

The Group has in place an ORM framework with the required environment and arganisational components for managing operational nisk
n a structured, systematic and consistent manner A comprehensive strategy has been formulated te provide a group-wide integrated
solution encompassing the rall-out of gualitative and quantitative tools and methodologies which will position the Group te qualfy for the
more proactive nsk management approaches recommended by the Basel Commitige

Asset and hab:lity management

Asset and hiabiity management involves managing funding liquidity, interest rate and foreign exchange rate risks ansing from the core banking
business The Group’s policy is to manage the earnings volatity ansing from the effect of movements in interest rates and foreign exchange
rates which are mherent in the Group's non-trading actities, while maintaining a prudent level of liquidity to meet finanaal obligattons at
all umes The Asset and Liability Management Committee {"ALCO"} 15 the serior management forum that is responsible for overseeing the
Group's hquidity and balance sheet risks  The ALCO comprises the CEQ, the CFQ and ather seruor management representatves from both
the business and support units
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39 Finanaal sk management {continued)

395 Asset and hability management {continued)

Interest rate risk

The table below summarises the effective average interest rate by major currencies for financial assets and hiabilities of the Group

2006 2005
% SGD UsD MYR SGD usD MYR
Placements with central banks 335 208 370 318 214 307
Placements with and loans to banks 336 529 367 270 397 293
Loans to customers 446 594 6 65 378 4 85 644
Securities and other mnterest-earning assets 338 560 407 252 545 382
Deposits and balances of banks 345 537 258 307 an 292
Deposits and other accounts of non-bank customers 240 4 60 296 189 356 271
Debts issued 497 438 540 360 256 -

The Group’s mamn market risk Is the interest rate nsk ansing from the matunty and re-pncing mismatches of its assets and habilities from its
banking business  The Group’s lending activities are funded largely by demand, savings and fixed deposits, resulting in natural mismatch
positions A system 15 In place to manage the interest rate mismaiches ansing from these activiies  The rmismatches are monitored agamst
defined sensitivity imits and net interest income changes

The table below summarises the Group’s exposure to Interest rate re-pricing risks, categonsed by the earlier of contractual re-pricing
or matunty dates

Less 1 week Non-
than to 1to3 3to12 1t03 Over interest
$ mullion 7days 1month months months years 3 years sensitive Total
2006
Cash and placements with central banks 1,367 768 9096 643 - - 1,967 5,741
Placements with and loans to banks 1,561 2,754 5,087 8,618 15 - 30 18,065
Loans to customers M 3,037 18,218 26,650 6,974 2,985 2,408 (963) 59,309
Securities @ 164 1,513 4,025 1,945 4,292 5,762 1,518 19,219
Other assets @ 8 9 - - - - 10,183 10,200
6,137 23,262 36,758 18,180 7,292 8,170 12,735 112,534
Life assurance fund mvesiment assets 38,424
Life assurance fund bank balances 262
Total assets 151,220
Deposits of non-bank customers 17,061 17,123 21,296 12,299 465 773 6,103 75,115
Deposits and balances of banks 4,991 3,532 1,794 1,432 120 - - 11,869
Trading portfoho habihties 4 12 97 124 10 81 - 422
Other liabilities ¥ 21 16 25 49 5 - 5.390 5,506
Debis issued 31 207 881 - - 4,012 - 5,131
22,108 20,990 24,087 13,899 600 4,866 11,493 98,043
Total equity - - - - - - 14,491 14,491
22,108 20,990 24,087 13,899 600 4,866 25,984 112,534
Life assurance fund habilities 38,280
Life assurance fund iax habilities 406
Total habilities and equity 151,220
On-balance sheet sensitivity gap (15.971) 2272 12,671 4,281 6,692 3.304 (13.249) -
Off-balance sheet sensitivity gap (1,797) (3.491) 280 3,689 (439) 1,758 - -
Net interest sensitivity gap (17.768) {1,219) 12,951 7,970 6,253 5,062 {13,249) -
Notes

M The negative balance represents mainly portfolio allowances for loans

@ Securities compnse trading and tnvestment portfolio of government, debt and equity securities {including assets pledged}
@ QOther assets include derivative receivables, deferred tax property plant and equipment, goodwill and tntangible assets

“  Other habilities include derivative payables current and deferred tax and amount due to associated companies
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395 Asset and hability management {continued})

Interest rate nisk {continued)

Less  1week Non-
than to 1103 3to12 1to3 Over interest
$ million 7 days 1month months months years 3 years sensitive Total
2005
Cash and placements wath central banks 458 647 604 706 - - 1,767 4,182
Placements with and loans to banks 3,066 2,016 2,920 4,171 149 - 9 12,331
Loans to customers 3,891 11,928 25,783 7,029 4,289 3,075 {962) 55,133
Secunties @ 199 963 2,413 2,051 3,973 6,333 1,534 17,466
Other assets @ 8 4 & - - - 9,338 9,356
7722 15,558 31,726 13,957 8411 9,408 11,686 98,468
Life assurance fund investment assets 35,857
Life assurance fund bank balances 385
Total assets 134,710
Deposits of non-bank customers 14,250 15,657 18,840 8,968 351 640 5,382 64,088
Deposits and balances of banks 4,172 3,396 1,834 894 9 2 - 10,307
Trading portfolio liabilities 33 81 167 7 125 43 - 456
Cther Labiities ¥ 3 4 2 3 - - 4 539 4,611
Debts 1ssued 96 173 250 - - 5,000 - 5519
18,554 19,311 21,093 9,872 485 5,685 9,981 84,981
Total equity - - -~ - - - 13,487 13,487
18,554 19,311 21,093 9,872 485 5,685 23,468 98,468
Life assurance fund hiabihtes 35,858
Life assurance fund tax habilives 384
Total habilittes and equity 134,710
On-balance sheet sensitivity gap (10,832) {3,753y 10,633 4,085 7,926 3,723 {11,782) -
Off-balance sheet sensitivity gap 950 {2,621} (5,247} 3,792 {764) 3,890 - -
Net interest sensitivity gap (3,882} (6,374) 5,386 7,877 7.162 7,613 {11,782) -
Notes

" The negative balance represents mainly portfohio allowances for loans

@ Secunities comprise trading and investment portfolio of government, debt and equity securities (including assets pledged)
@ Onher assets include dervative receivables deferred tax property plant and equipment, goodwitl and intangible assets

= QOther llabilities include dervative payables current and deferred tax and amount due to assoaated companies

Liquidity risk

The Group's policy of hiquidity management 1s to ensure that there are sufficient funds to meet the Group's financial obligations as and
when they become due

biquidity risk 1s managed through a combination of stati¢ financial ratios, cash flow projections, stress tests and contingency planning
Static ratios information assists the Group o momtor and determine adequate dversification in the Group’s funding sources  This restricts
the dependency on particular sotrces of funds and exposure to any particular group of lenders  Projections for each of the next 30 days
are closely monitored based on contractual and actuanal patterns of the cash flow The movements are analysed under business-as-usual
and stressed scenarios and momnitored agamst a set of cumulative maximum outflow imits  Stress test assumptions are applied to assess
whether the Group has the ability to withstand sudden and heavy cash outflows
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395 Asset and hability management (continued)

Liguidity nsk (continued)

The table below analyses assets and habthties of the Group into maturnty ume bands based on the remaining time to contractual matunty

as at balance sheet date

Less 1 week
than to 103 3to12 1to3 Over

§ million 7days 1month months months years 3 years Total
2006
Cash and placements with central banks 2,966 758 997 643 - 377 5,741
Placements with and loans to banks 1,582 2,645 4,820 8,845 173 - 18,065
Loans to customers 5,510 4,130 4,332 6,364 10,881 28,092 59,309
Securities 372 1,008 2,761 1,562 5,566 7,950 19,219
Other assets @ 904 1,528 795 1,373 276 5,324 10,200

11.334 10,069 13,705 18,787 16,896 41,743 112,534
Life assurance fund investment assets 38,424
Life assurance fund bank balances 262
Total assets 151,220
Deposits of non-bank custormners 34,880 16,245 8,949 11,027 1,802 2,212 75,115
Deposits and balances of banks 4,991 3,532 1,794 1,433 119 - 11,869
Trading portfolio liabilities 4 112 91 124 10 81 422
Other habihities & 1,247 1.249 8638 1,664 412 66 5,506
Debts 1ssued - 207 115 766 - 4,043 5131

41,122 21,345 11,817 15,014 2,343 6,402 98,043
Total equrty - - - - - 14,491 14,491

41,122 21,345 11,817 15,014 2,343 20,893 112,534
Life assurance fund liabilities 38,280
Life assurance fund tax labilities 406
Total habilities and equaty 151,220
Net iquidity gap (29,788) (11,276} 1,888 3,773 14,553 20,850 -

Notes

™ Securities comprise trading and investment portfolio of government debt and equnty secunties (including assets pledged)
@ Other assets include derivative recervables deferred tax, property plant and equipment, goodwill and intangible assets

@ QOther habilities inctude denvative payables, current and deferred tax and amount due to assocated companies
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335 Asset and hability management (Continued)

uquidsty nisk (continued)
Less 1 week
than to 103 3to12 1to3 Qver

$ million 7days 1month months months years 3 years Total
2005
Cash and placements with central banks 1,880 647 604 706 - 345 4,182
Placements with and loans to banks 3,069 1,873 2,699 4,376 314 - 12,331
Loans to customers 5,875 3,798 3,941 6,824 8,787 25908 55,133
Secunties (! 412 630 1,324 2,303 5,192 7,545 17.466
Qther assets @ 563 1,143 902 1,687 97 4,964 9,356

11,799 8,151 9,470 15,896 14,390 38,762 98,468
Life assurance fund mvestment assets 35,857
Life assurance jund bank balances 385
Total assets 134,710
Deposits of non-bank customers 30,296 15,647 6,783 7,999 667 2,696 64,088
Deposits and balances of banks 4,152 3,416 1,823 805 9 2 10,307
Trading portfolo habilities 33 81 167 7 125 43 456
Other liabilities @ 827 992 1,030 1,313 429 20 4,611
Debts 1ssued a6 140 250 - - 5,033 5,519

35,404 20,276 10,053 10,224 1,230 7,794 84,981
Total equity - - - - - 13,487 13,487

35,404 20,276 10,053 10,224 1,230 21,281 98,468
Life assurance fund labilities 35,858
Life assurance fund tax habilities 384
Total habhilities and equity 134,710
Net hquidity gap (23,605) (12,125} (583) 5672 13,160 17,481 -

Notes

W Securities compnise trading and investment portfolio of government, debt and equity securities {including assets pledged)

@ Other assets include derwvative receivables deferred tax property pfant and equipment goodwill and intangible assets
& Other habilties incdude derwvatwe payahles, current and deferred tax and amount due to assodated comparnies
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395 Asset and hability management (continued)

Currency risk

The banking actrwities of providing finanaal products and services to corporate and retail customers expose the Group to forergn exchange
nsk Foreign exchange risk 15 centratly managed by Group Treasury agamst delegsted imits  The Group's policy 15 to ensure, where appropriate
and practical, that its capital 1s protected from foreign exchange exposures  Hedging against foreign exchange exposutres is to protect the real

economic value, rather than to avoid the short-term accounting impact

The table below analyses the foreign exchange positions of the Group by major currencies  The *Others” foreign exchange nisks include mainly
exposure to Indonesian Rupiah, Australian Dollar, Euro, Japanese Yen, Stering Pound and Hong Kong Dollar

$ million sGD uso MYR Others Total
2006
Cash and placements with central banks 2,788 32 2,201 720 5,741
Placements with and loans to banks 581 12,064 579 4,341 18,065
Loans to customers 35,916 7,877 8,619 6,897 59,309
Secunties 11,625 2,779 2,429 2,386 19,219
QOther assets @ 7,692 1,117 619 772 10,200
58,602 23,869 14,447 15,616 112,534
Life assurance fund investment assets 38,424
Life assurance fund bank balances 262
Total assets 151,220
Depostts of non-bank cusiomers 46,019 8,352 11,957 8,787 75,115
Deposits and balances of banks 2,504 6,347 264 2,754 11,869
Trading portfolio iabilities 422 - - - 422
Other habilies @ 2,127 1,589 623 567 5,506
Debts 1ssued 3,841 951 87 252 5.131
55,513 17,239 12,931 12,360 98,043
Total equity 14,207 - 174 110 14,491
69,720 17.239 13,105 12,470 112,534
Life assurance fund habilities 38,280
Life assurance fund tax habilities 406
Total habilities and equity 151,220
Cn-balance sheet position (11,118) 6,630 1,342 3,146 -
Qff-balance sheet position 8,486 (6,699) {332) (1,455) -
Net position {2.632) {69) 1,010 1,691 -
Net investments in overseas operations - {194) 937 1,162 1,905

Notes

M Secunties comprise trading and investment portfolio of government debt and equity securities (including assets pledged)

@ Other assets include dervative recewables deferred tax property pfant and equipment, goodwill and intangible assets

@ Other habilities include derwvative payables, current and deferred tax and amount due to associated companies
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395 Asset and hability management (continued)
Currency nisk {(continued)
$ milhon SGD UsD MYR Others Total
2005
Cash and placements with central banks 2,336 N 1,108 707 4,182
Placements with and loans to banks 2,030 7,880 652 1,769 12,331
Loans to customers 33,460 7,994 7,552 6,127 55,133
Securrttes 10 264 2,853 2,365 1,984 17,466
Other assets ? 7,513 683 565 595 9,356
55,603 19,441 12,242 11,182 98,468
Life assurance fund investment assets 35,857
Life assurance fund bank balances 385
Total assets 134,710
Deposits of non-bank customers 37,995 8,662 9,965 7,466 64,088
Deposits and balances of banks 1,838 6,475 89 1,905 10,307
Trading portfolio liabilities 456 - - - 456
Other habilities ® 2,897 976 410 328 4,611
Debts issued 4,137 1,007 - 375 5,519
47,323 17,120 10,462 10,074 84,981
Total equnty 13,220 - 176 a1 13,487
60,543 17,120 10,640 10,165 98,468
Life assurance fund liabthties 35,858
Life assurance fund tax habiltties 384
Total habilities and equity 134,710
Cn-bhalance sheet position (4,940) 2,321 1,602 1,17 -
Off-balance sheet position 3,248 (2,681} (542) (25) -
Net position (1,692) (360) 1,060 992 -
Net investments in overseas operations - (263) 884 937 1,558
Notes
M Securities comprise trading and investment portfolio of government debt and equity secunities (including assets pledged)
@ Other assets include dernivative recevables, deferred tax, property plant and equipment, goodwll and intangible assets
@ Other habilities include denvative payables current and deferred tax and amount due to associated companies
396 Insurance-related risk management
Ths note sets out the risk management information of GEH Group
The underlying premise of GEH Group’s Enterprise Risk Management ("ERM*) Framework exists to provide value for its stakeholders, and
in growing stakeha!der value GEH Group will need to undertake nsks The challenge is to strike an optimal balance between building
controls to protect against nisks while not jeopardising the Group’s resilience and competitiveness  Risk management 1s considered an
integral part of managing the GEH Group's core business and the ERM Framework 1s designed to identify potential events that may affect
the Group, and to manage nsks within approved nsk appetite and to provide reasonable assurance regarding the achievernent of the
Group's objectives
The risk management policies descrnbed are generally adopted by GEH and its subsidianes  However, ceriain deviations and modifications
exist to comply with speafic regulations of the respective country junsdiction in which the subsidiary operates  Effective 1 January 2006,
the Group Risk Management department was formed by GEH Group to spearhead the development and implementation of the ERM
Framework for the Group
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396

Insurance-related risk management {continued)

Insurers are required to comply with the Insurance Act and Regulations, as applicable, including guidelines on investment lmits The
responsibility for the formulation, establishment and approval of the investment policy rests with the respective Boards of Directors
{"Boards”) of the msurance subsidiaries The Boards exercise oversight on tnvestments to safeguard the mterests of policyholders
and shareholders

The Risk Committee ("RIC"} was constituted to provide oversight on the risk management initiatives Detailed risk management and
oversight activities are undertaken by GEH Group’s Management Commuitees namely Asset Liabiity Committee (“*ALC"), Credit Risk
Committee ("CRC"), Product Development Comnutiee {"PDC"), Semior Management Team (“SMT") and Regional Management
Team ("RMT"}

ALC oversees the policy formulation and execution of nvestment strategy, asset mix and priang/re-pricing of products to determine the
appropnate asset/iabibty match  Pricing nsk pertains to the risk of insurance premium rates being insufficient to meet the obligations of
the pohcy benefits and the general cost of carrying on the insurance business Such a situation can arise when there 1s an adverse change
In the expected long-term nvestment return, mortality and morbidity experience, and/or an exacerbated increase in operating costs

CRC monitors credit sk management activities across all categones of Investments according to prescribed crecht policy guidelines and
authorised imits  CRC has the authonity to approve loans and credit transactions up to $200 milkon  Transactions greater than the stated
limit require the approval of the RiC

PDC oversees the product development process and evaluates the pricing of each new product launch  Generally, new products are
developed and priced after considerable market research and risk assessment

SMT aversees insurance nisk including areas such as nsk retention imits and reinsurance strategies  In addition, SMT s responsible for the
oversight of operational nisks, business ervironment risks and strategic rsks, as well as montoning operational sk and related policies and
processes such as market conduct policies and business continuity planning

RMT oversees the overall corporate sirategy formulation, deployment and monitoring and 1s respensible for direction setting with oversight
of business and functional strategy for the GEH Group RMT drives cross-country and cross-unit synergy and co-operation through shared
services and core competency development

The management of capital and risk 15 guided by the GEH Risk Framework, known as RK20 12 The framework comprises two distinct
components, namely the nsk measurement model for finanaal risks and the conirol self assessment process for business and operational
rsks The nsk measurement model strives to achieve the dual objectives of consistency and economic basis  The model defines risk
using the Value-at-Risk measure calibrated to the 99 5 percentile confidence level over a 1-year honzon The control self assessment
15 a systematic process by which indwidual business unit analyses 1ts own business processes step by step to identify the strengths and
weaknesses of Its risk control envirenment that could have a potential impact on its ahility to achieve the organisation’s bustness abjectves
Together, the two components of RK20 12 provide a disciplined risk management framework that guides GEH Group 1n the achievernent
of its goals and objectives through active asset and liability management, as well as strategic and tacucal risk and capital allocation

The principal actvities of GEH Group are the prowision of financial adwisory senvices coupled with msurance protection aganst nisks such as
mortality, morbidity (health, disabibity, critical liness and personal acaident), property and casualty  Risks inherent in the insurance business
include but are not hmited to the following
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396 Insurance-related nisk management {contmnued)

Insurance risk

insurance nsk compnses both actuanal and underwriting nsks resulting from the pricing and acceptance of insurance contracts  The risks
anse when actual claim expenence 1s different from the assumptions used in setung the prices for products and establishing the technical
provistans and labilities for claims  Sources of nisks include policy lapses and policy claims such as mortality, morbidity and expenses

The Group works closely with reinsurers to put in place a prudent underwnting policy to ensure appropnate risk classificat:on and premium
levels The Group’s remnsurance management strategy and policy 15 reviewed annually by RIC and SMT  Retention limits for mortality risk
per ife are set up to $700,000 in Singapore and RM350,000 in Malaysia  Retention imits for cnitical iliness per ife are set up to $400,000
1 Singapore and RM250,000 in Malaysia Catastrophe reinsurance 1s procured to hmit catastrophic losses  The Group's exposure to group
Insurance business 15 not significant, thus there 1s no matenal concentration In msurance nsks

SMT reviews trends and claims experience for insurance nsks along with the lapse and surrender experience to ensure that the policies,
guidelines and imits put in place to manage the nsks remain adequate and appropriate

A substantial portion of the Group’s lfe assurance funds 1s participating in nature  In the event of volatile investment climate and/or
unusual claims expenence, the insurer has the option of rewising the bonus and divdends payable 1o policyholders

Stress Testing (“ST") 1s performed annually by the Appointed Actuary (“AA*), for endarsement by the Board The purpose of the ST is to
test the solvency of the life fund under vanous scenarios according to prescribed statutory valuation basis, simulating drastic changes in
major parameters such as new business volume, investment environment, expense patterns, mortality/morbichty patterns and lapse rates

Gross Premium Valuation (*GPY"} s also carned out annually by the AA GPV 1s computed to assess the adequacy of the projected inflows
of premiums and investment income vis-3-vis the long-term benefits due to policyholders including but not hmrted to reversionary
bonuses, terminal {or maturity) bonuses and guaranteed returns (for non-participating products/pohcy benefits) for the in-force block
of business GPV 15 submitted to the Board for approval and 1t prowides the basis for the annual declaration of bonus to poficyholders
for vesting to the respective insurance policies and declaration of profits to sharehcolders through the income statement

For investment-linked funds, the risk exposure for the Group i1s Imited only to the underwnting aspect as all investment risks are borne
by the policyholders

Table 39 6(A)} Exposure of life insurance rnisks

Concentration of insurance nsk Singapore Malaysia

$ million 2006 2005 2006 2005
Gross sum at sk 89,950 86,952 65,723 66,398
Remnsurance ceded 6,702 6,957 17,044 14,194
Net sum at risk 83,248 79,995 48,679 52,204

52] OCBC - = 2006




Notes to the Financial Statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2006

39 Financaal nsk management {(conunued)

396

Insurance-related nsk management {continued)

Sensitivity analyses produced below are based on parameters set out as follows
{a) Scenano 1 - Mortahty & Major illness

(b} Scenano 2 — Mortahty & Major iliness

(¢ Scenano 3 - Health & Disability

(d) Scenaro 4 — Health & Disability

(&) Scenano S - Lapse & Surrender

(f)  Scenaro 6 - Lapse & Surrender

{g) Scenano 7 - Expenses

+ 25% for all future years
— 25% for all future years
+ 25% for all future years
- 25% for all future years
+ 25% for all future years
- 25% for all future years
+ 30% for all future years

Table 39 6{(B1} Profit after tax sensitivity for the Singapore segment

Impact on 1-year’s profit after tax

2006 ($ million) Scenano 1 Scenario 2| Scenano 3| Scenariod | Scenang 5| Scenano 6 Scenario 7
Gross impact 14 (56 1) 481 (60 9) 227 (317) (19 3)
Rensurance ceded - - - - - - -
Net impact 14 (56 1) 481 {60 9) 227 317 {19 3)
Table 39 6(B2) Profit after tax sensitivity for the Malaysia segment
Impact on 1-year’s profit after tax
2006 ($ million) Scenano 1 Scenano 2 | Scenano 3 Scenario 4 Scenano 5| Scenano 6 | Scenano 7

Gross impact

Reinsurance ceded

Net impact

The impact an profit and loss after tax above does not take into account changes tn other vanables, as they are considered to be less
matenal Such assessment and the relative matenality of individual vanables may change in the future

The sensitivity tests on the Malaysia segment were performed by applying the sensitivities to the best estimate assumptions used in the
habilittes adequacy test  The resulting reserves from the liabilities adequacy test were compared to the minimum habilitses pohicy prescribed
by regulator and any shortfall would be charged to income statement The labilties adequacy test reserves denved under all scenarios
were lower than the minimum liabihties policy prescribed by the regulator, therefore there was no impact on profits for the year

The effect of sensitivity analyses on reinsurance 1s not maternal

Market and credit risk

The Group 1s exposed 10 market nsk in the mvestments of the Shareholders’ Fund as well as in the mismatch nsk between the asset
and habity of the Insurance Funds ALC actively manages market rnisk through setting the investment policy and asset allocation,
approving portfolio construction and risk measurement methodologies, approving hedging and alternative nsk transfer strategres
Investment hmuts morutoring 15 In place at various levels to ensure that all investment activities are aligned with GEH Group nisk
management pnnciples and philosophies Compliance with established finangial risk limits forms an integral part of the nsk
governance and financial reporting framework Management of market nsks resulting from changes i interest rates and currency
exchange rates, volatilty 1n equity prices, as well as other nsks like credit and liquidity nisks are briefly descnbed below
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396 Insurance-related risk management (continued)

(a) Interest rate nisk (including asset habilty mismatch) The Group is exposed to interest rate nsk through 1) investments in fixed income
mstruments in bath the Shareholders’” Fund as well as the Insurance Funds and (1} policy habilities in the Insurance Funds Since the
Shareholders’ Fund has exposure to investrments in fixed income instruments but no exposure to nsurance policy hiabilities, 1t will
incur an economic loss when miterest rates nse  Gwen the long duration of policy habilities and the uncertainty of the cash flows
of the Insurance Funds, it 1s not possible to hold assets that will perfectly match the policy habilites This results in a net interest
rate risk or asset liability mismatch nsk which 1s managed and monitored by ALC The Insurance Funds will incur an economic
loss when interest rates drop since the duration of policy liabilities 1s generally longer than the duration of the fixed income assets
The management of asset liability mismatch 1s guided by the Asset-Liability Management Framework

The tables below show the interest rate exposure of GEH Group’s financial assets and labilittes

Average
Non- effective
Fixed  Floating interest interest
$ million rate rate sensitive Total rates
2006
Equities and collective investments - - 10,600 10,600 -
Quoted government securities, loan stocks and bonds 12,089 1,293 - 13,382 38%
Other unquoted Investments 5614 572 - 6,186 43%
Unit linked - bonds 484 73 - 557 4 1%
Dervatives and embedded dernvatives - - 1,343 1,343 -
Secured loans {net of allowances) 706 201 - 907 52%
Unsecured loans 1 26 - 27 42%
Policy loans 2,044 - - 2,044 6 6%
Remnsurance assets - - 57 57 -
Qutstanding premiums - - 154 154 -
Other debtors and interfund balances - - 878 878 -
Cash on deposit 3,505 - - 3,505 31%
Cash and bank balances 319 - - 319 34%
Finanaal assets 24,762 2,165 13,032 39,959
Other creditors and interfund batances - - 997 997 -
Reinsurance liabifities - - 50 50 -
Policy benefits 1,475 - - 1,475 40%
Claims admitted and intimated - - 149 149 -
Agents’ retirement benefits - - 168 168 -
Finanaal habilities 1,475 - 1,364 2,839
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396 Insurance-related risk management (continued)

@

(o}

Interest rate nisk (continued}

Average
Non- effactive
Fixed Floating interest interest
$ million rate rate  sensitive Total rates
2005
Equities and collective investments - - 10,956 10,956 -
Quoted government securities, loan stocks and bonds 11,813 1,331 - 13,144 37%
Other unquoted nvestments 4,509 579 - 5,088 45%
Unit linked - bonds 482 54 - 536 31%
Bervatives and embedded derivatives - - 695 695 -
Secured loans (net of allowances) 762 61 - 823 52%
Unsecured loans Vi 5 - 7 34%
Policy loans 1,989 - - 1,989 66%
Reinsurance assets - - 71 71 -
Quistanding premiums - - 162 162 -
Other debtors and interfund balances - - 916 916 -
Cash on deposit 2,898 - - 2,898 5 6%
Cash and bank balances 494 - - 494 _
Financial assets 22,949 2,030 12,800 37,779
Other creditors and interfund balances - - 915 915 -
Reinsurance liabilities - - 41 a1 -
Policy benefits 1,352 - - 1,352 40%
Claims admitted and intimated - - 147 147 —
Agents’ retirement benefits - - 157 157 -
Financial habilities 1,352 - 1,260 2,612

Foreign currency nsk  \nternally imits ranging from 15% to 35% are applied to mvestments n fixed income portfolios at fund level
Currency nsk derwed from investments in foreign equities 1s generally not hedged Hedging through currency forwards and swaps

15 typically used for the fixed income portfolio

The Group 1s also exposed to fereign exchange movement on net investment in its foreign subsidianes The major item for the Group
Is In respect of its Malaysia subsidianies The Insurance and Shareholders' Funds in Malaysia are predominantly held in Malaysian
Ringgt, as prescribed by Bank Negara, Malaysia The Group does not hedge against this exposure Total assets in the Shareholders’
Funds In foreign subsidianies as at 31 December 2006, under this unhedged category, approximated $301 8 million (2005 $276 t
million), translated at the respective year-end currency exchange rates
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39 Finanaal nsk management (continued)
396 Insurance-related nsk management (continued)

{b) Forergn currency nsk {continued)

The tables betow show the foreign exchange position of GEH Group by major currencies

$ milhon SGD usD MYR Others Total
2006

Equities and coltective investments 2,665 3,410 1,426 3,099 10,600
Quoted government securities, loan stocks and bonds 7,502 3,606 1,367 907 13,382
Other unquoted Investments 1,437 4,274 306 169 6,186
Umit linked — bonds S5 59 184 259 557
Derwatives and embedded derivatives 3,544 16 {1,509) (708) 1,343
Secured loans (net of allowances) 447 460 - - 07
Unsecured loans 27 # - - 27
Policy loans 876 1.168 - # 2,044
Reinsurance assets 22 34 - - 57
Qutstanding premtums 65 89 - # 154
Other debtors and interfund balances 555 321 - 2 878
Cash on deposit 2,940 446 62 57 3,505
{Cash and bank balances 173 54 63 29 319
Financial assets 20,309 13,937 1,899 3,814 39,959
Qther creditors and interfund balances 739 258 - # 997
Reinsurance habilities 26 24 - # 50
Policy benefits 741 734 - # 1,475
Claims admitted and inttmated 58 91 - # 149
Agents’ retirement benefits 1 167 - - 168
Feinanaal habilities 1,565 1,274 - # 2,839
2005

Eguities and collective investments 2,623 3,224 1,735 3,374 10,956
Quoted government securities, loan stocks and bonds 7,850 2,907 1,364 1,023 13,144
Qther unguoted Investments 914 3,656 230 288 5,088
Unit finked - bonds 36 21 186 293 536
Dervatives and embedded derivatives 2,294 57 (1.464) {192) 695
Secured loans {net of allowances) 288 535 - - 823
Unsecured loans 7 - - - 7
Policy loans 851 1,112 5 21 1989
Reinsurance assets 26 45 - - 71
QOuistanding premiums I a0 - 1 162
Other debtors and interfund balances 654 262 - - 916
Cash on deposit 2,096 507 225 70 2,898
Cash and bank balances 412 33 23 26 494
Financial assets 18,122 12,449 2,304 4,904 37,779
Other creditors and interfund balances 675 240 - # 915
Reinsurance habilities 19 22 - # 41
Policy benefits 697 655 - # 1,352
Claims admitted and intimated 55 92 - # 147
Agents’ retrement benefits 2 155 - # 157
Financial habilities 1,448 1,164 - # 2,612

# Amount less than 30 5 miliion
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39 Finanaal nsk management (continued)

396

Insurance-related risk management {conuinued)

()

(e)

Equity price nsk  Exposure to equity pnice nsk exists in both assets and habiities Asset exposure exists through direct equity
investment, where GEH bears all or most of the volatility In returns and investment performance sk Equity price nisk also exists
in mvestment linked products where the revenues of the insurance operations are linked to the value of the underlying equity
funds as this has an impact on the level of fees earned A robust menitoring process Is in place to manage equity price risk by
activating appropriate hedging and nsk transfer strategies to linut the downside risk at certain predetermined levels Limits are set for
single secunity holdings as a percentage of the equity investment and as a percentage of equity holdings Country limits and limits
on derivatives are also set

Real estate nisk  The Group 15 exposed to real estate nisk through invesiments in direct real estate that it owns in Singapore and
Malaysia and through real estate funds in other countries Fach acquisttion or divestment of real estate 1s reviewed by ALC and
submitted for the decision of the respectve Boards

Commodity risk The Group does not have a direct or significant exposure to commodsty nisk

Cash flow and hquidity nsk - Cash flow and hquidity nsk arises when a company is unable to meet its obligations at reasonable cost
when required to do so  This typically happens when the investments in the partfolio is iliquid  Demands for funds can usually be
met through ongoing business operations, premiums receved, sale of assets or borrowings  Unexpected demands for kquidity may
be triggered by negative pubicity, deterioration of the economy, reports of problems in other companies in the same or similar lines
of business, unanticipated policy claims, or other unexpected cash demands from policyholders

Expected hquichity demands are managed through a combination of treasury, investment and asset-liability management practices,
which are monitored on an ongoing basis  Actual and projected cash inflows and outflows are monitored and a reasonable amount of
assets are kept In kquid instruments at all tmes The projected cash flows from the in-force insurance policy contract liabilities constst
of renewal premiums, commissions, claims, maturities and surrenders  Renewal premiums, cormmussions, claims and maturities are
generally stable and predictable Surrenders can be more uncertain although 1t has been quite stable over the past several years

Unexpected iquidity demands are managed through a combination of product design, diversification limits, investment strategies
and systematic monitoring  The existence of surrender penalty i insurance contracts alse protects the Group from losses due to
unexpected surrender trends as well as reduces the sensitivity of surrenders to changes in interest rates
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39 Finanaal nsk management {continued}

396

158 |

Insurance-related risk management {continued)

{fy Cash flow and hquidity nsk (continued)

OCBC

The following tables show the matunity of GEH Group’s financial assets and liabiliies by time bands

$ milion Less than 1 year 1to5vyears Over5years Total
2006

Equittes and collective investments 10,600 - - 10,600
Quoted government securities, loan stocks and bonds 1,485 6,741 5,156 13,382
Other unquoted investments 1.219 2,646 2,321 6,186
Unrt linked - bonds 93 161 303 557
Dervatives and embedded denvatives 170 522 651 1,343
Secured loans (net of allowances) 67 567 273 907
Unsecured loans # 26 1 27
Policy loans 2,044 # - 2,044
Reinsurance assets 27 30 - 57
Qutstanding premiums 154 - - 154
Other debtors and interfund balances 878 - - 878
Cash on deposit 3,496 9 - 3,505
Cash and bank balances 319 - - 319
Financial assets 20,552 10,702 8,705 39,959
Other creditors and interfund balances 997 - - 997
Remnsurance habilities 50 - - 50
Policy benefits 1,475 - - 1,475
Claims admitted and intimated 149 - - 149
Agents' retirement benefits 168 - - 168
Finanaal habilities 2,839 - - 2,839
2005

Equities and collective investments 10,956 - - 10,956
Quoted government securities, loan stocks and bonds 1,661 5,976 5,507 13,144
QOther unguoted investments 674 2,407 2,007 5,088
Unit inked — bonds 78 178 280 536
Derivatives and embedded denvatives 36 495 164 695
Secured loans {net of allowances) 271 244 308 823
Unsecured loans - 6 1 7
Policy loans 1,989 # - 1,989
Reensurance assets 28 43 - n
QOuistanding premiums 162 - - 162
Other debtors and interfund balances 916 - - 916
Cash on deposit 2,788 82 28 2,898
Cash and bank balances 494 - - 494
Financial assets 20,053 9,431 8,295 37,779
Other creditors and interfund balances 915 - - 915
Reinsurance habilities a1 - - 4
Policy benefits 1,352 - - 1,352
Claims admitted and intimated 147 - - 147
Agents’ retirement benefits 157 - - 157
Financial habilities 2,612 - - 2,612

# Amount less than $0 5 million
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39 Finanaal risk management (continued)

396

Insurance-related nsk management (continued)

m

(@)

Cash flow and hiquidity nisk (continued)

Dervative financial instruments used by GEH Group for hedging interest rate, currency and equity risk exposures were as follows

Principal
notional Dernvative Dernwvative
$ million amount recewables payables
2006
Foreign exchange Forwards 2,963 12 9
Currency swaps 800 43 -
Interest rate Swaps 584 2 3
Swapticns 3 # #
Exchange traded futures 1,405 1 2
Equity Futures 5 # #
OTC options 25 3 -
5,785 61 14
2005
Foreign exchange Forwards 1,733 19 6
Currency swaps 641 # t6
OTC options # - #
Interest rate Swaps 1,537 2 9
OTC options 31 # -
Exchange traded futures 2,550 # #
Equuty Futures 7 - -
5,499 21 31

# Amount less than 34 5 milion

Credit risk  GEH Group Is exposed to credit nsk through {1} investmenis in cash and bonds, {1} corporate lending activities and ()
axposure to counterparty’s credit in derivative transactions and reinsurance contracts  For afl three types of exposures, financial loss
may mateniahise as a result of a credit default by the borrower or counterparty  For investments in bonds, financial loss may matenalise
as a result of the widerung of credit spread or a downgrade of credit rating

The task of evaluating and monitoring crecit nsk s undertaken by CRC - GEH Group has internal hmits by 1ssuer or counterparty and
by investment grades These mits are actively moniiored to manage the credit and concentration nsk  These hrits are reviewed on
a regular basis by CRC  The credit worthiness of reinsurers is assessed on an annual basis by reviewing thew financial strength through
published credit ratings and other publicly available financial information

With respect to credit nsk ansing from the other financial assets of GEH Group, which compnse cash and cash equivalents,
other recevables (including related party balances), investment securitres and certain derivative financial instruments, GEH Group’s
exposure to credit nsk anses from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these
instruments  There 15 no sigrificant concentration of credit nisk within GEH Group
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39 Finanaal nsk management {(continued}

160 ]

396 Insurance-related nisk management (continued)

(g

{h)

Credit nisk {continued)

The loans In GEH Group’s portioho are generally secured by colateral, with a maximum loan to collateral value ratio of 70%
predominantly The fair value of collaterals, held by GEH Group as lender, for which 1t 1s entitled to sell or pledge in the event of
default 1s as follows

2006 2005

Carrying Far Carrying Fair

value value of value value of

$ million of loans  collaterals of loans collaterals
Type of collaterals

Palicy loans — Cash value of policies 2,044 4,069 1,989 3,240

Secured loans

Properties 801 2,070 640 1,887

Shares 23 77 49 124

Bankers’ guarantees 82 87 127 129

Others 1 1 7 14

2,951 6,304 2,812 6,094

Investments lent and collaterals received under secuntes lending arrangement amounted to $660 5 millon and 3682 8 miflion
respectively as at 31 December 2006 (2005 $162 7 million and $166 9 milhon respectrvely)

Concentration nsk  An important efement of managing both market and credit risks 5 1o actively manage concentration to
specific 1ssuers, counterparties, industry sectors, countries and currencies Both internal and regulatory himsts are put in place and
monitored to manage concentration risk These hmits are reviewed on a regular basis by ALC and CRC GEM Group's exposures are
within the concentration imits set by the respective local regulators

Business and operational rnisk

Based on GEH Group’s ERM Framework, business and operational risks have been grouped into five main categories

{a)

(©

(d)

{e)

Business nisk includes fatlure of business sirategy, failure of product design, development and pricing strategy, faiture of marketing and
communication strategy, and market misconduct

Operattonal nsk — external events cludes changes in regulatory requirements, liability and legal disputes, fraud, business interruption,
fatlure of outsourced service providers and vendors, and damage to property and environment

Operational nisk - processes includes faiture of control processes and procedures, expense and cost overrun, and project fatlure

Operational nisk — systems ncludes failure of systems avarlability, capacity, utilisaben and [T infrastructure and failure of systems
securnty

Operational nsk — people iIncludes lagging customer service quality, lack of core competencies, fack of succession of key positions and
fiduciary risk

The day-to-day management of busness and operational nsk is through the maintenance of a comprehensive system of
internal controls, supported by an infrastructure of sysiems and procedures to morutor processes and transactions The SMT
reviews all business and operational ssues regularly at its monthly meetings The Internal Audit team reviews the system
of internal controls to assess thetr ongoing relevance and effectiveness, and reports at least quarterly to the Audit Commuttee
of GEH Group
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40 Fair values of finanaal assets and habilities

Financial instruments comprise financial assets, finanoal habidries and off-balance sheet financial instruments The fair value of a finanaal
instrument i1s the amount at which the instrument can be exchanged or settled between knowledgeable and willing parties m an arm’s length
transaction  The financial instruments of the Group are substanuially carned at fair value on the balance sheet, except for loans to and hills
recevable from customners, far which there 1s no ready market for exchange between willing parties  The Group has determined the fair values of
loans to customers, taking into account the relevant market interest rates and ¢redit spread and noted that the fair value 1s not matenially different
from the carrying amount at reporting date  The following table summarnises the carrying amounis and farr values of other financial instruments
that are not presented on the Group's balance sheet at their farr values

2006 2005
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
$ million amount value amount value
Financial hiabilities
Non-bank customer term deposits 50,197 50,351 40,549 40,595
Debts issued and other borrowed funds 6,786 6,999 7,146 7,355

Note

Fair value 15 deterrmined without taking into account transaction costs that would be incurred to exchange or settle the finanaal instruments The costs are expected to be
insignificant and will not have any material impact on the fair value

The farr values of financial assets and liabilities {not carried at farr value) are determined based on the following methodologies and assumptions

Finanaal assets for which fair value approximates carrying value

Fair value of certain financial assets carmed at cost, including cash and placements with central banks, placements with and loans to banks, nterest and
other short term recenvables are expected to approximate their carrying value due to their short tenor

Loans to non-bank customers

The carrying value of non-bank loans s the principal outstanding net of specific and portfolio allowances for impairment Fair value of loans are
computed after taking into account the relevant market nterest rates and credit spread by product types at balance sheet date

Financial habilities for which fair value approximates carrying value

Fair value of certain financial itabulities, which include mainly customer deposits with no stated matunity, interbank borrowangs and borrowings
under repurchase agreements are expected to approximate their carrying value due to their short tenor

Non-bank customer term deposits
For non-bank customer deposits with maturities of less than three months, the carrying amount 15 a reasonable estimate of therr fair value For
deposits with matunities of three months or more, fair values are estimated using discounted cash flows based on market rates

Debts 1ssued and other borrowed funds
The aggregate fair values of the Bank's fixed rate subordinated term notes are determined based on quoted market prices  Fair values of other
borrowed funds are obtained from independent broker offer prices
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41 Contingent habilities

The Group conducts businesses involving acceptances, guarantees, documentary credits and other similar transactions Acceptances are
undertakings by the Group to pay on bills of exchange drawn on customers Guarantees are rssued by the Group to guarantee the performance
of customers to third parties  Documentary credits commit the Group to make payments to therd parties on production of documents

GROUP BANK
2006 2005 2006 2005
$7000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Acceptances and endorsements 936,861 740,262 166,481 156,008
Guarantees and standby letters of credit 4,707,125 4,996,558 4,179,984 4,648,350
Dacumentary credits and other short term trade-related transactions 1,141,748 875,01 807,240 688,382
Others 33,434 35,040 - -
6,819,168 6,646,931 5,153,705 5,492,740

411 Analysed by geographical sector

GROUP BANK
2006 2005 2006 2005
$°000 $:000 $'000 $'000
Singapore 4,454,227 4,936,995 4,436,144 5,008,348
Malaysia 1,416,167 1,065,623 114,200 57,420
QOther ASEAN 380,464 247,663 34,925 24,078
Greater China 388,615 246,002 388,615 246,002
Other Asia Pacific 86,068 68,867 86,068 74,850
Rest of the World 93,627 81,781 93,753 82,042
6,819,168 6,646,931 5,153,705 5,492,740

The information on contingent habilites analysed by geographical secter 1s prepared based on the country where the transactions

are booked

412 Analysed by industry

GROUP BANK

2006 2005 2006 2005

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Agriculture, miming and quarrying 67,628 24,754 37,531 1,931
Manufacturing 1,593,831 1,828,551 825,755 1,271,998
Bullding and construction 1,133,801 1,130,413 975,027 1,125,381
General commerce 1,600,540 1,131,211 1,136,157 840,956
Transport, storage and communication 367,151 252,013 297,395 207,176
finanaal institutions, investment and holding companies 1,048,745 1,072,228 1,010,849 1,054,885
Professionals and individuals 104,958 107,122 79,128 89,761
Others 902,514 1,100,639 791,863 900,652
6,819,168 6,646,931 5,153,705 5,492,740
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42 Commitment

Commitments compnse mainly agreements to provide credit faclities to customers Such commutments can erther be made for a fixed penod,
or have no specific matunity but are cancellable by the Group, subject to notice requirements

GROUP BANK
2006 2005 2006 2005
$'000 $'000 $'000 £'000
421 Credit commitments
Undrawn credit facilities
Oniginal term to matunity of one year or less 28,112,683 24,516,587 25,076,740 21,564,962
Onginal term 1o matunty of more than one year 8,215,719 7,597,930 5.468,038 4,555,464
36,328,402 32,114,517 30,544,778 26,120,426
Undrawn note issuance and
revolving underwriting facilities 145,286 99,460 119,180 79,666
Forward deposits and assets purchase/sale 601,493 801,468 648,407 800,471
37,075,181 33,015,445 31,312,365 27,000,563
422 Other commtitments
Operating lease (non-cancellable} commitments
Within 1 year 11,862 15,102 12,283 13,286
After 1 year but within 5 years 11,444 17,403 10,393 14,413
Over 5 years 4 66 4 18
23,310 32,571 22,680 27,717
Capital commitment authorised and contracted 80,261 84,631 34,974 21,678
103,571 117,202 57,654 49,395
423 Total commitments 37,178,752 33,132,647 31,370,019 27,049,958
42 4 Analysed by geographical sector
Singapore 28,317,348 25,151,652 28,497,604 25,284,483
Malaysia 6,207,174 0,267,775 391,135 530,377
QOther ASEAN 835,921 572,725 127,827 87,939
Greater China 1,098,108 465,555 1,103,793 472,219
Other Asia Pacific 4,432 253,145 533,891 253,145
Rest of the world 715,769 421,795 715,769 421,795
37,178,752 33,132,647 31,370,019 27,049,958

OCBC Overseas Investments Pte Ltd, a subsidiary of the Bank, has entered into certain arrangements with existing shareholders of NISP
to acquire further shares in NISP at a future date
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43  Assets pledged
Assets pledged for repos whereby counterpariies have the nght by contract or by custom to resell or repledge the assets are as follows

GROUP BANK

2006 2005 2006 2005

5’000 $'000 $°000 $'000

Singapare government treasury bills and securities 491,756 512,693 491,756 512,693
Other government treasury bills and securities 779,224 410,496 3,784 3,627
Debt and equity secunties 48,016 200,448 - -
Placements with and loans to banks 577,583 792,922 28,231 135,155
1,896,579 1,916,559 523,71 651,475

Repo balances for assets pledged 1,838,927 1,720,049 500,762 517,940

The fair value of financial assets accepted as collateral that the Group s permitted to sell or repledge in the absence of default 1s $96 3 million
(2005 $181 3 million)

44 Assets held for sale

Assets held for sale comprise properties which the Group are disposing off, subject to terms that are usual and customary in the completion
of the sale The transactions are expected to be completed by first guarter 2007 and will not have a matenial impact on the Group

45  Minimum lease rental receivable

The future minimum lease rental receivable under non-cancellable operating leases by remaining period to lease expiry are as follows

GROUP BANK
2006 2005 2006 2005
%000 $ 000 $°000 $'000
Within one year 38,745 37,555 12,534 10,882
After 1 year but within 5 years 49,803 27,140 9,784 9,484
Over 5 years 1,520 - - -
90,068 64,695 22,318 20,366

46 Related party transactions

Loans and deposits transactions with refated parties ansing from the ordinary course of business are not treated any differently from loans
to and depesiis from other customers of the Group Credst facilities granted are subject to the same credit evaluation, approval, monitoring and
reporting processes

Related parties are as follows

ta} Comparves that, directly or indirectly through one or more intermedartes, are controlled by or are under common control with, the Bank
(including subsidiaries and fellow subsicharies),

{b) Associated companies in which the Group holds interests of between 20% and 50%,

(¢ Direciors of the Bank (including ther immedate family members) and entities in which they have control, jont control or
sigrufrcant influence,

(d) Key management of the Bank (including therr immediate family members) and entities i which they have control, joint control or
sigmficant influence, and

(e} Ufe assurance fund The transactions entered into with the Group's long-term life assurance fund pertain to the investment assets
and habilitres which are atinbutabte to policyholders
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46 Related party transactions {continued)

461

Related party balances at balance sheet date and transacuons dunng the financial year were as follows

Life
Associated Key assurance
GROUP (§ milhon) companies Directors management fund
(@) Loans and other recewables
At 1 January 2006 137 152 3 -
Net {(decrease)increase (119} 36 1 -
At 31 December 2006 18 188 4 -
(by Deposits and other payables
At 1 January 2006 21 312 8 611
Nei (decrease)increase 99 39 4 51
At 31 December 2006 120 351 12 662
() Off-balance sheet credit facihties ™
At 1 January 2006 - 103 - -
Net (decrease)increase - 4 - -
At 31 Decernber 2006 - 107 -~ -
{d} ncome statement transactions
Financial year ended 31 December 2006
Interest income 1 5 # -
Interest expense 1 5 # 20
Rental income . # 1 - #
Fee and commission and other income 2 1 # S1
Rental and other expenses 6 # # 1
Finanoial year ended 31 December 2005
Interest income 4 1 # -
Interest expense # 3 # 15
Rental income # 1 - i
Fee and commussion and other income 3 [ # 51
Rental and other expenses 7 1 # 1
Notes
M Off balance sheet credit facilitles refer to transaction related and trade-related contingencies
# Amaount less than 30 5 million
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46 Related party transactions (continued)

166 |

Life
Associated Key assurance
BANK {$ million) Subsidiaries  companies Directors management fund
(@) Loans and other receivables
At 1 January 2006 1.824 - 152 3 -
Net (decrease)increase {308} - 36 1 -
At 31 December 2006 1,516 - 188 4 -
(b) Deposits and other payables
At 1 January 2006 1095 4 301 8 545
Net {decrease)increase {12) (1} 37 3 10
At 31 December 2006 1,083 3 338 11 555
{c) Off-balance sheet credit facilities™
At 1 January 2006 139 - 103 - -
Net (decrease)fincrease (43) - 4 - -
At 31 December 2006 96 - 107 - -
{d) Income statement transactions
Financial year ended 31 December 2006
Interest mncome 61 - 5 # -
Interest expense 37 # 4 # 18
Rental income 3 - - - -
Fee and commission and other income 8 - # # 40
Rental and other expenses 150 6 # # -
financral year ended 31 December 2005
Interest income 56 - 61 8 -
Interest expense 22 # 23 1 12
Rental income 3 - - - -
Fee and commission and other income 5 - 2 ] 41
Rental and other expenses 115 7 3 it -
Notes
" Off balance sheet credit facihties refer to transaction related and trade related contingencies
# Amount less than $0 5 million
46 2 Key management personnel compensation
Key management personnel compensation is as follows
2006 2005
BANK $ mithion 3 mithon
Short-term employee benefits 19 18
Share-based benefits 4 4
23 22

During the financial year ended, total options granted o key management personnel of the Bank amounted to $1 9 milion {2005 $2 2
milion} Included in the above table are directors’ emoluments which were disclosed in Note 8 1 Equity-settled compensation to directors

of the Bank s disclosed in Notes 132, 13 3and 13 4
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47 Subsequent events
(@)  On 26 January 2007, Excel Holdings Private Lirmited {“Excel”), a wholly-owned substdiary of the Bank announced that it had entered into
conditional share sale and purchase agreements with certain indwiduals to purchase an aggregate of 1,078,225,000 ordinary shares (“Sale
Shares™) or 29 5% shareholdings in the capital of PT Tnmegah Securities Tbk {*Trunegah*”), for a cash consideration of IDR 172 5 billion
or IDR 160 per share The purchase price was negotiated on a willing-buyer willing-seller basis and represents approximately 1 7 times the
net asset value of Tnmegah at 31 December 2005 The proposed acquisition, which 1s subject to all necessary regulatory approvals being
received n Singapore and Indones:a, will be funded by the Group’s internal resources

Upon completion of the acquisition of the Sale Shares, Excel will become the largest shareholder of Tnmegah, and rt will be required
to make a tender offer for Tnmegah under the relevant take-over offer rules in Indonesia The tender offer s expecied to be launched
and completed before lune 2007

In comjunction with the acquisition of Sale Shares, Excel has also entered into call option agreements with certain individuals wheraby Excel
will be granted call options over a total of 785,825,000 shares (subject to adjustment based on, inter alia, shares acquired by Excel pursuant
to the tender offer) or 21 5% shareholdings in Tnmegah The call options are exercisable at an exercise price of IDR 16G per share, subject
to adjustments to take into account interest costs and dividends paid by Trimegah up to the point of exerase The call options will expire
18 months after the date the acquisition of the Sale Shares 1s completed

{b) On 6 February 2007, the Bank announced that 1t had received approval from the China Banking Regulatory Commission (“*CBRC™)
to commence preparation for local tncorperation in China In January 2007, the Bank had already obtained approval from CBRC to offer
time deposit services of a minimum of RMB 1 mitlion to Chinese residents at its Shanghar branch

(© On 15 February 2007, the Singapore Minister of Finance announced a reduction in the corporate tax rate from 20% to 18% with effect
from Year of Assessment 2008 The effects of the reduced tax rate will be reflected in the financial statements for the year ending
31 Decemnber 2007

48 Comparative information

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2005 were audited by another firm of certified public accountants Where necessary,
certain comparative figures were adjusted to conform to current year presentation

49 New accounting standards and interpretations not yet adopted

The Group has not applied the following relevant accounting standards and interpretations that have been issued as of the balance sheet date
but are not yet effective

* FRS 40 Investment Property

* FRS 107 financial Instruments Disclosures and the Amendment to FRS T Presentation of Financial Statements Capital Disclosures

= INT FRS 108 Scope of FRS 102 Share-based Payrnent

* INT FRS 109 Reassessment of Embedded Dervatives

« INT FRS 110 /ntenm Financal Reporting and Impairment

FRS 40, which becomes mandatory for the Group’s 2007 financial statements, permits investment property to be stated at either fair value or cast
tess accumulated depreciation and accumulated imparment losses

FRS 107 and amended FRS 1, which become mandatory for the Group’s 2007 financial statements, will require extensive additional disclosures
with respect to the Group's financial instruments and share caprtal  This standard does not have any impact on the recogrition and measurement
In the Group’s financial statements

INT FRS 110 prohibits the reversal of an imparment loss recogrused in an tntenm period during the financial year i respect of goodwill,
an investment 1n an equity instrument or a financial asset camed at cost  INT FRS 110 will become mandatory for the Group’s 2007 financial
statements, and will apply to goodwill, investments in equity instruments, and financial assets carried at cost prospectively from the date the Group
first applied the measurement critena of FRS 36 and FRS 39 respectively {1 e 1 January 2005) This standard does not have any significant impact
on the Group's financial statements
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Group’s Major Properties
As at 31 December 2006

Net carrying Market Effective Gross floor
value value ™ stake area
Purpose 5$%'000 $5°000 (%) {sq ft)
Singapore

OCBC Centre, 65 Chulia Street Office 32,928 518,400 100 993,089
OCBC Centre East, 63 Chulia Street Office 107,574 194,700 100 242,385
OCRBC Centre South, 18 Church Street Office 78,548 79,000 100 118,909
63 Market Street Office 234,093 242,500 100 248,996
3 Church Street, 16th to 2 1st storeys Office 28,255 106,000 100 78,490
11 Tampines Central 1 Office 60,896 68,000 100 115,782
31 Tampines Finance Park Avenue 4 Office 47,355 53,000 100 97,537

105 Ceqil Street, #01-00 #02-01 to 04,

#04-01 to 04, #14-01 to 04, #15-01 1o 04,

#17-01 to 04 The Octagon Butlding Oifice 31,377 33,500 100 34,550
260 Taryong Pagar Road Office 5,977 19,500 100 44,940
101 Cecil Street #0%-01/02 Tong Eng Building Office 2,184 14,400 100 15,584
110 Robinson Road Office 4,806 1C CO0 100 22,120
460 North Bndge Road Office 3,277 $0,000 100 26,576
277 Orchard Road, compnising Specialists’

Shopping Centre & Hotel Phoenix Retail'Hotel 2,679 314,000 100 443,689
The Waterside, Block 9 & 13 Tanjong Rhu Road Residential 43,983 153,000 100 251,889
Somerset Compass, 2 Mt Ehizabeth Link Residential 25,145 118,000 100 104,377
The Compass at Chancery,

6, 64 to H, J to N, P to U Chancery Rill Road Residential 15,136 36 000 100 54,739
Valley Lodge, #02-00 to #10-00 257 River Valley Road Residental 3,015 10 800 100 24,421
Land at Bassein Road, Lot 45L, Town subdmvision 29 Land for 105 14,500 100 17,203 @

development
727,333 1,995,300
Malaysia
Menara OCBC
18 Jalan Tun Perak, Kuala Lumpur Office 46,438 50,036 100 243,262
46,438 50,036
Indonesia
Bank NISP Tower
JI Dr Satrio, Casablanca, Jakarta Office 26,177 37,721 72 362,313
26,177 37,721
Other properties located in
Singapore 155,668 293,854
Malaysia 33,998 30,347
Other ASEAN 38,037 43,912
Other Asia Paafic 109,324 212,306
Rest of the World 2,446 11,686

339,473 652,105

Total 1,139,421 2,735,162

0 Valyations were made by independent firms of professional valuers
@ Refers to land area
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Group’s Major Quoted Equities

As at 31 December 2006

Effective Number Cost of Market
stake of ordinary Investment value
(%) " shares held 5$'000 $3%'000
Available-for-sale Securities
Asia Pacific Breweries Limited 40 10,671,448 10,941 165,095
Fraser and Neave Limited 62 91,418,460 90,138 410,836
Robinson and Company Limited 28 2,440,000 504 12,151
The Straits Trading Company Limited 77 25,884,232 17,092 91,260
United Overseas Bank Limited 02 2,574,314 28,947 49,680
WBL Corporation Limited 73 15,691,815 29,586 70,258
177,208 799,280
Cther quoted equities 378,561 461,028
556,169 1,260,308
Assoctated Companies
Briish and Malayan Trustees Limited 430 235,620 591 17,672
PacificMas Berhad 281 48,125,642 86,893 101,766
87,484 119,438
Subsidiaries
Great Eastern Holdings Limited 869 411,303,108 2,188,406 6,868,762
PT Bank NISP Tbk 723 3,570,971,129 531,450 516,005
2,719,856 7,384,767

@ Fgr avarlable-for sale secunties effective stake includes the Groups proportionate share of the stakes held by 1ts insurance subsidiaries under their shareholders and general

insurance funds
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Ordinary/Preference Shareholding Statistics
As at 28 February 2007

CLASS OF SHARES
Ordinary Shares

NUMBER OF CRDINARY SHAREHOLDERS
The number of ordinary shareholders of the Bank as at 28 February 2007 15 45,262

VOTING RIGHTS

The Articles of Association provide for
(a) on ashow of hands 1 vote
{h) onapoll 1 vote for each Ordinary Share held

DISTRIBUTION OF ORDINARY SHAREHOLDERS

Number of

Ordinary Ordinary
Size of Holdings Shareholders % Shares Held %
1-999 4,507 996 1,431,672 005
1,000 ~ 10,000 29 844 6593 111,385,549 356
10,001 - 1,000,000 10,758 2377 558,787,273 1787
1,000,001 and above 153 034 2,454,855,418 78 52
Total 45,262 100 00 3,126,459,912 100 00

TWENTY LARGEST ORDINARY SHAREHOLDERS

Number of

Ordinary
Ordinary Shareholders Shares Held %*
1 DBS Nominees (Pte) Lid 397,157,704 1291
2 Selat (Pte) Limited 348,957,470 1134
3 Citbank Nominees Singapore Pte Ltd 212,877,544 692
4 HSBC (Singapore) Nominees Pte Ltd 208,476,658 677
S DBSN Sennces Pie Ltd 158,728 267 516
6  Raffies Nominees (Pte) Ltd 143,042,510 465
7 Singapore Investments (Pte) bimited 112,134,760 364
8 lee Foundation 110,784,042 360
9 Lee Rubber Company Pte Ltd 92,739,108 30
10 United Overseas Bank Nominges (Pte) Ltd 49,843 09 162
11 Lee Latex Pte Limited 42,809,414 139
12 Kallang Development (Pte} Limited 28,810,836 094
13 Lee Pineapple Company (Pte) Lmited 20,000,000 065
14 Kew Estate Lmited 19,900,000 065
15 Leo Brothers {Wee Kee) Pte Ltd 15,753,000 051
16  Tropical Produce Company Pte Ltd 14,599,660 047
17 Kota Trading Company Sendinan Berhad 14,527,176 047
18  island Investment Company (Private) Limited 14,365,260 047
19 DB Nominees {S} Pte Ltd 13,113,476 043
20 BMT A/c Estate of Lim Yew Teok Deceased 12,944,000 Q42
Total 2,031,563,976 66 02

- The percentage of 1ssued ordinary shares s calculated based on the number of 1ssued ordinary shares of the Bank as at 28 February 2007 excluding any erdinary shares held in

treasury as at that date

Approximately 72 93% of the 1ssued ordinary shares are held in the hands of the public Rule 723 of the Lising Manual of the Singapore Exchange

Secunties Trading Limeted has accordingly been comphied with
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Ordinary/Preference Shareholding Statistics

As at 28 February 2007

SUBSTANTIAL ORDINARY SHAREHOLDERS

According to the register required to be kept under section 88 of the Companies Act, Cap 50, the following are the only substantial
ordinary shareholders of the Bank having an interest of 5 per cent or more of the total votes attached to all the voting shares in the

Bank as undernoted

Ordinary Shares Ordinary Shares  Ordmary Shares
registered In held by the in which the
the name substantial substantial
of the ordinary ordinary
substantial shareholders shareholders Percentage* of
ordinary inthe name of  are deemed to 1ssued Ordinary
Substantial Ordinary Shareholders shareholders nominees be interested Total Shares
As at As at As at As at
28 2 2007 28 2 2007 28 2 2007 28 2 2007
Lee Foundation 110,784,042 - 482,883,510 593,667,552 1929
Lee Foundation, States of Malaya - - 372,503,766 @ 372,503,766 1210
Selat (Pte) Limited 348,957,470 - 15,511,614 9 364,469,084 1184
* The percentage of 1ssued ordinary shares 1s calculated based on the number of 1ssued ordinary shares of the Bank as at 28 February 2007, excluding any ordinary shares held in

treasury as at that date

o This represents Lee Foundation s deemed interest in (a) the 20 000 000 ordinary shares held by Lee Pineapple Company {Pte} Limrted, (b) the 348 957 470 ardinary shares held by
Selat (Pte) Limrted {c) the 112,134 76D ordinary shares held by Singapore tnvestments (Pte} Linsted and (d) the 1791,280 ordinary shares held by Peninsula Plantatians

Sendinan Berhad

o This represents Lee Foundation States of Malaya’s deemed interest in (a) the 20,000 000 ordinary shares held by Lee Pineapple Company (Pte} Limited (b) the 348,957,470
ordinary shares held by Selat (Pte) Limited (c) the 1 755 016 ordinary shares held by Pen:nsula !nvestment Company Sdn Berhad and {d) the 1 791 280 ordtnary shares held by

Perunsula Plantations Sendinan Berhad

o This represents Sefat (Pte} Lemited s deemed interest in (a) the 1 146 354 ordinary shares held by South Asia Shipping Company Private Limited and (b) the 14 365,260 ordinary

shares held by Island Investment Company {Private) Limited
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Ordinary/Preference Shareholding Statistics
As at 28 February 2007

CLASS OF SHARES
Non-Cumulative Nen-Convertible Class E Preference Shares

NUMBER OF CLASS E PREFERENCE SHAREHOLDERS
The number of Class E Preference Shareho!ders of the Bank as at 28 February 2007 15 1,678

VOTING RIGHTS
Except as provided below, the Class E Preference Shareholders shall not be entitfed to attend and vote at general meetings of the Bank

The Class F Preferance Shareholders shall be entitled to attend a class meeting of the Class E Preference Shareholders  Every Class E Preference Shareholder
who 15 present In person at such class meeting shall have on a show of hands one vote and on a poll one vote for every Class E Preference Share of which he is
the holder

If dvidends with respect to the Class E Preference Shares in respect of such number of consecutive diadend periods as shall be equal to or exceed 12 calendar
months have not been paid in full when due, then the Class E Preference Shareholders shall have the right to receive notice of, attend, speak and vote at general
meetings of the Bank on all matters, including the winding-up of the Bank, and such nght shall continue untl after the next following divdend date on which a
divdend in respect of the Class E Preference Shares s paid in full {or an amount eguivalent to the dividend to be paid in respect of the next dvidend penod has been
paid or irevocably set aside in a separately designated trust amount for payment to the Class E Preference Shareholders)  Every Class E Preference Shareholder
who 1s present in person at such general meetings shall have on a show of hands one vote and on a poll one vote for every Class E Preference Share of which he
15 the holder

DISTRIBUTION OF CLASS E PREFERENCE SHAREHOLDERS

Number of Number of

Class E Class E

Preference Preference
Size of Holdings Shareholders % Shares Held %
1-989 247 56 44 308,400 617
1,00G - 10,000 676 4028 1,893,840 3788
10,001 - 1,000,000 55 328 2,797,760 5595
1,000,001 and above - - - -
Total 1,678 100 00 5,000,000 100 00

TWENTY LARGEST CLASS E PREFERENCE SHAREHOLDERS

Number of

Class E Preference
Class E Preference Shareholders Shares Held %
1 Raffles Norninees {Pte) Ltd 543,700 1087
2 Cruibank Nominees Singapore Pte Ltd 399,800 800
3 HSBC (Singapore} Nominees Pte Lid 215,300 431
4 Pan-United Investments Pte Ltd 183,000 366
5  DBS Nomnees (Pte) Ltd 143,060 286
6  Infocomm Investments Pte Ltd 143,000 286
7  E M Services Pte Ltd 137,800 276
8  Natonal Counal of Social Service 80,000 160
9  Tan Chee hn 50,000 100
10 Seapac Investment Pte Ltd 42,500 085
11 Archer | Limited 40,000 080
12 NTUC Thrift & Loan Co-Operaiive Limited 35,000 070
13 Chua Hong Thuan 33,500 067
14 AXA Insurance Singapore Pte Ltd 30,000 G 60
15 Hobee Print Pte Ltd 30,000 060
16 Lim Siew Feng 30,000 060
17 Phng Hool Chay 30,000 060
18  Umted Overseas Bank Nominees {Pte} Ltd 28,800 058
19 Tang Wee Loke 27,500 055
20 Titular Roman Catholic Archbishop of Singapore 26,000 052
Total 2,248 960 4499

Note
The Bank 1 not required to maintain a register of substantial shareholders under section 88 of the Companies Act Cap 50 1n relation to the Class E Preference Shares
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Ordinary/Preference Shareholding Statistics
As at 28 Febiuary 2007

CLASS OF SHARES
Non-Cumulative Non-Convertible Class G Preference Shares

NUMBER OF CLASS G PREFERENCE SHAREHOLDERS
The number of Class G Preference Shareholders of the Bank as at 28 February 2007 15 5,972

VOTING RIGHTS
Except as provided below, the Class G Preference Shareholders shall not be entitled to attend and vote at general meetings of the Bank

The Class G Preference Shareholders shall be entitled to attend a dass meeting of the Class G Preference Shareholders Every Class G Preference Shareholder
who 15 present in person at such dlass meeting shall have on a show of hands one vote and on a poll one vote for every Class G Preference Share of which he s
the holder

If dnvidends with respect to the Class G Preference Shares in respect of such number of consecutive dmdend penods as shall be equal to or exceed 12 calendar
months have not been paid in full when due, then the Class G Preference Shareholders shall have the nght to receve notice of, attend, speak and vote at general
meetings of the Bank on all matters, ncluding the winding-up of the Bank and such nght shall continue untit after the next following dvidend date on which a
dmidend In respect of the Class G Preference Shares is paid in full {or an amount equivalent to the dvidend to be pard in respect of the next dwdend penod has
been paid or irevocably set aside in a separately designated trust amount for payment to the Class G Preference Shareholders) Every Class G Preference Share-
holder who s present in person at such general meetings shall have on a show of hands one vote and on a poli one vote for every Class G Preference Share of
which he 1s the hotder

DISTRIBUTION QF CLASS G PREFERENCE SHAREHOLDERS

Number of Number of

Class G Class G

Preference Preference
Size of Holdings Shareholders % Shares Held %
1-999 648 1085 287,164 Q07
1,000 - 10,000 3,453 57 82 13,905,766 351
10,001 - 1,000,000 1,846 3091 131,095,100 3312
1,000,001 and above 25 042 250,542,854 63 30
Total 5,972 100 00 395,830,884 100 Q0

TWENTY LARGEST CLASS G PREFERENCE SHAREHOLDERS

Number of

Class G Preference
Class G Preference Shareholders Shares Held %
1 Raffles Nominees (Pte) Lid 75.313,724 1903
2 Selat (Pte) Lumited 53 879,531 1361
3 Lee Rubber Company Pte Ltd 18,564,085 469
4  Lee Foundation, States of Malaya 16,000,000 404
5 DBS Nominees (Pte) Ltd 12,749,118 322
6  Singapore Investments (Pte) bimited 10,642,763 269
7 Archer | Limited 9,500,000 240
8  Lee Latex Pte Lmited 8,609,432 218
g Lee Foundation 7,080,009 179
10 Fraser & Neave Lid 6,069,458 153
11 Pan-United Investments Pte Lid 4,675 000 118
12 The Asia Ufe Assurance Society Limited 4,000,000 101
13 The Asia Insurance Company Lirruted 3,948,000 100
14 Lee Plantations Pte Limited 2,323,572 059
15 Island Investment Company (Private) Lmited 2,301,287 058
16 United Overseas Bank Nominees (Pte) Ltd 1,955 802 049
17  Tan Chee Jin 1,800,000 045
18 YS Fu Holdings (2002) Pte Lid 1,700,000 043
19  Kota Trading Company Sendinan Berhad 1,680,093 042
20  Chong Chew Um @ Chong Ah Kau 1582,212 040
Total 244,374,086 6173

Note
The Bank 1s not required to marntain a register of substantial shareholders under section 88 of the Companies Act Cap 50 In relation to the Class G Preference Shares
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Investor Reference

FIVE-YEAR SHARE PRICE AND TURNOVER
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BF7_T Monthly Turnover = Share Price
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
Share price (5%$)"
Highest 579 521 592 670 175
Lowest 394 342 483 558 620
Average 484 434 534 603 675
Last done 402 504 563 670 770
Per ordinary share ¥
Basic earnings (cents) 215 300 354 401 634
Net mtenim and final dmdend (cents) & 65 76 127 184 230
Net special / bonus dividend (cents) 2 - 207 - a7 -
Net asset value (NAV) (5%) 2498 2098 327 367 407
Ratios
Price-earnings ratio @ 2235 14 46 1508 1505 10 65
Net dividend yield (%) & 134 175 237 305 W3
Dwndend cover (number of times) ¥ 3N 396 275 219 277
Price/NAY {number of times) @ 163 145 163 164 166
Notes
o Share price and per ardinary share data have been adjusted for the effects of the 1-for-5 rights issue and 2 for-1 sub-division of shares, effected on 18 July 2005 and 5 August

2005 respectively
@ 2006 dividends are tax exempt

g

Based on average share prices Net dividend yield excludes spenal and bonus dividends
L Ratio of profit attnibutable to equity holders of the Bank after preference divadends to net dwidends {excluding spewal and bonus dividends)
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Investor Reference

FIVE-YEAR ORDINARY SHARE CAPITAL HISTORY

Ordwnary Held in Shares in

Year Particulars shares 1ssued treasury arculation
2002 Exercise of employees’ share options 3,693

Year end balance 1,290,299 1,290,299
2003 Selective capital reduction (12,139}

Issue of shares pursuant to Share Qption Schemes 1,916

Year end balance 1,280,076 1,280,076
2004 Selective capital reduction (80,192)

Share buyback (24,309)

Issue of shares pursuant to voluntary unconditional offer for GEH 136,207

Exercise of employees' share options 4,761

Year end balance 1,316,543 1,316,543
2005 1-for-5 nghts Issue 262,138

2-for-1 sub-dwsion of shares 1,565,781

Share buyback (54,756)

Acquisition of additional shares in GEH 13,848

Issue of shares pursuant to Share Option Schemes 9,180

Issue of shares pursuant to Employee Share Purchase Plan 1,590

Shares 1ssued to non-executive directors 14

Year end balance 3,114,338 3,114,338
2006 Share buyback (7,008) (59,265)

Acquisttion of additional shares in GEH 6,020 5,338

Issue of shares pursuant to Share Option Schemes 11,334 2,258

Issue of shares pursuant to Employee Share Purchase Plan 1,728

Shares 1ssued to non-executive directors 48

Year end balance 3,126,460 {51,669} 3,074,791
FIVE-YEAR DIVIDEND HISTORY (ORDINARY STOCKHOLDERS)
Dividend and Finanaal Year Anncuncement date Payment date Cents per share (net)
Intenm 2002 05 August 2002 03 September 2002 16
Final 2002 25 February 2003 16 June 2003 49
Speciat 2003 0 19 March 2003 14 July 2003 207
Intenm 2003 05 August 2003 03 September 2003 36
Final 2003 11 February 2004 12 May 2004 40
Interim 2004 11 August 2004 13 September 2004 63
Final 2004 14 February 2005 25 Apnl 2005 63
Bonus Cash 2005 @ 11 May 2005 19 July 2005 417
Intenrm 2005 10 August 2005 13 September 2005 88
Final 2005 28 February 2006 18 May 2006 96
Interim 2006 @ 14 August 2006 13 September 2006 110
Final 2006 @ 22 February 2007 18 May 2007 120
Notes

™ Speaal dmdend with an option to elect for OCBC Class G Preference Shares at an issue price of S$0 995 per preference share
@ Bonhus cash dividend with an option to elect to use the bonus dvidend 1o subscnibe for the 1-for 5 nghts ssue at 545 per nghts share
@ 2006 dradends are tax exempt.
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Further Information on Directors

DR CHEONG CHOONG KONG

Current Directorships {and Appointments)

1 Great Eastern Holdings Ltd* Director
2 OCBC Management Services Pte Ltd Director
3 Singapore Press Holdings Ltd* Director
4 The Great Eastern Life Assurance Co Ltd Director
The Overseas Assurance Corporation Ltd Director
* Listed companies
Directorships (and Appointments) for the past 3 years
1 MNational University of Singapore Council Chairman
2 Dommant Chuna Finance Lid Direcior
3 HighPoint Communmty Services Association Director
4 United Eagle Airlines Co Ltd Director
5  Vickers Private Equity Investment Cansultancy Company, Ltd Director

Academic and Professional Qualifications

Bachelor of Science (First Class Honours in Mathematics),
University of Adelaide

Master of Science and Ph D in Mathematics,

Austrahan National University, Canberra

OCBC Board Committees Served On
Chairman, Executve Commitige
Member, Nominating Committee
Member, Remuneration Commitiee
Member, Risk Committee
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Date of First Appointment as a Director of OCBC
Director since 1 July 1999

Vice Charrman from 26 March 2002 to 30 June 2003
Charrman since 1 July 2003

Date of Last Re-election as a Director of OCBC
20 Apnl 2006

Independent Status
Non-executive and non-independent director




Further Information on Directors

MR MICHAEL WONG PAKSHONG

Current Directorships (and Appointments)

1 Great Eastern Holdings Ltd* Chairman
2 The Great Eastern Life Assurance Co Ltd Chairman
3 The Overseas Assurance Corporation Ltd Chairman
4 Bukit Sembawang Estates Ltd* Director
5 QCBC Management Services Pte Ltd Director
6  Sime Darby Berhad* Durector
7 The Straits Trading Company Ltd* Director
8  WBL Corporation Ltd* Director
9  Dover Park Hospice Endowment Fund Trustee
* Listed companies

Directorships {and Appointments) for the past 3 years

1 Robinson and Company, Limited Chairman
2 Sime Singapore Ltd Charrman
3 Jaya Holdings Lid Director

Academic and Professional Qualifications

Bachelor of Arts (Honours), University of Bristol

Hon L LD, University of Bristol

Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales

Member of the Institute of Certrfied Public Accountants

of Singapore

OCBC Board Committees Served On
Charrman, Nominating Commuttee
Charman, Remuneration Committee

Date of First Appointment as a Director of OCBC
Director since 21 Apnl 1989
Vice Chairman since 26 March 2002

Date of Last Re-appointment as a Director of OCBC
20 Apnl 2006

Independent Status
Independent from management and business relationships
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Further information on Directors

MR BOBBY CHIN

Current Directorships (and Appotntments)

O ~ N B W N =

w

10
i
12
13
14
15

Changt Airports International Pte Ltd
Singapore Totalisator Board

AV Jennings Ltd*

Frasers Centrepoint Asset Management Ltd
Ho Bee investment Ltd*

Neptune Onent Lines Ltd*

Singapore Cooperation Enterprise
Singapore Power Ltd

Stamford Land Corporation Ltd*

The Straits Trading Company Lid*

Yeo Hiap Seng Lid*

Competition Commission of Singapore

Singapore Chinese Chamber of Commerce and Industry

Singapore Indian Development Association
Singapore Management University

* Listed companies

Directorships (and Appointments) for the past 3 years

Chatrman
Chairman
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Member
Councll Member
Board Trustee
Board Trustee

1
2
3

Academic and Professional Qualifications
Bachelor of Accountancy, University of Singapore
Associate Member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants

Urban Redevelopment Authortty
KPMG Singapore
Smngapore Business Federation

in England and Wales

Member of the Institute of Certified Public Accountants of

Singapore

OCBC Board Committees Served On
Charman, Audit Committee
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Date of Election as a Drrector of OQCBC
20 Apnil 2006

Independent Status
Independent director

Chairman
Managing Partner
Counal Member

Date of First Appointment as a Director of OCBC
1 October 2005




Further Information on Directors

MR DAVID CONNER

Current Directarships (and Appointments)

Bank of Singapore Ltd

International Adwisory Council for Asia, Washington University in 5t Louis

1
2
3 Asean Finance Corporation Ltd

4  Asean Supreme Fund Ltd (in voluntary hguidatien)

5  Dr Goh Keng Swee Scholarship Fund

6  Great Eastern Holdings Ltd*

7 International Monetary Conference

8 KisLd

9  Lion Capital Management Lid

10 OCBC Bank {Malaysia) Berhad

11 OCBC Overseas Investments Pte Ltd

12 The Esplanade Co Ltd

13 The Great Eastern Life Assurance Co Ltd

14 The Overseas Assurance Corporation Ltd

15 PT Bank NISP Tbk*

16 Association of Banks 1n Singapore

17 Asian Pacific Bankers Club

18 Adwvisory Board of Lee Kong Chian Schoot of Business

19 Advisory Council of The Amencan Chamber of Commerce in Singapore

20 The f-Next Councit of institute of Banking & Finance
21 Washington Unwersity in 5t Louis

* Listed companies

Directorships (and Appointments) for the past 3 years

Chairman

Charrman

Drector
Dhrector
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Chrector
Director
Director
Director
Director
Commissioner
Councll Member
Member
Member
Member
Member

Ethan A H Shepley Trustee

Academic and Professional Qualifications

Bachelor of Arts, Washington University, 5t Lows, Missoun
Master of Business Administration, Columbia University,
New York

OCBC Board Commuttees Served On
Member, Executive Committee
Member, Risk Committee

Date of First Appointment as a Director of OCBC
Director since 15 April 2002

Date of Last Re-election as a Director of OCBC
30 March 2005

Independent Status
Not independent director
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Further Information on Directors

MR GIAM CHIN TOON, S C

Current Directorships {and Appointments)

T Wee Swee Teow & Co Senior Partner
2 Inguiry Panel of the Law Society of Singapore Chairman
3 Guthne GTS Lid* Director
4 John Wiley & Sons (Asia) Pte Lid Drrector
5  Singapore Institute of Directors Director
6  Singapore Mediation Centre Director
7 Singapore Island Country Club President
8  The Executives Club Treasurer
9 Energy Market Authority Member
10 Health Sciences Authonty Member
11 Secunties Industry Council Member
12 Singapere Ambassador {Non-Resident) to Peru

13 Singapeore High Commussioner (Non-Resident) to Ghana

* Listed companies

Directorships (and Appointments) for the past 3 years

1 Pertama Holdings Ltd Director
2 Raffles Holdings Lid Director
3 SembCorp Logistics Ltd Durecior

Academic and Professtonal Qualifications
LLB (Honours) and LLM, University of Singapore

OCBC Board Committees Served On
Member, Nominating Committee
Member, Risk Committee
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Date of First Appointment as a Director of QCBC
Director since 1 January 2005

Date of Election as a Director of OCBC
30 March 2005

Independent Status
Independent director




Further Information on Directors

MR LEE SENG WEE

Current Directorshtps (and Appointments)

1 GIC Real Estate Pte Ltd Director
2 Great Eastern Holdings Ltd* Director
3 Lee Foundation Director
4 Lee Rubber Group of Compaznies Director
5  The Great Eastern Life Assurance Co Lid Curector
6  The Overseas Assurance Corporation Ltd Director

* Listed companies

Directorships {and Appointments) for the past 3 years

Academic and Professional Quahfications Date of First Appointment as a Director of OCBC
Bachelor of Appled Scence (Engineenng), University of Toronto Director since 25 February 1966
Master of Business Administration, University of Chairman from 1 August 1995 to 30 June 2003

Western Ontarno
Date of Last Re-appointment as a Director of OCBC

OCBC Board Committees Served On 20 April 2006
Member, Executive Committee
Member, Nominating Committee Independent Status

Independent from management and business relationships
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Further Information on Directors

DR LEE TiH SHIH

Current Directorships {and Appointments)

Fraser & Neave Lid*

Lee Foundation, Singapore
Lee Rubber Co Pte Ltd

Selat Pte Ltd

Singapore Investments Pte Ltd
PT Bank NiSP Tbk*

Listed companies

LA * TR V) B ~ S UV N R

Directarships (and Appointments) for the past 3 years

Director
Director
Durector
Drrector
Director
Commussioner

Academic and Professional Qualifications
MBA with Distinction, Impenal College, London
Doctor of Medicine, Yale University, New Haven

OCBC Board Committees Served On
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Date of First Appointment as a Director of OCBC
Director since 4 April 2003

Date of Last Re-election as a Director of OCBC
20 Apnt 2006

Independent Status
Independent from management and business relationships




Further Information on Directors

TAN SRI DATO NASRUDDIN BIN BAHARI

Current Directorships {and Appointments)

1 Affin Money Brokers Sendinan Berhad Chairman
2 OCBC Bank (Malaysia) Berhad Charrman
3 OCBC Credit Berhad Chairman
4 Sumber Petroleum Cemerlang (SPC) Sendman Berhad Chairman
5  Lingkaran Trans Kota Holdings Berhad {LITRAK)* Director
6  QCBC Adwisers (Malaysia) Sendinan Berhad Director
7  Road Builder {Malaysia) Holdings Berhad™ Director
8  Tan Sn Chua Family Foundation Director
9  The Pacific Insurance Berhad Director
* Listed companies

Durectorships (and Appomtments) for the past 3 years

1 PaaficMas Capital Sendinan Berhad Director

Academic and Professional Qualifications
Bachelor of Arts (Honours), University of Malaya (Singapore)
Master of Public Administration, Uriversity of Pittsburgh, USA

OCBC Board Commirttees Served On
Member, Audit Committee
Member, Remuneration Commuttee

Date of First Appointment as a Director of OCBC
Director since 13 November 2000

Date of Last Re-election as a Director of OCBC

30 March 2005

Independent Status
Independent director
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Further Information on Directors

PROFESSOR NEO BOON SIONG

Current Directorships (and Appomtments)

1 English Xchange Pte Ltd Director
2 Great Eastern Hotdings Lid* Director
3 ] Launtzen Singapore Pte Ltd Durector
4 Keppel Offshore & Manne Ltd Director
S  The Great Eastern Life Assurance Co Ltd Director
6  The Overseas Assurance Corporation Ltd Director
7 Goods and Services Tax Board of Review Member
8  Income Tax Board of Review Member
9 Secunties Industry Council Member
* Listed companies

Directorships (and Appointments) for the past 3 years

1 Informatics Hotdings Ltd Director
2 National Community Leadership Institute Board Member
3 Education Services Accreditation Council Member
4 Institute of Defence & Strategic Studres Governor

Academic and Professional Qualifications
Bachelor of Accountancy (Honours),

National University of Singapore

Master of Business Administration and Ph D,
University of Prttsburgh

OCBC Board Committees Served On
Member, Audit Committee
Member, Risk Committee
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Date of First Appointment as a Director of OCBC

Director since 1 January 2005

Date of Election as a Dtrector of OCBC
30 March 2005

Independent Status
Independent director




Further Information on Directors

MR PRAMUKT! SURJAUDAJA

Current Directorships (and Appointments)

1 PT Bank NISP Tbk*

2  Lembaga Pendidikan Perbankan Indonesia {fully owned by Bank Indonesia),

Education & Training Evaluation Commuttee

3 Perbanas {Indonesian Private Banks Association)
Internaiional Relationship Committee

4 International and East Asia Councils of Insead, France

President Director

Commitiee Member

Committee Member

Board Member

5  Parahyangan Catholic University Advisor
* Listed companies
Duectorships (and Appointments) for the past 3 years
Academic and Professional Qualifications Date of First Appointment as a Director of OCBC
Bachelor of Science (Finance & Banking), 1 June 2005
San Francisco State University
Master of Business Administration (Banking}, Date of Election as a Director of OCBC
Golden Gate University, San Francisco 20 April 2006
Participant in Special Programs in International Relatians,
International University of Japan Independent Status

Not independent director
OCBC Board Commuttees Served On
Member, Risk Committee
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Further Information on Directors

DR TSAO YUAN (also known as Dr Lee Tsao Yuan)

Current Directorships (and Appointments)

1 Keppel Corporation Ltd* Director
2 SBC Consulting {(Shanghai) Co Ltd Director
3 Skills Development Centre (North China) Pte Ltd Director
4 Skills Development Centre Pte Ltd Director
* Listed companies

Directorships (and Appotntments) for the past 3 years

1 CDC Consulting Sendinan Berhad Director
2 CDC Management Development Sendirtan Berhad Director
3 Pacfusion Ltd Director
4 Paafic Internet Ltd Director
5  Singapore International Foundation Governor

Academic and Professional Qualifications

Bachelor of Economics and Statistics (First Class Honours),
University of Singapore

Ph D {Economics), Harvard University

OCBC Board Committees Served On

Member, Audit Committee
Member, Remuneration Committee
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Date of First Appointment as a Director of OCBC
Director since 3 Aprl 2002

Date of Last Re-election as a Director of OCBC
30 March 2005

Independent Status
Independent director




Further Information on Directors

COL (RET) DAVID WONG CHEONG FOOK

Current Directorships (and Appointments}

1 Ascendas-MGM Funds Management Ltd Director
2 Bank of Singapore Lid Director
3 Banking Computer Services Pte Ltd Director
4 BCS Information Systems Pte Ltd Director
5  Jurong International Holdings Pte Ltd Director
6  LMA International Nv* Durector
7 OCBC Bank {Malaysia) Berhad Director
8  Pan-United Manne Ltd* Director
9  Singapore Chinese Girls’ School Director
i0 Teva Pharmaceutical Investments Singapore Pte Ltd Director
1t National Environment Agency Member
* Listed companies

Directorships (and Appointments) for the past 3 years

1 EM Services Pte Ltd Chairman
2 Cwil Service College Director
3 Pacfic Internet Ltd Director
4 Defence Science & Technology Agency Member
5  Housing & Development Board Member
6  Public Transport Councll Member
7  ECOIndustnal Environmental Engineering Pte Ltd Adwisor

Academic and Professional Qualifications

Bachelor of Arts (Honours) in Economics, University

of Cambridge

Master of Arts, University of Cambridge

Member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales

Member of the Institute of Certified Public Accountants

In Singapore

OCBC Board Committees Served On
Member, Audit Committee
Member, Nominating Committee

Date of First Appointment as a Director of OCBC
Director since 1 August 1999

Date of Last Re-election as a Director of OCBC
15 Apnl 2004

Independent Status
Independent director
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Further Information on Directors

MR WONG NANG JANG

Current Directorships {and Appointments)

Banking Computer Services Pte Lid
BCS Information Systems Pte Ltd
WEBL Corporation Ltd™

Bank of Singapore Ltd

SIA Engineering Co Ltd*
Singapore Symphomia Co Ltd

The PacificMas Berhad*

PT Bank NISP Tbk*

Listed companies

=00 N s W N =

Directorships (and Appointments) for the past 3 years

Chairman
Chairman
Charrman
Director
Drrector
Director
Dhrector
Commussioner

1 Global Investment Holdings Ltd
2 Second Singapore Note and Coin Advisory Committee

Academic and Professional Qualifications
Bachelor of Arts in Economics (Honours),
University of Singapore

OCBC Board Committees Served On
Member, Executive Committee
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Director
Member

Date of First Appointment as a Director of OCBC
Director since 1 August 1988

Date of Last Re-election as a Director of QCBC
30 March 2005

Independent Status
Independent director




Further Information on Directors

MR PATRICK YEOH

Current Directorships {and Appointments)

1 Tuan Sing Holdings Ltd* Chairman
2 GITI fire Company Ltd* Deputy Charrman
3 Accuron Technologres Ltd Director
4  MobileOne Ltd* Director
5  Three on the Bund Ltd Director
6  Times Publishing Ltd Director
7 Nun Holdings (5} Pte Ltd Adwvisor
8  The EDB Society Adwisor
* Listed companies
Directorships (and Appointments) for the past 3 years
1 Singapere Aerospace Manufactunng Pte Ltd Director
Singapore Food Industries Ltd Director
Economic Development Board's Entrepreneur Development Fund Member

Loans Commitiee

Academic and Professional Qualifications
Bachelor of Science {Honours), University of Malaya (Singapore)

OCBC Board Committees Served On
Chairman, Risk Committee
Member, Executive Committee

Date of First Appointment as a Director of OCBC
Director since 9 July 2001

Date of Last Re-election as a Director of OCBC
20 Apnl 2006

Independent Status
Independent director

OCBC Annual Report 2006 [ 189




Additional Information Required Under The SGX Listing Manual

INTERESTED PERSON TRANSACTIONS

Interested person transactions carned out during the finanaal year under review

Aggregate value of all
interested person transactions
during the financial year under
review (excluding transactions
less than 5$5100,000 and
transactions conducted under
shareholders” mandate pursuant

Aggregate value of all
interested person transactions
during the financial year
under review conducted
under shareholders” mandate
pursuant to Rule 920
{excluding transactions less

to Rule 920} than 5%100,000)
2006 2006

Name of interested person 5%°000 557000
Lee Rubber Company Private Limited 301 -
- lease of office premises at OCBC Centre
OWW Capital Partners Pte Ltd 401 -
- lease of office premises at OCBC Centre
John Little Private Limited ¢ 1,134 -
- lease of premises at Speciglists’ Shopping Centre
PT Udayawira Utama 4,675 -
- sale of 3 floors at Bank NISP Tower
Dr Cheong Choong Kong See below @ -

- See helow @

" Following the divestment of 29 9% sharehalding i Robinson and Company Lirmited by the Bank, together with Orient Holdings Private Limited a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Bank and certain wholly-owned subsidianes of Great Eastern Holdings Limited on 16 June 2006 John Little Private Limited has ceased to be an interested person pursuant to Rule

904(4)b) of the SGX Listing Manual with effect from 16 June 2006

@ On 12 June 2006, an agreement was made between Dr Cheong Choong Kong (*Dr Cheong*) Non-Executive Director and Chairman of the Bank and OCEC Management Services
Private Limited a wholly-owned subsidrary of the Bank under which Dr Cheong 1s appointed as consultant to oversee and supervise the strategic planning of the Bank and its
subsidianes wath respect to talent tdentification and the development and the succession of senior management within the group  Under the agreement, Or Cheong will be entrtted
to payments and benefits as consulttant with an aggregate value of 531,183,700 per annum (prorated for any part of a year) which includes a variable bonus of 59100 000 per annum
but such varabie bonus may include any additional amount in excess of 5$100,000 as the Remuneration Commuttee of the Bank may in its discretion agree The aggregate maximum
value of the payments and benefits over the 3 year period 15 553 551 101 (not including any vanation to the variable bonus) For the financial year ended 31 December 2006, the
aggregate value of the payments and benefits made far July to December 2006 to Dr Cheong was 58556 071

MATERIAL CONTRACTS

Since the end of the previous finanaal year, no matenial contract involving the interest of any Director or controlling shareholder of the
Bank has been entered into by the Bank or any of its subsidiary comparies, and no such contract subsisted as at 31 December 2006
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Principal Network

PRINCIPAL NETWORK BANKING
OVERSEA-CHINESE BANKING
CORPORATION LIMITED
Singapore {(Head Office)

65 Chulia Street

OCBC Centre

Singapore 049513

Tel (65)63187222

Fax (65) 6533 7955

AUSTRALIA

Sydney Branch
Level 2

75 Castlereagh Street
Sydney NSW 2000
Austraha

Tel {61) 29235 2022
Fax (61)2 9221 4360

Melbourne Branch
Level 3

565 Bourke Street
Melbourne VIC 3000
Australia

Tel (61} 39612 7588
Fax (61)3 9614 2290

BRUNEI

Bandar Sen Begawan Branch
Unit G 03 Ground Floor Black D
Kompleks Yayasan

Sultan Hajl Hassanal Bolkiah
Jalan Pretty

Bandar Sen Begawan BS 8711
Brunei Darussalam

Tel (673) 2230826

Fax (673} 2230 283

CHINA

China Regional Office
Pudong, Shanghal Branch

23F Tomson Commercial Bullding
710 Dong Fang Road

Pudonﬁ

ShanF a1 200122
People’s Republic of China
Tel (86) 21 5820 0200
Fax (86)21 5830 1925

Puxi, Shangha! Branch
120 Jiu liang Road
Shanghal 200002
People’s Republic of China
Tel (86) 216323 3888
Fax (86)21 6329 0838

Chengdu Branch

7A-H Western China Business Tower
19 Ren Min Nan Road Section 4
Chengdu

Sichuan 610041

People’s Republic of China

Tel (86) 28 8663 9888

Fax (86)28 8526 8638

Tianjin Branch

Unit 511

Tianyin international Building
75 Nanjing Road

Ttanpin 300050

People’s Republic of China
Tel (86) 22 2339 2911

Fax (86) 22 23399611

Xiamen Branch

23E International Plaza

8 Lu hang Dao

Xiamen 361001

People’s Republic of China
Tel (86) 592 202 2653
Fax (86)592 203 5182

Beijing Representative Office
7 han Guo Men Net Avenue
Unit 920, Tower 2

Bright China Changan Building
Beying 100005

People’s Republic of China

Tel (86) 10 6510 1920

Fax (86} 1065101923

Qingdao Representative Office
9 Nanhal Road

7th Floor, Unit 07-00

Huiquan Dynasty Hotel

Qingdao, Shandong 266003
People’s Republic of China

Tel (86) 532 8296 2398

Fax (86) 532 8296 1092

HONG KONG SAR

Hong Kong Branch

9/F, Nine Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong SAR

Tel (852) 2868 2086

Fax (852) 2845 3439

INDONESIA

Jakarta Main Branch

Wisma GKBI Suite 2201

talan Jendral Sudirman No 28
Jakarta 10210

Indonesia

Tel (62} 215740222

Fax (62) 21 574 2666

Surabaya Branch
Mandin Tower

Suite Z09 (01-03A}

Ji Basuki Rakhmad 2-6
Surabaya 60262
Indonesia

Tel (62) 315326736
Fax (62) 31 532 6697

Medan Branch

Wisma Bank Interpational Indonesia
6th Floor Suite 602

JI Diponegoro No 18

Medan 20152

Indonesia

Tel (62)61 415 8779

Fax (62)61 41559390

Bandung

Graha Bumi Putera

3rd Floor Surte 302

Il Asia Afnka No 141-149
Bandung 40112 Java Barat
Indonesia

Tel (62)22 420 2132/2133
Fax (62)22 4202455

PT Bank NISP Thk
Bank NISP Tower

Il Prof Dr Satno Kav 25
Jakarta 12940
Indonesta

Tel (62) 21 2553 3888
Fax (62) 21 5794 4000

Bank NISP has over 250 branches and
offices i Indonesia

JAPAN

Tokyo Branch

Akasaka Twin Tower Main Building
15th Floor

17-22 Akasaka 2-chome
Minato-ku, Tokyo 107-0052

Japan

Tel (81) 3 5570 3421

Fax (81) 3 5570 3426

LABUAN

Level 8(C), Main Office Tower
Financial Park Labuan

Jalan Merdeka

87000 Labuan

Federal Terntory Malaysia

Tel (087) 423 381/82

Fax {087} 423 390

MALAYSIA

OCBC Bank (Malaysia) Berhad
Menara OCBC

18 Jalan Tun Perak

50050 Kuala Lumpur

Malaysia

Tel (603) 2034 5034

Fax (603) 2698 4363

Onhine Banking hitp/ecafe ocbc com my
OCBC PhoneBank

Within Malaysia

1-300-88-5000 Personal

1-300-88-7000 Corporate

Outside Malaysia

03-8317 5000 Personal

03-8317 5200 Corporate

OCBC sqnu:=' kepor 2006 [ 191




Principal Network

MYANMAR
Representative Office
Sakura Tower

Unit 1202, 12th Floor

339 Bogyoke Aung San Road
Kyauktada Township

Yangon

Union of Myanmar

Tel (951) 255 409

Fax (951) 255410

SOUTH KOREA

Seoul Branch

Ace Tower 20th Floor

1-170 Soonhwa-dong, Chung-ku
Seoul, Korea

Postal Code 100-712

Tel {82) 2 754 4355

Fax (82)2 754 2343

TAIWAN

Taiper Branch

205 Tun Hwa North Road
Bank Tower

Suite 403, 4th Floor
Taipet 105, Tawan
Republic of China

Tel (886) 2 2718 8819
Fax (886)2 27180138

THAILAND
Bangkok Branch
Unit 1502, 15th Floor
Q House Lumpin

1 South Sathorn Road
Tungmahamek,
Bangkok 10120
Thailand

Tel (66) 2 287 9838
Fax (66) 2 287 9898

UNITED KINGDOM
London Branch

8th Floor, Aldermary House
10-15 Queen Street
London ECAN 1TX

United Kingdom

Tel {44) 20 7653 0900

Fax (44) 207489 1132

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
Los Angeles Agency

1000 Wilshire Boulevard

Suite 1940

Los Angeles CA 90017

United States of America

Tel (1)213 624 1189

Fax {1)213624 1386

New York Agency
1700 Broadway 18/F
New York NY 10019
Unuted States of Amenca
Tel {1)212 5866222
Fax (1) 212 586 0636
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VIETNAM

Ho Chi Minh City Branch
Unit 708-709, Level 7
Saigon Tower

25 te Duan Street

District 1

Ho Chi Minh City

Vietnam

Tel (84) 8 823 2627

Fax (84) 88232611

BANK OF SINGAPORE LTD
Registered Address

65 Chulia Street

#29-00 OCBC Centre
Singapore 049513

Business Address

18 Church Street

#01-00 OCBC Centre South
Singapore 049479

Tel (65) 6586 3200

Fax (65) 6438 3718

INSURANCE

Great Eastern Holdings Ltd
1 Pickering Street

#13-01 Great Eastern Centre
Singapore 048659

Tel (65) 6248 2000

Fax (65) 6532 2214

ASSET MANAGEMENT
Singapore

Lion Capital Management Ltd
One George Street

#08-01

Singapore 049145

Tel (65) 6417 6800

Fax (65)6417 6801

NOMINEES

Singapore
Oversea-Chinese Bank
Nominees Pte Ltd

63 Chulia Street

#03-01 OCBC Centre East
Singapore 049514

Tel (65} 65301235

Fax {65) 6533 3770

Australia

OCBC Nominees
(Australia) Pty Ltd

Level 2, 75 Castlereagh Street
Sydney NSW 2000

Austraha

Tel (61)2 9235 2022

Fax {61) 2 9221 4360

Hong Kong SAR

OCBC Nominees

(Hong Kong) Ltd

9/F Ntne Queen's Road Ceniral
Hong Kong SAR

Tel (852) 2868 2086

Fax (852) 2845 3439

Malaysia

Malaysia Nominees

(Asing) Sendinan Berhad
Malaysia Nominees
(Tempatan) Sendinan Berhad
Level 13, Menara OCBC

18 Jalan Tun Perak

50050 Kuala Lumpur

Malaysia

Tel (603) 2034 5034

Fax (603) 2698 4420/ (603) 2694 3691

OCBC Advisers (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd
Suite 1005, 10th Floor,

Wisma Hamzah-Kwong Hing,

No 1 Leboh Ampang,

50100 Kuala Lumpur

PROPERTY MANAGEMENT
Singapore

OCBC Property Services Pte Ltd
18 Cross Street

#11-01/03 China Square Central
Singapore 048423

Tel (65) 65330818

Fax (65) 6536 1464

STOCKBROKING & FUTURES
BROKING

Singapore

OCBC Secunities Pte Ltd

18 Church Street

#01-00 QCBC Centre South
Singapore 049479

Tel {65} 6535 2882

Fax (65} 6534 0025

TRUSTEE

Singapore

OCBC Trustee Ltd

63 Chuba Street

#03-01 OCBC Centre East
Singapere 049514

Tel {65) 65301786

Fax (65) 6538 6316




Financial Calendar

Announcernent of annual results for 2006
Annual General Meeting

Payment of 2006 final dividend on ordinary shares
(subject to shareholders® approval at AGM)

Announcement of first quarter resuits for 2007

Payment of semi-annual dvidend on preference shares
(subject to approval of the Board)

Announcement of second quarter results for 2007

Payment of 2007 intenm dividend
(subject to approval of the Board)

Announcement of third quarter results for 2007

Payment of semi-annual dividend on preference shares
(subject to approval of the Board)

22 February 2007
19 April 2007

18 May 2007

May 2007

20 June 2007

August 2007

Sepiember 2007

November 2007

21 December 2007
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Notice Of Annual General Meeting
OVERSEA-CHINESE BANKING CORPORATION LIMITED (Incorporated in Singapore)
Co Registration No 193200032W

Motrce 1s hereby given that the Seventieth Annual General Meeting of Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation Limited (“the Bank*)
will be held at Raffles City Convention Centre, Level 4, Canming Room, 2 Stamford Road, Singapore 178882, on Thursday, 19 Apnt
2007 at 2 30 p m to transact the following business

1

A

194 ]

To

recewve and consider the audited Accounts for the financial year ended 31 December 2006 and the reports of the Directors and

Auditors thereon

{a)

(b)

To
To

To re-appoint the following Directors, each of whom will retire under Section 153(6) of the Companies Act, Cap 50, to hold
office from the date of this Annual General Meeting until the next Annual General Meeting

(0 Mr Lee Seng Wee
() Mr Michael Wong Pakshong

To elect Directors retinng by rotation
{1 Mr David Philbrick Conner
() Mr Giam Chin Toon
(n) Dr Tsao Yuan
{v) Col {Ret} David Wong Cheong Fook
approve a final tax-exempt dividend of 12 cents per ordinary share, m respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2006

approve the remuneration of the non-executive Directors of the Bank for the financial year ended 31 December 2006 comprising

the following

{a)
(b}

Directors’ Fees of $$1,019,000 (2005 - $$909,000)

4,800 ordinary shares in the ¢apital of the Bank for each non-executive Director of the Bank (2005 - 4,800 ordinary shares},
and for this purpose to pass the following Resolution with or without amendments as an ordinary resolution

That

(1}  pursuant to Article 140 of the Articles of Assocration of the Bank, the Directors of the Bank be and are hereby authorsed
to allot and 1ssue an aggregate of 52,800 ordinary shares in the capital of the Bank (the “Remuneration Shares”) as bonus
shares for which no consideration 15 payable, to The Central Depository {Pte) Limited for the account of

(1)  Mr Michael Wong Pakshong (or for the account of such deposttory agent as he may direct} in respect of 4,800
Remuneration Shares,

(2} Mr Bobby Chin Yoke Choong (or for the account of such depository agent as he may direct) Iin respect of 4,800
Remuneration Shares,

{3) MrGiam Chin Toon (or for the account of such depository agent as he may direct} in respect of 4,800 Remuneration Shares,
{4) Mr Lee Seng Wee (or for the account of such depository agent as he may direct) in respect of 4,800 Remuneration Shares,
{S)  Dr Lee Tih Shih (or for the account of such depository agent as he may direct) in respect of 4,800 Remuneration Shares,

(6) Tan Sn Dato Nasruddin Bin Bahan (or for the account of such depository agent as he may direct) In respect of
4,800 Remuneration Shares,

{7) Professor Neo Boon Siong (or for the account of such depository agent as he may direct) in respect of 4,800
Remuneration Shares,

{8) DrTsao Yuan (or for the account of such depository agent as she may direct) in respect of 4,800 Remuneration Shares,

(9) Col{Ret) David Wong Cheong Fook (or for the account of such depository agent as he may direct) in respect of 4,800
Remuneration Shares,

(10) MrWong Nang Jang (or for the account of such depository agent as he may direct) in respect of 4,800 Remuneration
Shares, and

{11) Mr Patnick Yeoh Khwar Hoh {or for the account of such depository agent as he may direct) in respect of 4,800
Remuneration Shares,

as payment in part of therr respective non-executive Directors’ remuneration for the financial year ended 31 December
2006, the Remuneration Shares to rank in all respects par passu with the existing ordinary shares, and
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Notice Of Annual General Meeting
OVERSEA-CHINESE BANKING CORPORATION LIMITED (Incorporated in Singapore)
Co Registration no 193200032W

{w) any Director of the Bank or the Setretary be authonsed to do alt things necessary or deswable 10 give effect to
the above

5 To appoint Auditors and fix their remuneration

6 AsSpecal Business

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following Resolutions with or without amendments as ordinary resolutions

Ordinary Resolutions

/o

(b)

That authority be and 1s hereby given to the Directors of the Bank to

() () 1ssue ordinary shares in the capital of the Bank (" ordinary shares”) whether by way of nights, bonus or othenwise,
and/or

(n  make or grant offers, agreements or options (collectively, " Instruments*”) that might or would require ordinary shares
to be issued, including but not imited to the creation and i1ssue of (as well as adjustments to) warrants, debentures
or other instruments convertible into ardinary shares,

at any time and upon such terms and conditions and for such purposes and to such persons as the Directors may in therr
absolute discretion deem fit, and

(Il (notwithstanding the authonty conferred by this Resolution may have ceased to be in force) 1ssue ordinary shares in
pursuance of any Instrument made or granted by the Directors while this Resolution was n force,

provided that

(1) the aggregate number of ordinary shares to be 1ssued pursuant to this Resolution {Including ordinary shares to be issued
in pursuance of Instruments made or granted pursuant io this Resolution) does not exceed 50 per cent of the issued
ordinary shares in the capital of the Bank (as calculated in accordance with paragraph (2) below), of which the aggregate
number of crdinary shares to be 1ssued other than on a pro rata basis to shareholders of the Bank {including ordinary
shares to be 1ssued In pursuance of Instruments made or granted pursuant to this Resolution) does not exceed 20 per cent
of the 1ssued ordinary shares in the capital of the Bank {as calculated in accordance with paragraph (2) below),

{2) (subject to such manner of calculation and adjustments as may be prescribed by the Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited ("SGX-ST“}) for the purpose of determining the aggregate number of ordinary shares that may be 1ssued
under paragraph (1) above, the percentage of 1ssued ordinary shares shall be based on the number of ssued ordinary
shares in the capital of the Bank at the tume this Resolution 1s passed, after adjusting for

(»  new ordinary shares arising from the conversion or exercise of any convertible securities or share options or vesting
of share awards whuch are outstanding o subsisting at the time this Resolution s passed, and

{(n) any subsequent consolidation or subdivision of ordinary shares,

{(3) inexercising the authonty conferred by this Resolution, the Bank shall comply with the provisions of the Listing Manual of
the SGX-ST for the time being in force {unless such compliance has been wawved by the SGX-ST) and the Artcles of
Association for the time being of the Bank, and

(4) (unless revoked or varied by the Bank in General Meeting) the authonity conferred by this Resolution shall continue in force
until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Bank or the date by which the next Annual General
Meeting of the Bank is required by law to be held, whichever is the earfier

That authonty be and 1s hereby given to the Directors of the Bank to

() offer and grant options in accordance waith the provisions of the OCBC Share Option Scheme 2001 (the “2001 Scheme*)
and/or grant nghts to subscribe for ordinary shares tn accordance with the provisions of the OCBC Employee Share
Purchase Plan {the “Plan”), and

(I} allot and issue from time to time such number of ordinary shares in the caprial of the Bank as may be required to be 1ssued
pursuant to the exerase of options under the 2001 Scheme and/ar such number of ordinary shares in the capital of the
Bank as may be required to be 1ssued pursuant to the exercise of nights to subscribe for ordinary shares under the Plan,

provided that the aggregate number of new ordinary shares io be issued pursuant to 2001 Scheme and the Plan shall not
exceed 5 per cent of the total number of 1ssued ordinary shares in the capital of the Bank from time to time
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Notice Of Annual General Meeting
OVERSEA-CHINESE BANKING CORPORATION LIMITED {Incorporated in Singapore)
Co Registration no 193200032W

\/c‘) That
() authority be and 1s hereby given to the Directors of the Bank to

() allotandissue preferencesharesreferredtomArticles 7A, 7B, 7C, 7D, 7€, 7F 7G, 7H, 71, 7), 7K, 7Land 7M of the Articles
of Assocation of the Bank, other preference shares or non-voting shares in the capital of the Bank whether by way of
rights, bonus or otherwise, and/or

() make orgrant offers, agreements or options that might or would require preference shares referred to in sub-paragraph
(1) above or non-voting shares to be 1ssued, not being ordinary shares towhich the authority referred to in Resolution 6(a)
above relates,

at any time and upon such terms and condittons and for such purposes and to such persons as the Directors may in therr
absolute discretion deem fit, and (notwithstanding the authority conferred by this Resolution may have ceased to be in force)
Issue preference shares referred to in sub-paragraph (1) above or non-voting shares in pursuance of any offers, agreements or
options made or granted by the Directors while this Resolution was in force, and

() {unless revoked or vaned by the Bank in General Meeting) the authority conferred by this Resolution shall continue in force

until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Bank or the date by which the next Annual General Meeting
of the Bank 1s required by law to be held, whichever 15 the earlier

By order of the Board

PETER YEOH
Secretary

Singapore
26 March 2007

Notes

A member of the Bank entitled to attend and vote at the above Meeting may appeint not more than two proxies 10 attend and vote on his behalf A proxy need not be a member
of the Bank The instrument appointing a proxy or proxies must be deposited at the Share Registration Office of the Bank at M&C Services Private Limited 138 Robinson Road
#17-00, The Corporate Office Singapore 068906 not less than 48 hours before the me set for holding the Meeting
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Notice Of Annual General Meeting
OVERSEA-CHINESE BANKING CORPORATION LIMITED (Incorporated in Singapore)
Co Registration no 193200032wW

CLOSURE OF BOOKS

Notice 1s hereby given that, subject to Shareholders’ approval at the Annual General Meeting of the Bank to be held on 19 Apnl
2007 of the payment of the final tax-exempt dividend of 12 cents for each ordinary share, in respect of the financial year ended 31
December 2006, the Transfer Books and the Register of Shareholders of the Bank will be closed from 3 May 2007 to 4 May 2007 (both
dates inclusive} for the purpose of determining the entitiement of Shareholders to the final tax-exempt dvidend of 12 cents for each

ordinary share held

Duly completed registrable transfers of ordinary shares receved by the Bank’s Share Registrar, M & C Services Private Limited, 138
Robinson Road #17-00, The Corporate Office, Singapore 068906 up to 500 pm on 2 May 2007 will be registered in order 1o
determine the entitlement of Shareholders to the final dwvidend Shareholders whose Secunties Accounts with The Central Depository
{Pte) Limited are ¢redited with ordinary shares as at 500 p m on 2 May 2007 will be entitled to the final dvidend

The final dvidend, if approved by Shareholders, wili be paid on 18 May 2007
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OVERSEA-CHINESE BANKING CORPORATION LIMITED (Incorporated in Singapore)
Co Registrabion No 193200032wW

The Ordinary Resolution set cut in Item 4(b) authorises the Directors of the Bank to issue ordinary shares in the capital of the Bank to
certain nan-executive Directors as part of ther remuneration for the financial year ended 31 Decerber 2006 A non-executive Director
of the Bank is only eligible for the award of ordinary shares if he has served a full annual term, that 1s, from 1 January to 31 December
of the year preceding the award The non-executive Directors who are eligible for, and will recewve, the award of ordinary shares as part
of their remuneration for the financial year ended 31 December 2006 are Mr Michael Wong Pakshong, Mr Bobby Chin Yoke Choong,
Mr Giam Chin Toon, Mr Lee Seng Wee, Dr Lee Tih Shih, Tan Sni Dato Nasruddin Bin Bahari, Professor Neo Boen Siong, Dr Tsao Yuan,
Col {Ret) David Wong Cheong Fook, Mr Wong Nang Jang and Mr Patnck Yeoh Khwal Hoh

Dr Cheong Choeng Kong and Mr Pramukts Surfaudaja, both non-executive Directors of the Bank, have each declined to accept any
award of remuneration shares for the financial year ended 31 December 2006

It 15 proposed that, for the financial year ended 31 December 2006, 4,800 ordinary shares be 1ssued to each non-executive Director
The proposed award of ordinary shares 15 in addition to the Dtrectors’ fees in cash to be proposed under liem 4(a)

The issue of ordinary shares under Item 4(b) will be made pursuant to Article 140 of the Articles of Associatron of the Bank by way of
the issue of bonus shares for which no consideration Is payable Such ordinary shares will, upon 1ssue, rank part passu with the existing
ordinary shares in the cagntal of the Bank The issue of such ordinary shares 15 also subject to the in-principle approval of the Singapore
Exchange Securities Trading Limited (the “SGX-5T") for the Iisting and quotation of such ordinary shares Such approval m-principle
from the SGX-ST was given on 7 March 2007 subject to (a) specific Shareholders’ approval being obtained for the proposed i1ssue of
such ordinary shares to the non-executive Directors pursuant to the relevant requirements of the Listing Manual of the $GX-ST, and (b)
abstention from voting by the non-executve Directors and ther associates on the proposed issue of such ordinary shares The SGX-ST's
approval in-pnnciple 1s not an indication of the menits of the proposed 1ssue of such ordmary shares

The non-executive Directors who will each, subject to Shareholders’ approval, be awarded 4,800 ordinary shares as part of therr
remuneration for the finangial year ended 31 December 2006, will abstain from voting in respect of, and will procure therr associates
to abstain from voting in respect of, the Ordmary Resolution set out in Item 4(b), being the Ordinary Resolution relating to the proposed
1ssue of ordinary shares to each of them respectively to be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting

Special Business

The Ordinary Resolution set out i ltem 6{a} authonses the Directors of the Bank from the date of that meeting unty the next annual
general meeting to 1ssue ordinary shares in the capital of the Bank and to make or grant insiruments (such as warrants or debentures)
convertible into ordinary shares, and to issue ordinary shares in pursuance of such instruments, up to a number not exceeding fifty per
cent {50%) of the 1ssued ordinary shares in the capital of the Bank, with a sub-limit of twenty per cent {20%) for issues other than
on a pro rata basis to Shareholders  For the purpose of determining the aggregate number of ordinary shares that may be 1ssued,
the percentage of 1ssued ordinary shares shall be based on the number of issued ordinary shares in the capital of the Bank at the
time this proposed Ordinary Resolution 1s passed, after adjusting for (a) new ordinary shares arising from the conversion or exercise of
any convertible secunties or share options or vesting of share awards which are outstanding or subsisting at the time this proposed
Ordinary Resolution 15 passed, and (b) any subsequent consolidation or subdivision of ordinary shares For the avaidance of doubt,
any consolidation or sub-division of ardinary shares in the capital of the Bank will require Shareholders’ approval The Directors will only
1ssue ordinary shares under this Resolution if they consider i1 necessary and in the interests of the Bank

The Crdinary Resolution set out in item 6(b} authonses the Directors to offer and grant options 1n accordance with the prowisions of
the OCBC Share Option Scheme 2001 {the “2001 S5cheme”) and/or to grant nghts to subscribe for ordinary shares in accordance with
the provisions of the OCBC Employee Share Purchase Plan (the "Plan”), and to allot and 1ssue ordinary shares under the 2001 Scheme
and the Plan  Although the Rules of the 2001 Scheme prowide that the aggregate number of new ordinary shares which may be 1ssued
pursuant to the 2001 Scheme shall not exceed 10 per cent of the total number of 1ssued ordinary shares in the capital of the Bank from
time to time, and the Rules of the Plan provide that the aggregate number of new ordinary shares which may be issued pursuant to
the Plan, when aggregated with the aggregate number of new ordinary shares which may be 1ssued pursuant to the OCBC Executives’
Share Option Scheme 1994 and the 2001 Scheme, shall not exceed 15 per cent of the total number of 1ssued ordinary shares in the
capital of the Bank from time to time, the Ordinary Resolution set out in item &6(b) prowides for a lower mit, namely, that the aggregate
number of new ordinary shares which maK be issued Pursuant to the 2001 Scheme and the Plan shall not exceed 5 per cent of the
total number of 1ssued ordhinary shares in the capital of the Bank from time to time, as the Bank does not anticipate that it will require
a higher limit before the next Annual General Meeting

The Qrdinary Resolution set out in Item 6(c) authorises the Directors of the Bank from the date of that meeting until the next annual
general meeting ta issue preference shares referred to in Articles 74, 7B, 7C, 7D, 7E, 7F 7G, 7H, 71, 7), 7K, 7L and 7M of the Articles
of Association of the Bank, other preference shares or non-voting shares m the capital of the Bank and/or to make or grant offers,
agreements or options that might or would require such preference shares or non-voting shares to be 1ssued The Directors will only
1ssue such preference shares or non-voting shares under this Resolution « they consider i necessary and in the nterests of the Bank

By order of the Board

PETER YEOH
Secretary

Singapore
26 March 2007
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Proxy Form
OVERSEA-CHINESE BANKING CORPORATION LIMITED (Incorporated in Singapore)
Co Registration No 193200032W

IMPORTANT

This Proxy Form 1s not valid for use by the following and shall be meffective for all intents and purposes if used or purported to be used by thern
(a) Investors who have used their CPF monies to buy OCBC ordinary shares
{b) Holders of all classes of OCBC non-cumulative, non-convertible preference shares

Iwe,

of
being a shareholder/sharehalders of the abovenamed Bank, hereby appoint

Proportion of
Name Address NRIC/Passport No Shareholdings (%)

and/or (delete as approprate)

as my/our proxy/proxies to attend and to vote for mefus on my/our behalf and, if necessary, to demand a poll, at the annual general meeting of the
Bank to be held at Raffles City Canvention Centre Level 4, Canning Room, 2 Stamford Road, Singapore 178882, on 19 April 2007 at 2 30 pm and
at any adjournment thereof

IZWe have mdicated with an “X" n the appropriate box against such item how liwe wish my/our proxy/proxies to voie i no speafic direction as
to voung 1s given or In the event of any item ansing not summansed below, myfour proxy/proxies may vote or abstan at the discretion of my/our
proxy/proxies

No | Resolutions For Against

i Adoption of Report and Accounts

2 {a) Re-appointment of Directors under {1} Mr Lee Seng Wee
sectron 153(6) of the Compames Act, Cap 50 () Mr Michael Wong Pakshong
{b} Election of Directors retiring by rotation (13 Mr David Philbrick Conner

(1 Mr Giam Chun Toon
() Dr Tsao Yuan
(v) Cal (Ret) Dawid Wong Cheong Fook

Approval of final dvidend

{a) Approval of amount proposed as Directors’ Fees i cash for the financial year ended 31 December 2006

{b) Approval of allotment and 1ssue of ordinary shares to certain non-executive Directors as part of therr
remuneration for the financial year ended 31 December 2006

Appomntrment of Auditors and fixing their remuneration

6 Special Business (a) Authority to allot and 1ssue ordinary shares
{General Share Issue Mandate)

{6} Authonity to grant options and/or nights to
subscnibe for ordinary shares and allot and 1ssue
ordinary shares {(OCBC Share Option Scheme 2001
and OCBC Employee Share Purchase Plan)

(¢} Authonty to allot and 1ssue preference/non-
voting shares (Preference/Non-Voting Share
Issue Mandate)

Total Number of Qrdinary Shares Held
Dated this day of 2007 i

Signature(s) of Shareholder(s) or Common Seal
IMPORTANT PLEASE READ NOTES OVERLEAF

OCBC -~ ¢ 2006 [ 199




Request for Chinese Annual Report
OVERSEA-CHINESE BANKING CORPORATION LIMITED (incorporated in Singapore)
Co Registration No 193200032wW

Please send me *me/us a Chinese version of the OCBC Bank 2006 Annual Report

Name

Unit No

Block No

Bulding No

Building Name

Street Name

Postal Code

Country

* Please delete where appropriate
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NOTES

1 Please insert the total number of ordinary shares (*Shares®) held by you Hf you have Shares entered against your name in the Depository Register (as defined in section 130A of the
Companies Act Cap 50 of Singapere), you should ansert that number of Shares If you have Shares registered in your name in the Register of Members you should insert that number of
Shares If you have Shares entered against your name in the Depository Register and Shares registered in your name in the Register of Members, you should insert the aggregate number
of Shares entered aganst your name 1n the Depository Reqister and registered in your name in the Register of Members  |f no number 1s inserted, the instrument &ppointing a proxy or
proxies shall be deemed to relate to all the Shares held by you

2 Anordinary shareholder {*Shareheolder”) of the Bank entitled to attend and vote at a meeting of the Bank is entitled to appomnt one or two proxies to attend and vote on his bahalf Such
proxy need not be a Shareholder of the Bank

3 Where a Shareholder appounts two proxies, the appointments shall be invalid unless he speufies the proportion of his shareholding {expressed as a percentage of the whole) to be
represented by each proxy

4 The instrument appoINting a proxy or proxies must be deposited at the Share Registration Qffice of the Bank at M&C Services Private Limited, 138 Robinson Road #17-00 The Corporate
Office Singapore 068306 not less than 48 hours before the time set for holding the annual general meeting

5 The instrument appointing a proxy or proxies must be under the hand of the appointor or of his attorney duly authonsed in writing Where the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies
15 executed by a corporation, it must be executed efther under its seal or under the hand of a director or an officer or attorney duly authorised

6 A corporation which 15 a Shareholder may authonse by resolution of its directors or ather governing body such person as 1t thinks fit to act as its representative at the annual generat
meeting, In accordance with section 179 of the Companies Act, Cap 50 of Singapore

7 The Bank shall be entited to reject the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies if it 1s incomplete, improperly completed or illegible or where the true intentions of the appointor are
not ascertainable from the instructions of the appointor speafied in the instrument appointing a proxy or proxtes n addition In the case of a Shareholder whose Shares are entered in
the Depository Registes, the Bank may reject any instrument appointing a proxy or proxies lodged tf the Shareholder, being the appotntor, 1s Rot shown to have Shares entered against his
name tn the Depository Register as at 48 hours before the ume apponted for holding the annual general meeting, as certified by The Central Depositary (Pte} Limited to the Bank
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